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Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Cardile,

Please find attached a supplemental complaint to the SEC’s Office of the Whistleblower, filed today.
We are providing this courtesy copy for your records and for those of the Audit Committee Chair and
the Company’s auditor. As noted, the SEC’s Enforcement Division is copied here, as well.

As noted in the letter, we were surprised to see the contents of the Company’s Form 8-K and
DEFA14A filed this evening—particularly given our December 27 correspondence, which already
specifically anticipated a Rule 14a-9 violation if the Company proceeded with selective disclosure
while claiming to release “all” recent correspondence.

We trust the Board will give this matter the same careful attention it has given to its Section 16
compliance obligations.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 29, 2025

VIA FORM TCR TRANSMISSION

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Office of the Whistleblower

100 F Street, N.E.

Washington, D.C. 20549

Re:  Second Supplemental Complaint — Daily Journal Corporation (NASDAQ: DJCO)
TCR No. [17668-666-546-575, 17668-125-799-623, 17535-452-459-469, 17532-990-865-
245]; Additional Violations Identified and Anticipated

Dear Sir or Madam:

This letter supplements our submissions of December 26 and December 27, 2025 (TCR
Nos. referenced in subject line). We write to report an additional Rule 14a-9 violation arising from
the Form 8-K filed earlier today, December 29, 2025, by the Daily Journal Corporation (the
“Company” or “DJCQO”).

Background.

On December 26, 2025, the Company issued a press release publicly accusing Buxton
Helmsley of “extortion” and a “shakedown,” announcing a referral for criminal prosecution. The
Company knew these accusations were false when it made them.

Our December 13, 2025, letter, which the Company received, and which the Company
itself attached to its Form 8-K as Exhibit 99.2, expressly withdrew a previously contingent
compensation proposal (whereby Buxton Helmsley’s nominees would only fare as well as
shareholders, if elected—turning down compensation). That letter stated that the Company’s
internal controls breakdown was so severe that we would pursue board reconstitution “without
regard for compensation.” Those are the exact words: “without regard for compensation.” The
Company had this letter in its files when it accused us of extortion. It published a press release
alleging we were shaking them down for money, despite possessing written proof, in our own
words, that we had disclaimed any interest in money thirteen days earlier.

Extortion requires a demand for something of value. We demanded nothing but
compliance and oversight. The Company knew we demanded nothing. The accusation was not a
mistake or a mischaracterization—it was a knowing falsehood, published to shareholders and
disseminated via GlobeNewswire, designed to poison our proxy solicitation and deter shareholders
from supporting our nominees.
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The press release also stated that the Company was “releasing all of Mr. Parker’s recent
correspondence” so that “shareholders can review his claims and tactics for themselves.”

Today, the Company filed a Form 8-K attaching selected Buxton Helmsley correspondence
as Exhibits 99.2 through 99.13. The Form 8-K is marked as “Soliciting material pursuant to Rule
14a-12 under the Exchange Act.” The statement that the Company was releasing “all” of Mr.
Parker’s correspondence was false when made and remains false. The Company’s selective
disclosure of correspondence, while claiming to release “all” of it, constitutes a material
misstatement in proxy solicitation material in violation of Rule 14a-9.

As an aside, the Company also filed a DEFA14A today—but the filing is simply the Form
8-K. The Company apparently does not understand the difference between a Form 8-K and a
DEFA14A, or could not be troubled to prepare the correct form. This is the company that accuses
us of making “meritless” and “error-filled” allegations about its internal controls. The Company
cannot even file the correct SEC form when responding to a proxy contest. This is not an isolated
incident; it is consistent with the pattern of compliance failures we have documented: years of
unfiled Section 16 forms, an Audit Committee that regards federal securities laws as “flimsy
technicalities,” a falsely dated Form 8-K that remained uncorrected for five months, and now the
wrong form filed with the SEC during an active proxy solicitation.

Documents Omitted From the Company’s Filing.

We have conducted a systematic comparison of the exhibits attached to the Company’s
Form 8-K against our complete correspondence files. The Company omitted several items of
correspondence, almost all of which contain the most damaging evidence of the Company’s
governance failures and its directors’ disregard for federal securities laws. The omissions are not
random; they appear deliberately calculated to exclude material that contradicts the Company’s
narrative.

The omitted correspondence is described below.
1. December 18, 2025 - Full Rasool Rayani Email Exchange.

The Company’s Exhibit 99.4 includes only Mr. Parker’s initial outreach email to Audit
Committee member Rasool Rayani dated December 15, 2025. The Company omitted the
remainder of the exchange—specifically, Mr. Rayani’s December 18 response and Mr. Parker’s
December 18 rebuttal.

In his response, Mr. Rayani, a sitting member of the Audit Committee charged with
overseeing the Company’s compliance with SEC reporting obligations, dismissed Section 16 of
the Securities Exchange Act as “the flimsiest of technicalities.” This is an extraordinary statement
from an Audit Committee member. Mr. Rayani’s email also revealed a fundamental
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misunderstanding of Form 3 requirements; he suggested that Section 16 filings were triggered by
“the first-ever shares that vested under the directors’ plan,” when in fact Form 3 is due within ten
days of becoming a director, regardless of share ownership.

Mr. Parker’s response corrected this misunderstanding, explained that Form 3 establishes
a baseline at the time of becoming an insider-often showing zero beneficial ownership-and noted
that Mr. Rayani had put his dismissive attitude toward federal securities laws “in writing.” Mr.
Parker also forwarded the exchange to Baker Tilly with commentary on “tone at the top” under
the COSO Internal Control Framework, observing that an Audit Committee which dismisses
federal securities law as a “flimsy technicality” is not demonstrating commitment to compliance.

The Company’s decision to include only Mr. Parker’s initial outreach, while omitting the
Audit Committee member’s dismissive response, is a transparent attempt to hide the most
damaging evidence of the Board’s contempt for its compliance obligations.

2. December 18, 2025 - Private Letter to DJCO Board re Additional Section 16
Violations.

This letter documented that Rasool Rayani, the third member of the Audit Committee, had
never filed a Form 3 or Form 4 during his eighteen months of board service. The letter noted that
the Company had recently filed remedial forms for Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin, yet “somehow, in
the course of this remediation, neither the Company, its management, its outside counsel, nor any
member of the Audit Committee noticed that the third Audit Committee member had no filings at
all.” The letter concluded: “This is not a clerical oversight. Compliance is a function at DJCO that
clearly does not exist.”

The letter established that every single member of the Company’s Audit Committee has
violated Section 16(a)—a fact the Company plainly wished to conceal from shareholders.

3. December 22, 2025 - Notification to John Frank of State Bar Complaint Filed.

This email notified Mr. Frank that the deadline for agreeing to remediate the Company’s
compliance and oversight failures had passed and that Buxton Helmsley had filed a substantive
complaint with the State Bar of California. The email stated that follow-on correspondence would
be submitted if Mr. Frank “overs[aw] another violation of 18 U.S.C. section 1350, by allowing the
Company to continue its ‘significant’ violations of Regulation S-X and ASC 985-20 as part of an
upcoming Form 10-K filing.” All legal threats to exercise a right of requesting regulatory
intervention due to such a sheer will not to comply with the laws of the United States, while
DJCO’s Board now not just deceives shareholders about faulty disclosures, but even manipulates
a proxy contest—we do not know how that does not constitute securities fraud (for false statements
in a proxy filing, 15 U.S.C. § 78ff, 18 U.S.C. § 1001, or 18 U.S.C. § 1348). The fact that DJCO
filed its press release, filled with numerous false statements of “extortion” and otherwise, was
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warned of the falsities and the consequences of false statements in SEC filings, and still filed it as
a DEFA14A today, we do not know what could be more worthy of SEC enforcement action.

The email also stated that the Boards of Directors of Chevron Corporation and The
Beachbody Company were being notified of the circumstances, given that Mr. Frank and Ms.
Conlin serve on those boards’ audit committees and therefore pose an additional danger to other
public investors beyond that of just DJCO. The Company omitted this correspondence because it
demonstrates that the State Bar complaint was actually filed.

4. December 24, 2025 - Letter from DJCO Counsel Rejecting Books and Records
Demand.

The Company omitted the December 24 letter from its outside counsel, Robert Y.
Knowlton of Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, rejecting Buxton Helmsley’s books and records demand.
Mr. Knowlton’s letter claimed that the demand was defective because the registered shareholder
name appeared as “Buxton Helmsley Inc.” rather than “Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.”—a
discrepancy that exists in the Company’s own transfer agent records and that the Company itself
could correct.

This letter is material because it demonstrates the Company’s pattern of erecting procedural
barriers to obstruct shareholder inspection rights during a contested proxy solicitation. The
omission conceals the fact that the Company refused to produce documents that would reveal
Board and Audit Committee discussions regarding the accounting and compliance issues.

5. December 24-27, 2025 - Post-Press Release Correspondence.
The Company omitted all correspondence after December 24, 2025, including:

a) December 26 email correspondence in which Buxton Helmsley responded to the
press release by stating “we will be responding in court shortly”;

b) Buxton Helmsley’s December 26 six-page letter responding to the press release,
which detailed the Company’s continued obstruction of shareholder inspection
rights and demanded compliance with Rule 14a-7 and Section 33-16-102 of the
South Carolina Business Corporation Act; and

c) Buxton Helmsley’s December 27 email transmitting our SEC correspondence to
the Company, the SEC’s Enforcement Division, and the PCAOB, which
documented the Company’s Rule 14a-6(b) violation (DJCO failing to file the
December 26 press release with the SEC the same day of distribution) and
anticipated Rule 14a-9 violation.

By cutting off the record at December 24, the Company prevented shareholders from
seeing Buxton Helmsley’s contemporaneous responses to the false statements in the press
release—the very responses that demonstrate the falsity of those statements. The Board promised
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the release of “all” communications with Buxton Helmsley, and it cherry-picked to avoid entirely
embarrassing itself, but that is the most critical of context to shareholders (i.e., the Board
manipulating the proxy contest through deception).

Rule 14a-9 Violation.

Rule 14a-9 prohibits any proxy solicitation material that is “false or misleading with respect
to any material fact, or which omits to state any material fact necessary in order to make the
statements therein not false or misleading.” The Company’s Form 8-K is marked as proxy
solicitation material under Rule 14a-12. The press release attached as Exhibit 99.1 states that the
Company is “releasing all of Mr. Parker’s recent correspondence.”

That statement is demonstrably false. The Company did not release “all” of the
correspondence. The Company selectively omitted the correspondence most damaging to its
narrative-including an Audit Committee member’s written dismissal of federal securities laws as
“flimsy technicalities,” and documentation that every member of the Audit Committee violated
Section 16(a).

The omissions are material. Shareholders evaluating the proxy contest cannot make an
informed judgment about Buxton Helmsley’s governance concerns without access to the evidence
supporting those concerns. A shareholder reading the Company’s characterizations-that our
allegations have “no merit,” that the State Bar referral is “groundless,” that we are engaged in a
“transparent hustle”—would have no way of knowing that an Audit Committee member put in
writing his view that federal securities laws are trivial technicalities, or that every Audit Committee
member violated Section 16(a), or that the Company’s auditor was warned in writing about these
failures.

The Company cannot cure this violation by claiming it released “some” correspondence.
The press release’s unambiguous statement that it was releasing “all” correspondence created the
false impression of full transparency. Having made that representation, the Company was
obligated to include all correspondence, or, at a minimum, to disclose that it was withholding
certain items. Instead, the Company selectively disclosed correspondence that served its narrative
while suppressing correspondence that contradicted it.

Request for Action.
We respectfully request that the Commission:
1) Add this Rule 14a-9 violation (again, we believe a potential dual violation of 15
U.S.C. § 78ff, 18 U.S.C. § 1001, or 18 U.S.C. § 1348, given such a warning prior

to the filing of false statements in a DEFA14A filing) to the matters under review
in connection with our pending complaints;
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2) Require the Company to file an amended Form 8-K and DEFA14A, including all
correspondence, or to file corrective disclosure acknowledging that its prior
representation of releasing “all” correspondence was false;

3) Consider the pattern of false and misleading statements-Rule 21F-17(a) retaliation,
Rule 14a-6(b) noncompliance, and now Rule 14a-9 material misstatements and
omissions-in evaluating the seriousness of the Company’s disclosure failures; and

4) Take such other action as the Commission deems appropriate.

Exhibits.

Attached to this submission are the following exhibits (letters and emails in ZIP files
containing all correspondence from December 13, 2025, forward, with all previous
correspondence being located at https://www.buxtonhelmsley.com/):

Exhibit A:  Daily Journal Corporation Form 8-K (December 29, 2025);

Exhibit B:  Rasool Rayani Email Exchange (December 15-18, 2025,
complete);

Exhibit C:  Private Letter to DJCO Board re Additional Section 16
Violations (December 18, 2025);

Exhibit D:  Notification to John Frank of State Bar Complaint Filed
(December 22, 2025);

Exhibit E:  Letter from DJCO Counsel to Buxton Helmsley (December 24,
2025);

Exhibit F:  Buxton Helmsley Response to December 24 Letter (December
24, 2025)

Exhibit G:  Email Correspondence with DJCO Counsel (December 26,
2025);

Exhibit H: Buxton Helmsley Response to December 26 Email (December
26, 2025); and

Exhibit I: Email to Brian Cardile (December 27, 2025).

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Very truly yours,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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cc: Enforcement Division, U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation
Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary, Daily Journal Corporation
Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: ifrank@oaktreecap.com
Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet; Relampagos, Stella C.
Subject: Daily Journal Corporation — Notice of Additional Audit Committee Failures
Date: Sunday, December 21, 2025 8:56:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png
20251221 - Private Letter to Frank and Conlin re Active Form 8-K Failures.pdf
Importance: High
Sensitivity: Confidential
Mr. Frank,

After further investigation alongside advisors and counsel over the weekend, please find attached a
letter regarding additional failures by the Audit Committee to ensure compliance with Item 5.05 of
Form 8-K (several unambiguous, active Form 8-K failures), as well as matters related to Mr. Myhill-

Jones’s Section 16 filings.

As noted in the letter, this correspondence is being sent only to you, Ms. Conlin, and Baker Tilly
(excluding Mr. Myhill-Jones and Mr. Rayani). The reasons for that limited distribution will be
apparent from the contents.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com
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December 21, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attn: John B. Frank, Chair of Audit Committee

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice of Additional Audit
Committee Failures; Undisclosed Implicit Waivers of Code of Ethics; Missing Form 8-K
Filings Under Item 5.05

Dear Mr. Frank (and Ms. Conlin):

After further investigation alongside advisors and counsel over the weekend, we write
again to now put you on formal notice—in your capacity as Chair of the Audit Committee of the
Company—of additional failures by the Audit Committee to discharge its oversight
responsibilities. Specifically, the Audit Committee has failed to ensure the Company’s compliance
with Item 5.05 of Form 8-K, which requires disclosure of waivers (including implicit waivers) of
the Company’s Code of Ethics, filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2020 (the "Code of Ethics"). These failures compound the governance
deficiencies we have previously identified and further demonstrate the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

You will note Mr. Rayani is not copied on this new correspondence (only copying Ms.
Conlin and Baker Tilly), as will be clear by the end.

It is worth noting, at the forefront, that we have now discovered that Steven Myhill-Jones—
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer—was also in violation of his Section 16(a) filing
obligations. This means that four out of four current directors failed to comply with basic federal
securities law reporting requirements. One hundred percent of the Board. The CEO’s delinquent
Form 3 was not filed until December 16, 2024—nearly three years late—and, as detailed below,
that filing appears to have been deliberately structured to conceal the full extent of his violations.
The Form 3 falsely reports Mr. Myhill-Jones owned shares before beginning his service at the
Company when, by his own admission (we include a quote below), he had never purchased a single
share of Company stock. The 400 shares reported were granted to him after he became CEO—an
acquisition that should have been reported on a separate Form 4, with a transaction date, which
Mr. Myhill-Jones conspicuously omitted. This is the same executive who backdated the
Company’s July 29, 2025, Form 8-K to July 26, 2025, to conceal the Board’s failure to timely
disclose its accounting investigation into the issues raised by us. The pattern is unmistakable:

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
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when faced with disclosure failures, this CEO’s instinct is not to remedy them but to falsify filings
to cover them up.

Given no response yet to our December 18, 2025, letter informing of our possible referral
of the violations of federal law you are continuing to stand behind, we are increasingly believing
that either you or Ms. Conlin must believe (there must be a majority consensus among Audit
Committee members) that, as Mr. Rayani admitted belief himself, federal securities laws are
“flimsy technicalities”. We stand firm on our deadline of hearing from you by tomorrow,
December 22, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time, or we intend to proceed with the contemplated
California State Bar complaint filing, which will be publicly filed with a copy to the Chevron
fiduciaries and shareholders who are then also likely to be harmed by your then-apparent disdain
for federal securities laws. We are certain Beachbody Company Inc.’s remaining Audit Committee
members (where Ms. Conlin also serves), not to mention shareholders, would also be appalled if
they knew one of their Audit Committee members had such a disregard for federal securities laws.
We have offered you and Mary Murphy Conlin a path to preserving your seats on the Board of the
Company, and hope you both will realize the self-destructive effects of not taking it. I will praise
both you and Ms. Conlin in a press release announcing our cooperation agreement, but will do the
very opposite if this proceeds any further to a proxy contest.

* * *

I UNDISCLOSED SECTION 16 VIOLATIONS AND IMPLICIT WAIVERS.

As detailed in our December 13, 2025 correspondence, multiple members of the Board—
including two members of the Audit Committee—filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that
were delinquent by as many as six years. The specifics bear repeating:

*  You, John B. Frank: Became a director in February 2022. Filed Form 3 and Form
4 on October 3, 2025—more than three and a half years after the statutory deadline.

*  Mary Murphy Conlin: Became a director in May 2019. Filed Form 3 and Form 4
on October 3, 2025—more than six years after the statutory deadline.

* Rasool Rayani: Became a director in June 2024. As of the date of this letter, Mr.
Rayani has still not filed his required Form 3 or any required Form 4 reports—a
delinquency now exceeding eighteen months.

+ Steven Myhill-Jones: Became acting Chief Executive Officer on March 28, 2022.
Filed his Form 3 on December 16, 2024—approximately two years and nine months
after the statutory deadline. As discussed further below, Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form
3 filing contains additional deficiencies that warrant separate examination, as we
do below.

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors and officers to file
a Form 3 within ten days of becoming a reporting person and a Form 4 within two business
days of any transaction in the Company’s securities.
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II.

Section D(2) of the Company’s Code of Ethics—"Timely and Truthful Disclosure"—
provides:

"In reports and documents filed with or submitted to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and other regulators, and in other public communications made by the
Company, the Company’s directors, officers and employees involved in the
preparation of such reports, documents and communications shall make
disclosures that are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable."”

Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics—"Legal Compliance"—provides:

"In conducting the business of the Company, all directors, officers and employees
shall comply with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations at all levels
of government in the United States and in any non-U.S. jurisdiction in which the
Company does business."

The years-long failures by Messrs. Frank, Rayani, and Myhill-Jones, and Ms. Conlin, to
comply with Section 16(a) filing requirements are violations of both Section D(2) and
Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics. The Company’s failure to take action against these
violations constitutes an "implicit waiver" under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K.

The Company has never filed a Form 8-K disclosing these implicit waivers. Item
5.05(b) of Form 8-K requires disclosure within four business days of any waiver, including
any implicit waiver, granted to a director or executive officer. An "implicit waiver" is
defined as the company's failure to take action within a reasonable period of time regarding
a material departure from a provision of the code of ethics that has been made known to
the company.

The Audit Committee—which you chair—has, on top of everything else, failed to ensure
the Company’s compliance with these additional disclosure requirements. The Company
was required to file Form 8-Ks disclosing the implicit waivers granted to each of these
individuals. It did not. This is a separate and independent disclosure failure layered on top
of the underlying Section 16 violations.

STEVEN MYHILL-JONES’ DEFECTIVE FORM 3 FILING.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3, filed December 16, 2024, warrants separate examination
because it appears to have been structured to conceal, rather than remedy, his Section 16
violations (just the same as Mr. Myhill-Jones’ July 29 Form 8-K was apparent to be
structured to conceal his disclosure violations there, too).
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II1.

To begin, Mr. Myahill-Jones falsely stated the “Date of Event Requiring Statement” as
December 11, 2024, knowing very well that his employment started nearly two years
before that date.

Further, a Form 3 is an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership of Securities." As earlier
noted, Form 3 is required to be filed within ten days of a person becoming a director or
officer. It reports the securities beneficially owned by the reporting person as of the date
they became a reporting person (indisputable by the “initial statement” form header)—not
as of the date the form is filed.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 on December 16, 2024, reported that he beneficially owned 400
shares of Company common stock at the time he began service at the Company. However,
at the Company’s February 15, 2023, annual shareholder meeting, Mr. Myhill-Jones stated:
"while I don’t have equity yet, I'm certainly keen to participate in the future growth of the
business..." If Mr. Myhill-Jones had never purchased shares of Company stock, then he
could not have owned 400 shares as of March 28, 2022—the date he became acting CEO
and the date as of which he was being asked to report ownership for.

As then admitted by Mr. Myhill-Jones himself, the 400 shares reported on Mr. Myhill-
Jones’ Form 3 were granted to him after he became CEO—mnot shares he owned when he
initially assumed the role. Any acquisition of shares after becoming a reporting person was
required to be reported on a Form 4, not a Form 3. Form 4 requires disclosure of the
transaction date, the nature of the transaction, and the number of shares acquired or
disposed of. Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 contains none of this information because there is
no place on a Form 3 to report it—Form 3 is not designed to report acquisitions, only initial
holdings at the time of beginning service.

The structure of Mr. Myhill-Jones’ filing suggests an attempt to mask a dual violation—
the failure to timely file a Form 3 and the failure to timely file a Form 4 reporting a stock
grant—by combining both into a single, defective Form 3 that obscures the date and nature
of the acquisition. The failure to disclose the grant date is particularly notable; without it,
shareholders cannot determine when the violation occurred or how long it went unreported.

This, too, required an Item 5.05 Form 8-K disclosure for his personal disclosure violations.
The Company has never filed one. Nor did the Company disclose Mr. Myhill-Jones'
implicit waiver in its proxy statement filed January 8, 2025—which was filed after his
defective Form 3 but made no mention of his years-long Section 16 delinquency or the
implicit waiver it necessarily entailed.

THE AUGUST 14, 2025 FORM 10-Q: WILLFUL FALSE CERTIFICATION.

On August 14, 2025, Mr. Myhill-Jones and then-Chief Financial Officer Tu To signed and
filed the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2025. In connection with
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that filing, both executives provided certifications pursuant to Section 302 and Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, certifying that the financial statements "fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations" of the Company.

Those certifications were false when made. More importantly, Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms.
To knew they were false when they signed them.

Between July 14, 2025, and July 29, 2025, Buxton Helmsley sent five separate letters to
the Board detailing material violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP") and SEC reporting requirements in the Company’s financial statements. Any
jury of reasonable minds (or your peers at the California State Bar) would have understood
the contents of those letters, for which Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To decided to bury their
heads in the sand, in complete disregard of federal securities laws. Our letters of July 14,
July 18, July 23, July 28, and July 29, 2025, explained in detail:

» The Company’s failure to capitalize software development costs as required by
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20");

* The Company’s failure to separately disclose research and development expenses
as required by Regulation S-X § 210.5-03; and

» The materiality of these violations, given the Company’s own admission in its SEC
filings that software development costs are “significant” (there is no dispute of
materiality under Regulation S-X).

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To received these letters. They were on notice that the
Company’s financial reporting had long violated GAAP and Regulation S-X. They were
on notice that the financial statements they were about to certify were going to continue
those violations of GAAP and Regulation S-X. They signed anyway.

Section D(1) of the Code of Ethics—"Honest and Ethical Conduct"—provides:

"All directors, officers and employees shall behave honestly and ethically at all
times and with all people.... They shall not misrepresent facts or engage in illegal,
unethical, or anti-competitive practices for personal or professional gain."”

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To engaged in clearly illegal practices—the willful false
certification of financial statements under 18 U.S.C. § 1350—for professional gain. They
signed the certifications to keep their jobs. They were given clear details to know that the
financial reporting was misstated and non-compliant (even if they wanted to argue they did
not understand the GAAP issues, the Regulation S-X issue of not separately disclosing
research and development was indisputable, as they already admitted those expenses to be
“significant”, which clearly met the materiality threshold for requiring separate disclosure
pursuant to Regulation S-X). They signed anyway.
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IVv.

The Audit Committee’s failure to take action against this conduct constitutes another
implicit waiver requiring Form 8-K disclosure under Item 5.05. No such Form 8-K has
been filed.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.
Let us be direct about what has occurred:

* Four directors and officers violated Section 16(a) filing requirements—some for
more than six years.

* The Company took no action against any of them.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waivers.

* The Company’s CEO attempted to mask his dual Section 16 violations with a
defective Form 3 filing, falsely dating it and attempting to combine it with the
contents of a Form 4 to minimize the appearance of the violations.

* The CEO and CFO signed knowingly false Sarbanes-Oxley certifications after
being put on written notice of GAAP violations.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waiver of the Code of
Ethics arising from that conduct.

» The Company’s January 8, 2025, proxy statement made no mention of the implicit
waivers related to Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 and Form 4 disclosure violations.

This is not inadvertence. This is a pattern of concealment. The Audit Committee—which
you chair—has systematically failed to ensure the Company’s compliance with disclosure
requirements designed to inform shareholders when insiders have been permitted to violate
the Company’s own ethical standards.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the Audit Committee will not disclose when directors
violate basic filing requirements, and will not disclose when executives sign false
certifications, what else is being concealed? If these failures were mistakes and not in line
with your personal ethical standards as a securities lawyer expected to uphold the law, you
need to avoid any further delay in remediation of this Company’s governance and
compliance failures.

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you, as Audit Committee Chair, of the

failures described herein. Any further delay by the Audit Committee to address these matters—
including by ensuring appropriate disclosure in the Company’s forthcoming proxy statement—
will be considered in connection with our pending notice of potential referral to the State Bar of
California regarding your professional conduct.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.
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Cc:

Respectfully,

Ao—————

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Mary Murphy Conlin (Audit Committee member, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 21, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attn: John B. Frank, Chair of Audit Committee

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice of Additional Audit
Committee Failures; Undisclosed Implicit Waivers of Code of Ethics; Missing Form 8-K
Filings Under Item 5.05

Dear Mr. Frank (and Ms. Conlin):

After further investigation alongside advisors and counsel over the weekend, we write
again to now put you on formal notice—in your capacity as Chair of the Audit Committee of the
Company—of additional failures by the Audit Committee to discharge its oversight
responsibilities. Specifically, the Audit Committee has failed to ensure the Company’s compliance
with Item 5.05 of Form 8-K, which requires disclosure of waivers (including implicit waivers) of
the Company’s Code of Ethics, filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2020 (the "Code of Ethics"). These failures compound the governance
deficiencies we have previously identified and further demonstrate the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

You will note Mr. Rayani is not copied on this new correspondence (only copying Ms.
Conlin and Baker Tilly), as will be clear by the end.

It is worth noting, at the forefront, that we have now discovered that Steven Myhill-Jones—
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer—was also in violation of his Section 16(a) filing
obligations. This means that four out of four current directors failed to comply with basic federal
securities law reporting requirements. One hundred percent of the Board. The CEO’s delinquent
Form 3 was not filed until December 16, 2024—nearly three years late—and, as detailed below,
that filing appears to have been deliberately structured to conceal the full extent of his violations.
The Form 3 falsely reports Mr. Myhill-Jones owned shares before beginning his service at the
Company when, by his own admission (we include a quote below), he had never purchased a single
share of Company stock. The 400 shares reported were granted to him after he became CEO—an
acquisition that should have been reported on a separate Form 4, with a transaction date, which
Mr. Myhill-Jones conspicuously omitted. This is the same executive who backdated the
Company’s July 29, 2025, Form 8-K to July 26, 2025, to conceal the Board’s failure to timely
disclose its accounting investigation into the issues raised by us. The pattern is unmistakable:

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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when faced with disclosure failures, this CEO’s instinct is not to remedy them but to falsify filings
to cover them up.

Given no response yet to our December 18, 2025, letter informing of our possible referral
of the violations of federal law you are continuing to stand behind, we are increasingly believing
that either you or Ms. Conlin must believe (there must be a majority consensus among Audit
Committee members) that, as Mr. Rayani admitted belief himself, federal securities laws are
“flimsy technicalities”. We stand firm on our deadline of hearing from you by tomorrow,
December 22, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time, or we intend to proceed with the contemplated
California State Bar complaint filing, which will be publicly filed with a copy to the Chevron
fiduciaries and shareholders who are then also likely to be harmed by your then-apparent disdain
for federal securities laws. We are certain Beachbody Company Inc.’s remaining Audit Committee
members (where Ms. Conlin also serves), not to mention shareholders, would also be appalled if
they knew one of their Audit Committee members had such a disregard for federal securities laws.
We have offered you and Mary Murphy Conlin a path to preserving your seats on the Board of the
Company, and hope you both will realize the self-destructive effects of not taking it. I will praise
both you and Ms. Conlin in a press release announcing our cooperation agreement, but will do the
very opposite if this proceeds any further to a proxy contest.

* * *

I UNDISCLOSED SECTION 16 VIOLATIONS AND IMPLICIT WAIVERS.

As detailed in our December 13, 2025 correspondence, multiple members of the Board—
including two members of the Audit Committee—filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that
were delinquent by as many as six years. The specifics bear repeating:

*  You, John B. Frank: Became a director in February 2022. Filed Form 3 and Form
4 on October 3, 2025—more than three and a half years after the statutory deadline.

*  Mary Murphy Conlin: Became a director in May 2019. Filed Form 3 and Form 4
on October 3, 2025—more than six years after the statutory deadline.

* Rasool Rayani: Became a director in June 2024. As of the date of this letter, Mr.
Rayani has still not filed his required Form 3 or any required Form 4 reports—a
delinquency now exceeding eighteen months.

+ Steven Myhill-Jones: Became acting Chief Executive Officer on March 28, 2022.
Filed his Form 3 on December 16, 2024—approximately two years and nine months
after the statutory deadline. As discussed further below, Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form
3 filing contains additional deficiencies that warrant separate examination, as we
do below.

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors and officers to file
a Form 3 within ten days of becoming a reporting person and a Form 4 within two business
days of any transaction in the Company’s securities.
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II.

Section D(2) of the Company’s Code of Ethics—"Timely and Truthful Disclosure"—
provides:

"In reports and documents filed with or submitted to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and other regulators, and in other public communications made by the
Company, the Company’s directors, officers and employees involved in the
preparation of such reports, documents and communications shall make
disclosures that are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable."”

Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics—"Legal Compliance"—provides:

"In conducting the business of the Company, all directors, officers and employees
shall comply with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations at all levels
of government in the United States and in any non-U.S. jurisdiction in which the
Company does business."

The years-long failures by Messrs. Frank, Rayani, and Myhill-Jones, and Ms. Conlin, to
comply with Section 16(a) filing requirements are violations of both Section D(2) and
Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics. The Company’s failure to take action against these
violations constitutes an "implicit waiver" under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K.

The Company has never filed a Form 8-K disclosing these implicit waivers. Item
5.05(b) of Form 8-K requires disclosure within four business days of any waiver, including
any implicit waiver, granted to a director or executive officer. An "implicit waiver" is
defined as the company's failure to take action within a reasonable period of time regarding
a material departure from a provision of the code of ethics that has been made known to
the company.

The Audit Committee—which you chair—has, on top of everything else, failed to ensure
the Company’s compliance with these additional disclosure requirements. The Company
was required to file Form 8-Ks disclosing the implicit waivers granted to each of these
individuals. It did not. This is a separate and independent disclosure failure layered on top
of the underlying Section 16 violations.

STEVEN MYHILL-JONES’ DEFECTIVE FORM 3 FILING.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3, filed December 16, 2024, warrants separate examination
because it appears to have been structured to conceal, rather than remedy, his Section 16
violations (just the same as Mr. Myhill-Jones’ July 29 Form 8-K was apparent to be
structured to conceal his disclosure violations there, too).
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To begin, Mr. Myahill-Jones falsely stated the “Date of Event Requiring Statement” as
December 11, 2024, knowing very well that his employment started nearly two years
before that date.

Further, a Form 3 is an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership of Securities." As earlier
noted, Form 3 is required to be filed within ten days of a person becoming a director or
officer. It reports the securities beneficially owned by the reporting person as of the date
they became a reporting person (indisputable by the “initial statement” form header)—not
as of the date the form is filed.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 on December 16, 2024, reported that he beneficially owned 400
shares of Company common stock at the time he began service at the Company. However,
at the Company’s February 15, 2023, annual shareholder meeting, Mr. Myhill-Jones stated:
"while I don’t have equity yet, I'm certainly keen to participate in the future growth of the
business..." If Mr. Myhill-Jones had never purchased shares of Company stock, then he
could not have owned 400 shares as of March 28, 2022—the date he became acting CEO
and the date as of which he was being asked to report ownership for.

As then admitted by Mr. Myhill-Jones himself, the 400 shares reported on Mr. Myhill-
Jones’ Form 3 were granted to him after he became CEO—mnot shares he owned when he
initially assumed the role. Any acquisition of shares after becoming a reporting person was
required to be reported on a Form 4, not a Form 3. Form 4 requires disclosure of the
transaction date, the nature of the transaction, and the number of shares acquired or
disposed of. Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 contains none of this information because there is
no place on a Form 3 to report it—Form 3 is not designed to report acquisitions, only initial
holdings at the time of beginning service.

The structure of Mr. Myhill-Jones’ filing suggests an attempt to mask a dual violation—
the failure to timely file a Form 3 and the failure to timely file a Form 4 reporting a stock
grant—by combining both into a single, defective Form 3 that obscures the date and nature
of the acquisition. The failure to disclose the grant date is particularly notable; without it,
shareholders cannot determine when the violation occurred or how long it went unreported.

This, too, required an Item 5.05 Form 8-K disclosure for his personal disclosure violations.
The Company has never filed one. Nor did the Company disclose Mr. Myhill-Jones'
implicit waiver in its proxy statement filed January 8, 2025—which was filed after his
defective Form 3 but made no mention of his years-long Section 16 delinquency or the
implicit waiver it necessarily entailed.

THE AUGUST 14, 2025 FORM 10-Q: WILLFUL FALSE CERTIFICATION.

On August 14, 2025, Mr. Myhill-Jones and then-Chief Financial Officer Tu To signed and
filed the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2025. In connection with
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that filing, both executives provided certifications pursuant to Section 302 and Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, certifying that the financial statements "fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations" of the Company.

Those certifications were false when made. More importantly, Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms.
To knew they were false when they signed them.

Between July 14, 2025, and July 29, 2025, Buxton Helmsley sent five separate letters to
the Board detailing material violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP") and SEC reporting requirements in the Company’s financial statements. Any
jury of reasonable minds (or your peers at the California State Bar) would have understood
the contents of those letters, for which Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To decided to bury their
heads in the sand, in complete disregard of federal securities laws. Our letters of July 14,
July 18, July 23, July 28, and July 29, 2025, explained in detail:

» The Company’s failure to capitalize software development costs as required by
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20");

* The Company’s failure to separately disclose research and development expenses
as required by Regulation S-X § 210.5-03; and

» The materiality of these violations, given the Company’s own admission in its SEC
filings that software development costs are “significant” (there is no dispute of
materiality under Regulation S-X).

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To received these letters. They were on notice that the
Company’s financial reporting had long violated GAAP and Regulation S-X. They were
on notice that the financial statements they were about to certify were going to continue
those violations of GAAP and Regulation S-X. They signed anyway.

Section D(1) of the Code of Ethics—"Honest and Ethical Conduct"—provides:

"All directors, officers and employees shall behave honestly and ethically at all
times and with all people.... They shall not misrepresent facts or engage in illegal,
unethical, or anti-competitive practices for personal or professional gain."”

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To engaged in clearly illegal practices—the willful false
certification of financial statements under 18 U.S.C. § 1350—for professional gain. They
signed the certifications to keep their jobs. They were given clear details to know that the
financial reporting was misstated and non-compliant (even if they wanted to argue they did
not understand the GAAP issues, the Regulation S-X issue of not separately disclosing
research and development was indisputable, as they already admitted those expenses to be
“significant”, which clearly met the materiality threshold for requiring separate disclosure
pursuant to Regulation S-X). They signed anyway.
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IVv.

The Audit Committee’s failure to take action against this conduct constitutes another
implicit waiver requiring Form 8-K disclosure under Item 5.05. No such Form 8-K has
been filed.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.
Let us be direct about what has occurred:

* Four directors and officers violated Section 16(a) filing requirements—some for
more than six years.

* The Company took no action against any of them.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waivers.

* The Company’s CEO attempted to mask his dual Section 16 violations with a
defective Form 3 filing, falsely dating it and attempting to combine it with the
contents of a Form 4 to minimize the appearance of the violations.

* The CEO and CFO signed knowingly false Sarbanes-Oxley certifications after
being put on written notice of GAAP violations.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waiver of the Code of
Ethics arising from that conduct.

» The Company’s January 8, 2025, proxy statement made no mention of the implicit
waivers related to Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 and Form 4 disclosure violations.

This is not inadvertence. This is a pattern of concealment. The Audit Committee—which
you chair—has systematically failed to ensure the Company’s compliance with disclosure
requirements designed to inform shareholders when insiders have been permitted to violate
the Company’s own ethical standards.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the Audit Committee will not disclose when directors
violate basic filing requirements, and will not disclose when executives sign false
certifications, what else is being concealed? If these failures were mistakes and not in line
with your personal ethical standards as a securities lawyer expected to uphold the law, you
need to avoid any further delay in remediation of this Company’s governance and
compliance failures.

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you, as Audit Committee Chair, of the

failures described herein. Any further delay by the Audit Committee to address these matters—
including by ensuring appropriate disclosure in the Company’s forthcoming proxy statement—
will be considered in connection with our pending notice of potential referral to the State Bar of
California regarding your professional conduct.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.
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Cc:

Respectfully,

Ao—————

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Mary Murphy Conlin (Audit Committee member, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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Cc: Relampagos, Stella C.; Sayerwin, Scarlet; jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: Daily Journal Corporation — Formal Notice to Baker Tilly Los Angeles Office Leadership
Date: Monday, December 22, 2025 12:43:00 PM
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20251217 - Private Letter to DJCO Board.pdf
20251218 - Private Letter to DJCO Board.pdf
20251218 - Private Letter to John B Frank re Bar Referral.pdf
Importance: High
Sensitivity: Confidential

Dear Mr. Krogh:

I am writing to ensure that Baker Tilly’s Los Angeles office leadership is aware of matters previously
communicated to your colleagues Scarlet Sayerwin and Stella Relampagos, regarding the Daily
Journal Corporation (NASDAQ: DJCO), to ensure no plausible deniability on your part.

At the outset, | direct your attention to the attached email exchange (“Audit Committee Email.pdf”)
with Daily Journal Corporation Audit Committee member Rasool Rayani, in which Mr. Rayani—in
writing—dismissed Section 16 compliance as "the flimsiest of technicalities." This is a sitting
member of the Audit Committee, your firm relies upon for oversight of the Company's financial
reporting and internal controls. Under the COSO Internal Control—-Integrated Framework, which
forms the basis for evaluating internal controls over financial reporting under Section 404 of
Sarbanes-Oxley, "tone at the top" and commitment to integrity are foundational elements of an
effective control environment. An Audit Committee member who regards federal securities laws as
"flimsy technicalities"—in writing, to a shareholder—is not a member of an Audit Committee that
can credibly oversee anything. Baker Tilly has a professional obligation not to stand behind an Audit
Committee that expresses such open disregard for the laws it is charged with ensuring the Company
follows.

The attached correspondence documents the following matters:

® December 13, 2025 — Rule 14a-19 Notice: Formal notice of our intent to solicit proxies in
support of our director nominees at the Company's 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, as
required under Rule 14a-19 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

® December 13, 2025 - Private Letter to Board: Notice to the Daily Journal Corporation Board
of our Rule 14a-19 notice delivery; documentation of Section 16(a) violations by John B. Frank
(3+ years delinquent) and Mary Murphy Conlin (6+ years delinquent); and demand for
governance remediation. Notably, the very next business day after receiving this letter, the
Board awarded restricted stock units to Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin—the two directors
implicated in Section 16(a) violations, which would surely unsettle the other Audit
Committees they sit on at Chevron and Beachbody—in what appears to be an attempt to

secure their continued loyalty in the face of our demands.
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BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3
New York, N.Y. 10036-2600
December 19, 2025

VIA FEDEX AND EMAIL (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attention: Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary

Re: Demand to Inspect Books and Records Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South
Carolina Business Corporation Act

Dear Mr. Cardile:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., a New York corporation (the "Shareholder"), is—as of the
date set forth above—a record shareholder of Daily Journal Corporation (the "Corporation").

Reference is made to the Notice of Intent to Solicit Proxies in Support of Director
Nominees Pursuant to Rule 14a-19 Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, dated December
13, 2025 (the "Notice"). As further described in the Notice, the Shareholder intends to solicit
proxies in support of the nomination of certain persons for election to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation (the "Board") at the 2026 annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation,
expected to be held on or about February 19, 2026, including any adjournments or postponements
thereof or any special meeting that may be held in lieu thereof (the "2026 Annual Meeting").

I SHAREHOLDER LIST AND RELATED RECORDS

Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act of 1988
(the "SCBCA"), as a shareholder of the Corporation, the Shareholder hereby demands that
it and its attorneys, representatives and agents be given, during regular business hours and
at the Corporation's principal office or other reasonable location specified by the
Corporation, the opportunity to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom, the following
records of the Corporation for the purpose of (1) disseminating a definitive proxy statement
to the Corporation's shareholders in connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the
2026 Annual Meeting and (2) communicating with the Corporation's shareholders in
connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the 2026 Annual Meeting (the
"Demand"), including, but not limited to:

a) a complete record or list of the shareholders of the Corporation in electronic
medium form, certified by the Corporation's transfer agent(s) and/or registrar(s),
setting forth the name, address and email address of, and the number, series and
class of shares of stock of the Corporation held by, each shareholder as of the most









b)

d)

recent date available, and, when available, such list for each shareholder as of any
record date (the "Record Date") established or to be established for the 2026 Annual
Meeting or any other meeting of shareholders held in lieu thereof (the most recent
available date and any such record date, a "Determination Date");

a complete record or list of shareholders of the Corporation and respondent banks
who have elected to receive electronic copies of proxy materials with respect to
meetings of the shareholders of the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-16(j)(2) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), including,
for each such shareholder, the email address provided by such shareholder;

all transfer journals and daily transfer sheets showing changes in the names and
addresses of the Corporation's shareholders and the number, series or class of shares
of stock of the Corporation held by the Corporation's shareholders that are in or
come into the possession of the Corporation or its transfer agent(s), registrar(s), or
proxy solicitor(s), or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks,
clearing agencies or voting trusts or their nominees from the date of the shareholder
list referred to in paragraph (a) through the date of the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's or its transfer agent(s)' or
registrar(s)' or proxy solicitor(s)' possession, custody or control or that can
reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing agencies, voting
trusts or their nominees relating to the names and addresses and telephone numbers
of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation as of each
Determination Date held by the participating brokers and banks named in the
individual nominee names of Cede & Co. and other similar depositories or
nominees of any central certificate depository system, including respondent bank
lists, and all omnibus proxies and related respondent bank proxies and listings
issued pursuant to Rule 14b-2 under the Exchange Act, including a Weekly Report
of Security Position Listings from The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (a
"Weekly DTC Report") as of each Determination Date, and, following the setting
and occurrence of the Record Date, a Weekly DTC Report for each of the weeks
until the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's possession, custody or
control or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing
agencies, voting trusts or their nominees, relating to the names and addresses of,
and shares of stock of the Corporation held by, the non-objecting beneficial owners
(or "NOBOs") of the shares of stock of the Corporation as of each Determination
Date (or any other date established or obtained by the Corporation) pursuant to Rule
14b-1(c) or Rule 14b-2(c) under the Exchange Act, in Microsoft Excel, or, if the
information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel file, means by which the
Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft Excel file, and a hard copy
printout of such information in order of descending balance for verification
purposes. If such information is not in the Corporation's possession, custody, or
control, such information should be requested from Broadridge Financial Solutions,
Inc., Say Technologies, LLC, and Mediant Communications LLC, or any other
similar shareholder communications services company that has been engaged by
the Corporation to provide investor communications services in connection with a
meeting of shareholders;










f) an alphabetical breakdown of any holdings in the respective names of Cede & Co.
and other similar depositories or nominees, as well as any material request list
provided by Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and
Mediant Communications, LLC, and any omnibus proxies issued by such entities
in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. If such information is not in the
Corporation's possession, custody, or control, such information should be requested
from Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and Mediant
Communications, LLC;

g) all lists and electronic files (together with such computer processing data as is
necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such files) containing the name and
address of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation
attributable to any participant in any employee share ownership plan, stock
ownership dividend reinvestment, employee share purchase plan or other employee
compensation or benefit plan of the Corporation in which the decision to vote shares
of stock of the Corporation held by such plan is made, directly or indirectly,
individually or collectively, by the participants in the plan and the method(s) by
which the Shareholder or its agents may communicate with each such participant,
as well as the name, affiliation and telephone number of the trustee or administrator
of each such plan, and a detailed explanation of the treatment not only of shares for
which the trustee or administrator receives instructions from participants, but also
shares for which either the trustee or administrator does not receive instructions or
shares that are outstanding in the plan but are unallocated to any participant, in
Microsoft Excel, or, if the information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel
file, means by which the Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft
Excel file, and a hard copy printout of such information in alphabetical order for
verification purposes; and

h) to the extent not already referred to above, any electronic file which contains any
or all of the information encompassed in this Demand, together with any program,
software, manual, or other instructions necessary for the practical use of such
information.

The information and records specified in the foregoing paragraphs (a) through (h) should
be given as of the most recent available date and, unless stated otherwise, should be updated
as of the Record Date promptly as such information becomes available to the Corporation,
its registrar, its proxy solicitor, or any of the Corporation's or their respective agents.

To reiterate, all information requested in paragraphs (a) through (h) should be provided in
hard copy (paper) form, as well as CD-ROM format, electronically transmitted file, or
similar electronic medium (any such electronic storage medium, an "Electronic Medium"),
and such computer processing data as is necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such
list on an Electronic Medium; and a hard copy printout of the total aggregate accounts and
shares represented by such list on an Electronic Medium for verification purposes;
provided, however if the hard copy (paper) form exceeds fifty (50) printed pages then in
lieu of hard copy (paper), the Corporation should provide such data in an Electronic
Medium.










II.

ADDITIONAL BOOKS AND RECORDS

In addition to the shareholder list and related records described in Part I above, and pursuant
to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the Shareholder hereby demands the opportunity to
inspect and copy the following books and records of the Corporation for the purposes of
(1) investigating potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of
internal controls at the Corporation, (2) evaluating the qualifications, performance, and
independence of the Corporation's directors and officers, and (3) assessing the adequacy of
the Corporation's financial reporting and compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("GAAP"):

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

all minutes of meetings of the Board and any committee thereof, including but
not limited to the Audit Committee, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20"), (C)
capitalization of software development costs at Journal Technologies, Inc. or any
subsidiary or division of the Corporation, (D) any internal or external review,
investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices or policies,
or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

all written communications between the Corporation and its independent
auditors, including Baker Tilly US, LLP and any predecessor auditors, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, (D) any deficiency in internal controls over financial
reporting, (E) any disagreement between the Corporation and its auditors
regarding accounting treatment or disclosure, or (F) any management
representation letters provided to the auditors concerning software development
costs or related accounting policies;

all documents, reports, memoranda, presentations, and analyses prepared by or
for the Board, any committee thereof, or any officer of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to any internal
review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's software development
cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or potential GAAP
violations, including any reports or findings of internal or external counsel,
accountants, or other advisors retained in connection with any such review,
investigation, or inquiry;

all written communications sent or received by Tu To, in her capacity as Chief
Financial Officer or in any other capacity on behalf of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, or (D) any internal or external review, investigation, or
inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices;

all Audit Committee meeting materials, including agendas, presentations,
reports, and supporting documentation, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)









I11.

ASC 985-20, (C) Journal Technologies, Inc., (D) any communication from the
Corporation's independent auditors regarding accounting policies or internal
controls, or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

(vi) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present, that discuss,
reference, or relate to (A) Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., Buxton Helmsley, Inc.,
or any affiliate thereof, (B) Alexander Parker, (C) any shareholder proposal,
nomination, or other communication received from Buxton Helmsley or Mr.
Parker, (D) any public statement or filing made by or concerning Buxton
Helmsley or Mr. Parker, or (E) the Corporation's response to any of the
foregoing;

(vii) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors and officers of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present,
that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) any investigation of the Corporation's
accounting practices initiated in response to concerns raised by shareholders, (B)
the scope, findings, or conclusions of any such investigation, or (C) any remedial
actions taken or considered in response to any such investigation;

(viii) all engagement letters, statements of work, and invoices from any outside
counsel, accounting firm, or other advisor retained by the Corporation in
connection with (A) any review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's
software development cost accounting practices or compliance with GAAP, or
(B) any response to shareholder concerns regarding the Corporation's accounting
practices; and

(ix) all documents and communications reflecting any communication between the
Corporation and the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board, or any other regulatory body, from January 1, 2020
to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to the Corporation's software
development cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or any
other accounting matter.

PURPOSE OF DEMAND

The purpose of the requests in Part [ of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder and certain
of its affiliates and representatives to communicate with other holders of common stock
with respect to matters relating to their interests as shareholders, including, without
limitation, an affiliate of the Shareholder soliciting proxies from the Corporation's
shareholders in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting.

The purpose of the requests in Part II of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder to (1)
investigate potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal
controls relating to the Corporation's accounting practices and financial reporting, (2)
evaluate the qualifications, performance, and independence of the Corporation's current
directors and officers, including their oversight of financial reporting and response to
shareholder concerns, (3) assess whether the Corporation's financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP and whether any restatement may be required, and (4)









IVv.

make an informed decision regarding how to vote its shares and communicate with other
shareholders at the 2026 Annual Meeting regarding the election of directors and other
matters.

The Shareholder represents that (i) it is seeking this inspection for a proper purpose
reasonably related to its interest as a shareholder, (ii) it describes with reasonable
particularity its purpose and the records it desires to inspect, (iii) the records requested are
directly connected with the Shareholder's purpose, and (iv) it will not sell the requested
information to any person, give the requested information to any competitor of the
Corporation, or otherwise use the information for any improper purpose.

The records enumerated in this Demand are directly connected with the above purposes of
this Demand and are reasonably related to the Shareholder's interests as a shareholder of
the Corporation.

CONTINUING DEMAND AND RESPONSE

This Demand is a continuing demand. The Shareholder demands that all modifications,
corrections, additions, or deletions to any and all information referred to in Parts I and II
above be immediately furnished to the Shareholder as such modifications, corrections,
additions, or deletions become available to the Corporation or its agents or representatives.

The Shareholder hereby designates the undersigned and any other persons designated by
them or by the Shareholder, acting singly or in any combination, to conduct the inspection
and copying herein requested. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the materials
identified above shall be made available to the Shareholder and its representatives initially
no later than five business days following the date hereof and each Determination Date.
All documents responsive to this Demand shall be produced in electronic format to the
extent such documents exist in electronic form or can reasonably be converted to electronic
form. Production shall be made by secure electronic transmission or other electronic means
agreed upon by the parties. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, you are required
to respond to this demand within five business days of the date hereof. Please advise the
Shareholder's legal department, at legal@buxtonhelmsley.com, as promptly as practicable
within the requisite timeframe.

If the Corporation contends that this request is incomplete or is otherwise deficient in any
respect, please immediately notify the Shareholder immediately in writing, setting forth
any facts that the Corporation contends support its position and specifying any additional
information believed to be required. In the absence of such prompt notice, the Shareholder
will assume that the Corporation agrees that this request complies in all respects with the
requirements of the SCBCA. The Shareholder reserves the right to withdraw or modify this
request at any time.

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS









This Demand is being made without prejudice to (i) any previous requests made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the Exchange Act, (ii) any previous demand made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the SCBCA or (iii) any other demands, which may be
made by the Shareholder or its affiliates, from time to time, whether pursuant to the
Exchange Act, the SCBCA, or other applicable federal or state law, or the Corporation's
organizational documents.

[Signature Page Follows]









Very truly yours,

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

A

By: boxsiGN 4K8WWQP1-1RV5Z5PR

Name: Alexander E. Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Cc: Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation









								alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com



				2025-12-19T18:19:43+0000



				Signed with Box Sign by Alexander Parker (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com)






















BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3
New York, N.Y. 10036-2600
+1(212) 561-5540

December 13, 2025

VIA EMAIL AND FEDEX TO BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012
Attention: Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re: Notice of Intent to Solicit Proxies in Support of Director Nominees Pursuant to Rule 14a-
19 Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Dear Mr. Cardile:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (the “Notifying Person”), hereby submits this formal notice
(this “Notice™) to Daily Journal Corporation, a South Carolina corporation (the “Company”),
pursuant to Rule 14a-19 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), of its intent to conduct a solicitation of proxies in support of nominees for election to the
Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) other than the Company’s nominees at the Company’s
2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (including any adjournment or postponement thereof or any
special meeting held in lieu thereof, the “2026 Annual Meeting”’). The term “Notifying Person”
is used herein to mirror the statutory language of Rule 14a-19, which imposes obligations on any
“person”—not “shareholder,” let alone shareholder of record—who intends to solicit proxies in a
contested election. See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(a), (b).

This usage is consistent with Rule 14a-2 under the Exchange Act, which similarly employs
the term “person” and under which non-shareholders—including proxy solicitation firms, financial
advisors, and non-profit organizations—routinely conduct solicitations. The SEC’s consistent use
of “person” rather than “shareholder” throughout the proxy rules reflects a deliberate regulatory
choice.

The Notifying Person is providing this Notice at least sixty (60) calendar days before the
first anniversary of the date of the Company’s 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which was
held on February 19, 2025, in accordance with the timing requirements of Rule 14a-19(b)(1). See
17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(1).

The Notifying Person further represents that (i) it is a beneficial owner of shares of the
Company, to be held as of the record date for the 2026 Annual Meeting (the “Record Date™),
entitling it to vote at the 2026 Annual Meeting and that it intends to appear in person or by proxy
at the 2026 Annual Meeting to nominate the Future Nominees, and (ii) has an impending
registration of certain Company shares with the Company’s transfer agent for holder of record
status.
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I. NOMINEES FOR ELECTION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(b)(2), the Notifying Person hereby provides notice of the names
of the following individuals (collectively, the “Future Nominees’’) for whom the Notifying Person
intends to solicit proxies for election as directors of the Company at the 2026 Annual Meeting:

a) Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello;
b) Alexander Parker; and
c) Weiyee In.

Each Future Nominee has consented to being named in this Notice and, if elected, to
serving as a director of the Company, with such consents attached as Annex A. Biographical
information, qualifications, and other information required by Schedule 14A with respect to each
Future Nominee is attached as Annex B.

The Notifying Person reserves the right to (i) nominate substitute or additional persons as
Future Nominees, (ii) withdraw one or more Future Nominees, or (iii) otherwise modify its slate
of Future Nominees prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting, subject to applicable law and the
Company’s governing documents. See SEC Division of Corporation Finance, Compliance and
Disclosure Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules 14A/14C, Question 139.02 (Aug. 25, 2022)
(permitting inclusion of alternate nominees in Rule 14a-19(b) notice). In accordance with Rule
14a-19(c), the Notifying Person will promptly notify the Company of any changes to its Future
Nominees.

From time to time throughout this Notice, Mr. Parker and the Notifying Person, together
with its, his, and their affiliates, collectively, may be referred to as “Buxton” or the “Buxton
Parties,” and the Buxton Parties, together with the Future Nominees, may be referred to as the

“Participants.”

Each of the Future Nominees has entered into a nomination agreement (collectively, the
“Future Nominee Agreements”) with the Notifying Person substantially in the form attached as
Annex C, whereby such Future Nominees agreed, upon the election of the Notifying Person, to
become members of a slate of nominees and stand for election as directors of the Company in
connection with a proxy solicitation which may be conducted in respect of the 2026 Annual
Meeting. Pursuant to the Future Nominee Agreements, the Notifying Person has agreed to pay the
costs of soliciting proxies in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting, and to defend and
indemnify the Future Nominees against, and with respect to, any losses that may be incurred by
the Future Nominees in the event they become a party to litigation based on their nomination as
candidates for election to the Board and the solicitation of proxies in support of their election. The
foregoing summary of the Future Nominee Agreements does not purport to be complete and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the form of the Future Nominee Agreement,
which is attached hereto as Annex C and is incorporated by reference herein.
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If elected or appointed, each of the Future Nominees would be considered an independent
director of the Company under each of (i) Rule 5605(a) of NASDAQ’s Listing Rules and (ii)
paragraph (a)(1) of Item 407 of Regulation S-K.

The Notifying Person hereby states with respect to each Future Nominee, as applicable, to
the knowledge of the Notifying Person, other than as described in this Notice (including the
Annexes hereto):

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

none of the Participants is, or was within the past year, a party to any contract,
arrangement, or understanding with any person with respect to any securities of the
Company, including, but not limited to, joint ventures, loan or option arrangements,
puts or calls, guarantees against loss, or guarantees of profit, division of losses, or
profits, or the giving or withholding of proxies;

(a) none of the Participants has any position or office with the Company, nor does
any Participant have any arrangement or understanding with any other person
pursuant to which such person was selected to be a nominee; (b) none of the
Participants or any of their “associates” (which term, for purposes of this Notice,
shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Rule 14a-1 of Regulation 14A of the
Exchange Act) is a party to any arrangement or understanding with any person
with respect to (1) any future employment by the Company or its affiliates or (2)
any future transactions to which the Company or any of its affiliates will or may be
a party; (c) there were no transactions since the beginning of the Company’s last
fiscal year nor are there any currently proposed involving any Participant or any of
their associates, in which the Company was or is to be a participant and in which
such Participant or any of their associates or their respective immediate family
members or any persons sharing their respective households, as applicable, have or
will have a direct or indirect material interest that would require disclosure under
Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(“Regulation S-K”); (d) there are no material proceedings to which any Participant
or any of their associates is a party adverse to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or has a material interest adverse to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and (e)
none of the Participants or any of their associates has a substantial interest, direct
or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise in any matter to be acted on at the
2026 Annual Meeting or in the Proxy Solicitation;

none of the entities or organizations referred to in Annex B with which any Future
Nominee has been involved during the past five years is a parent, subsidiary, or
other affiliate of the Company;

none of the Participants or any of their associates has received any fees earned or
paid in cash, stock awards, option awards, non-equity incentive plan compensation,
changes in pension value or nonqualified deferred compensation earnings or any
other compensation from the Company during the Company’s last completed fiscal
year, or is subject to any other compensation arrangement described in Item 402 of
Regulation S-K;

(a) there are no relationships involving any Participant or any of their associates
that would have required disclosure under Item 407(e)(4) of Regulation S-K had
any such person been a director of the Company; (b) there are no events required
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

to be disclosed under Item 401(f) of Regulation S-K that have occurred during the
past ten years and that are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any
Participant; (c) there are no “family relationships” (as defined in Item 401(d) of
Regulation S-K) between any Participant and any director or executive officer of
the Company or person known to the Notifying Person to be nominated by the
Company to become a director or executive officer; and (d) no Participant has been
convicted in a criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations or similar
misdemeanors) in the past ten years;

there are no direct or indirect compensation or other material monetary agreements,
arrangements, and understandings during the past three years, or any other material
relationships, between or among the Notifying Person or others acting in concert
therewith, on the one hand, and each Future Nominee, and his or her respective
affiliates and associates, or others acting in concert therewith, on the other hand;
no part of the purchase price or market value of the securities of the Company
owned by any of the Participants is represented by funds borrowed or otherwise
obtained for the purpose of acquiring or holding such securities;

no Participants directly or indirectly beneficially own any derivative instruments or
any other direct or indirect opportunity to profit, or share in any profit derived, from
any increase or decrease in the value of shares of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties have given any proxy
(other than a revocable proxy given in response to a solicitation made pursuant to
Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act by way of a solicitation statement filed on
Schedule 14A), contract, arrangement, understanding or relationship pursuant to
which any of the foregoing persons has a right to vote any shares of the Company;
neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties holds any short interest
in any security of the Company (including, directly or indirectly, through any
contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, has the
opportunity to profit, or share in any profit derived, from any decrease in the value
of the subject security);

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties beneficially own,
directly or indirectly, any rights to dividends on the shares of the Company that are
separated or separable from the underlying shares of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties has any significant
equity interests or any derivative interests or short interests in any principal
competitor of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties owns, directly or
indirectly, any proportionate interest in shares of the Company or derivative
instruments by a general or limited partnership in which any of the foregoing
persons is a general partner or, directly or indirectly, beneficially owns an interest
in a general partner;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties are entitled to any
performance-related fees (other than an asset-based fee) based on any increase or
decrease in the value of the shares of the Company or derivative instruments,
including any such interest held by members of any of the foregoing persons’
immediate family sharing the same household;
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(xv) there are no agreements, arrangements, or understandings (written or oral) between
or among any Participants or any other person or persons (including their names)
pursuant to which the nomination or nominations or proposed removal or removals,
as applicable, are to be made by such Participant; and

(xvi) neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties have any interest in the
nominations or election of the Future Nominees except as otherwise described in
this Notice, and neither of the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties
believe it or they may derive any other benefits from the outcome of the
nominations of the Future Nominees except as described in this Notice, nor do any
of the foregoing have any other agreements with any other person in connection
with the nominations of the Future Nominees.

The Notifying Person represents, on behalf of itself and the other Participants, that this
Notice contains all of the information that would be required to be affirmatively disclosed as of
the date hereof by it and the other Participants under Rule 14a-101 of the Exchange Act (including
pursuant to the Company’s Amended and Restated Bylaws, as exhibited in the Company’s Form
10-K filing on December 31, 2024 (the “Bylaws™)), and that no other information is required to be
disclosed thereunder with respect to any Participant, to the best of its knowledge.

Mr. Parker serves as: (a) the Managing Partner of Buxton Helmsley Fund GP, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“BHGP”); (b) Managing Member of Buxton Helmsley Fund
Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“BHM”); (c) a director and Chief
Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., a New York corporation (“BHUSA”); and (d)
majority shareholder, Chairman, and Chief Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley, Inc., a Nevada
corporation (“BHI). As such, Mr. Parker has a proportionate interest in the shares of common
stock in the Company held by the Notifying Person and its affiliates. As equity owners in Buxton
Helmsley, Inc., Mr. Parker and Ms. Petrozzello have an economic interest in the management fees
received by BHM that are based on the level of assets managed, and in the performance-based fees
and allocations received by BHGP, which are based on investment performance. The foregoing
applies to all securities beneficially owned by BHGP. The performance-based fees or allocations
vary by vehicle but presently do not vary from 30% of realized and unrealized capital appreciation
above a benchmark or an annual performance fee of 8% above a hurdle. Further information
concerning such fees is available in the Notifying Person’s Form ADYV, filed with the SEC on
March 26, 2025, and incorporated by reference herein.

I1. STATEMENT OF INTENT TO SOLICIT PROXIES

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(a)(3) and Rule 14a-19(b)(3), the Notifying Person hereby states
its intent to solicit the holders of shares representing at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the

voting power of shares entitled to vote on the election of directors at the 2026 Annual Meeting in
support of the Future Nominees. See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(a)(3); 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(3).

The Notifying Person intends to satisfy this solicitation requirement through, among other
methods, the delivery of a definitive proxy statement or notice of internet availability of proxy
materials to holders of shares representing at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the voting power
of shares entitled to vote on the election of directors, in accordance with Rules 14a-3 and 14a-16
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under the Exchange Act. See Exchange Act Release No. 34-93596, at 65-66 (Nov. 17, 2021)
(“Adopting Release”) (confirming that “notice and access” method satisfies solicitation
requirement).

It is anticipated that the Notifying Person and the Future Nominees will participate in the
solicitation of proxies in support of the Future Nominees (the “Proxy Solicitation”). Such persons
will receive no additional consideration if they assist in the solicitation of proxies. It is anticipated
that proxies will be solicited by mail, courier services, Internet advertising, e-mail, telephone,
facsimile, and/or in person.

The Notifying Person may seek reimbursement from the Company for expenses associated
with the Proxy Solicitation if any of the Future Nominees are elected, and do not intend to seek
shareholder approval of such reimbursement. The Notifying Person’s current best estimate is that
the total expenses that the Notifying Person or any other participants will incur in furtherance of,
or in connection with, the Proxy Solicitation will be approximately $1,500,000.

III. SEPARATE COMPLIANCE WITH COMPANY BYLAWS

The Notifying Person acknowledges that this Notice is provided pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Exchange Act and is separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any notice of director
nominations required under Article I1I, Section 3 of the Bylaws.

Article III, Section 3 of the Bylaws provides, in relevant part:

“All nominations for the board of directors must be made in writing and
received by the secretary of the corporation no less than 10 days prior to
the date of the shareholders’ meeting at which one or more directors are to
be elected.”

See Amended and Restated Bylaws of Daily Journal Corporation, Art. III § 3.

This Notice constitutes notice of the Notifying Person’s intent to conduct a proxy
solicitation pursuant to Rule 14a-19; it does not constitute, and shall not be construed as, a formal
nomination of directors under the Company’s Bylaws. The Notifying Person (or an affiliated
entity that establishes record ownership of the Company’s common stock) intends to deliver a
separate written notice of director nominations to the Company’s Secretary in compliance with the
Bylaws’ ten (10)-day advance notice requirement prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting (the “Bylaw
Nomination Notice). Such Bylaw Nomination Notice will contain all information required by
the Bylaws and applicable law, will be delivered by a shareholder of record of the Company, and
will be received by the Secretary in accordance with the timing requirements specified in Article
III, Section 3 of the Bylaws.

The Notifying Person notes that the Rule 14a-19 notice requirement and the Bylaw
nomination requirement serve different purposes and operate independently:
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(a) Rule 14a-19 Notice (This Letter): This Notice provides the Company with
advance notice of the Notifying Person’s intent to conduct a proxy solicitation using
a universal proxy card, thereby enabling the Company to include the Future
Nominees on its universal proxy card in accordance with Rule 14a-19(e). As noted
above, Rule 14a-19 uses the term “person”—not “shareholder”—and imposes no
ownership requirement for delivery of this Notice. See Adopting Release at 29-30,
37-40.

(b) Bylaw Nomination Notice (To Be Delivered Separately): The
forthcoming Bylaw Nomination Notice will satisfy the procedural requirements
under the Company’s governing documents for the Future Nominees to be “duly
nominated” and eligible for election at the 2026 Annual Meeting. Although the
Company’s Bylaws do not explicitly require the nominating party to be a
shareholder of record, the Notifying Person (or an affiliated entity) intends to
establish record ownership of the Company’s common stock prior to delivering the
Bylaw Nomination Notice, which will be delivered no less than ten (10) days prior
to the 2026 Annual Meeting in accordance with Article III, Section 3 of the Bylaws.
See SEC Division of Corporation Finance, Compliance and Disclosure
Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules 14A/14C, Question 139.04 (Dec. 6,
2022) (“Only duly nominated candidates are required to be included on a universal
proxy card.”).

For the avoidance of doubt, record holder status is not required under federal proxy rules
for purposes of delivering this Rule 14a-19 Notice. Nevertheless, the Notifying Person (or an
affiliated entity) intends to establish record ownership of the Company’s common stock prior to
delivering the Bylaw Nomination Notice to eliminate any procedural objection the Company might
raise under state law or its governing documents.

The Notifying Person represents that it is currently in the process of registering certain
shares directly with the Company’s transfer agent to establish record holder status in advance of
delivering the Bylaw Nomination Notice.

The SEC has expressly confirmed that a dissident shareholder’s obligation to comply with
Rule 14a-19 is “in addition to” its obligation to comply with any advance notice provisions in a
company’s governing documents. See Adopting Release at 42; see also SEC Division of
Corporation Finance, Compliance and Disclosure Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules
14A/14C, Question 139.06 (Aug. 25, 2022) (“Rule 14a-19(b)(1) establishes a minimum, not a
maximum, notice period for a dissident shareholder to inform the registrant of its intent to present
its own director nominees.”).

For the avoidance of doubt, the notice deadline for this Rule 14a-19 Notice is governed
exclusively by Rule 14a-19(b)(1), which requires notice “no later than 60 calendar days prior to
the anniversary date of the meeting.” 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(1). The Notifying Person is aware
that the Company’s proxy statement for the 2025 Annual Meeting stated that “[s]hareholders
intending to present proposals from the floor of the 2026 Annual Meeting in compliance with Rule
14a-4 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, must notify the Company of such
intentions before November 24, 2025.” That deadline is inapplicable to this Notice. Rule 14a-4
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governs the circumstances under which a company’s proxy may confer discretionary voting
authority on matters not specifically set forth in the proxy statement—it has no bearing on the
notice requirements for a contested director election under Rule 14a-19. Compare 17 C.F.R. §
240.14a-4(c) (discretionary authority for “matters which the persons making the solicitation do not
know... are to be presented”), with 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19 (universal proxy requirements for
contested director elections). These are separate regulatory provisions serving entirely distinct
purposes.

IV.  REQUEST FOR COMPANY NOMINEE INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(d), the Notifying Person hereby requests that the Company
provide the names of the Company’s nominees for director at the 2026 Annual Meeting no later
than fifty (50) calendar days before the first anniversary of the 2025 Annual Meeting. See 17
C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(d). Based on the 2025 Annual Meeting date of February 19, 2025, the
Company’s response is due no later than December 31, 2025.

V. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The Notifying Person expressly reserves all rights available under applicable law,
including but not limited to the right to:

a) Nominate additional or substitute Future Nominees, or withdraw any Future
Nominee, in accordance with Rule 14a-19(c) and the Company’s Bylaws;

b) Seek judicial relief or other remedies if the Company fails to comply with Rule
14a-19, applicable state law, or the Company’s governing documents;

c) Challenge any determination by the Company that the Future Nominees are not
“duly nominated” or otherwise ineligible for inclusion on a universal proxy card;

d) Engage in additional solicitation activities, communications, and filings as
permitted by law;

e) Take any other action permitted by law to protect the interests of the Company’s
shareholders.

Nothing in this Notice shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. The Notifying Person’s delivery of this Notice does not constitute
an acknowledgment that the Company’s Bylaws or any particular provision thereof is valid or
enforceable as applied to the Notifying Person or the Future Nominees.

The Notifying Person notes that certain prior public statements by or on behalf of the
Company have inaccurately characterized the regulatory registration of Buxton Helmsley USA,
Inc. and the professional licensing of its principals. For the record, Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. is
listed on FINRA’s BrokerCheck system as reporting to regulators (filing its Form ADV far before
the Company falsely claimed otherwise), and its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer holds a
Series 65 license, for which a FINRA examination results letter is attached as Annex D. The
Notifying Person reserves the right to seek injunctive or other equitable relief against the
Company, its directors, officers, or agents in the event of any continued dissemination of such
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misstatements, including, without limitation, an injunction of any proxy solicitation by the
Company that contains or incorporates such materially false or misleading statements.

Additionally, the Notifying Person hereby notifies the Company that any previously
contemplated proposal for contingent compensation based on increases in the Company’s equity
market capitalization has been withdrawn and is no longer under consideration. The Notifying
Person reserves the right to seek injunctive or other equitable relief, including, without limitation,
an injunction of any proxy solicitation by the Company, in the event any person publicly
represents—including in any proxy statement or soliciting materials—that such proposal remains
in effect or under consideration.

The Notifying Person understands that certain information regarding the 2026 Annual
Meeting (including, but not limited to, the record date, voting shares outstanding and the date, time
and place of the 2026 Annual Meeting) and the Company (including, but not limited to, its various
committees and proposal deadlines and the beneficial ownership of the Company’s securities) will
be set forth in the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A to be filed with the SEC in
connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. To the extent the Company believes any such
information is required to be set forth herein, the Notifying Person hereby refers the Company to
such filing. The Notifying Person accepts no responsibility for any information set forth in any
such filing not made by the Notifying Person.

The Annexes are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Notice. Accordingly, all
matters disclosed in any part of this Notice, including the Annexes, shall be deemed disclosed for
all purposes of this Notice. All capitalized terms appearing in one of the Annexes that are not
defined in such Annex shall have the meanings given in the body of this Notice or in another of
the Annexes, as applicable.

The Notifying Person believes that this Notice is sufficient to provide adequate notice and
information to the Company regarding the intended nomination of the Future Nominees and
complies with all valid notification and other requirements applicable to the Company, if any.
Additionally, the Notifying Person represents that, to the best of its knowledge, the information
set forth in this Notice is accurate. If, however, you believe that this Notice for any reason does
not comply with such requirements or is otherwise insufficient or defective in any respect, the
Notifying Person requests that you so notify it by December 18, 2025, by e-mail at
legal@buxtonhelmsley.com, for determination as to whether the matter is most suitable for review
by internal or external counsel. Absent notification from you by the method listed above indicating
otherwise, the Notifying Person will assume that the Company agrees that this Notice complies in
all respects with the requirements of the Bylaws.

Please be advised that neither the delivery of this Notice nor the delivery of additional
information, if any, provided by or on behalf of the Participants or any of their affiliates to the
Company from and after the date hereof shall be deemed to constitute (i) an admission by the
Participants or any of their affiliates, that this Notice is in any way defective, (ii) an admission as
to the legality or enforceability of any particular provision of the Articles of Incorporation, as
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amended (the “Charter”), the Bylaws or any other matter, (iii) a waiver by the Participants or any
of their affiliates of the right to, in any way, contest or challenge the enforceability of any provision
of the Charter, the Bylaws, or of any other matter, or (iv) consent by the Notifying Person, any
other Participant or any affiliate of any of the foregoing to publicly disclose any information
contained herein with respect to such persons. If this Notice shall be deemed for any reason by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be ineffective with respect to the nomination of any of the Future
Nominees, or if any individual Future Nominee is unable or unwilling to serve as a director of the
Company for any reason, this Notice shall continue to be effective with respect to any remaining
Future Nominee. The Notifying Person reserves the right to withdraw or modify this Notice at
any time prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Very truly yours,

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

A2

By: boxsiGN 4K8WWQP1-1RVY2KL9

Name: Alexander Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Cc:  Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
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ANNEX A

Notarized Written Consent of Each Nominee

[See attached]
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CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a director
of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a member of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy statement and
proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and distributed
to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of the foregoing and
other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the Corporation to be voted at
the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or
postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof), and (z) serving as a director of
the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: December 13, 2025

Print Name: Alexander Parker









Docusign Envelope ID: 18160EE0-9CD2-47CD-817B-4E8DBEC6689E

CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a director
of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a member of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy statement and
proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and distributed
to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of the foregoing and
other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the Corporation to be voted at
the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or
postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof), and (z) serving as a director of
the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: November 2° 2025

Kumbidmai Bwerinafa—Petromslls

Print Name: Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
State Of New Jersey )
)ss.:
County of  Camden )

On the ?° day of November in the year 2025, before me, Nicolette Hall

the undersigned notary public, personally appeared Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello  known
to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument

and acknowledged that he/she/they executed the same for the purposes contained therein.

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand.

6 Nicolette Hall
/{/L@@('z{tz 'Q) h@f) Notary Public, State of New Jersey
Notary Public ‘ My Commission Expires 01/17/2027
/I'u"’:i(f".:)./l'{f‘; Shop 11/25/2025 50182507

Completed via remote online notarization using 2 way audio/video technology









CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a
director of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a
member of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy
statement and proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
and distributed to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton
Helmsley USA, Inc. and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of
the foregoing and other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation
pursuant to Rule 14a-19 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in
connection with the solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the
Corporation to be voted at the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation
(including any adjournment or postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof),
and (z) serving as a director of the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: December 9, 2025

Print Name: Weiyee IN z[/ . J?L

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Florida
State of XEWX6¥K )
Marion )ss.:
CounfFbT e ¥ork )
ecember ‘
On the %" day of Nowemksr in the year 2025, before me, Lydia Morales ,
the undersigned notary public, personally appeared Weiyee In , known

to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged that he/she/they executed the same for the purposes contained
therein.

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand.

Online Notary
gaary Public

LYDIA MORALES
Notary Public - State of Florida

Commission # HH521893

Expires on May 4, 2028

HH521893 05/04/2028

Notarized remotely online using communication technology via Proof.









AuditTrailVersion = 1.1 proof.com

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:46 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: 05/04/2028

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 454.6103481238995, 89.65251396071767
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:42 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: HH521893

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 335.8497847436179, 75.6056045747141
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:38 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: Notarized remotely online using communication technology via Proof.
Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 85.55868788168463, 10.88
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107












Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:35 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: Online Notary

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 156.4319346253301, 133.7088519888866
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:30 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Signature Added

Signature Type: Image

Annotation Type: vector_graphic

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 67.68075604505941, 145.2018097353655
Witness Names:

ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:27 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Seal Added

Notarial Act: acknowledgement

Annotation Type: image

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 330.1033058703784, 172.0187111438162
Notarial Act Principals: 87a3a58d-b129-4d2d-9a14-824cd84a7418
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107












Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:10 UTC
Weiyee IN

customer

Signature Added

Signature Type: Image

Annotation Type: vector_graphic

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 431.0, 427.0
Witness Names:

Acting User Full Name: Weiyee IN

ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:09 UTC
Weiyee In

customer

Agreed to electronic agreement for initials

ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:08 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: Weiyee In

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 363.9436619718309, 254.3849229409661
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:03 UTC
Weiyee In

customer

Agreed to electronic agreement for signature

ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253












Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:02 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: Lydia Morales

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 404.169014084507, 282.4788586253852
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:50:31 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Initials Added

Subtype: initials

Annotation Type: vector_graphic

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 167.2863898478763, 300.3567977690362
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:50:21UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Deleted

Annotation Gid: ata92bfac7-503c-424b-b21f-e3bab6ce97fb

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 380.9389330366968, 316.3192585689923
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:50:14 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: 2025

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 215.5680799887214, 282.4788586253853
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107












Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:50:13 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: 9th

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 115.5680799887214, 282.4788586253853
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:50:13 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: December

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 165.5680799887214, 282.4788586253853
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:59 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Text Updated

Text: XXXXXXXX

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 182.6103335098481, 276.7323797521458
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:53 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Annotation Type: text
Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 182.6103335098481, 276.7323797521458

ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107












Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:32 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: Florida

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 120.037568428147, 352.0751076281912
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:24 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: Marion

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 128.3380281690141, 319.511727346501
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:16 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Initials Added

Subtype: initials

Annotation Type: vector_graphic

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 98.96713858590998, 322.0656936000772
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:08 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Initials Added

Subtype: initials

Annotation Type: vector_graphic

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 74.70422535211267, 364.2065386704997
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107












Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:00 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Text Updated

Text: XXXXXXXX

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 123.86855434364, 304.1877836845292
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:48:56 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Annotation Type: text
Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 123.86855434364, 304.1877836845292

ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:48:51 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Text Updated

Text: XXXXXXXX

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 113.0140845070422, 336.7511639662193
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:48:46 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Annotation Type: text
Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 113.0140845070422, 336.7511639662193

ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107












Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:48:39 UTC
Lydia Morales

customer

Identification Verified

Pkn: false
Acting User Full Name: Lydia Morales

ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:48:13 UTC
Weiyee IN

customer

Document Accessed
Acting User Full Name: Weiyee IN
ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:47:48 UTC
Weiyee In

customer

Credential Authenticated

ProofSignerWeb

34.69.131.123

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:45:39 UTC
Weiyee IN

customer

KBA Passed
Acting User Full Name: Weiyee IN
ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253












Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:44:35 UTC
Weiyee In

customer

Signing location address updated

Old Address: {"line1":"","”nez“:"","city":"","State":"","pOStal":"","COUntry“:""}
New Address: {"line1":"","line2":"","city":"New York","state":"NY","postal":"","country":"US"}
ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:43:30 UTC
Weiyee IN

customer

Document Accessed
Acting User Full Name: Weiyee IN
ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:43:25 UTC
Guest

customer

Document Created
Acting User Full Name: Guest
BusinessAPI

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:52:32 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Digital Certificate Applied to Document

Signature Type: Digital

Signature Algorithm: 1.2.840.10045.4.3.2

Certificate Validity Not Before: 2025-06-30 19:16:50 UTC

Certificate Validity Not After: 2026-06-30 19:26:50 UTC

Certificate Serial Number: 59ECBOCFE634D618A8A4088777ED12FF

Certificate Issuer: C = US, O = Proof.com, CN = Proof.com Document Signing ECC CA 2

ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107
















ANNEX B

Information about the Nominees

Name: Alexander E. Parker

Age: 29

Business Address: 1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3, N.Y. 10036
Residence Address: 1 Columbus Place, Apt. S32G, New York, N.Y. 10019
Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Alexander Parker is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley, an
alternative asset manager recognized globally for its expertise in investor advocacy and active
corporate engagement. Mr. Parker founded Buxton Helmsley in 2014. Mr. Parker has established
a distinguished track record of identifying accounting irregularities and securities law violations
at public companies, with his research uncovering over $20 billion in corporate accounting
misstatements since 2014.

Under Mr. Parker’s leadership, Buxton Helmsley has achieved recognition as a top-
performing activist investor, ranking in the top 15% of global activist investors by engagement
volume, according to Bloomberg. Mr. Parker’s expertise in forensic analysis and corporate
governance initiatives has resulted in significant shareholder value creation across campaigns
while, more importantly, exposing accounting misstatements and restoring transparency for
investors at companies engaged in financial reporting violations and other misconduct. Notable
engagements include his work at Mallinckrodt plc (formerly, NYSE: MNK), where Buxton
Helmsley’s identification of accounting irregularities preceded enforcement actions by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, and Fossil Group, Inc. (NASDAQ: FOSL), where Buxton
Helmsley successfully secured board representation in 2024, followed by stock appreciation
exceeding 270% within eighteen months thereafter.

Mr. Parker practices what he terms “defensive activism,” a disciplined investment
approach that combines technical forensic analysis with traditional activist strategies to identify
and remediate corporate governance failures and financial reporting violations, and, where
possible, engage in positive corporate transformations. His firm specializes in detecting violations
of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and failures in securities law compliance.
This technical expertise has enabled Mr. Parker to successfully engage with boards of directors,
management teams, and regulatory authorities to drive operational improvements and financial
transparency.

Mr. Parker has built a reputation as an effective whistleblower, with securities regulators
subsequently charging violations at entities he identified. His investor engagement campaigns
have gained recognition in prestigious publications, including 7he Harvard Law School Forum on
Corporate Governance. Mr. Parker’s work has been featured in leading financial publications,
including The Wall Street Journal, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com.
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Mr. Parker serves as a FINRA-appointed arbitrator, a position that reflects his expertise in
securities regulation and dispute resolution. As a licensed investment professional through the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), he brings additional credibility and regulatory
insight to his investment and governance activities. His appointment as a FINRA arbitrator
demonstrates the securities industry’s self-regulatory organization’s recognition of his judgment,
integrity, and ability to understand complex matters.

Mr. Parker has built institutional relationships with prominent investment firms and has
successfully raised capital from sophisticated investors. Under his leadership, Buxton Helmsley
has transitioned from a retail-focused operation to an institutionally-backed activist platform,
while maintaining its commitment to forensic accounting excellence and shareholder advocacy.

Mr. Parker’s expertise encompasses complex areas of financial reporting, including
software development cost accounting (ASC 985-20), contingent loss recognition (ASC 450-20),
asset value recognition (including ASC 350 and 360), other technical accounting standards, and
securities-related legislation, including Regulation S-X. His firm works closely with forensic
accountants, securities attorneys, and corporate governance specialists to pursue compliance and
accountability at target companies.

Mr. Parker studied finance and economics at Mercy University of New York City, where
he participated in the school’s honors business program.

Mr. Parker’s qualifications to serve as a director include his deep expertise in financial
reporting, corporate governance, and regulatory compliance, his proven track record of identifying
and remediating accounting-related uncertainty that has (as in the case of Fossil) resulted in
significant shareholder value creation, his sophisticated understanding of complex technical
accounting standards and securities law requirements, his FINRA arbitrator appointment reflecting
industry recognition of his judgment and expertise, and his demonstrated ability to work
constructively with boards of directors and management teams to implement strategic initiatives
while maintaining the highest standards of financial transparency and corporate governance. His
forensic expertise, regulatory credentials, and activist investment experience provide unique
perspectives on financial oversight, risk management, and strategic planning that would benefit
any board of directors committed to shareholder value creation and regulatory compliance.
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Name: Weiyee In

Age: 60

Business Address: 1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3, N.Y. 10036
Residence Address: 45 Tudor City Place, New York, N.Y. 10017
Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Weiyee In was a ranked Wall Street tech analyst, three-time head of equity research,
seasoned executive, strategic advisor, digital transformation specialist, and angel investor with
over three decades of experience leading technology and strategy in the global financial ecosystem,
specializing in digital transformation, FinTech, Machine Learning, and regulatory technology
(RegTech). His expertise spans capital markets, digital assets, TMT (Telecoms, Media, and
Technology), software development strategy, and Al/Machine Learning governance. He has a
strong record of success in building and mentoring cross-border teams, driving innovation, and
serving on key working groups for major industry bodies, including IBM and DTCC, on Al
governance and security. He has been recognized as an IBM Champion multiple times and serves
on the IBM Financial Services Council. He is a regular speaker at NY Techweek Fintech and
RegTech events, as well as other industry events.

Career History (Selected Roles):

CIO - Protego Trust/ National Digital Trust, New York City Metropolitan Area
Oct 2020 — Present (5 years, 2 months)

Chief Information Officer for a chartered financial institution designed to securely and
efficiently serve institutional investors’ digital asset needs. This regulated bank offers
comprehensive digital asset services, including custody, trading, lending, and issuance, within a
vertically integrated framework. He was instrumental in the strategic design and build of the bank
by collaborating with financial industry veterans and early innovators in digital assets, tech, and
security.

Angel Investor / CIO - Fortress Payments, United States
Feb 2024 — Present (1 year, 10 months)

Angel Investor and Chief Information Officer (CIO) for a global fintech providing issuing,
acquiring, and processing services. He is responsible for unlocking the future of payments through
biometric technology and payment processing orchestration. His core focus is on Biometrics,
Cross-border Transactions, PCI DSS, and Data Governance.

Member Board Of Directors, Techcreate (NYSE: TCGL)
Mar 2025 — Present (8 months)

Served on the Board of Directors for a new digital bank, the first in the USA for
international customers, focused on deploying deposit, payments, and custody solutions.
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Angel Investor & Advisor - Self-Employed (FinTech, Al, Data Analytics)
Apr 2017 — Present (8 years, 8§ months)

Provides strategy and technology advisory services, including deep regulatory advisory
and solutions development for complex global compliance mandates (e.g., MiFID II, GDPR/PII,
FATF/GAFI, BSA), leveraging advanced technologies such as NLP, Al, RPA, and Machine
Learning. This includes developing and deploying a MiFID II solution and implementing Machine
Learning models for RegTech vendors. He advises on financial custody, trust, DLT (Distributed
Ledger Technology) integration, and trade analytics across FinTech, New Media, and Al sectors.

Content Strategy - Bloomberg LP, Greater New York City Area
Jun 2015 — Apr 2017 (1 year, 11 months)

Analyzed regulatory, technology, and industry trends across the global financial ecosystem
(MiFID, MAR, GDPR) to assess impact and strategize Bloomberg’s responses. He collaborated
on innovation, IPR, and the development of best practices for core technologies within Bloomberg
Global Data.

MD, Head of Telecoms, Media and Technology, TMT Strategy, Head of ESG - BNP
Paribas, Global
Oct 2009 — Dec 2013 (4 years, 3 months)

Managing Director and Head of TMT Equity Research. He managed and mentored a
regional team of analysts, publishing thematic reports on megatrends such as “pervasive
computing,” “the impact of unstructured (big) data,” and the “Internet of Everything,” integrating
cross-border, cross-sector, and ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance) issues. He raised
the firm’s visibility by speaking at global industry events.

Global Technologist Equity Research - UBS, Greater New York City Area/Asia
Nov 1999 — Apr 2003 (3 years, 6 months)

Equity Research Strategist on the Global Technology Team. He focused on raising UBS’s
visibility as a tech-savvy bank in Asia, mentoring local analysts, and organizing/speaking at major
industry conferences (e.g., the Wireless Internet Seminar in Tokyo and the Bluetooth Congress).

Qualifications to Serve as a Director:

The nominee’s qualifications include extensive experience in strategic leadership and
technology governance at the intersection of finance and regulation. His key strengths include:

o FinTech and Digital Asset Expertise: Deep, current experience as a CIO in digital
asset banking (Protego Trust) and as an investor/advisor in FinTech, DLT, and cross-border

payments (Fortress Payments).

e Technology and AI/RegTech Governance: Recognized leadership as an IBM
Champion with direct involvement in working groups and councils for Al governance and security,
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and demonstrated practical experience developing and deploying complex regulatory solutions
(including MiFID II) and leveraging ML for regulatory technology.

e Global Strategy, Regulation, and Media: A track record of analyzing and
responding to disruptive regulatory changes (MiFID II, GDPR, FATF) across global financial and
TMT sectors (BNP Paribas, Bloomberg LP), with significant expertise in the Media and
Telecommunications verticals.

e Entrepreneurship and Advisory: 11+ years of experience as an active Angel
Investor and Advisor to startups in Europe, the USA, and Asia, focusing on technology, data
analytics, and robotic automation, providing a critical perspective on emerging market dynamics
and innovation adoption.

Direct Applicability to The Daily Journal Corporation (DJCO):

e Mr. In’s 11+ years of experience as an Investor & Advisor—including eight years
as an Angel Investor & Advisor focused on FinTech, Al, Data Analytics, and New Media—
directly addresses the dual challenge facing The Daily Journal: modernizing its newspaper
business and expertly stewarding its legacy investment portfolio. As a former Head of TMT Equity
Research (BNP Paribas) and Global Technologist Equity Research (UBS), he possesses the deep
analytical expertise required to evaluate the company’s sizable marketable securities portfolio and
provide strategic oversight on high-stakes investment decisions. His background in Capital
Markets and Equity Research is crucial for navigating the scrutiny of activist investors and
ensuring transparent, defensible valuation of financial assets.

e Mr. In’s proven ability to develop, deploy, and execute complex regulatory
technology (RegTech) solutions is uniquely suited to stabilizing and expanding the Journal
Technologies platform. He has direct, practical experience developing MiFID II solutions and
implementing Machine Learning models for RegTech vendors, demonstrating his capacity to drive
both technical compliance and commercial growth in regulatory software. This history aligns
perfectly with the current need to clarify the accounting treatment and future strategic direction of
Journal Technologies. Furthermore, his status as an IBM Champion and heavy involvement in
working groups focused on Al and Quantum security solutions (leveraging skills like Artificial
Intelligence (Al), Data Governance, Digital Transformation, and Risk Management) provides him
with the cutting-edge expertise necessary to transform the platform into a focused growth driver,
guiding the business through essential modernization, maximizing its value, and ensuring its
technical and financial governance meets the highest standards demanded by the market.
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Name: Rumbidzai (“Rumbi”) Petrozzello

Age: 53

Business Address: c/o Seramount, 2445 M St. NW, Washington, D.C.
20037

Residence Address: 6916 Beach Front Road, #2, Arverne, N.Y. 11692

Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Since 2024, Ms. Petrozzello has been a member of the board of directors of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “AICPA”). Since 2021, Ms. Petrozzello has served
as Head of Strategy and Consulting at Seramount, a professional services and research firm
focused on fostering high-performing, inclusive workplaces. In addition, since 2015, she has
served as a Principal at Rock Consulting, LL.C, a forensic accounting firm. From 2015 to 2019,
Ms. Petrozzello served as a Core and Risk Assurance Consultant for PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited (PwC), a global accounting firm recognized as the second-largest
professional services network in the world, where she worked on audits with multiple in-scope
applications, prominent hedge funds, and top law firms. Prior to that, Ms. Petrozzello spent seven
years as a Controller at TGM Associates, a real estate investment company, where she oversaw
the financials of funds holding over $500 million in assets, directed the financial aspect of
investigations and audits for prospective acquisitions, identified potential risks, and conducted
internal investigations of financial discrepancies.

Since 2012, Ms. Petrozzello has been a member of the New York State Society of Certified
Public Accountants (NYSSCPA), including serving as a member of the Litigation Services
Committee. She served as President of NYSSCPA from 2021 to 2022 and as Immediate Past
President from 2022 to 2023. From 2013 to 2020, Ms. Petrozzello served as a Diversity and
Inclusion Advocate for NYSSCPA and, from 2015 to 2016, as President of the Brooklyn/Queens
Chapter of NYSSCPA. She also served as Vice President of the Richmond chapter of the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners from 2015 to 2019. She is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, where she has served on the Forensic and Litigation
Services Committee, as a member of the Fraud Task Force, and as a member of the National
Accreditation Commission.

Ms. Petrozzello holds a B.A. from Mount Holyoke College and a BCompt from the
University of South Africa. She is a certified public accountant, a certified financial forensics
professional, and a certified fraud examiner.

Ms. Petrozzello’s qualifications to serve as a director include her deep knowledge and
experience in forensic accounting practices and techniques, evaluating and improving workplace
culture, and examining financials for a broad range of clientele, including Fortune 500 companies
and technology companies such as the Daily Journal Corporation. She has also spearheaded
diversity, equity, and inclusion efforts in the accounting industry and in workplaces more
generally.
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ANNEX C

Form of Nominee Agreement

NOMINATION AGREEMENT

This Nomination Agreement (the “Agreement”) is by and between Buxton Helmsley USA,
Inc. (“Buxton Helmsley,” “we” or “us”) and [*] (“you”).

You agree that you are willing, should we so elect, to become a member of a slate of
nominees (the “Slate”) of a Buxton Helmsley affiliate (the “Nominating Party”), which
nominees shall stand for election or appointment as directors of Daily Journal Corporation,
a South Carolina corporation (the “Corporation”), in connection with a campaign (the
“Campaign”) or a proxy solicitation (the “Proxy Solicitation™) that we may conduct in
respect of the Corporation, whether in connection with the 2026 annual meeting of
stockholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or postponement thereof or
any special meeting held in lieu thereof, the “Annual Meeting”) or otherwise. You further
agree to serve as a director of the Corporation if so elected or appointed. We agree to pay
the costs of the Proxy Solicitation and agree to reimburse you for any documented and
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses you incur in connection with the Campaign or the Proxy
Solicitation that are approved in writing in advance by us, including reasonable expenses
for travel requested by us in connection therewith.

Buxton Helmsley agrees on behalf of the Nominating Party that, so long as you agree to
inclusion on the Slate and comply with the reasonable requests from Buxton Helmsley in
such capacity, Buxton Helmsley will defend, indemnify and hold you harmless from and
against any and all losses, claims, damages, penalties, judgments, awards, settlements,
liabilities, costs, expenses and disbursements (including, without limitation, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, costs, expenses and disbursements) incurred by you in the event that you
become a party, to any civil, criminal, administrative or arbitrative action, suit or
proceeding, (i) relating to your role as a nominee for director of the Corporation on the
Slate, or (ii) otherwise arising from or in connection with or relating to the Campaign or
the Proxy Solicitation. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, Buxton Helmsley
is not indemnifying you for any action taken by you or on your behalf that occurs prior to
the date hereof or subsequent to the conclusion of the Proxy Solicitation or such earlier
time as you are no longer a nominee on the Slate or for any claims made against you in
your capacity as a director of the Corporation or actions taken by you as a director of the
Corporation, if you are elected or appointed. Nothing herein shall be construed to provide
you with indemnification (i) if you violate any provision of state or federal law or commit
any criminal actions; (ii) if you acted in a manner that constitutes fraud, gross negligence,
bad faith or willful misconduct; or (ii1) you breach the terms of this Agreement. You shall
promptly notify Buxton Helmsley in writing in the event of any third-party claims actually
made against you or known by you to be threatened (along with any supporting documents
in your possession) if you intend to seek indemnification hereunder in respect of such
claims. In addition, upon your delivery of notice with respect to any such claim, Buxton
Helmsley, in its sole discretion, shall be entitled to assume control of the defense of such
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claim with counsel chosen by Buxton Helmsley. Buxton Helmsley shall not be responsible
for any settlement of any claim against you covered by this indemnity without its prior
written consent. However, Buxton Helmsley may not enter into any settlement of any such
claim without your consent unless such settlement includes (i) no admission of liability or
guilt by you, and (ii) an unconditional release of you from any and all liability or obligation
in respect of such claim.

You understand that it may be difficult, if not impossible, to replace a nominee who, such
as yourself, has agreed to be included on the Slate and, if elected or appointed, to serve as
a director of the Corporation if such nominee later changes his or her mind and determines
not to be included on the Slate or, if elected or appointed, to serve as a director of the
Corporation. Accordingly, Buxton Helmsley is relying upon your agreement to serve on
the Slate and, if elected or appointed, as a director of the Corporation. In that regard, you
are being supplied with a written representation and agreement required by the Corporation
for members of the Slate at the Annual Meeting (the “Company Representation”), in which
you will provide Buxton Helmsley with information necessary for the Nominating Party to
make appropriate disclosure to the Corporation and to use in creating the proxy solicitation
materials to be sent to stockholders of the Corporation and filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) in connection with the Campaign and Proxy
Solicitation (collectively, the “Nominee Information”).

You agree that (i) upon request you will promptly complete, sign and return the Company
Representation and provide any other Nominee Information reasonably requested by
Buxton Helmsley, (ii) your Nominee Information will be true, complete and correct in all
respects, (ii1) you will promptly inform us in writing of any changes to the Nominee
Information, and (iv) you will provide any additional information or instruments related to
the Campaign and Proxy Solicitation as may be reasonably requested by Buxton Helmsley.
In addition, you agree that you will execute and return a separate instrument confirming
that you consent to being named in any proxy statement and proxy card and nominated for
election or appointment as a director of the Corporation and, if elected or appointed,
consent to serving as a director of the Corporation. Upon being notified that you have been
chosen, Buxton Helmsley and the Nominating Party may forward your consent and
completed Company Representation (or summaries thereof) and any other Nominee
Information, to the Corporation. Buxton Helmsley and the Nominating Party may at any
time, in our and their discretion, disclose the information contained therein, as well as the
existence and contents of this Agreement. Furthermore, you understand that Buxton
Helmsley may elect, at its expense, to conduct a background and reference check on you,
and you agree to complete and execute any necessary authorization forms or other
documents required in connection therewith. You also agree to reasonably consult with us
prior to taking any actions that are likely to interfere with your obligations hereunder or
result in an adverse recommendation from Institutional Shareholder Services, Inc. or Glass,
Lewis & Co.

You further agree that (i) you will treat confidentially and not disclose to any party any

information relating to the Campaign, the Proxy Solicitation, or Buxton Helmsley or its
affiliates; (ii) from the date hereof until the Annual Meeting, neither you nor your
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10.

11.

immediate family will purchase or sell shares in the Corporation without the written
permission of Buxton Helmsley and that you will comply with certain compliance policies
and procedures of Buxton Helmsley as communicated to you from time to time; (iii) you
will not issue, publish or otherwise make any public statement or any other form of public
communication relating to the Corporation, the Campaign or the Proxy Solicitation without
the prior written approval of Buxton Helmsley; and (iv) you will not agree to serve, or
agree to be nominated to stand for election, by the Corporation or any other stockholder of
the Corporation (other than Buxton Helmsley and its affiliates), as a director of the
Corporation without the prior written approval of Buxton Helmsley.

From the date hereof until the Annual Meeting, you may only invest in securities of the
Corporation with the prior approval of Buxton Helmsley. With respect to any purchases
by you or your immediate family of securities of the Corporation approved by Buxton
Helmsley, (i) you agree to consult with Buxton Helmsley regarding such purchases and
provide necessary information following such purchases so that we may comply with any
applicable disclosure or other obligations which may result from such investment and (ii)
Buxton Helmsley or its affiliates shall prepare and complete any required disclosures
including all regulatory filings related thereto at no cost to you. With respect to any
purchases made pursuant to this paragraph, you agree not to dispose of any such securities
prior to the termination of this Agreement.

Each of us recognizes that should you be elected or appointed to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation (the “Board”) all of your activities and decisions as a director will be
governed by applicable law and subject to your fiduciary duties, as applicable, to the
Corporation and to the stockholders of the Corporation and, as a result, that there is, and
can be, no agreement between you and Buxton Helmsley that governs the decisions which
you will make as a director of the Corporation.

This Agreement shall automatically terminate on the earliest to occur of (i) the conclusion
of the Annual Meeting (including the certification of the results thereof), (ii) your election
or appointment to the Board, (iii) the termination of the Campaign and the Proxy
Solicitation or (iv) our election to not include you as part of the Slate, provided, however,
that the applicable indemnification provisions in the third paragraph, the confidentiality
obligations in the sixth paragraph, and the eighth through twelfth paragraphs of this
Agreement shall survive such termination.

This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between Buxton Helmsley and you as to
the subject matter contained herein, and cannot be amended, modified, or terminated except
by a writing executed by Buxton Helmsley and you.

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York, without giving
effect to principles of conflicts of laws. Each party to this letter hereby irrevocably agrees
that any legal action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this letter shall exclusively
be brought in a New York State or Federal court located in New York County in the State
of New York and hereby expressly submits to the personal jurisdiction and venue of such
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courts for the purposes thereof, and expressly waives any claim of improper venue and any
claim that such courts are an inconvenient forum.

12. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, which together shall
constitute a single agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Agreed to as of the date both parties have signed:

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

By:

Name: Alexander E. Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date:

NOMINEE:

Name: [°]
Date:
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ANNEX D

FINRA Exam Results Letter

[See attached]
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Parker, Alexander E.

From: Parker, Alexander E.

Sent: Thursday, December 18, 2025 9:25 PM
To: ‘Rasool'

Cc: jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: RE:

Rasool,

Thank you for your response. It clarifies a great deal.

You write that the Section 16 violations involve "late Section 16 filings for the first-ever shares that vested under the
directors' plan."

This reflects a fundamental misunderstanding of Form 3 requirements. Form 3 is due within 10 days of becoming a
director, regardless of whether any shares have vested or whether the director owns any securities at all. The obligation
is triggered by becoming a director, not by acquiring shares. Many times, directors begin by filing a Form 3 showing zero
beneficial ownership. The form is called an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership" because it establishes a baseline
at the time of becoming an insider, before possible vesting of compensation.

You joined the Board in June 2024. Your Form 3 was due within 10 days of that date. Itis now 18 months later. No Form
3 has ever been filed.

You are a member of the Audit Committee—the committee responsible for overseeing the Company's compliance with
SEC reporting obligations. You do not understand the most basic of those obligations. And you have now put that
misunderstanding and lack of care in writing.

You also describe Section 16 compliance as "the flimsiest of technicalities." This is a remarkable statement from an Audit
Committee member. Section 16 is not a technicality. It is a federal securities law enacted by Congress to ensure
transparency in the ownership interests of corporate insiders. The fact that you regard compliance with federal
securities laws as a trivial matter—while sitting on the committee responsible for such compliance—tells shareholders
everything they need to know about the current Board's approach to governance.

You describe the CFQO's departure as a "thoughtful transition rather than anything nefarious." Thoughtful transitions do
not require separation agreements with general releases of claims and non-disparagement obligations. Perhaps you
have not reviewed the terms of Ms. To's departure. Or perhaps you have, and this is simply the message you have been
instructed to deliver.

You state that our proxy contest "will fail, as few shareholders will vote for you." | would remind you that 40% of
shareholders voted against the incumbent directors at the last annual meeting—before the CFO's departure, before the
Section 16 violations were exposed, and before shareholders learned that the entire Audit Committee cannot comply
with a two-page beneficial ownership form (not to mention, the GAAP and Regulation S-X issues).

As for your request that Ms. Petrozzello respond in my place: No. | do not take direction from you. But since you have
expressed curiosity about why Ms. Petrozzello is standing behind this, | am happy to clarify. It is because she sees
companies, just like the Daily Journal, consistently violating their obligations under accounting standards and securities
laws, and no one says anything about it. Ms. Petrozzello is a CPA and Certified Fraud Examiner who serves on the Board
of Directors of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants—the organization that develops and grades the CPA
examination. She is, in other words, among the professionals who determine whether accountants are qualified to
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practice. | am confident her understanding of ASC 985-20 exceeds that of whoever has been advising your Board. | am
sure you have been provided with the authoritative AICPA guidance we previously delivered, which clearly states that the
Daily Journal's position on ASC 985-20 is incorrect. That guidance includes a diagram of the activities in an agile
development sprint that are subject to capitalization—activities the Daily Journal has ignored entirely. The result is to
grossly mislead shareholders as to whether capital is being expended or invested in the business. These are two very
different things, which any member of an audit committee should understand.

This correspondence will be part of the record.

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

T +1(212) 951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Rasool <rasool.rayani@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, December 18, 2025 8:57 PM

To: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>
Subject:

Caution: This is an external email from outside the Buxton Helmsley network. Please take care when clicking links or
opening attachments. If you question or doubt, contact the Buxton Helmsley Compliance Department.

Alexander,

In most circumstances, | would consider engaging with a solicitation like this to understand if there has been a
misunderstanding that can be navigated and rectified.

In this case, I'm starting from a basis of zero trust. Your behaviour so far is not that of someone acting in good faith. You
have not earned any trust because, whatever your larger strategy or “reasons”

might be, you have consistently mischaracterized matters and sought to make ado of the flimsiest of technicalities to
further your objectives. It strikes me that something like late Section 16 filings for the first-ever shares that vested under
the directors’ plan are very meager sticks to build a campfire where, as you probably know, the remedy is simple
disclosure of the late filings in the proxy statement.

Broadly, | consider your claims meritless and your conduct adverse to the interest of Daily Journal’s shareholders. You
have claimed an "accounting mess," but there is no mess. Your criticism is misplaced and reflects a misunderstanding of
the applicable accounting rules.

The CFQO's departure is part of a thoughtful transition rather than anything nefarious.









You are free to launch a proxy contest, which will fail, as few shareholders will vote for you. Rather than launch a
baseless fight, which will cost your fund significant money that will not be recoverable, you should simply apologize and
move on.

All that said, the conversation that | would consider in the spirit of what you’re suggesting would be one with Ms.
Petrozzello. I'd be curious to get her perspective on the factors at play because I’'m keen to understand the basis for her
being willing to risk her reputation on an endeavor like this.

In fact, | request any reply to this email come from her and not you.

Sincerely,
Rasool

From: Alexander E. Parker <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>
Date: Monday, December 15 2025 at 10:07 PM PST
Subject:

Rasool,

I'll be direct with you. I've been aggressive with the board. I've had my reasons, and | stand by what I've said. But | also
recognize that makes me an unlikely person to reach out looking for dialogue.

I’'m reaching out to you because you weren’t part of any of this. You joined eighteen months ago to add value to a
company, and instead you’ve inherited an accounting mess, a CFO departure, and now a proxy fight. I'm very sure that’s
not what you signed up for.

I’'m not asking you to take my side or go against your colleagues. | know how boards work, and | know that’s not a
realistic ask. But | think there’s a version of this that doesn’t end in a courtroom.

Rather, a version of this where the company gets stronger, shareholders are better served, and nobody has to spend the
next six months in a war of attrition.

If you're willing to have a conversation, I'd welcome it. No preconditions. If you’re not, | understand, and | won’t bother
you again.

Alexander












BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 19, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO ERIK NAKAMURA (ENAKAMURA@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Mr. Erik Nakamura

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice Regarding Potential
Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350

Dear Mr. Nakamura:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (“Buxton Helmsley” or “we”’) beneficially owns shares of the
Company. We are writing to put you on formal notice—before you possibly certify the Company’s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025—of material accounting deficiencies
that, if left unremediated, may expose you to personal criminal liability under Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

The Company’s financial statements contain two distinct and independent violations of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) and SEC reporting requirements. Each
violation alone would render the financial statements materially misstated. Together, they
demonstrate a fundamental failure of financial reporting at the Company.

VIOLATION ONE: Failure to Capitalize Software Development Costs Under ASC 985-20

As you are aware, the Company’s subsidiary, Journal Technologies, Inc., develops and
licenses software for external use by courts and other justice agencies. The accounting treatment
for costs incurred in developing software for external sale or licensing is governed by Accounting
Standards Codification Topic 985-20 (“ASC 985-20").

Under ASC 985-20, once technological feasibility has been established, software
development costs must be capitalized. These costs are then amortized over the product’s
economic life. The threshold for capitalization is met when the entity has completed all planning,
designing, coding, and testing activities necessary to establish that the product can be produced to
meet its design specifications.

For years, the Company has expensed 100% of its software development costs, capitalizing
nothing. This accounting treatment is incorrect. It results in material understatement of assets,
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material overstatement of expenses, and material misstatement of net income in every period in
which capitalizable development activities occurred.

The Company’s Own Admissions

In its Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, the Company stated, on
page 7:

“As a technology-based company, Journal Technologies’ success depends on the
continued improvement of its products, which is why the costs to update and
upgrade them consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s
expenses.”

The Company has thus admitted that (1) it incurs significant costs to “update”, “upgrade”,
and “improve[]” its software products, and (2) these costs constitute a “significant” portion of the
Company’s expenses. The Company has already admitted how “significant” (i.e., material) this
error has been overs years of quarterly financials.

Development costs related to updating and upgrading existing software products are
precisely the types of costs that are subject to capitalization under ASC 985-20, once technological
feasibility is established. The Company cannot simultaneously claim that these costs are
“significant” while entirely omitting them from its balance sheet. The Company has failed to keep
proper accounting records for years, which means it must reconstruct its historical financial
statements to regain compliance—there is no choice, given such “significant” non-compliance.

The Absurdity of the Company’s Accounting Position

Let us be direct about the logical impossibility of the Company’s historical accounting
treatment.

The only justification under GAAP for expensing 100% of software development costs is
a claim that technological feasibility has never been established—that the Company’s software
products have never progressed beyond the preliminary project stage.

This position is facially absurd.

Journal Technologies currently derives approximately 76% of the Company’s consolidated
revenues from its software products. These are not experimental prototypes or conceptual designs.
These are fully developed, commercially deployed software systems that courts and justice
agencies across the country rely upon every day to manage their operations. You cannot generate
76% of your revenues from a product that is not technologically feasible. The revenue itself is
conclusive proof that technological feasibility was achieved long ago.
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Moreover, the Company’s own language betrays the fallacy of its accounting position. A
product cannot be “upgraded” unless it already exists in a completed, functional state. The very
concept of an “upgrade” presupposes a working product that is being enhanced. You do not
“upgrade” something that has not yet demonstrated it can be produced to meet its design
specifications—you develop it. The fact that the Company describes its development activities as

“updates”, “upgrades”, and “improvements” is an admission that the underlying products have
long since achieved technological feasibility.

To put it simply: if the software works, it is feasible. If it generates revenue, it works. If
the Company is upgrading it, it already exists. The Company cannot have it both ways—claiming
its products are technologically unproven for accounting purposes while simultaneously selling
those same products to customers and generating tens of millions of dollars in annual revenue.

We expect you, as an incoming Chief Financial Officer, to understand the fundamental
difference between an expense and an investment. This distinction is not a technicality—it is the
cornerstone of accrual accounting and the very issue at the heart of the Company’s longstanding
violation of ASC 985-20. Costs that provide future economic benefit are capitalized as assets;
costs that do not are expensed. The Company’s policy of expensing all development costs—
including those incurred to create valuable, revenue-generating software enhancements—treats
investments as if they were worthless the moment they are made. That is not consistent with
GAAP.

VIOLATION TWO: Failure to Separately Report Research and Development Expenses
Under Regulation S-X

Entirely independent of the ASC 985-20 capitalization issue, the Company’s financial
statements violate Regulation S-X by failing to separately disclose research and development
expenses on the face of the income statement.

Regulation S-X § 210.5-03 prescribes the form and content of income statements for SEC
registrants. That section requires registrants to present research and development costs as a
separate line item on the income statement when the category is “material” (as the Company has
admitted, “significant”), distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses. It is a violation
of Regulation S-X to lump material categories of expenses together.

The Company has admitted—in its own words—that its software development costs
“consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s expenses.” The word
“significant” is a term of art in accounting and SEC reporting. By the Company’s own admission,
these costs are material.

Yet the Company does not report research and development expenses as a separate line
item on its consolidated statements of operations. Instead, these material costs are improperly
buried within selling, general and administrative expenses, invisible to investors reviewing the
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face of the financial statements, leaving it impossible for investors to understand how much capital
is being invested into Journal Technologies’ software products. This presentation violates Section
210.5-03 of Regulation S-X.

This is a violation of Regulation S-X that is entirely separate from the ASC 985-20
capitalization issue. Even if the Company’s policy of expensing all development costs were
correct (which it is not), the Company would still be required to separately disclose those expenses
on the income statement—apart from SG&A—when they are material. The Company has
admitted materiality. The Company has failed to make the required disclosure.

To be clear: the Form 10-K must separately report true research and development
expenses—meaning research and development costs that are properly expensed, excluding those
development activities that should be capitalized under ASC 985-20—as a line item distinct from
selling, general and administrative expenses. The Company’s current presentation fails on both
counts: it neither capitalizes what should be capitalized nor separately discloses what should be
disclosed.

Authoritative Guidance

We are enclosing for your reference an article published by the Journal of Accountancy,
the official publication of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA™), titled
“Accounting for external-use software development costs in an agile environment” (March 12,
2018). The article is available at:

https://www.journalofaccountancy.com/news/2018/mar/accounting-for-external-use-software-
development-costs-201818259/

As you are aware, the AICPA is the organization that develops and grades the CPA exam,
determining who is and is not qualified to hold a CPA license. It, therefore, would be a mistake
not to agree with them.

The article explains, with accompanying diagrams (if you should require a visual), how
software development costs should be analyzed under ASC 985-20, including in modern agile
development environments. It states unequivocally: “[c]ompanies using an agile approach to
develop software might conclude inappropriately that technological feasibility has not been met
significantly before the software enhancement is available to customers, resulting in costs being
expensed as incurred rather than being capitalized.”

The article further states that “[d]istinguishing between costs that can be capitalized and
those that cannot be capitalized can complicate the project accounting, reporting, and
documentation steps within each sprint somewhat. But the additional administrative work does not
have to be onerous. In most cases the various tasks and deliverables within each sprint can be
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segmented into broad categories, so that all costs associated with that task can be either expensed
or capitalized.”

The article further explains that “[f]ailure to take this initial action could make it difficult
to correctly separate costs between those that should be capitalized and those that should be
expensed. This could lead to errors in the application of GAAP as well as errors in the amount of

net income or loss entities report.”

That is precisely what has occurred at Journal Technologies, quarter after quarter, year
after year.

For your reference, the AICPA’s diagram depicting which activities within an agile
“sprint” are subject to capitalization:

06

v

Capitalizable
Feature Activities Occur

3 Within “Sprints”
w of Activities

Software Release

Your Certification Obligations

When you sign the Form 10-K, you will be required to provide certifications pursuant to
Section 302 and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Under Section 302, you will
certify that the financial statements “fairly present in all material respects the financial condition
and results of operations” of the Company. Under Section 906 (codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350), you
will certify that the periodic report “fully complies” with SEC reporting requirements and that the
information “fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
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operations” of the Company. There is no mistake that, if you certify financials within the
upcoming Form 10-K that perpetuate these violations involving “significant” financial activities,
that you would be falsely certifying the financial statements to fairly represent, in all “material”
aspects, the financial condition and results of operations.

Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350(c), any person who certifies a statement knowing that the periodic
report does not comport with all the requirements of the statute shall be fined not more than
$1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 10 years, or both. Any person who willfully certifies a
statement knowing it does not comport with all requirements shall be fined not more than
$5,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.

You Now Have No Plausible Deniability

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you of the Company’s failure to comply with
ASC 985-20 and Regulation S-X. You are now on notice that:

1. The Company has a longstanding policy of expensing 100% of software
development costs, in violation of ASC 985-20, requiring restatement of several
periods of historical financial statements;

2. ASC 985-20 requires capitalization of development costs incurred after
technological feasibility is established;

3. The Company has admitted in its own SEC filings that it incurs “significant” costs
to “update”, “upgrade”, and “improve[]” its software products;

4. The Company generates approximately 76% of its consolidated revenues from the
very software products it implicitly claims have never achieved technological
feasibility;

5. No reasonable accountant could conclude that software generating tens of millions
of dollars in annual revenue has not achieved technological feasibility;

6. Separately and independently, the Company fails to report research and
development expenses as a separate line item on its income statement, in violation
of Regulation S-X Section 210.5-03;

7. The Company has admitted these expenses are “significant,” establishing their
materiality for disclosure purposes; and

8. These two violations—the failure to capitalize under ASC 985-20 and the failure
to separately disclose under Regulation S-X—each independently result in material
misstatement of the Company’s financial statements.

If you sign a Form 10-K that continues to entirely omit capitalization of software
development costs—or that fails to separately disclose true research and development expenses
(excluding development activities subject to capitalization) as a line item on the income statement
distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses—you will be certifying financial
statements that you know, based on this notice, do not fairly present the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company and do not fully comply with SEC reporting requirements.
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Such certification, made with knowledge of these deficiencies, would be quite impossible
to argue not constituting a willful false certification under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

Consequences

If you certify a Form 10-K that perpetuates the Company’s noncompliance with ASC 985-
20 and Regulation S-X after receiving this notice, Buxton Helmsley intends to:

1. Refer the matter to the Division of Enforcement of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission, with a recommendation that the Commission investigate
potential violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and other applicable securities laws;

2. File a complaint with the California Board of Accountancy and any other state
licensing authority with jurisdiction over your CPA license, seeking disciplinary
action for your role in willfully certifying materially misstated financial statements,
in violation of accounting standards and federal securities laws; and

3. Pursue all available legal remedies against you personally, including but not limited
to claims for securities fraud and breach of fiduciary duty, following the conclusion
of our proxy contest.

Conclusion

You have an opportunity to do the right thing. You should refuse to certify financial
statements that continue to materially misstate the Company’s assets, expenses, and net income.

The choice is yours. But you cannot later claim ignorance. This letter ensures that any
certification you provide will be made with full knowledge of the issues we have described.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 21, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attn: John B. Frank, Chair of Audit Committee

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice of Additional Audit
Committee Failures; Undisclosed Implicit Waivers of Code of Ethics; Missing Form 8-K
Filings Under Item 5.05

Dear Mr. Frank (and Ms. Conlin):

After further investigation alongside advisors and counsel over the weekend, we write
again to now put you on formal notice—in your capacity as Chair of the Audit Committee of the
Company—of additional failures by the Audit Committee to discharge its oversight
responsibilities. Specifically, the Audit Committee has failed to ensure the Company’s compliance
with Item 5.05 of Form 8-K, which requires disclosure of waivers (including implicit waivers) of
the Company’s Code of Ethics, filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2020 (the "Code of Ethics"). These failures compound the governance
deficiencies we have previously identified and further demonstrate the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

You will note Mr. Rayani is not copied on this new correspondence (only copying Ms.
Conlin and Baker Tilly), as will be clear by the end.

It is worth noting, at the forefront, that we have now discovered that Steven Myhill-Jones—
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer—was also in violation of his Section 16(a) filing
obligations. This means that four out of four current directors failed to comply with basic federal
securities law reporting requirements. One hundred percent of the Board. The CEO’s delinquent
Form 3 was not filed until December 16, 2024—nearly three years late—and, as detailed below,
that filing appears to have been deliberately structured to conceal the full extent of his violations.
The Form 3 falsely reports Mr. Myhill-Jones owned shares before beginning his service at the
Company when, by his own admission (we include a quote below), he had never purchased a single
share of Company stock. The 400 shares reported were granted to him after he became CEO—an
acquisition that should have been reported on a separate Form 4, with a transaction date, which
Mr. Myhill-Jones conspicuously omitted. This is the same executive who backdated the
Company’s July 29, 2025, Form 8-K to July 26, 2025, to conceal the Board’s failure to timely
disclose its accounting investigation into the issues raised by us. The pattern is unmistakable:
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when faced with disclosure failures, this CEO’s instinct is not to remedy them but to falsify filings
to cover them up.

Given no response yet to our December 18, 2025, letter informing of our possible referral
of the violations of federal law you are continuing to stand behind, we are increasingly believing
that either you or Ms. Conlin must believe (there must be a majority consensus among Audit
Committee members) that, as Mr. Rayani admitted belief himself, federal securities laws are
“flimsy technicalities”. We stand firm on our deadline of hearing from you by tomorrow,
December 22, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time, or we intend to proceed with the contemplated
California State Bar complaint filing, which will be publicly filed with a copy to the Chevron
fiduciaries and shareholders who are then also likely to be harmed by your then-apparent disdain
for federal securities laws. We are certain Beachbody Company Inc.’s remaining Audit Committee
members (where Ms. Conlin also serves), not to mention shareholders, would also be appalled if
they knew one of their Audit Committee members had such a disregard for federal securities laws.
We have offered you and Mary Murphy Conlin a path to preserving your seats on the Board of the
Company, and hope you both will realize the self-destructive effects of not taking it. I will praise
both you and Ms. Conlin in a press release announcing our cooperation agreement, but will do the
very opposite if this proceeds any further to a proxy contest.

* * *

I UNDISCLOSED SECTION 16 VIOLATIONS AND IMPLICIT WAIVERS.

As detailed in our December 13, 2025 correspondence, multiple members of the Board—
including two members of the Audit Committee—filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that
were delinquent by as many as six years. The specifics bear repeating:

*  You, John B. Frank: Became a director in February 2022. Filed Form 3 and Form
4 on October 3, 2025—more than three and a half years after the statutory deadline.

*  Mary Murphy Conlin: Became a director in May 2019. Filed Form 3 and Form 4
on October 3, 2025—more than six years after the statutory deadline.

* Rasool Rayani: Became a director in June 2024. As of the date of this letter, Mr.
Rayani has still not filed his required Form 3 or any required Form 4 reports—a
delinquency now exceeding eighteen months.

+ Steven Myhill-Jones: Became acting Chief Executive Officer on March 28, 2022.
Filed his Form 3 on December 16, 2024—approximately two years and nine months
after the statutory deadline. As discussed further below, Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form
3 filing contains additional deficiencies that warrant separate examination, as we
do below.

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors and officers to file
a Form 3 within ten days of becoming a reporting person and a Form 4 within two business
days of any transaction in the Company’s securities.
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II.

Section D(2) of the Company’s Code of Ethics—"Timely and Truthful Disclosure"—
provides:

"In reports and documents filed with or submitted to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and other regulators, and in other public communications made by the
Company, the Company’s directors, officers and employees involved in the
preparation of such reports, documents and communications shall make
disclosures that are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable."”

Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics—"Legal Compliance"—provides:

"In conducting the business of the Company, all directors, officers and employees
shall comply with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations at all levels
of government in the United States and in any non-U.S. jurisdiction in which the
Company does business."

The years-long failures by Messrs. Frank, Rayani, and Myhill-Jones, and Ms. Conlin, to
comply with Section 16(a) filing requirements are violations of both Section D(2) and
Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics. The Company’s failure to take action against these
violations constitutes an "implicit waiver" under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K.

The Company has never filed a Form 8-K disclosing these implicit waivers. Item
5.05(b) of Form 8-K requires disclosure within four business days of any waiver, including
any implicit waiver, granted to a director or executive officer. An "implicit waiver" is
defined as the company's failure to take action within a reasonable period of time regarding
a material departure from a provision of the code of ethics that has been made known to
the company.

The Audit Committee—which you chair—has, on top of everything else, failed to ensure
the Company’s compliance with these additional disclosure requirements. The Company
was required to file Form 8-Ks disclosing the implicit waivers granted to each of these
individuals. It did not. This is a separate and independent disclosure failure layered on top
of the underlying Section 16 violations.

STEVEN MYHILL-JONES’ DEFECTIVE FORM 3 FILING.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3, filed December 16, 2024, warrants separate examination
because it appears to have been structured to conceal, rather than remedy, his Section 16
violations (just the same as Mr. Myhill-Jones’ July 29 Form 8-K was apparent to be
structured to conceal his disclosure violations there, too).
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II1.

To begin, Mr. Myahill-Jones falsely stated the “Date of Event Requiring Statement” as
December 11, 2024, knowing very well that his employment started nearly two years
before that date.

Further, a Form 3 is an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership of Securities." As earlier
noted, Form 3 is required to be filed within ten days of a person becoming a director or
officer. It reports the securities beneficially owned by the reporting person as of the date
they became a reporting person (indisputable by the “initial statement” form header)—not
as of the date the form is filed.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 on December 16, 2024, reported that he beneficially owned 400
shares of Company common stock at the time he began service at the Company. However,
at the Company’s February 15, 2023, annual shareholder meeting, Mr. Myhill-Jones stated:
"while I don’t have equity yet, I'm certainly keen to participate in the future growth of the
business..." If Mr. Myhill-Jones had never purchased shares of Company stock, then he
could not have owned 400 shares as of March 28, 2022—the date he became acting CEO
and the date as of which he was being asked to report ownership for.

As then admitted by Mr. Myhill-Jones himself, the 400 shares reported on Mr. Myhill-
Jones’ Form 3 were granted to him after he became CEO—mnot shares he owned when he
initially assumed the role. Any acquisition of shares after becoming a reporting person was
required to be reported on a Form 4, not a Form 3. Form 4 requires disclosure of the
transaction date, the nature of the transaction, and the number of shares acquired or
disposed of. Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 contains none of this information because there is
no place on a Form 3 to report it—Form 3 is not designed to report acquisitions, only initial
holdings at the time of beginning service.

The structure of Mr. Myhill-Jones’ filing suggests an attempt to mask a dual violation—
the failure to timely file a Form 3 and the failure to timely file a Form 4 reporting a stock
grant—by combining both into a single, defective Form 3 that obscures the date and nature
of the acquisition. The failure to disclose the grant date is particularly notable; without it,
shareholders cannot determine when the violation occurred or how long it went unreported.

This, too, required an Item 5.05 Form 8-K disclosure for his personal disclosure violations.
The Company has never filed one. Nor did the Company disclose Mr. Myhill-Jones'
implicit waiver in its proxy statement filed January 8, 2025—which was filed after his
defective Form 3 but made no mention of his years-long Section 16 delinquency or the
implicit waiver it necessarily entailed.

THE AUGUST 14, 2025 FORM 10-Q: WILLFUL FALSE CERTIFICATION.

On August 14, 2025, Mr. Myhill-Jones and then-Chief Financial Officer Tu To signed and
filed the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2025. In connection with
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that filing, both executives provided certifications pursuant to Section 302 and Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, certifying that the financial statements "fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations" of the Company.

Those certifications were false when made. More importantly, Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms.
To knew they were false when they signed them.

Between July 14, 2025, and July 29, 2025, Buxton Helmsley sent five separate letters to
the Board detailing material violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP") and SEC reporting requirements in the Company’s financial statements. Any
jury of reasonable minds (or your peers at the California State Bar) would have understood
the contents of those letters, for which Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To decided to bury their
heads in the sand, in complete disregard of federal securities laws. Our letters of July 14,
July 18, July 23, July 28, and July 29, 2025, explained in detail:

» The Company’s failure to capitalize software development costs as required by
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20");

* The Company’s failure to separately disclose research and development expenses
as required by Regulation S-X § 210.5-03; and

» The materiality of these violations, given the Company’s own admission in its SEC
filings that software development costs are “significant” (there is no dispute of
materiality under Regulation S-X).

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To received these letters. They were on notice that the
Company’s financial reporting had long violated GAAP and Regulation S-X. They were
on notice that the financial statements they were about to certify were going to continue
those violations of GAAP and Regulation S-X. They signed anyway.

Section D(1) of the Code of Ethics—"Honest and Ethical Conduct"—provides:

"All directors, officers and employees shall behave honestly and ethically at all
times and with all people.... They shall not misrepresent facts or engage in illegal,
unethical, or anti-competitive practices for personal or professional gain."”

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To engaged in clearly illegal practices—the willful false
certification of financial statements under 18 U.S.C. § 1350—for professional gain. They
signed the certifications to keep their jobs. They were given clear details to know that the
financial reporting was misstated and non-compliant (even if they wanted to argue they did
not understand the GAAP issues, the Regulation S-X issue of not separately disclosing
research and development was indisputable, as they already admitted those expenses to be
“significant”, which clearly met the materiality threshold for requiring separate disclosure
pursuant to Regulation S-X). They signed anyway.
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IVv.

The Audit Committee’s failure to take action against this conduct constitutes another
implicit waiver requiring Form 8-K disclosure under Item 5.05. No such Form 8-K has
been filed.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.
Let us be direct about what has occurred:

* Four directors and officers violated Section 16(a) filing requirements—some for
more than six years.

* The Company took no action against any of them.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waivers.

* The Company’s CEO attempted to mask his dual Section 16 violations with a
defective Form 3 filing, falsely dating it and attempting to combine it with the
contents of a Form 4 to minimize the appearance of the violations.

* The CEO and CFO signed knowingly false Sarbanes-Oxley certifications after
being put on written notice of GAAP violations.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waiver of the Code of
Ethics arising from that conduct.

» The Company’s January 8, 2025, proxy statement made no mention of the implicit
waivers related to Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 and Form 4 disclosure violations.

This is not inadvertence. This is a pattern of concealment. The Audit Committee—which
you chair—has systematically failed to ensure the Company’s compliance with disclosure
requirements designed to inform shareholders when insiders have been permitted to violate
the Company’s own ethical standards.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the Audit Committee will not disclose when directors
violate basic filing requirements, and will not disclose when executives sign false
certifications, what else is being concealed? If these failures were mistakes and not in line
with your personal ethical standards as a securities lawyer expected to uphold the law, you
need to avoid any further delay in remediation of this Company’s governance and
compliance failures.

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you, as Audit Committee Chair, of the

failures described herein. Any further delay by the Audit Committee to address these matters—
including by ensuring appropriate disclosure in the Company’s forthcoming proxy statement—
will be considered in connection with our pending notice of potential referral to the State Bar of
California regarding your professional conduct.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.
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Cc:

Respectfully,

Ao—————

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Mary Murphy Conlin (Audit Committee member, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 13, 2025

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”’) — Delivery of Rule 14a-19 Notice;
Observations Regarding Recent Governance Developments

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Enclosed with this letter please find our formal notice of intent to solicit proxies in support
of alternate director nominees pursuant to Rule 14a-19 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Notice”). The Notice is being delivered in accordance with the timing requirements of Rule 14a-
19(b)(1), which requires delivery no later than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the anniversary
date of the prior year’s annual meeting.

We write separately to address certain governance developments that have occurred since
our initial correspondence with the Company in July 2025, and that bear directly on the matters
raised in our Notice. We believe these developments underscore the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

I. DEPARTURE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.

On October 29, 2025, the Company filed a Form 8-K disclosing that Chief Financial
Officer Tu To would “retire” effective January 15, 2026. The filing reveals that Ms. To’s
departure was structured not as a conventional retirement, but as a negotiated separation
pursuant to a “Separation Agreement and Release” dated October 27, 2025. The terms of
that Agreement warrant careful examination:

* Ms. To will receive a lump-sum payment of $175,000, characterized as a
“retroactive pay adjustment”;

* Ms. To will receive a $40,000 cash bonus for fiscal year 2025;

* Ms. To is eligible for contingent milestone bonuses of up to $75,000 “primarily
associated with the Company’s financial system conversion”; and

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com









Daily Journal Corporation
December 13, 2025

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

II.

* Ms. To agreed to provide a “general release and waiver of claims” and “reaffirmed
her confidentiality and non-disparagement obligations.”

These are not the hallmarks of a voluntary retirement after forty-two years of service.
Separation agreements containing general releases of claims and non-disparagement
obligations are instruments of risk management employed when there is potential exposure
to be managed. A CFO who is simply choosing to retire after a long career does not require
a negotiated release of claims; she simply retires.

The timing is notable. Ms. To’s departure was announced approximately three months
after our July 2025 correspondence identified material concerns regarding the Company’s
software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20—concerns that Ms. To, as the
certifying officer responsible for the accuracy of the Company’s financial statements,
would have been directly accountable for. The Board’s decision to structure her exit with
a release of claims and a prohibition on public comment speaks for itself.

We further note that the “milestone bonuses” tied to the “financial system conversion” are
being paid to assist in remediation of the very internal control failures that Ms. To oversaw.
The Company acknowledged in its May 2025 Form NT 10-Q that it was “migrating to a
new accounting system as part of its efforts to enhance its internal control over financial
reporting.” Ms. To is now being compensated to help repair systems that failed under her
watch.

DELINQUENT SECTION 16 FILINGS BY AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS.

We have also identified that two members of the Company’s Audit Committee recently
filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that were delinquent by as many as seven years:

» John B. Frank, a lawyer at Oaktree Capital Management, L.P., who is designated
as the Board’s “financial expert” for purposes of SEC disclosure requirements; and
* Mary Murphy Conlin, also a member of the Audit Committee.

For reference, Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires directors to file:

* Form 3 (Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership): Within ten days of becoming
a director; and

* Form 4 (Statement of Changes in Beneficial Ownership): Within two business days
of any transaction in a company’s securities.

These are not obscure compliance requirements. These are some of the most basic
obligations for every public company director. Mr. Frank is a securities lawyer at Oaktree
Capital-—one of the world’s largest alternative investment managers, with approximately
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$180 billion in assets under management. Such personal compliance failures are not
indicative of a “financial expert” suitable to be leading the Audit Committee.

Yet, such personal compliance failures are not limited to Mr. Frank. Ms. Conlin, also
serving on the Audit Committee, had the same delinquencies. The fact that both Audit
Committee members failed to file required ownership reports for years—and that neither
the Company’s management nor its external counsel identified or remedied the
deficiency—reflects systemic oversight failure at the committee charged with overseeing
financial reporting and internal controls.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the individuals entrusted with overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting cannot comply with a two-page beneficial ownership form
due within ten days of their appointments, what confidence can shareholders have in their
oversight of complex accounting standards such as ASC 985-20? None.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.

These developments—the negotiated departure of the CFO with a release of claims and
gag order, the years-long Section 16 reporting failures by both Audit Committee members,
the acknowledged internal control deficiencies requiring system-wide remediation—are
not isolated incidents. They reflect a governance environment in which basic compliance
obligations have been neglected for years.

We remind the Board that on July 29, 2025, the Company filed a Form 8-K containing
statements about Buxton Helmsley’s regulatory status that were demonstrably false—
including the assertion of false claims of holding securities licenses. Attached as Annex D
to the enclosed Notice is a FINRA examination results letter confirming that, contrary to
your false public claims, I do, indeed, hold a Series 65 license. We are delivering this
document directly to the Board to avoid any future claim of uncertainty on this point. The
Company’s July 29 statements were false when made, and any repetition of those
statements in the Company’s proxy materials will be grounds for injunctive relief under
Rule 14a-9.

The July 29 Form 8-K contains an additional false statement that remains uncorrected to
this day. The cover page of that filing states that the “Date of earliest event reported” is
July 28, 2025. Yet Item 8.01 of the same filing states: “Two weeks ago, we received a
letter from Alexander E. Parker,” and later: “His initial July 14 letter is attached as Exhibit
99.1.” The filing thus explicitly identifies July 14, 2025, as the date of the earliest event
being reported—while the cover page certifies that date as July 28, 2025. This is not
ambiguous; the filing contradicts itself on its face. Mr. Myhill-Jones signed this document.
We raised this discrepancy in our July 29, 2025, correspondence, yet the filing has never
been corrected. The Company has since hired a Director of SEC Reporting, yet this
demonstrably false statement remains in the Company’s public filings. If the Company
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cannot accurately report a date on a Form 8-K—when the correct date appears in the body
of the very same document—shareholders may reasonably question the accuracy of
anything else in the Company’s SEC filings. The fact that this false disclosure remains
uncorrected demonstrates that the Company’s attempt to hire a Director of SEC Reporting
is inadequate and that the Company requires a Board-level governance refresh (the Board
not forcing correction of knowingly false SEC filings either).

We also wish to make clear that the contingent compensation proposal referenced in our
earlier correspondence has been withdrawn and is no longer under consideration. Given
the severity of the governance failures now evident—the CFO’s negotiated departure, the
Audit Committee’s years-long Section 16 delinquencies, the internal control deficiencies,
and the Board’s response of attacking the messenger rather than addressing the message—
we have concluded that this situation requires Board reconstitution as a matter of fiduciary
necessity, without regard for compensation. Any representation by the Company in its
proxy materials that we continue to seek contingent compensation, or any implication to
that effect, will similarly be grounds for injunctive relief to prevent any further tampering
of this election through false statements.

Rather than engage substantively with the accounting concerns we raised, the Company
elected to attack the messenger with false statements. Three months later, the CFO
responsible for the accounting in question was shown the door with a separation agreement.
The Board’s response to our concerns has been to quietly take the remedial actions we
identified as necessary while publicly maintaining that our concerns were unfounded.
Shareholders deserve better.

We remain prepared to engage constructively with the Board should it wish to discuss a
consensual resolution of these matters. However, absent such engagement, we intend to proceed
with the proxy solicitation described in the enclosed Notice and to present shareholders with a
clear choice regarding the future governance of this Company.

Baker Tilly US, LLP, copied on this letter, is reminded ahead of DJCO’s imminent Form
10-K filing (due to contain audited financials) that they were sent (months ago) an authoritative
publication of the AICPA that directly supports Buxton Helmsley’s position that the Company’s
stated rationale for its accounting treatment does not comply with ASC 985-20.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.

Respectfully,
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A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 17, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company’) — Appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

We must follow up after our December 13 letter to express obvious concerns regarding the
Company’s Form 8-K filed yesterday, December 16, 2025, announcing the appointment of Erik
Nakamura as Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial Officer of Daily Journal Corporation
(the “December 16 Form 8-K”).

Suspicious Process

The December 16 Form 8-K states that the Board approved Mr. Nakamura’s appointment
on December 12, 2025. Yet the December 16 Form 8-K also discloses that, as of the filing date
(four days later), “the specific compensation arrangements have not been finalized.” The
Compensation Committee merely “authorized the Company to finalize the terms” of his
appointment.

This is not how CFO appointments work. Boards do not approve the appointment of a
principal financial officer without knowing what the company will pay him. Compensation is not
an afterthought to be delegated for later resolution—it is a material term that is approved as part
of the appointment itself. Without acceptable compensation terms, there is no appointment. The
notion that the Board definitively approved this appointment on December 12, while leaving
compensation entirely undetermined (handing management carte blanche authority and a blank
check), defies belief and underscores the inappropriate governance by the Board.

We also note that the December 16 Form 8-K disclosed an event that supposedly occurred
on December 12, yet was filed on December 16—the final day of the four-business-day window
permitted under Item 5.02 of Form 8-K. We further note that Buxton Helmsley's Rule 14a-19
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notice of intent to solicit proxies was delivered to the Company on December 13, 2025, just one
day after the Board’s purported approval of Mr. Nakamura's appointment.

Shareholders are entitled to have confidence that material corporate actions are taken
through proper deliberative processes, not rushed or reconstructed in response to external
pressures. The circumstances here do not inspire that confidence. Any shareholder will agree that
the claimed timing of the event disclosed in the December 16 Form 8-K is highly suspicious once
they are informed of the behind-the-scenes events involving Buxton Helmsley’s Rule 14a-19
notice.

The Very Wrong Choice

Even setting aside questions about process, the substance of this appointment is deeply
troubling.

Mr. Nakamura has served as Chief Financial Officer of Journal Technologies, Inc. since
October 2024. Journal Technologies is the subsidiary at the very center of the Company’s ongoing
accounting issues. Buxton Helmsley has publicly identified stark, sweeping violations of ASC
985-20 in relation to Journal Technologies’ complete failure to properly capitalize software
development costs, in addition to a complete failure to disclose the “significant” research and
development expenses on a separate line item of the Company’s income statement, in violation of
Regulation S-X.

Mr. Nakamura has been directly responsible for Journal Technologies’ books and records
during periods of this non-compliance, including the Company’s last quarterly report filed with
the U.S. SEC. He is the subsidiary CFO who oversaw the very accounting practices now under
scrutiny, even more directly than CFO Tu To (though Ms. To absolutely should have noticed the
suspicious complete absence of a “research and development expense” line item on the income
statement, and nonexistent intangible assets on the balance sheet). Promoting Mr. Nakamura to
parent company CFO does not signal a commitment to addressing these issues—it signals a
commitment to defending them.

The December 16 Form 8-K describes this appointment as “a continuation of the
Company's initiatives since 2023 to build the required finance team for the future alongside
modernized accounting systems and improved internal controls.” If the Company were genuinely
committed to improved internal controls, it would not elevate the executive most directly
associated with the subsidiary’s questioned accounting to the top financial role at the parent
company. This appointment suggests the Board either does not understand the seriousness of the
financial reporting violations that have been ongoing at the Company’s Journal Technologies
subsidiary, or does not care.

A Pattern of Governance Failure
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This appointment is consistent with the Board’s broader pattern of prioritizing
entrenchment over accountability. Rather than engage constructively with shareholder concerns
about accounting practices, the Board has chosen to circle the wagons. Rather than bring in fresh
leadership that was not a part of creating the issues under review, the Board has promoted from
within the very unit where the problems originated.

We remind the Board that approximately 40% of shareholders voted against multiple
directors at the last annual meeting, before the full scope of the accounting issues became public,
and before the departures of Ms. To and others. The Board’s response to that vote of no confidence
has been to double down on the status quo, which we are sure will not end well at the 2026 annual
meeting.

This appointment comes as the Company’s Form 10-K is due in fifteen days, and Baker
Tilly US, LLP must decide whether to sign off on financial statements that may contain the very
misstatements Buxton Helmsley has identified. Elevating the Journal Technologies CFO to the
parent company role at this moment sends a message, and is about as assuring as if Baker Tilly
signs off on financials that entirely contradict authoritative guidance published by their own
industry body (the AICPA).

As we said in our letter to the Board just days ago, shareholders deserve better.

* * *

Buxton Helmsley reserves all rights, at law and in equity, including the right to pursue any
and all remedies available to it in connection with the matters described herein and the Company’s
ongoing governance failures.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Additional Section 16 Violations
Identified

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Following our letter of December 17, 2025, regarding the appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer, we have now discovered an additional compliance failure that warrants
immediate attention. Our December 13, 2025 letter identified years-long Section 16(a) reporting
failures by Audit Committee members John B. Frank and Mary Murphy Conlin. We have now
discovered that the third member of the Audit Committee—Rasool Rayani—has the same
compliance failures. Mr. Rayani joined the Board in June 2024. To date, eighteen months later,
no Form 3 has ever been filed on his behalf. Additionally, no Form 4 has been filed to report the
equity compensation he received, which the Company's own proxy statement discloses as $8,172.

To summarize: the Company recently filed delinquent Form 3 and Form 4 reports for Mr.
Frank and Ms. Conlin—apparently believing it had remedied its Section 16 compliance failures.
Yet somehow, in the course of this remediation, neither the Company, its management, its outside
counsel, nor any member of the Audit Committee noticed that the third Audit Committee member
had no filings at all. This is not a clerical oversight. Compliance is a function at DJCO that clearly
does not exist, even with the Company’s new “Director of SEC Reporting”.

Every single member of the Company's Audit Committee has violated Section 16(a), and
Rasool Rayani is actively violating Section 16(a). The committee charged with overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting and internal controls is composed entirely of directors who cannot
comply with the most basic SEC reporting obligations. This is the same committee that has
overseen the accounting failures we have identified, the same committee that allowed a falsely
dated Form 8-K to remain uncorrected for five months, and the same committee whose Chair we
have notified (earlier today) of potential referral to the State Bar of California.
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Mr. Rayani should understand that he will not escape scrutiny in the upcoming proxy
contest. Our prior correspondence focused on Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin because, at that time, we
believed Mr. Rayani’s filings were in order. They are not. Mr. Rayani will be included in all
future public communications regarding the Board’s systemic compliance failures.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

John B. Frank, Esq.

Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.
333 South Grand Avenue, 28th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”’) — Notice of Potential Referral to
the State Bar of California

Dear Mr. Frank:

I write on behalf of Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. regarding conduct that we believe may
warrant referral to the State Bar of California for investigation under the California Rules of
Professional Conduct.

Section 16 Reporting Violations

As you are aware, you recently filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission that were delinquent by as many as three years. Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors of public companies to file Form 3 within ten
days of becoming a director and Form 4 within two business days of any transaction in the
company's securities. These are not obscure compliance requirements. They are among the most
basic obligations imposed on every public company director.

You are a securities lawyer at Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.—one of the world's
largest alternative investment managers, with approximately $180 billion in assets under
management. You have held yourself out to the Company and its shareholders as a “financial
expert” for purposes of SEC disclosure requirements and serve as Chair of the Company's Audit
Committee. A securities lawyer at a major investment firm who serves as the designated financial
expert on a public company’s audit committee should not require three years to file a two-page
beneficial ownership form.

“Financial Expert” Designation and Audit Committee Failures

Your acceptance of the “financial expert” designation carries with it an implicit self-
representation to shareholders that you possess the competence to oversee, and commitment to
ensuring compliance with, the Company’s financial reporting and internal control obligations. Yet
the record suggests otherwise.
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Since July 2025, Buxton Helmsley has identified material concerns regarding the
Company's software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20 and violations of Regulation
S-X related to the failure to separately disclose research and development costs. We have provided
the Company—and its auditor, Baker Tilly US, LLP—with authoritative guidance from the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the organization that develops and grades the
CPA examination) that directly contradicts the Company’s stated accounting rationale. The
Company has never substantively responded to these concerns.

The potential exposure is not trivial. We have estimated that the Company has failed to
report approximately $50 million or more in intangible asset value due to improper expensing of
software development costs that were subject to mandatory capitalization under GAAP. We have
also identified violations of Regulation S-X, which requires separate disclosure of research and
development costs on the income statement when material—costs the Company itself has
described as “significant” (admittedly material) but has failed to quantify for years. Between these
issues, you have not only allowed these long-running violations of accounting standards and
securities laws to linger and go uncorrected, but also oversaw the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer continue to flagrantly violate those accounting standards and
securities laws with the Company’s latest Form 10-Q filing, dated August 14, 2025. That Form
10-Q filing also included a false certification (by Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To, pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) of compliance with financial reporting, constituting an
apparent criminal violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and the Company’s designated financial expert, you bear
direct responsibility for oversight of these matters. The fact that these potential violations have
persisted for months, and have translated into apparent criminal violations, despite detailed written
notice and authoritative contrary guidance, raises serious questions about the discharge of your
fiduciary duties.

Failure to Correct a Falsely Dated SEC Filing—and the Disclosure Violations It Was
Designed to Conceal

There is an additional matter that bears directly on your responsibilities as a securities
lawyer serving on this Board.

On July 29, 2025, CEO Steven Myhill-Jones signed and filed a Form 8-K that was falsely
dated on its face. The cover page of that filing states that the “Date of earliest event reported” is
July 28, 2025. Yet the body of the same filing explicitly states: "Two weeks ago, we received a
letter from Alexander E. Parker,” and later references “His initial July 14 letter is attached as
Exhibit 99.1.” The filing thus identifies July 14, 2025 as the earliest event being reported—while
the cover page certifies that date as July 28, 2025.
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The false dating was not a clerical error. It appears to have been designed to obscure the
Company’s failure to comply with the four-business-day disclosure requirement for Form 8-K
filings. Upon receiving our July 14 letter identifying potential ASC 985-20 violations, the Board
launched an accounting investigation—a material event requiring disclosure. Yet the Company
waited nearly two weeks to file the 8-K, well beyond the four-business-day requirement, and only
after Buxton Helmsley publicly demanded the Board force such disclosure twice. By falsely dating
the filing as July 28, the Company attempted to conceal how late the disclosure actually was.

The disclosure failures do not end there. Before filing the July 29 Form 8-K, the Company
selectively disclosed the existence of the Board's accounting investigation to Buxton Helmsley
alone—a single public market participant—in apparent violation of Regulation FD. Regulation
FD prohibits issuers from selectively disclosing material nonpublic information to certain market
participants without simultaneous public disclosure. The Company disclosed the investigation to
us, then waited days before disclosing it to the public, and only after the Company was publicly
exposed twice for the disclosure failure and apparent Regulation FD violation. As a securities
lawyer, you are presumably familiar with Regulation FD’s requirements.

This is not ambiguous. The filing contradicts itself on its face, the late filing violated the
four-business-day requirement, and the selective disclosure violated Regulation FD. We raised
these issues in writing to the Company on July 29, 2025—the same day the Form 8-K was filed.
It has never been corrected. The Company has since hired a Director of SEC Reporting, yet these
demonstrably false and misleading disclosures remain in the Company's public filings nearly five
months later.

You are a securities lawyer. You serve on the Board that is responsible for the accuracy
and timeliness of the Company’s SEC filings and compliance with Regulation FD. You are where
the buck stops for accurate public disclosures to shareholders, as Chair of the Company’s Audit
Committee. You have been aware of these disclosure failures since at least July 29, 2025. Yet
you have taken no action to cause the Company to correct the false filing or address the Regulation
FD violation. A securities lawyer who allows demonstrably false SEC filings and apparent
Regulation FD violations to persist uncorrected for months—after written notice—is not fulfilling
his professional responsibilities, and is part of the misconduct and violations of law.

California Rules of Professional Conduct

Rule 8.4 of the California Rules of Professional Conduct provides that it is professional
misconduct for a lawyer to “(b) commit a criminal act that reflects adversely on the lawyer’s
honesty, trustworthiness, or fitness as a lawyer” or “(c) engage in conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit, or reckless or intentional misrepresentation.” California Code, Business and
Professions Code section 6068(a) further requires California attorneys to “support the Constitution
and laws of the United States and of this state.”
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We believe that your years-long failure to comply with Section 16(a) of the Exchange
Act—a federal securities law with which you, as a securities lawyer, are presumably familiar—
combined with your failure to cause correction of a falsely dated SEC filing that was designed to
conceal untimely disclosure, your apparent acquiescence to a Regulation FD violation, your
ongoing failure to ensure the Company’s compliance with GAAP and Regulation S-X while
serving as the Company’s designated “financial expert,” and apparent allowance of violations of
18 U.S.C. § 1350, constitute conduct warranting investigation by the State Bar.

Demand

We are prepared to file a complaint with the State Bar of California and to provide the State
Bar with all supporting documentation, including the Company’s SEC filings (including the falsely
dated July 29 Form 8-K), our July 29, 2025 correspondence identifying the false date and the
Regulation FD violation, evidence of the selective disclosure to Buxton Helmsley prior to public
filing, the authoritative AICPA guidance completely contradicting the Company’s accounting
position, and our extensive correspondence with the Company and its auditor.

However, we are willing to forego such a filing if the Company takes immediate and
appropriate remedial action to address the governance and financial reporting failures we have
identified. In the alternative, if you conclude that the Board is unwilling to take such action, we
believe the appropriate course would be for you to resign from the Board rather than continue to
lend your name and professional credentials to a governance structure that has demonstrably failed
shareholders.

We request a response to this letter no later than 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on December
22, 2025. In the absence of a satisfactory response by that deadline, we intend to proceed with a
referral to the State Bar.

Reservation of Rights

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law,
including the right to file a complaint with the State Bar at any time and to pursue any other
remedies available to us.

This letter is being provided to you directly in your personal capacity as a member of the
State Bar of California, with a copy to the Board of Directors of Daily Journal Corporation.
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Cc:

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
Brian Cardile (Corporate Secretary, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner

Page 5 of 5












® December 17, 2025 — Private Letter to Board: Formal objection to the appointment of Erik
Nakamura as Chief Financial Officer, noting that Mr. Nakamura has served as CFO of Journal
Technologies, Inc.—the very subsidiary at the center of the Company’s accounting failures—
since October 2024, and that promoting the executive who directly oversaw the questioned
accounting practices does not signal a commitment to addressing these issues but rather a
commitment to defending them. The letter also noted the suspicious timing of the Board’s
purported December 12, 2025, approval of Mr. Nakamura’s appointment (one day before
receipt of our Rule 14a-19 notice), with compensation terms left entirely undetermined—a
process that, as we noted, “defies belief.” We further note that, on information and belief,
Mr. Nakamura is not a Certified Public Accountant, meaning that between the Audit
Committee and the CFO, the Company does not have a single CPA overseeing its financial
reporting.

® December 18, 2025 — Private Letter to Board: Notice that we had discovered that the third
member of the Audit Committee—Rasool Rayani—is in active violation of Section 16(a), never
having filed a Form 3 or Form 4 over his tenure as a director. This means that every single
member of the Audit Committee has violated Section 16(a). The letter noted that the
Company had recently filed remedial forms for Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin, yet somehow, in the
course of this botched remediation, neither the Company, its management, its outside
counsel, nor any member of the Audit Committee noticed that the third Audit Committee
member had no filings at all—eighteen months after joining the Board. As we stated: “This is
not a clerical oversight. Compliance is a function at DJCO that clearly does not exist.”

® December 18, 2025 — Private Letter to John B. Frank: Notice of potential referral to the State
Bar of California regarding Mr. Frank's professional conduct as a licensed attorney serving as
Audit Committee Chair, given his failure to ensure compliance with basic federal securities
laws—including his own personal Section 16 obligations.

® December 19, 2025 — Private Letter to Erik Nakamura: Notice to the Company's incoming
Chief Financial Officer regarding the personal criminal liability under 18 U.S.C. § 1350 that
would attach to any officer who signs a Sarbanes-Oxley certification on a Form 10-K
containing the GAAP and Regulation S-X violations we have identified. We particularly warn
Mr. Nakamura of potential criminal liability if he signs the Company’s Form 10-K that typically
would be filed on or about December 31. The letter references authoritative AICPA
guidance published in the Journal of Accountancy
(https://www.journalofaccountancy.com/news/2018/mar/accounting-for-external-use-
software-development-costs-201818259/), which includes a literal diagram of the agile
development sprint activities that are subject to capitalization under ASC 985-20—
activities the Company has failed to capitalize for years despite admitting in its own SEC
filings that software development costs are “significant” (there is no dispute of materiality

of these issues).
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® December 19, 2025 — Books and Records Demand: Formal demand under Section 33-16-102
of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act, for inspection of books and records relating
to, among other things, the Board's oversight of financial reporting, the circumstances of the
CFO's departure, and the Company's response to the accounting and compliance issues we
have raised. We have also demanded communications with Baker Tilly.

® December 21, 2025 - Private Letter to John B. Frank and Mary Murphy Conlin:
Comprehensive documentation of the Company's failures to file Form 8-Ks under Item 5.05
disclosing implicit waivers of the Code of Ethics; analysis of CEO Steven Myhill-Jones's falsified
Form 3, including a quote from the Company's February 15, 2023 shareholder meeting in
which Mr. Myhill-Jones admitted he owned no shares (contradicting the Form 3 he later filed
reporting 400 shares of beneficial ownership); and documentation of the willful false
Sarbanes-Oxley certifications signed by Mr. Myhill-Jones and former CFO Tu To on August 14,
2025—after receiving five separate letters from us detailing the Company's GAAP and

Regulation S-X violations.

We are sending this correspondence to you directly so that there is no plausible deniability at the
Los Angeles office level regarding these matters. Baker Tilly faces significant professional liability
exposure, which we intend to pursue after the proxy contest, should it permit the Company to file its
Form 10-K in the coming days without correction of:

® The material violations of ASC 985-20 (capitalization of software development costs);

® The material violations of Regulation S-X § 210.5-03 (separate disclosure of research and
development expenses);

® The numerous unfiled Form 8-Ks required under Item 5.05 for implicit waivers of the Code of
Ethics;

® The Section 16(a) violations by four out of four current directors—one hundred percent of the
Board,;

® The false statements in the CEQ's Form 3 filing (which require correction); and

® The false statements in the Company's July 29, 2025 Form 8-K (backdated from July 29 to July
26).

As set forth in our December 18, 2025, letter to Mr. Frank (attached), we have notified him of our
intention to file a complaint with the State Bar of California regarding his professional conduct,
absent his agreement to remediate the Company's governance and compliance failures by 5:00 p.m.
Eastern Time today.

Respectfully,
Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com
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20251222 - Notification to John Frank of State Bar Complaint Filed.pdf

From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Cc: christopher.krogh@bakertilly.com; Sayerwin, Scarlet; Relampagos, Stella C.
Subject: State Bar Complaint Filed

Date: Monday, December 22, 2025 5:40:00 PM

Attachments: image001.png

Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Frank:

The deadline for agreement to remediate Daily Journal Corporation's governance and compliance
failures has passed. Accordingly, we have filed a substantive complaint with the State Bar of
California regarding your professional conduct as Audit Committee Chair of Daily Journal
Corporation, and the violations of federal securities laws you have overseen. We will submit follow-
on correspondence after our initial complaint if you should oversee another violation of 18 U.S.C. §
1350, by allowing the Company to continue its "significant” violations of Regulation S-X and ASC 985-
20 as part of an upcoming Form 10-K filing. If you do not agree with the Company's continuing
violations of federal securities laws (that is, if the other Audit Committee members believe federal
securities laws are “flimsy technicalities”, as one has already admitted), the correct course of action
is to resign. You are otherwise complicit.

As stated in our December 21 letter, the Board of Directors of Chevron Corporation will be notified
of our being required to file this bar complaint, the circumstances for why it was required, and that
you had an opportunity to agree to cure these matters before it was filed. We will also make the
complaint public for the consideration of Daily Journal Corporation shareholders, ISS, and Glass
Lewis, very shortly.

Separately, we will be promptly communicating with the Board of Directors of The Beachbody
Company, Inc. regarding Ms. Conlin's involvement in these matters. You should forward her a copy
of this email, so she is aware.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 24, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attention: Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary

Re:

Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company’’) — Response to December 24, 2025
Letter; Demand Under Rule 14a-7 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; Continued
Demand Under Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act

Dear Mr. Cardile:

We are in receipt of the letter dated December 24, 2025, from Robert Y. Knowlton of

Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., purportedly responding to our December 19, 2025 demand to
inspect the books and records of the Company. That response is inadequate, reflects yet another
misrepresentation by or on behalf of the Company, and fails to satisfy the Company's obligations
under both state and federal law.

I.

THE COMPANY IS MISREPRESENTING THE TRANSFER AGENT RECORDS.

Mr. Knowlton's letter claims that "the records of Equiniti, the Company's transfer agent,
show one share now being owned by an entity called 'Buxton Helmsley, Inc."" This is false.

Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a copy of the DRS position transfer confirmation from
Interactive Brokers, the broker that initiated the transfer. As the confirmation plainly
shows, the transfer was initiated for "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc."—not "Buxton
Helmsley, Inc." The confirmation reflects:

* Account Title (at broker): Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

* Account Title at Transfer Agent: Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
* Request Date: December 15, 2025

e Date Processed: December 18, 2025

"Buxton Helmsley, Inc." is a completely separate legal entity from "Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc." Our broker does not have an account for any entity called "Buxton Helmsley,
Inc.," nor is our broker aware of any such entity. It would have been impossible for our
broker to initiate a transfer for an entity for which it has no account and no record.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

II.

Either the Company's transfer agent made a transcription error, or the Company (through
its counsel) is misrepresenting the contents of the transfer agent's records. Given the
Company's well-documented pattern of making false statements—including the falsely
dated July 29, 2025, Form 8-K, the demonstrably false claims about Buxton Helmsley's
regulatory status in that same filing, and the ongoing failure to correct those false
statements despite being put on notice five months ago—shareholders are entitled to be
skeptical of any factual representation made by or on behalf of this Company.

We demand that the Company immediately produce a copy of the transfer agent records it
claims to have reviewed. If those records reflect an error, we demand that the Company
cause Equiniti to correct its records to reflect the actual registered owner: Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc.

In any event, the Company's own letter acknowledges that the transfer was completed as
of December 18, 2025—one day before our December 19, 2025 demand was submitted.
Whether the transfer agent's records reflect "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc." (as they should)
or "Buxton Helmsley, Inc." (if in error), the undisputed fact is that a Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc. should have been a record shareholder of the Company as of December 18, 2025,
and the Company received a valid demand on December 19, 2025. The Company cannot
use a ministerial transcription error—if one exists—to evade its legal obligations.

We also note the Company's apparent fixation on the fact that the transfer agent records
reflect "one share." Mr. Knowlton's letter underlines this phrase as if it were significant.
It is not. It is standard practice for activist investors conducting proxy contests to transfer
a nominal number of shares—often a single share—into record name for the purpose of
establishing standing to make books and records demands and exercise other shareholder
rights that require record holder status. The bulk of an activist's economic position is
typically held in street name through brokerage accounts. Any company with experience
in contested situations would understand this. That the Company's counsel apparently does
not speaks volumes about the Board's preparedness to navigate a proxy contest—and
further underscores the need for the governance refresh we are seeking.

To be clear: Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. hereby reiterates, in full, the books and records
demand set forth in its December 19, 2025 letter. To the extent the Company contends that
Equiniti's records reflect a different entity name, any such error is Equiniti's to correct—it
does not vitiate the demand, and it does not restart the Company's response deadlines. The
Company received a valid demand from the actual beneficial and record owner of the
shares on December 19, 2025. The Company's obligations under Rule 14a-7 and Section
33-16-102 were triggered on that date, and the Company may not use a ministerial
transcription error by its own transfer agent to buy itself additional time.

THE COMPANY HAS VIOLATED RULE 14A-7.
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I11.

Our December 19, 2025 letter was an unambiguous written request by a record holder to
inspect and copy the shareholder list in connection with a proxy solicitation. Rule 14a-7(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 provides that upon such a request, "regardless of
whether the request references this section," the registrant shall:

"(1) Deliver to the requesting security holder within five business days after receipt
of the request:

(1) Notification as to whether the registrant has elected to mail the security
holder's soliciting materials or provide a security holder list...

(i1) A statement of the approximate number of record holders and beneficial
holders..."

See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-7(a)(1).

The Company's December 24, 2025 response does not comply with Rule 14a-7. It does
not notify us whether the Company has elected to mail our soliciting materials or provide
a shareholder list. It does not provide a statement of the approximate number of record
holders and beneficial holders. Instead, it raises a frivolous technicality about entity names
and purports to condition access on the submission of a "new demand."

Rule 14a-7 does not permit such gamesmanship. The rule applies "regardless of whether
the request references this section." Our December 19 demand was plainly a request for
shareholder list information in connection with a proxy solicitation. The Company's five-
business-day deadline under Rule 14a-7 is December 29, 2025 (accounting for the
December 25 holiday). We expect full compliance by that date.

Rule 14a-7(a)(2)(ii) further requires the registrant to deliver shareholder list information
"in the form requested by the security holder to the extent that such form is available to the
registrant without undue burden or expense." Our December 19 demand specifically
requested electronic formats, including Microsoft Excel. The Company's invitation to
"visit" its Los Angeles office to manually inspect paper records is not compliant with either
the letter or the spirit of Rule 14a-7. We demand electronic delivery of the shareholder list
and related information as specified in our December 19 demand, as is customary.

THE COMPANY'S REFUSAL TO COMPLY WITH SECTION 33-16-102 IS
IMPROPER.

With respect to the records demanded under Section 33-16-102(b) of the South Carolina
Business Corporation Act, Mr. Knowlton's letter asserts that the Company "has grounds to
doubt [our] good faith" because our demand "goes well beyond what [we] know a
stockholder is entitled to inspect under South Carolina law."
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This is legally incorrect. A shareholder does not forfeit its inspection rights by requesting
more documents than the corporation believes it may ultimately be entitled to receive. The
statute requires that the demand be made "in good faith and for a proper purpose" and that
the requested records be "directly connected with" that purpose. S.C. Code Ann. § 33-16-
102(c). Our demand clearly stated proper purposes—investigating potential
mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal controls; evaluating
director and officer qualifications and performance; and assessing the adequacy of the
Company's financial reporting.

The Company's characterization of our purposes as lacking "good faith" is not only legally
baseless but also defamatory. We are a shareholder of this Company. We have identified
serious accounting and disclosure failures that the Company has tacitly acknowledged
through remedial actions (including the CFO's departure and the belated Section 16
filings). We are engaged in a proxy solicitation seeking Board reconstitution. These are
quintessentially "proper purposes" under South Carolina law.

Mr. Knowlton's letter characterizes our activities as "attempts to threaten the Company and
its directors and officers." This is false and defamatory.

First, we never "threatened" to refer the Company to the SEC. We already had referred
the Company to the SEC's Division of Enforcement before any Company representative
claimed otherwise. When Steven Myhill-Jones falsely characterized our prior referral as a
"threat" in the Company's July 29, 2025 Form 8-K, we had already notified him on July
23, 2025 that the referral had been made. The Company's continued mischaracterization
of this timeline—now repeated by Mr. Knowlton—is yet another example of the pattern of
false statements that pervades this Company's public disclosures.

Second, it is entirely proper—indeed, it is a public service—to inform the Chair of an Audit
Committee who is a licensed attorney that continued violations of federal securities laws
may result in a referral to the California State Bar. John B. Frank, Esq. has professional
obligations under the California Rules of Professional Conduct, including the duty not to
commit acts involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, or corruption. Notifying a lawyer that
his conduct may implicate those obligations is not a "threat"—it is a courtesy that provides
him the opportunity to remediate before formal action is taken. Corporate fiduciaries, and
especially those who are licensed attorneys, are expected to uphold federal securities laws
without having to be told to do so. The fact that this Board apparently requires such
reminders is itself an indictment of its governance.

Identifying violations of federal securities laws and holding directors accountable for those
violations is not improper conduct—it is the exercise of rights that every shareholder
possesses. The Company's attempt to reframe legitimate shareholder oversight as "threats"
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IVv.

is precisely the kind of entrenchment behavior that underscores the need for Board
reconstitution.

If the Company continues to refuse to produce records to which we are entitled under
Section 33-16-102, we reserve the right to seek a court order under Section 33-16-104,
together with an award of costs and attorney's fees as provided by that section.

For the avoidance of doubt, Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. hereby reiterates its demand for
the records specified in Part II of its December 19, 2025 letter pursuant to Section 33-16-
102. To the extent the Company contends that Equiniti's records reflect a different entity
name, any such error does not vitiate the demand, and it does not restart the five-business-
day response period under Section 33-16-102(a). The Company received a valid demand
from the actual shareholder of record on December 19, 2025, and the Company's
obligations under South Carolina law were triggered on that date.

WE WILL NOT ROUTE COMMUNICATIONS THROUGH OUTSIDE
COUNSEL.

Mr. Knowlton's letter "requests" that we direct all future correspondence to outside
counsel. We decline.

We have documented extensive violations of federal securities laws at this Company—and
those violations remain ongoing and unremediated. Rasool Rayani, an Audit Committee
member, remains in violation of Section 16(a) to this day. Steven Myhill-Jones has still
not corrected his falsified Form 3 filing from December 16, 2024, which falsely stated the
"Date of Event Requiring Statement" as December 11, 2024, when his employment began
nearly two years earlier. Nor has Mr. Myhill-Jones filed the separate Form 4 that was
required to report his acquisition of 400 shares—an acquisition he attempted to improperly
cram into his defective Form 3 to obscure his dual Form 3 and Form 4 violations. The
Company also has several far-delinquent Form 8-K disclosures under Item 5.05 that were
required to report the implicit waivers of the Company's Code of Ethics arising from these
Section 16(a) failures—as well as the willful false certifications under 18 U.S.C. § 1350
that Mr. Myhill-Jones and former CFO Tu To signed on August 14, 2025, after having
been put on written notice of the Company's GAAP and Regulation S-X violations. These
violations have occurred on the watch of the Company's directors and officers. Those
directors and officers will not be permitted to insulate themselves from accountability by
routing shareholder communications through intermediaries.

As we have stated in prior correspondence: if any director or officer later claims ignorance
of the issues we have raised, we want there to be no ambiguity that they received our
communications directly. Given the Company's demonstrated pattern of willful
noncompliance, we will not provide any basis for plausible deniability.
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We will continue to communicate directly with the Company's Corporate Secretary, Board
members, and officers as appropriate. Copies of this letter are being sent to outside counsel
as a courtesy, not as an acknowledgment that such routing is required or appropriate.

V. DEMAND AND RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.

We demand that the Company:

a)
b)

c)

d)

e)

Immediately produce a copy of the transfer agent records it claims show ownership
by "Buxton Helmsley, Inc." rather than "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.";

If those records reflect an error, immediately cause the transfer agent to correct the
records;

No later than December 29, 2025, provide the notification and information required
by Rule 14a-7(a)(1), including whether the Company elects to mail our soliciting
materials or provide a shareholder list, and a statement of the approximate number
of record and beneficial holders;

Provide the shareholder list and related information in the electronic formats
specified in our December 19, 2025 demand; and

Produce the records specified in Part II of our December 19, 2025 demand,
consistent with Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act.

If the Company fails to comply with its obligations under Rule 14a-7 and Section 33-16-
102, we will not hesitate to seek judicial relief and to refer the matter to the Division of
Enforcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission. We note that obstruction of a proxy
solicitation through refusal to provide shareholder list access is precisely the type of conduct that
warrants SEC attention, particularly where—as here—it is part of a broader pattern of disclosure
and compliance failures. Continued obstruction by the Board and its counsel will only aid us in a
proxy contest, indicating a negative inference as to the documents that would be produced,
underscoring how much the Company has lost its way of transparency and ethics since the passing
of Mr. Munger.

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law.
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Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

cc: John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation
Robert Y. Knowlton, Esq., Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A.
Brett Rodda, Esq., Baker McKenzie
Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner

Enclosure: Exhibit A — DRS Position Transfer Confirmation
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https://ndcdyn.interactivebrokers.com/AccountManagement/AmAuthentication?action=TransactionHistory#!#317c98ec-c4c1-4ade-b2d9-a274e38e844c

Transaction Status & History

Outbound Position - DRS

Your DRS position transfer request has been completed and the transferred assets are now available.

Reference Number

Status

Request Date

Account ID

Account Title

Date Processed

Asset Type Description

Stock DAILY JOURNAL CORP

Contra Broker

Account Number at Transfer Agent

Account Title

Tax Identification Number

474166336

Available

2025-12-15

U23254158

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

2025-12-18
Identifiers Quantity
Symbol: DJCO 1

DRS

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

w4084

m







			20251224 - Response to December 24 Letter re Books and Records Demand - Exhibit A


			20251224 - Response to December 24 Letter re Books and Records Demand









20251224 - Email to DJCO CFO Erik Nakamura.pdf

From: Parker, Alexander E.
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20251224 - Response to December 24 Letter re Books and Records Demand.pdf
Knowilton letter to Parker re demand 12007669.1.pdf
20251219 - Books and Records Demand (EXECUTED).pdf

Importance: High
Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Nakamura,

We are forwarding the attached letters for your review:

1. Our letter dated December 21, 2025, addressed to Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin regarding
additional Audit Committee failures, undisclosed implicit waivers of the Company's Code of
Ethics, and missing Form 8-K filings under Item 5.05; and

2. Our letter dated December 24, 2025, responding to the Company's December 24, 2025, letter
rejecting our books and records demand (our initial books and records demand, and

according December 24 response to it from the Company, also attached).

We are copying you on these communications so that you have no plausible deniability regarding
the false statements the Company is making and the ongoing violations that remain unremediated.

In particular, we draw your attention to the following:

® The December 21 letter documents additional disclosure violations that were not addressed
in our December 19 letter to you, including the Company's failure to file Form 8-Ks under Item
5.05 disclosing implicit waivers of the Code of Ethics arising from years-long Section 16(a)
failures by multiple directors and officers, Mr. Myhill-Jones' Form 3 containing false
representations, and the willful false SOX certifications signed by Mr. Myhill-Jones and former
CFO Tu To on August 14, 2025.

® The December 24 letter documents that the Company, through outside counsel, has made
demonstrably false claims about Equiniti's transfer agent records. The attached broker
confirmation proves the transfer was initiated for Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.—not the entity

name the Company claims appears in the records.

This is a pattern. The July 29, 2025, Form 8-K was falsely dated. That filing contained false
statements about Buxton Helmsley. The Company has made no effort to correct those false
statements despite being on notice for five months. Now the Company, through its counsel, has
made additional false statements. And the disclosure violations documented in the December 21
letter remain unremediated.

As we stated in our December 19 letter to you: if you sign a Form 10-K that perpetuates these
violations, you will be certifying financial statements that you know do not fairly present the financial
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December 21, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attn: John B. Frank, Chair of Audit Committee

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice of Additional Audit
Committee Failures; Undisclosed Implicit Waivers of Code of Ethics; Missing Form 8-K
Filings Under Item 5.05

Dear Mr. Frank (and Ms. Conlin):

After further investigation alongside advisors and counsel over the weekend, we write
again to now put you on formal notice—in your capacity as Chair of the Audit Committee of the
Company—of additional failures by the Audit Committee to discharge its oversight
responsibilities. Specifically, the Audit Committee has failed to ensure the Company’s compliance
with Item 5.05 of Form 8-K, which requires disclosure of waivers (including implicit waivers) of
the Company’s Code of Ethics, filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2020 (the "Code of Ethics"). These failures compound the governance
deficiencies we have previously identified and further demonstrate the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

You will note Mr. Rayani is not copied on this new correspondence (only copying Ms.
Conlin and Baker Tilly), as will be clear by the end.

It is worth noting, at the forefront, that we have now discovered that Steven Myhill-Jones—
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer—was also in violation of his Section 16(a) filing
obligations. This means that four out of four current directors failed to comply with basic federal
securities law reporting requirements. One hundred percent of the Board. The CEO’s delinquent
Form 3 was not filed until December 16, 2024—nearly three years late—and, as detailed below,
that filing appears to have been deliberately structured to conceal the full extent of his violations.
The Form 3 falsely reports Mr. Myhill-Jones owned shares before beginning his service at the
Company when, by his own admission (we include a quote below), he had never purchased a single
share of Company stock. The 400 shares reported were granted to him after he became CEO—an
acquisition that should have been reported on a separate Form 4, with a transaction date, which
Mr. Myhill-Jones conspicuously omitted. This is the same executive who backdated the
Company’s July 29, 2025, Form 8-K to July 26, 2025, to conceal the Board’s failure to timely
disclose its accounting investigation into the issues raised by us. The pattern is unmistakable:

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
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when faced with disclosure failures, this CEO’s instinct is not to remedy them but to falsify filings
to cover them up.

Given no response yet to our December 18, 2025, letter informing of our possible referral
of the violations of federal law you are continuing to stand behind, we are increasingly believing
that either you or Ms. Conlin must believe (there must be a majority consensus among Audit
Committee members) that, as Mr. Rayani admitted belief himself, federal securities laws are
“flimsy technicalities”. We stand firm on our deadline of hearing from you by tomorrow,
December 22, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time, or we intend to proceed with the contemplated
California State Bar complaint filing, which will be publicly filed with a copy to the Chevron
fiduciaries and shareholders who are then also likely to be harmed by your then-apparent disdain
for federal securities laws. We are certain Beachbody Company Inc.’s remaining Audit Committee
members (where Ms. Conlin also serves), not to mention shareholders, would also be appalled if
they knew one of their Audit Committee members had such a disregard for federal securities laws.
We have offered you and Mary Murphy Conlin a path to preserving your seats on the Board of the
Company, and hope you both will realize the self-destructive effects of not taking it. I will praise
both you and Ms. Conlin in a press release announcing our cooperation agreement, but will do the
very opposite if this proceeds any further to a proxy contest.

* * *

I UNDISCLOSED SECTION 16 VIOLATIONS AND IMPLICIT WAIVERS.

As detailed in our December 13, 2025 correspondence, multiple members of the Board—
including two members of the Audit Committee—filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that
were delinquent by as many as six years. The specifics bear repeating:

*  You, John B. Frank: Became a director in February 2022. Filed Form 3 and Form
4 on October 3, 2025—more than three and a half years after the statutory deadline.

*  Mary Murphy Conlin: Became a director in May 2019. Filed Form 3 and Form 4
on October 3, 2025—more than six years after the statutory deadline.

* Rasool Rayani: Became a director in June 2024. As of the date of this letter, Mr.
Rayani has still not filed his required Form 3 or any required Form 4 reports—a
delinquency now exceeding eighteen months.

+ Steven Myhill-Jones: Became acting Chief Executive Officer on March 28, 2022.
Filed his Form 3 on December 16, 2024—approximately two years and nine months
after the statutory deadline. As discussed further below, Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form
3 filing contains additional deficiencies that warrant separate examination, as we
do below.

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors and officers to file
a Form 3 within ten days of becoming a reporting person and a Form 4 within two business
days of any transaction in the Company’s securities.
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II.

Section D(2) of the Company’s Code of Ethics—"Timely and Truthful Disclosure"—
provides:

"In reports and documents filed with or submitted to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and other regulators, and in other public communications made by the
Company, the Company’s directors, officers and employees involved in the
preparation of such reports, documents and communications shall make
disclosures that are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable."”

Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics—"Legal Compliance"—provides:

"In conducting the business of the Company, all directors, officers and employees
shall comply with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations at all levels
of government in the United States and in any non-U.S. jurisdiction in which the
Company does business."

The years-long failures by Messrs. Frank, Rayani, and Myhill-Jones, and Ms. Conlin, to
comply with Section 16(a) filing requirements are violations of both Section D(2) and
Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics. The Company’s failure to take action against these
violations constitutes an "implicit waiver" under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K.

The Company has never filed a Form 8-K disclosing these implicit waivers. Item
5.05(b) of Form 8-K requires disclosure within four business days of any waiver, including
any implicit waiver, granted to a director or executive officer. An "implicit waiver" is
defined as the company's failure to take action within a reasonable period of time regarding
a material departure from a provision of the code of ethics that has been made known to
the company.

The Audit Committee—which you chair—has, on top of everything else, failed to ensure
the Company’s compliance with these additional disclosure requirements. The Company
was required to file Form 8-Ks disclosing the implicit waivers granted to each of these
individuals. It did not. This is a separate and independent disclosure failure layered on top
of the underlying Section 16 violations.

STEVEN MYHILL-JONES’ DEFECTIVE FORM 3 FILING.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3, filed December 16, 2024, warrants separate examination
because it appears to have been structured to conceal, rather than remedy, his Section 16
violations (just the same as Mr. Myhill-Jones’ July 29 Form 8-K was apparent to be
structured to conceal his disclosure violations there, too).
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To begin, Mr. Myahill-Jones falsely stated the “Date of Event Requiring Statement” as
December 11, 2024, knowing very well that his employment started nearly two years
before that date.

Further, a Form 3 is an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership of Securities." As earlier
noted, Form 3 is required to be filed within ten days of a person becoming a director or
officer. It reports the securities beneficially owned by the reporting person as of the date
they became a reporting person (indisputable by the “initial statement” form header)—not
as of the date the form is filed.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 on December 16, 2024, reported that he beneficially owned 400
shares of Company common stock at the time he began service at the Company. However,
at the Company’s February 15, 2023, annual shareholder meeting, Mr. Myhill-Jones stated:
"while I don’t have equity yet, I'm certainly keen to participate in the future growth of the
business..." If Mr. Myhill-Jones had never purchased shares of Company stock, then he
could not have owned 400 shares as of March 28, 2022—the date he became acting CEO
and the date as of which he was being asked to report ownership for.

As then admitted by Mr. Myhill-Jones himself, the 400 shares reported on Mr. Myhill-
Jones’ Form 3 were granted to him after he became CEO—mnot shares he owned when he
initially assumed the role. Any acquisition of shares after becoming a reporting person was
required to be reported on a Form 4, not a Form 3. Form 4 requires disclosure of the
transaction date, the nature of the transaction, and the number of shares acquired or
disposed of. Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 contains none of this information because there is
no place on a Form 3 to report it—Form 3 is not designed to report acquisitions, only initial
holdings at the time of beginning service.

The structure of Mr. Myhill-Jones’ filing suggests an attempt to mask a dual violation—
the failure to timely file a Form 3 and the failure to timely file a Form 4 reporting a stock
grant—by combining both into a single, defective Form 3 that obscures the date and nature
of the acquisition. The failure to disclose the grant date is particularly notable; without it,
shareholders cannot determine when the violation occurred or how long it went unreported.

This, too, required an Item 5.05 Form 8-K disclosure for his personal disclosure violations.
The Company has never filed one. Nor did the Company disclose Mr. Myhill-Jones'
implicit waiver in its proxy statement filed January 8, 2025—which was filed after his
defective Form 3 but made no mention of his years-long Section 16 delinquency or the
implicit waiver it necessarily entailed.

THE AUGUST 14, 2025 FORM 10-Q: WILLFUL FALSE CERTIFICATION.

On August 14, 2025, Mr. Myhill-Jones and then-Chief Financial Officer Tu To signed and
filed the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2025. In connection with
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that filing, both executives provided certifications pursuant to Section 302 and Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, certifying that the financial statements "fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations" of the Company.

Those certifications were false when made. More importantly, Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms.
To knew they were false when they signed them.

Between July 14, 2025, and July 29, 2025, Buxton Helmsley sent five separate letters to
the Board detailing material violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP") and SEC reporting requirements in the Company’s financial statements. Any
jury of reasonable minds (or your peers at the California State Bar) would have understood
the contents of those letters, for which Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To decided to bury their
heads in the sand, in complete disregard of federal securities laws. Our letters of July 14,
July 18, July 23, July 28, and July 29, 2025, explained in detail:

» The Company’s failure to capitalize software development costs as required by
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20");

* The Company’s failure to separately disclose research and development expenses
as required by Regulation S-X § 210.5-03; and

» The materiality of these violations, given the Company’s own admission in its SEC
filings that software development costs are “significant” (there is no dispute of
materiality under Regulation S-X).

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To received these letters. They were on notice that the
Company’s financial reporting had long violated GAAP and Regulation S-X. They were
on notice that the financial statements they were about to certify were going to continue
those violations of GAAP and Regulation S-X. They signed anyway.

Section D(1) of the Code of Ethics—"Honest and Ethical Conduct"—provides:

"All directors, officers and employees shall behave honestly and ethically at all
times and with all people.... They shall not misrepresent facts or engage in illegal,
unethical, or anti-competitive practices for personal or professional gain."”

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To engaged in clearly illegal practices—the willful false
certification of financial statements under 18 U.S.C. § 1350—for professional gain. They
signed the certifications to keep their jobs. They were given clear details to know that the
financial reporting was misstated and non-compliant (even if they wanted to argue they did
not understand the GAAP issues, the Regulation S-X issue of not separately disclosing
research and development was indisputable, as they already admitted those expenses to be
“significant”, which clearly met the materiality threshold for requiring separate disclosure
pursuant to Regulation S-X). They signed anyway.
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The Audit Committee’s failure to take action against this conduct constitutes another
implicit waiver requiring Form 8-K disclosure under Item 5.05. No such Form 8-K has
been filed.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.
Let us be direct about what has occurred:

* Four directors and officers violated Section 16(a) filing requirements—some for
more than six years.

* The Company took no action against any of them.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waivers.

* The Company’s CEO attempted to mask his dual Section 16 violations with a
defective Form 3 filing, falsely dating it and attempting to combine it with the
contents of a Form 4 to minimize the appearance of the violations.

* The CEO and CFO signed knowingly false Sarbanes-Oxley certifications after
being put on written notice of GAAP violations.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waiver of the Code of
Ethics arising from that conduct.

» The Company’s January 8, 2025, proxy statement made no mention of the implicit
waivers related to Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 and Form 4 disclosure violations.

This is not inadvertence. This is a pattern of concealment. The Audit Committee—which
you chair—has systematically failed to ensure the Company’s compliance with disclosure
requirements designed to inform shareholders when insiders have been permitted to violate
the Company’s own ethical standards.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the Audit Committee will not disclose when directors
violate basic filing requirements, and will not disclose when executives sign false
certifications, what else is being concealed? If these failures were mistakes and not in line
with your personal ethical standards as a securities lawyer expected to uphold the law, you
need to avoid any further delay in remediation of this Company’s governance and
compliance failures.

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you, as Audit Committee Chair, of the

failures described herein. Any further delay by the Audit Committee to address these matters—
including by ensuring appropriate disclosure in the Company’s forthcoming proxy statement—
will be considered in connection with our pending notice of potential referral to the State Bar of
California regarding your professional conduct.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.
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Cc:

Respectfully,

Ao—————

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Mary Murphy Conlin (Audit Committee member, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 24, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attention: Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary

Re:

Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company’’) — Response to December 24, 2025
Letter; Demand Under Rule 14a-7 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; Continued
Demand Under Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act

Dear Mr. Cardile:

We are in receipt of the letter dated December 24, 2025, from Robert Y. Knowlton of

Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., purportedly responding to our December 19, 2025 demand to
inspect the books and records of the Company. That response is inadequate, reflects yet another
misrepresentation by or on behalf of the Company, and fails to satisfy the Company's obligations
under both state and federal law.

I.

THE COMPANY IS MISREPRESENTING THE TRANSFER AGENT RECORDS.

Mr. Knowlton's letter claims that "the records of Equiniti, the Company's transfer agent,
show one share now being owned by an entity called 'Buxton Helmsley, Inc."" This is false.

Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a copy of the DRS position transfer confirmation from
Interactive Brokers, the broker that initiated the transfer. As the confirmation plainly
shows, the transfer was initiated for "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc."—not "Buxton
Helmsley, Inc." The confirmation reflects:

* Account Title (at broker): Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

* Account Title at Transfer Agent: Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
* Request Date: December 15, 2025

e Date Processed: December 18, 2025

"Buxton Helmsley, Inc." is a completely separate legal entity from "Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc." Our broker does not have an account for any entity called "Buxton Helmsley,
Inc.," nor is our broker aware of any such entity. It would have been impossible for our
broker to initiate a transfer for an entity for which it has no account and no record.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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II.

Either the Company's transfer agent made a transcription error, or the Company (through
its counsel) is misrepresenting the contents of the transfer agent's records. Given the
Company's well-documented pattern of making false statements—including the falsely
dated July 29, 2025, Form 8-K, the demonstrably false claims about Buxton Helmsley's
regulatory status in that same filing, and the ongoing failure to correct those false
statements despite being put on notice five months ago—shareholders are entitled to be
skeptical of any factual representation made by or on behalf of this Company.

We demand that the Company immediately produce a copy of the transfer agent records it
claims to have reviewed. If those records reflect an error, we demand that the Company
cause Equiniti to correct its records to reflect the actual registered owner: Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc.

In any event, the Company's own letter acknowledges that the transfer was completed as
of December 18, 2025—one day before our December 19, 2025 demand was submitted.
Whether the transfer agent's records reflect "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc." (as they should)
or "Buxton Helmsley, Inc." (if in error), the undisputed fact is that a Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc. should have been a record shareholder of the Company as of December 18, 2025,
and the Company received a valid demand on December 19, 2025. The Company cannot
use a ministerial transcription error—if one exists—to evade its legal obligations.

We also note the Company's apparent fixation on the fact that the transfer agent records
reflect "one share." Mr. Knowlton's letter underlines this phrase as if it were significant.
It is not. It is standard practice for activist investors conducting proxy contests to transfer
a nominal number of shares—often a single share—into record name for the purpose of
establishing standing to make books and records demands and exercise other shareholder
rights that require record holder status. The bulk of an activist's economic position is
typically held in street name through brokerage accounts. Any company with experience
in contested situations would understand this. That the Company's counsel apparently does
not speaks volumes about the Board's preparedness to navigate a proxy contest—and
further underscores the need for the governance refresh we are seeking.

To be clear: Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. hereby reiterates, in full, the books and records
demand set forth in its December 19, 2025 letter. To the extent the Company contends that
Equiniti's records reflect a different entity name, any such error is Equiniti's to correct—it
does not vitiate the demand, and it does not restart the Company's response deadlines. The
Company received a valid demand from the actual beneficial and record owner of the
shares on December 19, 2025. The Company's obligations under Rule 14a-7 and Section
33-16-102 were triggered on that date, and the Company may not use a ministerial
transcription error by its own transfer agent to buy itself additional time.

THE COMPANY HAS VIOLATED RULE 14A-7.
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I11.

Our December 19, 2025 letter was an unambiguous written request by a record holder to
inspect and copy the shareholder list in connection with a proxy solicitation. Rule 14a-7(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 provides that upon such a request, "regardless of
whether the request references this section," the registrant shall:

"(1) Deliver to the requesting security holder within five business days after receipt
of the request:

(1) Notification as to whether the registrant has elected to mail the security
holder's soliciting materials or provide a security holder list...

(i1) A statement of the approximate number of record holders and beneficial
holders..."

See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-7(a)(1).

The Company's December 24, 2025 response does not comply with Rule 14a-7. It does
not notify us whether the Company has elected to mail our soliciting materials or provide
a shareholder list. It does not provide a statement of the approximate number of record
holders and beneficial holders. Instead, it raises a frivolous technicality about entity names
and purports to condition access on the submission of a "new demand."

Rule 14a-7 does not permit such gamesmanship. The rule applies "regardless of whether
the request references this section." Our December 19 demand was plainly a request for
shareholder list information in connection with a proxy solicitation. The Company's five-
business-day deadline under Rule 14a-7 is December 29, 2025 (accounting for the
December 25 holiday). We expect full compliance by that date.

Rule 14a-7(a)(2)(ii) further requires the registrant to deliver shareholder list information
"in the form requested by the security holder to the extent that such form is available to the
registrant without undue burden or expense." Our December 19 demand specifically
requested electronic formats, including Microsoft Excel. The Company's invitation to
"visit" its Los Angeles office to manually inspect paper records is not compliant with either
the letter or the spirit of Rule 14a-7. We demand electronic delivery of the shareholder list
and related information as specified in our December 19 demand, as is customary.

THE COMPANY'S REFUSAL TO COMPLY WITH SECTION 33-16-102 IS
IMPROPER.

With respect to the records demanded under Section 33-16-102(b) of the South Carolina
Business Corporation Act, Mr. Knowlton's letter asserts that the Company "has grounds to
doubt [our] good faith" because our demand "goes well beyond what [we] know a
stockholder is entitled to inspect under South Carolina law."
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This is legally incorrect. A shareholder does not forfeit its inspection rights by requesting
more documents than the corporation believes it may ultimately be entitled to receive. The
statute requires that the demand be made "in good faith and for a proper purpose" and that
the requested records be "directly connected with" that purpose. S.C. Code Ann. § 33-16-
102(c). Our demand clearly stated proper purposes—investigating potential
mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal controls; evaluating
director and officer qualifications and performance; and assessing the adequacy of the
Company's financial reporting.

The Company's characterization of our purposes as lacking "good faith" is not only legally
baseless but also defamatory. We are a shareholder of this Company. We have identified
serious accounting and disclosure failures that the Company has tacitly acknowledged
through remedial actions (including the CFO's departure and the belated Section 16
filings). We are engaged in a proxy solicitation seeking Board reconstitution. These are
quintessentially "proper purposes" under South Carolina law.

Mr. Knowlton's letter characterizes our activities as "attempts to threaten the Company and
its directors and officers." This is false and defamatory.

First, we never "threatened" to refer the Company to the SEC. We already had referred
the Company to the SEC's Division of Enforcement before any Company representative
claimed otherwise. When Steven Myhill-Jones falsely characterized our prior referral as a
"threat" in the Company's July 29, 2025 Form 8-K, we had already notified him on July
23, 2025 that the referral had been made. The Company's continued mischaracterization
of this timeline—now repeated by Mr. Knowlton—is yet another example of the pattern of
false statements that pervades this Company's public disclosures.

Second, it is entirely proper—indeed, it is a public service—to inform the Chair of an Audit
Committee who is a licensed attorney that continued violations of federal securities laws
may result in a referral to the California State Bar. John B. Frank, Esq. has professional
obligations under the California Rules of Professional Conduct, including the duty not to
commit acts involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, or corruption. Notifying a lawyer that
his conduct may implicate those obligations is not a "threat"—it is a courtesy that provides
him the opportunity to remediate before formal action is taken. Corporate fiduciaries, and
especially those who are licensed attorneys, are expected to uphold federal securities laws
without having to be told to do so. The fact that this Board apparently requires such
reminders is itself an indictment of its governance.

Identifying violations of federal securities laws and holding directors accountable for those
violations is not improper conduct—it is the exercise of rights that every shareholder
possesses. The Company's attempt to reframe legitimate shareholder oversight as "threats"
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IVv.

is precisely the kind of entrenchment behavior that underscores the need for Board
reconstitution.

If the Company continues to refuse to produce records to which we are entitled under
Section 33-16-102, we reserve the right to seek a court order under Section 33-16-104,
together with an award of costs and attorney's fees as provided by that section.

For the avoidance of doubt, Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. hereby reiterates its demand for
the records specified in Part II of its December 19, 2025 letter pursuant to Section 33-16-
102. To the extent the Company contends that Equiniti's records reflect a different entity
name, any such error does not vitiate the demand, and it does not restart the five-business-
day response period under Section 33-16-102(a). The Company received a valid demand
from the actual shareholder of record on December 19, 2025, and the Company's
obligations under South Carolina law were triggered on that date.

WE WILL NOT ROUTE COMMUNICATIONS THROUGH OUTSIDE
COUNSEL.

Mr. Knowlton's letter "requests" that we direct all future correspondence to outside
counsel. We decline.

We have documented extensive violations of federal securities laws at this Company—and
those violations remain ongoing and unremediated. Rasool Rayani, an Audit Committee
member, remains in violation of Section 16(a) to this day. Steven Myhill-Jones has still
not corrected his falsified Form 3 filing from December 16, 2024, which falsely stated the
"Date of Event Requiring Statement" as December 11, 2024, when his employment began
nearly two years earlier. Nor has Mr. Myhill-Jones filed the separate Form 4 that was
required to report his acquisition of 400 shares—an acquisition he attempted to improperly
cram into his defective Form 3 to obscure his dual Form 3 and Form 4 violations. The
Company also has several far-delinquent Form 8-K disclosures under Item 5.05 that were
required to report the implicit waivers of the Company's Code of Ethics arising from these
Section 16(a) failures—as well as the willful false certifications under 18 U.S.C. § 1350
that Mr. Myhill-Jones and former CFO Tu To signed on August 14, 2025, after having
been put on written notice of the Company's GAAP and Regulation S-X violations. These
violations have occurred on the watch of the Company's directors and officers. Those
directors and officers will not be permitted to insulate themselves from accountability by
routing shareholder communications through intermediaries.

As we have stated in prior correspondence: if any director or officer later claims ignorance
of the issues we have raised, we want there to be no ambiguity that they received our
communications directly. Given the Company's demonstrated pattern of willful
noncompliance, we will not provide any basis for plausible deniability.
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We will continue to communicate directly with the Company's Corporate Secretary, Board
members, and officers as appropriate. Copies of this letter are being sent to outside counsel
as a courtesy, not as an acknowledgment that such routing is required or appropriate.

V. DEMAND AND RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.

We demand that the Company:

a)
b)

c)

d)

e)

Immediately produce a copy of the transfer agent records it claims show ownership
by "Buxton Helmsley, Inc." rather than "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.";

If those records reflect an error, immediately cause the transfer agent to correct the
records;

No later than December 29, 2025, provide the notification and information required
by Rule 14a-7(a)(1), including whether the Company elects to mail our soliciting
materials or provide a shareholder list, and a statement of the approximate number
of record and beneficial holders;

Provide the shareholder list and related information in the electronic formats
specified in our December 19, 2025 demand; and

Produce the records specified in Part II of our December 19, 2025 demand,
consistent with Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act.

If the Company fails to comply with its obligations under Rule 14a-7 and Section 33-16-
102, we will not hesitate to seek judicial relief and to refer the matter to the Division of
Enforcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission. We note that obstruction of a proxy
solicitation through refusal to provide shareholder list access is precisely the type of conduct that
warrants SEC attention, particularly where—as here—it is part of a broader pattern of disclosure
and compliance failures. Continued obstruction by the Board and its counsel will only aid us in a
proxy contest, indicating a negative inference as to the documents that would be produced,
underscoring how much the Company has lost its way of transparency and ethics since the passing
of Mr. Munger.

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law.
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Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

cc: John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation
Robert Y. Knowlton, Esq., Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A.
Brett Rodda, Esq., Baker McKenzie
Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner

Enclosure: Exhibit A — DRS Position Transfer Confirmation
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ROBERT Y. KNOWLTON
DIRECT 803.540.7843
bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com

December 24, 2025

Via email (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com)

Alexander E. Parker

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
1185 Avenue of the Americas
Third Floor

New York, NY 10036-2600

Re:  Demand pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act
Dear Mr. Parker:

Daily Journal Corporation (the “Company”) is in receipt of your letter dated December 19, 2025
demanding to inspect the books and records of the Company pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the
South Carolina Business Corporation Act.

You state in the letter that Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. is a registered stockholder of the Company,
but that does not appear true. Rather, effective December 18, 2025, the records of Equiniti, the
Company’s transfer agent, show one share now being owned by an entity called “Buxton Helmsley,
Inc.” We assume this is an entity affiliated with Buxton Hemsley USA, Inc., and upon a new demand
from the actual stockholder of record, the Company will grant that entity or its agent or attorney
access to the records required by Section 33-16-102(a).

In that regard, one or more representatives of Buxton Helmsley, Inc. are invited to visit the
Company’s principal office at 915 East First Street, Los Angeles, California 90012, during regular
business hours, to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom the records of the Company specified
in Section 33-16-101(e). Because it appears that Buxton Helmsley, Inc. does not own at least 1% of
the Company’s outstanding stock, however, it will not be given access to the Company’s income tax
returns specified in Section 33-16-101(e)(8).

Please contact Brian Cardile, the Company’s Corporate Secretary, at bcardile@journaltech.com, to
request an appointment.

With respect to the records noted in Section 33-16-102(b), a stockholder is only entitled to inspect
those records if, among other things, the demand is made in good faith and for a proper purpose, with
the records directly related to such purpose. Given that your demand for documents goes well beyond
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Alexander E. Parker
December 24, 2025
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what you know a stockholder is entitled to inspect under South Carolina law, even with a proper
purpose, the Company has grounds to doubt your good faith. The Company believes that your request
is part of your ongoing attempts to threaten the Company and its directors and officers into entering
into a cooperation agreement with you in exchange for not running a proxy contest and not referring
them to the SEC and professional licensing bodies.

In addition, the Board has instructed me to request that you and your affiliates direct to both my office
and the office of Brett Rodda, Esquire, all future correspondence meant for the Company or its
directors and employees. My email address is bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com and my mailing address
is 1201 Main Street, Columbia, South Carolina 29201. Mr. Rodda’s email address is
Brett.Rodda@bakermckenzie.com, and his mailing address is 815 Connecticut Avenue NW, 12
Floor, Washington, D.C. 20006.

Sincerely,
ff‘/

Robert Y. Knowlton

//
/ Ff

f

RYK/kdp

Cc:  Brett Rodda, Esquire
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BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3
New York, N.Y. 10036-2600
December 19, 2025

VIA FEDEX AND EMAIL (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attention: Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary

Re: Demand to Inspect Books and Records Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South
Carolina Business Corporation Act

Dear Mr. Cardile:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., a New York corporation (the "Shareholder"), is—as of the
date set forth above—a record shareholder of Daily Journal Corporation (the "Corporation").

Reference is made to the Notice of Intent to Solicit Proxies in Support of Director
Nominees Pursuant to Rule 14a-19 Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, dated December
13, 2025 (the "Notice"). As further described in the Notice, the Shareholder intends to solicit
proxies in support of the nomination of certain persons for election to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation (the "Board") at the 2026 annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation,
expected to be held on or about February 19, 2026, including any adjournments or postponements
thereof or any special meeting that may be held in lieu thereof (the "2026 Annual Meeting").

I SHAREHOLDER LIST AND RELATED RECORDS

Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act of 1988
(the "SCBCA"), as a shareholder of the Corporation, the Shareholder hereby demands that
it and its attorneys, representatives and agents be given, during regular business hours and
at the Corporation's principal office or other reasonable location specified by the
Corporation, the opportunity to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom, the following
records of the Corporation for the purpose of (1) disseminating a definitive proxy statement
to the Corporation's shareholders in connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the
2026 Annual Meeting and (2) communicating with the Corporation's shareholders in
connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the 2026 Annual Meeting (the
"Demand"), including, but not limited to:

a) a complete record or list of the shareholders of the Corporation in electronic
medium form, certified by the Corporation's transfer agent(s) and/or registrar(s),
setting forth the name, address and email address of, and the number, series and
class of shares of stock of the Corporation held by, each shareholder as of the most









b)

d)

recent date available, and, when available, such list for each shareholder as of any
record date (the "Record Date") established or to be established for the 2026 Annual
Meeting or any other meeting of shareholders held in lieu thereof (the most recent
available date and any such record date, a "Determination Date");

a complete record or list of shareholders of the Corporation and respondent banks
who have elected to receive electronic copies of proxy materials with respect to
meetings of the shareholders of the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-16(j)(2) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), including,
for each such shareholder, the email address provided by such shareholder;

all transfer journals and daily transfer sheets showing changes in the names and
addresses of the Corporation's shareholders and the number, series or class of shares
of stock of the Corporation held by the Corporation's shareholders that are in or
come into the possession of the Corporation or its transfer agent(s), registrar(s), or
proxy solicitor(s), or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks,
clearing agencies or voting trusts or their nominees from the date of the shareholder
list referred to in paragraph (a) through the date of the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's or its transfer agent(s)' or
registrar(s)' or proxy solicitor(s)' possession, custody or control or that can
reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing agencies, voting
trusts or their nominees relating to the names and addresses and telephone numbers
of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation as of each
Determination Date held by the participating brokers and banks named in the
individual nominee names of Cede & Co. and other similar depositories or
nominees of any central certificate depository system, including respondent bank
lists, and all omnibus proxies and related respondent bank proxies and listings
issued pursuant to Rule 14b-2 under the Exchange Act, including a Weekly Report
of Security Position Listings from The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (a
"Weekly DTC Report") as of each Determination Date, and, following the setting
and occurrence of the Record Date, a Weekly DTC Report for each of the weeks
until the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's possession, custody or
control or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing
agencies, voting trusts or their nominees, relating to the names and addresses of,
and shares of stock of the Corporation held by, the non-objecting beneficial owners
(or "NOBOs") of the shares of stock of the Corporation as of each Determination
Date (or any other date established or obtained by the Corporation) pursuant to Rule
14b-1(c) or Rule 14b-2(c) under the Exchange Act, in Microsoft Excel, or, if the
information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel file, means by which the
Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft Excel file, and a hard copy
printout of such information in order of descending balance for verification
purposes. If such information is not in the Corporation's possession, custody, or
control, such information should be requested from Broadridge Financial Solutions,
Inc., Say Technologies, LLC, and Mediant Communications LLC, or any other
similar shareholder communications services company that has been engaged by
the Corporation to provide investor communications services in connection with a
meeting of shareholders;










f) an alphabetical breakdown of any holdings in the respective names of Cede & Co.
and other similar depositories or nominees, as well as any material request list
provided by Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and
Mediant Communications, LLC, and any omnibus proxies issued by such entities
in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. If such information is not in the
Corporation's possession, custody, or control, such information should be requested
from Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and Mediant
Communications, LLC;

g) all lists and electronic files (together with such computer processing data as is
necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such files) containing the name and
address of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation
attributable to any participant in any employee share ownership plan, stock
ownership dividend reinvestment, employee share purchase plan or other employee
compensation or benefit plan of the Corporation in which the decision to vote shares
of stock of the Corporation held by such plan is made, directly or indirectly,
individually or collectively, by the participants in the plan and the method(s) by
which the Shareholder or its agents may communicate with each such participant,
as well as the name, affiliation and telephone number of the trustee or administrator
of each such plan, and a detailed explanation of the treatment not only of shares for
which the trustee or administrator receives instructions from participants, but also
shares for which either the trustee or administrator does not receive instructions or
shares that are outstanding in the plan but are unallocated to any participant, in
Microsoft Excel, or, if the information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel
file, means by which the Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft
Excel file, and a hard copy printout of such information in alphabetical order for
verification purposes; and

h) to the extent not already referred to above, any electronic file which contains any
or all of the information encompassed in this Demand, together with any program,
software, manual, or other instructions necessary for the practical use of such
information.

The information and records specified in the foregoing paragraphs (a) through (h) should
be given as of the most recent available date and, unless stated otherwise, should be updated
as of the Record Date promptly as such information becomes available to the Corporation,
its registrar, its proxy solicitor, or any of the Corporation's or their respective agents.

To reiterate, all information requested in paragraphs (a) through (h) should be provided in
hard copy (paper) form, as well as CD-ROM format, electronically transmitted file, or
similar electronic medium (any such electronic storage medium, an "Electronic Medium"),
and such computer processing data as is necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such
list on an Electronic Medium; and a hard copy printout of the total aggregate accounts and
shares represented by such list on an Electronic Medium for verification purposes;
provided, however if the hard copy (paper) form exceeds fifty (50) printed pages then in
lieu of hard copy (paper), the Corporation should provide such data in an Electronic
Medium.










II.

ADDITIONAL BOOKS AND RECORDS

In addition to the shareholder list and related records described in Part I above, and pursuant
to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the Shareholder hereby demands the opportunity to
inspect and copy the following books and records of the Corporation for the purposes of
(1) investigating potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of
internal controls at the Corporation, (2) evaluating the qualifications, performance, and
independence of the Corporation's directors and officers, and (3) assessing the adequacy of
the Corporation's financial reporting and compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("GAAP"):

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

all minutes of meetings of the Board and any committee thereof, including but
not limited to the Audit Committee, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20"), (C)
capitalization of software development costs at Journal Technologies, Inc. or any
subsidiary or division of the Corporation, (D) any internal or external review,
investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices or policies,
or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

all written communications between the Corporation and its independent
auditors, including Baker Tilly US, LLP and any predecessor auditors, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, (D) any deficiency in internal controls over financial
reporting, (E) any disagreement between the Corporation and its auditors
regarding accounting treatment or disclosure, or (F) any management
representation letters provided to the auditors concerning software development
costs or related accounting policies;

all documents, reports, memoranda, presentations, and analyses prepared by or
for the Board, any committee thereof, or any officer of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to any internal
review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's software development
cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or potential GAAP
violations, including any reports or findings of internal or external counsel,
accountants, or other advisors retained in connection with any such review,
investigation, or inquiry;

all written communications sent or received by Tu To, in her capacity as Chief
Financial Officer or in any other capacity on behalf of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, or (D) any internal or external review, investigation, or
inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices;

all Audit Committee meeting materials, including agendas, presentations,
reports, and supporting documentation, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)
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ASC 985-20, (C) Journal Technologies, Inc., (D) any communication from the
Corporation's independent auditors regarding accounting policies or internal
controls, or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

(vi) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present, that discuss,
reference, or relate to (A) Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., Buxton Helmsley, Inc.,
or any affiliate thereof, (B) Alexander Parker, (C) any shareholder proposal,
nomination, or other communication received from Buxton Helmsley or Mr.
Parker, (D) any public statement or filing made by or concerning Buxton
Helmsley or Mr. Parker, or (E) the Corporation's response to any of the
foregoing;

(vii) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors and officers of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present,
that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) any investigation of the Corporation's
accounting practices initiated in response to concerns raised by shareholders, (B)
the scope, findings, or conclusions of any such investigation, or (C) any remedial
actions taken or considered in response to any such investigation;

(viii) all engagement letters, statements of work, and invoices from any outside
counsel, accounting firm, or other advisor retained by the Corporation in
connection with (A) any review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's
software development cost accounting practices or compliance with GAAP, or
(B) any response to shareholder concerns regarding the Corporation's accounting
practices; and

(ix) all documents and communications reflecting any communication between the
Corporation and the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board, or any other regulatory body, from January 1, 2020
to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to the Corporation's software
development cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or any
other accounting matter.

PURPOSE OF DEMAND

The purpose of the requests in Part [ of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder and certain
of its affiliates and representatives to communicate with other holders of common stock
with respect to matters relating to their interests as shareholders, including, without
limitation, an affiliate of the Shareholder soliciting proxies from the Corporation's
shareholders in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting.

The purpose of the requests in Part II of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder to (1)
investigate potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal
controls relating to the Corporation's accounting practices and financial reporting, (2)
evaluate the qualifications, performance, and independence of the Corporation's current
directors and officers, including their oversight of financial reporting and response to
shareholder concerns, (3) assess whether the Corporation's financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP and whether any restatement may be required, and (4)
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make an informed decision regarding how to vote its shares and communicate with other
shareholders at the 2026 Annual Meeting regarding the election of directors and other
matters.

The Shareholder represents that (i) it is seeking this inspection for a proper purpose
reasonably related to its interest as a shareholder, (ii) it describes with reasonable
particularity its purpose and the records it desires to inspect, (iii) the records requested are
directly connected with the Shareholder's purpose, and (iv) it will not sell the requested
information to any person, give the requested information to any competitor of the
Corporation, or otherwise use the information for any improper purpose.

The records enumerated in this Demand are directly connected with the above purposes of
this Demand and are reasonably related to the Shareholder's interests as a shareholder of
the Corporation.

CONTINUING DEMAND AND RESPONSE

This Demand is a continuing demand. The Shareholder demands that all modifications,
corrections, additions, or deletions to any and all information referred to in Parts I and II
above be immediately furnished to the Shareholder as such modifications, corrections,
additions, or deletions become available to the Corporation or its agents or representatives.

The Shareholder hereby designates the undersigned and any other persons designated by
them or by the Shareholder, acting singly or in any combination, to conduct the inspection
and copying herein requested. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the materials
identified above shall be made available to the Shareholder and its representatives initially
no later than five business days following the date hereof and each Determination Date.
All documents responsive to this Demand shall be produced in electronic format to the
extent such documents exist in electronic form or can reasonably be converted to electronic
form. Production shall be made by secure electronic transmission or other electronic means
agreed upon by the parties. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, you are required
to respond to this demand within five business days of the date hereof. Please advise the
Shareholder's legal department, at legal@buxtonhelmsley.com, as promptly as practicable
within the requisite timeframe.

If the Corporation contends that this request is incomplete or is otherwise deficient in any
respect, please immediately notify the Shareholder immediately in writing, setting forth
any facts that the Corporation contends support its position and specifying any additional
information believed to be required. In the absence of such prompt notice, the Shareholder
will assume that the Corporation agrees that this request complies in all respects with the
requirements of the SCBCA. The Shareholder reserves the right to withdraw or modify this
request at any time.

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS









This Demand is being made without prejudice to (i) any previous requests made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the Exchange Act, (ii) any previous demand made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the SCBCA or (iii) any other demands, which may be
made by the Shareholder or its affiliates, from time to time, whether pursuant to the
Exchange Act, the SCBCA, or other applicable federal or state law, or the Corporation's
organizational documents.

[Signature Page Follows]









Very truly yours,

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

A

By: boxsiGN 4K8WWQP1-1RV5Z5PR

Name: Alexander E. Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Cc: Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation









								alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com
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				Signed with Box Sign by Alexander Parker (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com)






















condition and results of operations of the Company and do not fully comply with SEC reporting
requirements. Such certification, made with knowledge of these deficiencies, would constitute a
willful false certification under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

We have also discovered that you are, on information and belief, not a licensed CPA. This does not
help your position—it makes it worse. A CPA who signs a false certification might at least attempt to
argue that they exercised professional judgment and reached a different conclusion on the
accounting issues. You cannot make that argument. You have no professional accounting
credentials that would permit you to second-guess the GAAP and Regulation S-X violations we have
documented—particularly when we have provided you authoritative AICPA guidance establishing
that the Company's financial reporting is non-compliant.

To be clear: you have been told, in writing, by a shareholder with a dual-CPA/Certified Fraud
Examiner on its board of directors—who is also on the board of the AICPA, the very organization that
develops and grades the CPA exam—that the Company's financial statements do not comply with
GAAP and Regulation S-X. We have laid out the applicable standards in detail. If you nonetheless
sign a Form 10-K certifying those financial statements, you will be signing a certification you have no
professional basis to believe is true. That is the definition of willfulness under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

You cannot later claim you did not know.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212)641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Parker, Alexander E.

Sent: Friday, December 19, 2025 4:51 PM

To: 'enakamura@journaltech.com' <enakamura@journaltech.com>

Cc: jfrank@oaktreecap.com; Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com>; Relampagos,
Stella C. <stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>

Subject: Daily Journal Corporation - Notice Regarding Potential Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. §
1350

Importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential
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Mr. Nakamura,

Please find attached formal correspondence regarding material accounting deficiencies at Daily
Journal Corporation that may expose you to personal criminal liability under 18 U.S.C. § 1350, if you
certify the Company's upcoming Form 10-K.

This letter details two independent GAAP and SEC reporting violations—the Company’s failure to
capitalize software development costs under ASC 985-20 and its failure to separately report research
and development expenses under Regulation S-X § 210.5-03—and explains why certification of
financial statements that perpetuate these violations would constitute willful false certification
under Sarbanes-Oxley.

I strongly encourage you to read this letter carefully before signing any SEC filings on behalf of the
Company.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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https://www.linkedin.com/company/the-buxton-helmsley-group
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HAYNSWORTH
SINKLER BOYD

HAYNSWORTH SINKLER BOYD, P.A.
1201 MAIN STREET, 22ND FLOOR
POST OFFICE BOX 11889 (29211)
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29201
MAIN 803.779.3080

FAX 803.765.1243
www.hsblawfirm.com

ROBERT Y. KNOWLTON
DIRECT 803.540.7843
bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com

December 24, 2025

Via email (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com)

Alexander E. Parker

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
1185 Avenue of the Americas
Third Floor

New York, NY 10036-2600

Re:  Demand pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act
Dear Mr. Parker:

Daily Journal Corporation (the “Company”) is in receipt of your letter dated December 19, 2025
demanding to inspect the books and records of the Company pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the
South Carolina Business Corporation Act.

You state in the letter that Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. is a registered stockholder of the Company,
but that does not appear true. Rather, effective December 18, 2025, the records of Equiniti, the
Company’s transfer agent, show one share now being owned by an entity called “Buxton Helmsley,
Inc.” We assume this is an entity affiliated with Buxton Hemsley USA, Inc., and upon a new demand
from the actual stockholder of record, the Company will grant that entity or its agent or attorney
access to the records required by Section 33-16-102(a).

In that regard, one or more representatives of Buxton Helmsley, Inc. are invited to visit the
Company’s principal office at 915 East First Street, Los Angeles, California 90012, during regular
business hours, to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom the records of the Company specified
in Section 33-16-101(e). Because it appears that Buxton Helmsley, Inc. does not own at least 1% of
the Company’s outstanding stock, however, it will not be given access to the Company’s income tax
returns specified in Section 33-16-101(e)(8).

Please contact Brian Cardile, the Company’s Corporate Secretary, at bcardile@journaltech.com, to
request an appointment.

With respect to the records noted in Section 33-16-102(b), a stockholder is only entitled to inspect
those records if, among other things, the demand is made in good faith and for a proper purpose, with
the records directly related to such purpose. Given that your demand for documents goes well beyond
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HAYNSWORTH
SINKLER BOYD

Alexander E. Parker
December 24, 2025
Page 2

what you know a stockholder is entitled to inspect under South Carolina law, even with a proper
purpose, the Company has grounds to doubt your good faith. The Company believes that your request
is part of your ongoing attempts to threaten the Company and its directors and officers into entering
into a cooperation agreement with you in exchange for not running a proxy contest and not referring
them to the SEC and professional licensing bodies.

In addition, the Board has instructed me to request that you and your affiliates direct to both my office
and the office of Brett Rodda, Esquire, all future correspondence meant for the Company or its
directors and employees. My email address is bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com and my mailing address
is 1201 Main Street, Columbia, South Carolina 29201. Mr. Rodda’s email address is
Brett.Rodda@bakermckenzie.com, and his mailing address is 815 Connecticut Avenue NW, 12
Floor, Washington, D.C. 20006.

Sincerely,
ff‘/

Robert Y. Knowlton

//
/ Ff

f

RYK/kdp

Cc:  Brett Rodda, Esquire
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "Rodda, Brett"
Cc: Knowlton, Bob; Brian Cardile; Relampagos, Stella C.; Sayerwin, Scarlet; smj@dailyjournal.com; Krogh,
Christopher; jfrank@oaktreecap.com
Subject: RE: Response to December 24, 2025 Letter; Continued Demand Under Rule 14a-7 and Section 33-16-102
Date: Friday, December 26, 2025 5:40:00 PM
Attachments: 20251226 - Response to December 26 Email.pdf
image002.png
image003.png
Sensitivity: Confidential
Mr. Rodda,

Please see the attached correspondence, in response to your e-mail below.

Regarding the company’s press release this morning (which we assume does not reflect your
knowledge of securities laws), we will be responding in court shortly.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | Linkedin

From: Rodda, Brett <brett.rodda@bakermckenzie.com>

Sent: Friday, December 26, 2025 10:13 AM

To: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>

Cc: Knowlton, Bob <bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com>; Brian Cardile <bcardile@journaltech.com>
Subject: RE: Response to December 24, 2025 Letter; Continued Demand Under Rule 14a-7 and
Section 33-16-102

Sensitivity: Confidential

Caution: This is an external email from outside the Buxton Helmsley network. Please take care when clicking links or
opening attachments. If you question or doubt, contact the Buxton Helmsley Compliance Department.

Dear Mr. Parker,

Attached is the official record from Equiniti showing one share of Daily Journal Corporation held by an
entity called "Buxton Helmsley Inc." in account number 209710923. If this is incorrect, you will need to
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 26, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO BRETT RODDA (BRETT.RODDA@BAKERMCKENZIE.COM)

Baker & McKenzie LLP

815 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20006-4078
Attention: Brett Rodda

Re:

Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Response to December 26
Email; Continued Rule 14a-7 Non-Compliance; Demand for Immediate Compliance

Dear Mr. Rodda:

We are in receipt of your December 26, 2025, email and the attached Equiniti record. Your

response is deficient in several respects and reflects continued non-compliance with federal law.

I.

THE ENTITY NAME ISSUE IS A RED HERRING.

The Equiniti record provided states the correct address for Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
The account creation date matches our broker's DRS confirmation exactly. The only
discrepancy is that Equiniti appears to have truncated "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc." to
"BUXTON HELMSLEY INC"—stripping both the "USA" designation and all
punctuation.

We also note that Equiniti is the Company's transfer agent—not ours. The Company was
aware that this transfer was incoming in connection with our proxy solicitation. We find
it difficult to believe that a transfer agent's system would spontaneously truncate an entity
name by removing a material designation like "USA" without some form of instruction or
input. We reserve the right to investigate the circumstances surrounding this discrepancy,
including any communications between the Company and Equiniti regarding the incoming
DRS transfer that the Company had knowledge of prior to completion.

Your assertion that we must "work with [our] broker to change it" is meritless. Our broker
submitted the transfer correctly. The broker confirmation—which we provided to you—
shows the transfer was initiated for "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc." with the account title at
the transfer agent listed as "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc." If Equiniti's system truncated the
name upon intake, that is an error in the Company's transfer agent's system—not an error
by our broker.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com









Mr. Brett Rodda
December 26, 2025

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

II.

The Company can resolve this with a single instruction to Equiniti (again, the Company’s
chosen vendor for keeping accurate shareholder records). The Company's refusal to do
so—while simultaneously demanding that we "submit a new state law records request"—
is transparent gamesmanship designed to delay our proxy solicitation. We decline to
participate.

We also note that your email states the Company "will not insist upon a new 5-day period
if [we] correct the error in [our] account and wish to visit sooner." This is a telling
admission. If the Company believed our original demand was invalid due to the entity
name discrepancy, there would be no "5-day period" to waive—the clock would never have
started. By offering not to insist on a new response period, the Company implicitly
concedes that our December 19, 2025 demand was valid and triggered the Company's
obligations under both Rule 14a-7 and Section 33-16-102.

The Company does not get to have it both ways. It cannot simultaneously claim our
demand was defective and offer to waive response deadlines that would only exist if the
demand were valid. Nor does the Company get to stall production while it instructs (and
stalls in instruction of) its own transfer agent to correct its own error. The Company's
obligations were triggered on December 19, 2025.

THE COMPANY’S CONTINUED NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 14A-7.

Your letter does not mention Rule 14a-7 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. This is,
again, a glaring omission.

Our December 19, 2025, letter was an unambiguous written request by a record holder to
inspect and copy the shareholder list in connection with a proxy solicitation. Rule 14a-
7(a)(1) required the Company, within five business days of receipt, to deliver:

"(1) Notification as to whether the registrant has elected to mail the security holder's
soliciting materials or provide a security holder list; and

(i1)) A statement of the approximate number of record holders and beneficial
holders..."

See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-7(a)(1).

The five-business-day deadline, accounting for the December 25 holiday, is December 29,
2025. The Company has provided neither the required notification nor the required
statement.

To be clear: regardless of whatever election the Company may belatedly claim to make
under Rule 14a-7, we demand production of the shareholder list. Given the Company's
documented pattern of false statements—including the falsely dated July 29, 2025 Form 8-
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

I11.

K, the false claims about Buxton Helmsley's regulatory status, and now the transparent
gamesmanship over the entity name—we have no confidence that the Company would
perform a mailing obligation in good faith. We will not entrust the delivery of our proxy
materials to a Board that has repeatedly demonstrated its willingness to make false
statements and obstruct shareholder oversight.

We are entitled to the shareholder list under Section 33-16-102(b)(3) of the South Carolina
Business Corporation Act, independent of and in addition to our rights under Rule 14a-7.
Communicating with fellow shareholders in connection with a proxy solicitation is a proper
purpose as a matter of law. The Company cannot defeat that right by purporting to elect
to mail under Rule 14a-7.

To be clear about what we are demanding: we require the list of shareholders entitled to
vote at the Company's 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Rule 14a-7 exists to
facilitate proxy solicitation—which necessarily means solicitation of shareholders who can
actually vote. A list of shareholders as of some arbitrary date, rather than as of the record
date for the meeting, would not satisfy the Company's obligations.

We understand the Company has not yet publicly announced a record date for the 2026
Annual Meeting. We demand that the Company:

a) Immediately provide a current shareholder list so that we may commence
solicitation efforts; and

b) Promptly notify us when the record date is set, and provide an updated list of
shareholders entitled to vote as of that record date within two business days of the
record date being fixed.

Any attempt to provide a stale list, or to set a record date without notifying us and providing
the updated list, will be treated as further obstruction of our proxy solicitation.

IN-PERSON INSPECTION DOES NOT COMPLY WITH FEDERAL LAW.

Your invitation to "visit the company's office in Los Angeles during regular business
hours" does not satisfy the Company's obligations.

Our December 19, 2025, demand specifically requested that the shareholder list and related
information be provided in electronic format, including Microsoft Excel. Rule 14a-
7(a)(2)(iii) requires the Company to furnish the list "in the form requested by the security
holder to the extent that such form is available to the registrant without undue burden or
expense."
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IV.

Equiniti maintains shareholder records electronically. Exporting those records to Excel is
trivial. Electronic delivery is unquestionably "available to the registrant without undue
burden or expense."

The Company's insistence that a New York-based shareholder fly across the country to
physically inspect an electronic file—in the weeks leading up to a contested annual
meeting—is not a good-faith interpretation of any statute. It is obstruction.

If the Company refuses to provide the shareholder list in the electronic format we
requested, we will immediately file an action under Section 33-16-104 of the South
Carolina Business Corporation Act seeking a court order compelling production in
electronic format, together with costs and attorney's fees. If necessary to preserve our
proxy solicitation timeline pending resolution of that action, we may send counsel to the
Company's Los Angeles office to inspect whatever records the Company deigns to make
available—but any such inspection will not waive our demand for electronic delivery, cure
the Company's violation, or moot our claims. Further, any categories of documents refused
to be voluntarily produced will be treated as a negative inference.

We also note that ISS and Glass Lewis take a dim view of incumbent boards that erect
procedural barriers to obstruct proxy contests. Forcing a dissident shareholder to incur the
time and expense of cross-country travel to obtain records that could be transmitted
electronically in seconds—while simultaneously litigating that very issue—is precisely the
type of entrenching behavior that proxy advisory firms flag in their analyses. We will
ensure that ISS, Glass Lewis, and the Company's shareholders are made aware of the
lengths to which this Board has gone to obstruct a proxy solicitation by a shareholder who
has documented serious, unremediated securities law violations.

THE COMPANY HAS IGNORED OUR SECTION 33-16-102(B) DEMAND.

Your letter addresses only the shareholder list records under Section 33-16-101(e). It says
nothing about our demand under Section 33-16-102(b) for books and records to investigate
mismanagement—including Board and Audit Committee minutes, auditor
communications, and correspondence with the SEC related to the accounting matters (all
of which are Board- or “accounting”-related records).

The Company's December 24, 2025, letter purported to deny this demand on "good faith"
grounds. Our December 24, 2025, response explained why that denial was legally
incorrect. Your December 26 email does not acknowledge or respond to any of those
arguments.

We reiterate our demand for the records specified in Part II of our December 19, 2025,
letter pursuant to Section 33-16-102(b). The Company's continued refusal to produce these
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records will result in an action under Section 33-16-104 seeking a court order compelling
inspection, together with costs and attorney's fees.

V. DEMAND AND RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.
We demand that the Company, no later than 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time on December 29, 2025:

a) Deliver the shareholder list and related information electronically in the formats
specified in our December 19, 2025, demand, as required by Rule 14a-7(a)(2)(ii)
and Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act—including
(a) a current list of shareholders for immediate solicitation purposes, and (b) a
commitment to provide an updated list of shareholders entitled to vote at the 2026
Annual Meeting within two business days of the record date being fixed, along with
prompt notification of the record date when it is set;

b) Provide a statement of the approximate number of record holders and beneficial
holders, as required by Rule 14a-7(a)(1)(ii);

c) Notify us immediately when the record date for the 2026 Annual Meeting is set,
and provide an updated list of shareholders entitled to vote as of that record date
within two business days;

d) Instruct Equiniti to correct its records to reflect the registered owner as "Buxton
Helmsley USA, Inc." and provide confirmation that the correction has been made;
and

e) Produce the books and records demanded under Section 33-16-102(b) in our
December 19, 2025, letter, or provide a written explanation of the Company's legal
basis for continued refusal.

If the Company elects to mail soliciting materials under Rule 14a-7(a)(1)(i) rather than
provide the shareholder list, that election will not extinguish our independent right to the list under
South Carolina law, and we will pursue the remedies described above. We will not permit a
Company with this record of false statements to serve as the sole intermediary between us and our
fellow shareholders.

If the Company continues to refuse production of the Section 33-16-102(b) records, we
will include that refusal in our Section 33-16-104 action and will seek an award of costs and
attorney's fees.

The Company's obstruction of our proxy solicitation will also be referred to the Division
of Enforcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission and documented in our
communications with shareholders and proxy advisory firms.

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law.
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CC:

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation
Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation

Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary, Daily Journal Corporation
Robert Y. Knowlton, Esq., Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A.

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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McKenzie.








work with your broker to change it. The Company cannot do that.

Once it is changed, you can submit a new state law records request in the name of the actual
stockholder, and then that stockholder or its agent is invited to visit the company's office in Los Angeles
during regular business hours upon notice to Brian Cardile to inspect the records set forth in Section 33-
16-101(e)(1) through (7) of the South Carolina Code of Laws. The company will not insist upon a new 5-
day period if you correct the error in your account and wish to visit sooner. Thank you for your attention
to this matter.

Sincerely,
Brett Rodda

Brett Rodda

Principal, M&A and Governance
Baker & McKenzie LLP

815 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006-4078
United States

Tel: +1 202 835 4237
brett.rodda@bakermckenzie.com

Baker
McKenzie.

This message may contain confidential and privileged information. If it has been sent to you in error, please reply to advise
the sender of the error and then immediately delete this message. Please visit www.bakermckenzie.com/disclaimers for other
important information concerning this message.

From: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 24, 2025 1:16 PM

To: Brian Cardile <bcardile@journaltech.com>

Cc: christopher.krogh@bakertilly.com; Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.saverwin@bakertilly.com>;
Relampagos, Stella C. <stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>; jffrank@oaktreecap.com; Steven Myhill-
Jones <smj@dailyjournal.com>; Knowlton, Bob <bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com>; Rodda, Brett
<brett.rodda@bakermckenzie.com>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Response to December 24, 2025 Letter; Continued Demand Under Rule 14a-7
and Section 33-16-102

Importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Cardile,

Please see the attached letter and exhibit.

Very truly yours,
Alexander
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Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message and any attachments are intended solely for the named recipient(s) and may contain
confidential, privileged, and/or attorney-client communications. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, distribution, or copying is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately at +1 (212) 561-5540 or by
return email, and permanently delete this message and its attachments. Buxton Helmsley, Inc. disclaims liability for any damage caused
by viruses transmitted through this email, and recipients are responsible for their own virus screening.

LEGAL & INVESTMENT DISCLAIMER: This communication is provided for informational purposes only. It does not constitute, and should
not be construed as, investment advice, an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities or to provide management
services. Any such offer will only be made through a confidential private placement memorandum or other formal offering documents,
which contain important information and risk disclosures. Prospective investors should consult their own investment, legal, accounting,
and tax advisers before making any investment decision. No representation is made that past or projected performance is indicative of
future results.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS: This message may include statements, estimates, or projections that constitute “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws. Such statements are inherently uncertain, based on current assumptions
and expectations, and subject to risks and factors outside Buxton Helmsley’s control. Actual results may differ materially from those
expressed or implied. The firm undertakes no obligation to update or revise such statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events, or otherwise.
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20251227 - Email to Brian Cardile.pdf

From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: Brian Cardile

Cc: jfrank@oaktreecap.com; Krogh, Christopher; Sayerwin, Scarlet; Relampagos, Stella C.;
"investigations@pcaobus.org"; "Reed, Ben"; "limda@sec.gov"; "ryanw@pcaobus.org"; "abellj@pcaobus.org";
"oca@sec.gov"

Subject: SEC Correspondence Enclosed — Rule 14a-6(b), Rule 14a-9, and Rule 21F-17(a)

Date: Saturday, December 27, 2025 4:06:00 PM

Attachments: 20251227 - SEC Letter - Supplement (Exhibit C-Part 2).zip
image001.png

20251227 - SEC Letter - Supplement.pdf

20251226 - SEC Letter.pdf

20251227 - SEC Letter - Supplement (Exhibit A).pdf
20251227 - SEC Letter - Supplement (Exhibit B).pdf
20251227 - SEC Letter - Supplement (Exhibit C-Part 1).zip

Importance: High
Sensitivity: Confidential
Mr. Cardile:

Attached please find copies of our correspondence to the SEC’s Office of the Whistleblower dated
December 26, 2025, and December 27, 2025, together with the referenced exhibits. As indicated on
the face of those letters, the Company has been copied. The SEC’s Enforcement Division is copied
on this email.

The attached correspondence documents our formal complaints regarding violations of Rule 21F-
17(a) (whistleblower retaliation), Rule 14a-6(b) (failure to file the December 26 press release as
solicitation material the same day as distribution), and the anticipated Rule 14a-9 violation that will
occur if the Company files the press release without correcting the false statements identified
therein, or without attaching all of the underlying correspondence that disproves the statements in
the press release.

To be clear: the Company cannot cure its Rule 14a-6(b) violation by belatedly filing a DEFA14A. The
press release was disseminated to shareholders via GlobeNewswire on December 26, purposely
omitting the underlying correspondence that would allow shareholders to evaluate the Company’s
characterizations, to poison the proxy contest for DJCO’s 2026 Annual Meeting. That solicitation was
misleading when it went out, whether it was filed with the SEC the same day or not. A late EDGAR
filing does not unring the bell. The violation is complete.

We demand that any DEFA14A filing correct the false statements before submission. The December
27 letter identifies ten categories of false and misleading statements. Filing the press release
without correction will constitute a knowing violation of Rule 14a-9, made after a written warning.
The Company is also reminded of its obligation not to make false statements in Form 8-K filings.

We continue to reserve all rights and remedies.

Attachments:
1. Letter to SEC Office of the Whistleblower (December 26, 2025);
2. Supplemental Letter to SEC (December 27, 2025);
3. Exhibit A: DJCO Press Release (December 26, 2025);
Exhibit B: Buxton Helmsley Letter to DJCO Board (December 13, 2025); and
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: ifrank@oaktreecap.com
Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet; Relampagos, Stella C.
Subject: Daily Journal Corporation — Notice of Additional Audit Committee Failures
Date: Sunday, December 21, 2025 8:56:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png
20251221 - Private Letter to Frank and Conlin re Active Form 8-K Failures.pdf
Importance: High
Sensitivity: Confidential
Mr. Frank,

After further investigation alongside advisors and counsel over the weekend, please find attached a
letter regarding additional failures by the Audit Committee to ensure compliance with Item 5.05 of
Form 8-K (several unambiguous, active Form 8-K failures), as well as matters related to Mr. Myhill-

Jones’s Section 16 filings.

As noted in the letter, this correspondence is being sent only to you, Ms. Conlin, and Baker Tilly
(excluding Mr. Myhill-Jones and Mr. Rayani). The reasons for that limited distribution will be
apparent from the contents.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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December 21, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attn: John B. Frank, Chair of Audit Committee

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice of Additional Audit
Committee Failures; Undisclosed Implicit Waivers of Code of Ethics; Missing Form 8-K
Filings Under Item 5.05

Dear Mr. Frank (and Ms. Conlin):

After further investigation alongside advisors and counsel over the weekend, we write
again to now put you on formal notice—in your capacity as Chair of the Audit Committee of the
Company—of additional failures by the Audit Committee to discharge its oversight
responsibilities. Specifically, the Audit Committee has failed to ensure the Company’s compliance
with Item 5.05 of Form 8-K, which requires disclosure of waivers (including implicit waivers) of
the Company’s Code of Ethics, filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2020 (the "Code of Ethics"). These failures compound the governance
deficiencies we have previously identified and further demonstrate the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

You will note Mr. Rayani is not copied on this new correspondence (only copying Ms.
Conlin and Baker Tilly), as will be clear by the end.

It is worth noting, at the forefront, that we have now discovered that Steven Myhill-Jones—
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer—was also in violation of his Section 16(a) filing
obligations. This means that four out of four current directors failed to comply with basic federal
securities law reporting requirements. One hundred percent of the Board. The CEO’s delinquent
Form 3 was not filed until December 16, 2024—nearly three years late—and, as detailed below,
that filing appears to have been deliberately structured to conceal the full extent of his violations.
The Form 3 falsely reports Mr. Myhill-Jones owned shares before beginning his service at the
Company when, by his own admission (we include a quote below), he had never purchased a single
share of Company stock. The 400 shares reported were granted to him after he became CEO—an
acquisition that should have been reported on a separate Form 4, with a transaction date, which
Mr. Myhill-Jones conspicuously omitted. This is the same executive who backdated the
Company’s July 29, 2025, Form 8-K to July 26, 2025, to conceal the Board’s failure to timely
disclose its accounting investigation into the issues raised by us. The pattern is unmistakable:

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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when faced with disclosure failures, this CEO’s instinct is not to remedy them but to falsify filings
to cover them up.

Given no response yet to our December 18, 2025, letter informing of our possible referral
of the violations of federal law you are continuing to stand behind, we are increasingly believing
that either you or Ms. Conlin must believe (there must be a majority consensus among Audit
Committee members) that, as Mr. Rayani admitted belief himself, federal securities laws are
“flimsy technicalities”. We stand firm on our deadline of hearing from you by tomorrow,
December 22, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time, or we intend to proceed with the contemplated
California State Bar complaint filing, which will be publicly filed with a copy to the Chevron
fiduciaries and shareholders who are then also likely to be harmed by your then-apparent disdain
for federal securities laws. We are certain Beachbody Company Inc.’s remaining Audit Committee
members (where Ms. Conlin also serves), not to mention shareholders, would also be appalled if
they knew one of their Audit Committee members had such a disregard for federal securities laws.
We have offered you and Mary Murphy Conlin a path to preserving your seats on the Board of the
Company, and hope you both will realize the self-destructive effects of not taking it. I will praise
both you and Ms. Conlin in a press release announcing our cooperation agreement, but will do the
very opposite if this proceeds any further to a proxy contest.

* * *

I UNDISCLOSED SECTION 16 VIOLATIONS AND IMPLICIT WAIVERS.

As detailed in our December 13, 2025 correspondence, multiple members of the Board—
including two members of the Audit Committee—filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that
were delinquent by as many as six years. The specifics bear repeating:

*  You, John B. Frank: Became a director in February 2022. Filed Form 3 and Form
4 on October 3, 2025—more than three and a half years after the statutory deadline.

*  Mary Murphy Conlin: Became a director in May 2019. Filed Form 3 and Form 4
on October 3, 2025—more than six years after the statutory deadline.

* Rasool Rayani: Became a director in June 2024. As of the date of this letter, Mr.
Rayani has still not filed his required Form 3 or any required Form 4 reports—a
delinquency now exceeding eighteen months.

+ Steven Myhill-Jones: Became acting Chief Executive Officer on March 28, 2022.
Filed his Form 3 on December 16, 2024—approximately two years and nine months
after the statutory deadline. As discussed further below, Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form
3 filing contains additional deficiencies that warrant separate examination, as we
do below.

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors and officers to file
a Form 3 within ten days of becoming a reporting person and a Form 4 within two business
days of any transaction in the Company’s securities.
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II.

Section D(2) of the Company’s Code of Ethics—"Timely and Truthful Disclosure"—
provides:

"In reports and documents filed with or submitted to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and other regulators, and in other public communications made by the
Company, the Company’s directors, officers and employees involved in the
preparation of such reports, documents and communications shall make
disclosures that are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable."”

Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics—"Legal Compliance"—provides:

"In conducting the business of the Company, all directors, officers and employees
shall comply with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations at all levels
of government in the United States and in any non-U.S. jurisdiction in which the
Company does business."

The years-long failures by Messrs. Frank, Rayani, and Myhill-Jones, and Ms. Conlin, to
comply with Section 16(a) filing requirements are violations of both Section D(2) and
Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics. The Company’s failure to take action against these
violations constitutes an "implicit waiver" under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K.

The Company has never filed a Form 8-K disclosing these implicit waivers. Item
5.05(b) of Form 8-K requires disclosure within four business days of any waiver, including
any implicit waiver, granted to a director or executive officer. An "implicit waiver" is
defined as the company's failure to take action within a reasonable period of time regarding
a material departure from a provision of the code of ethics that has been made known to
the company.

The Audit Committee—which you chair—has, on top of everything else, failed to ensure
the Company’s compliance with these additional disclosure requirements. The Company
was required to file Form 8-Ks disclosing the implicit waivers granted to each of these
individuals. It did not. This is a separate and independent disclosure failure layered on top
of the underlying Section 16 violations.

STEVEN MYHILL-JONES’ DEFECTIVE FORM 3 FILING.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3, filed December 16, 2024, warrants separate examination
because it appears to have been structured to conceal, rather than remedy, his Section 16
violations (just the same as Mr. Myhill-Jones’ July 29 Form 8-K was apparent to be
structured to conceal his disclosure violations there, too).
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II1.

To begin, Mr. Myahill-Jones falsely stated the “Date of Event Requiring Statement” as
December 11, 2024, knowing very well that his employment started nearly two years
before that date.

Further, a Form 3 is an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership of Securities." As earlier
noted, Form 3 is required to be filed within ten days of a person becoming a director or
officer. It reports the securities beneficially owned by the reporting person as of the date
they became a reporting person (indisputable by the “initial statement” form header)—not
as of the date the form is filed.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 on December 16, 2024, reported that he beneficially owned 400
shares of Company common stock at the time he began service at the Company. However,
at the Company’s February 15, 2023, annual shareholder meeting, Mr. Myhill-Jones stated:
"while I don’t have equity yet, I'm certainly keen to participate in the future growth of the
business..." If Mr. Myhill-Jones had never purchased shares of Company stock, then he
could not have owned 400 shares as of March 28, 2022—the date he became acting CEO
and the date as of which he was being asked to report ownership for.

As then admitted by Mr. Myhill-Jones himself, the 400 shares reported on Mr. Myhill-
Jones’ Form 3 were granted to him after he became CEO—mnot shares he owned when he
initially assumed the role. Any acquisition of shares after becoming a reporting person was
required to be reported on a Form 4, not a Form 3. Form 4 requires disclosure of the
transaction date, the nature of the transaction, and the number of shares acquired or
disposed of. Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 contains none of this information because there is
no place on a Form 3 to report it—Form 3 is not designed to report acquisitions, only initial
holdings at the time of beginning service.

The structure of Mr. Myhill-Jones’ filing suggests an attempt to mask a dual violation—
the failure to timely file a Form 3 and the failure to timely file a Form 4 reporting a stock
grant—by combining both into a single, defective Form 3 that obscures the date and nature
of the acquisition. The failure to disclose the grant date is particularly notable; without it,
shareholders cannot determine when the violation occurred or how long it went unreported.

This, too, required an Item 5.05 Form 8-K disclosure for his personal disclosure violations.
The Company has never filed one. Nor did the Company disclose Mr. Myhill-Jones'
implicit waiver in its proxy statement filed January 8, 2025—which was filed after his
defective Form 3 but made no mention of his years-long Section 16 delinquency or the
implicit waiver it necessarily entailed.

THE AUGUST 14, 2025 FORM 10-Q: WILLFUL FALSE CERTIFICATION.

On August 14, 2025, Mr. Myhill-Jones and then-Chief Financial Officer Tu To signed and
filed the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2025. In connection with
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that filing, both executives provided certifications pursuant to Section 302 and Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, certifying that the financial statements "fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations" of the Company.

Those certifications were false when made. More importantly, Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms.
To knew they were false when they signed them.

Between July 14, 2025, and July 29, 2025, Buxton Helmsley sent five separate letters to
the Board detailing material violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP") and SEC reporting requirements in the Company’s financial statements. Any
jury of reasonable minds (or your peers at the California State Bar) would have understood
the contents of those letters, for which Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To decided to bury their
heads in the sand, in complete disregard of federal securities laws. Our letters of July 14,
July 18, July 23, July 28, and July 29, 2025, explained in detail:

» The Company’s failure to capitalize software development costs as required by
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20");

* The Company’s failure to separately disclose research and development expenses
as required by Regulation S-X § 210.5-03; and

» The materiality of these violations, given the Company’s own admission in its SEC
filings that software development costs are “significant” (there is no dispute of
materiality under Regulation S-X).

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To received these letters. They were on notice that the
Company’s financial reporting had long violated GAAP and Regulation S-X. They were
on notice that the financial statements they were about to certify were going to continue
those violations of GAAP and Regulation S-X. They signed anyway.

Section D(1) of the Code of Ethics—"Honest and Ethical Conduct"—provides:

"All directors, officers and employees shall behave honestly and ethically at all
times and with all people.... They shall not misrepresent facts or engage in illegal,
unethical, or anti-competitive practices for personal or professional gain."”

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To engaged in clearly illegal practices—the willful false
certification of financial statements under 18 U.S.C. § 1350—for professional gain. They
signed the certifications to keep their jobs. They were given clear details to know that the
financial reporting was misstated and non-compliant (even if they wanted to argue they did
not understand the GAAP issues, the Regulation S-X issue of not separately disclosing
research and development was indisputable, as they already admitted those expenses to be
“significant”, which clearly met the materiality threshold for requiring separate disclosure
pursuant to Regulation S-X). They signed anyway.
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IVv.

The Audit Committee’s failure to take action against this conduct constitutes another
implicit waiver requiring Form 8-K disclosure under Item 5.05. No such Form 8-K has
been filed.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.
Let us be direct about what has occurred:

* Four directors and officers violated Section 16(a) filing requirements—some for
more than six years.

* The Company took no action against any of them.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waivers.

* The Company’s CEO attempted to mask his dual Section 16 violations with a
defective Form 3 filing, falsely dating it and attempting to combine it with the
contents of a Form 4 to minimize the appearance of the violations.

* The CEO and CFO signed knowingly false Sarbanes-Oxley certifications after
being put on written notice of GAAP violations.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waiver of the Code of
Ethics arising from that conduct.

» The Company’s January 8, 2025, proxy statement made no mention of the implicit
waivers related to Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 and Form 4 disclosure violations.

This is not inadvertence. This is a pattern of concealment. The Audit Committee—which
you chair—has systematically failed to ensure the Company’s compliance with disclosure
requirements designed to inform shareholders when insiders have been permitted to violate
the Company’s own ethical standards.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the Audit Committee will not disclose when directors
violate basic filing requirements, and will not disclose when executives sign false
certifications, what else is being concealed? If these failures were mistakes and not in line
with your personal ethical standards as a securities lawyer expected to uphold the law, you
need to avoid any further delay in remediation of this Company’s governance and
compliance failures.

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you, as Audit Committee Chair, of the

failures described herein. Any further delay by the Audit Committee to address these matters—
including by ensuring appropriate disclosure in the Company’s forthcoming proxy statement—
will be considered in connection with our pending notice of potential referral to the State Bar of
California regarding your professional conduct.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.
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Cc:

Respectfully,

Ao—————

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Mary Murphy Conlin (Audit Committee member, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 21, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attn: John B. Frank, Chair of Audit Committee

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice of Additional Audit
Committee Failures; Undisclosed Implicit Waivers of Code of Ethics; Missing Form 8-K
Filings Under Item 5.05

Dear Mr. Frank (and Ms. Conlin):

After further investigation alongside advisors and counsel over the weekend, we write
again to now put you on formal notice—in your capacity as Chair of the Audit Committee of the
Company—of additional failures by the Audit Committee to discharge its oversight
responsibilities. Specifically, the Audit Committee has failed to ensure the Company’s compliance
with Item 5.05 of Form 8-K, which requires disclosure of waivers (including implicit waivers) of
the Company’s Code of Ethics, filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2020 (the "Code of Ethics"). These failures compound the governance
deficiencies we have previously identified and further demonstrate the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

You will note Mr. Rayani is not copied on this new correspondence (only copying Ms.
Conlin and Baker Tilly), as will be clear by the end.

It is worth noting, at the forefront, that we have now discovered that Steven Myhill-Jones—
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer—was also in violation of his Section 16(a) filing
obligations. This means that four out of four current directors failed to comply with basic federal
securities law reporting requirements. One hundred percent of the Board. The CEO’s delinquent
Form 3 was not filed until December 16, 2024—nearly three years late—and, as detailed below,
that filing appears to have been deliberately structured to conceal the full extent of his violations.
The Form 3 falsely reports Mr. Myhill-Jones owned shares before beginning his service at the
Company when, by his own admission (we include a quote below), he had never purchased a single
share of Company stock. The 400 shares reported were granted to him after he became CEO—an
acquisition that should have been reported on a separate Form 4, with a transaction date, which
Mr. Myhill-Jones conspicuously omitted. This is the same executive who backdated the
Company’s July 29, 2025, Form 8-K to July 26, 2025, to conceal the Board’s failure to timely
disclose its accounting investigation into the issues raised by us. The pattern is unmistakable:

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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when faced with disclosure failures, this CEO’s instinct is not to remedy them but to falsify filings
to cover them up.

Given no response yet to our December 18, 2025, letter informing of our possible referral
of the violations of federal law you are continuing to stand behind, we are increasingly believing
that either you or Ms. Conlin must believe (there must be a majority consensus among Audit
Committee members) that, as Mr. Rayani admitted belief himself, federal securities laws are
“flimsy technicalities”. We stand firm on our deadline of hearing from you by tomorrow,
December 22, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time, or we intend to proceed with the contemplated
California State Bar complaint filing, which will be publicly filed with a copy to the Chevron
fiduciaries and shareholders who are then also likely to be harmed by your then-apparent disdain
for federal securities laws. We are certain Beachbody Company Inc.’s remaining Audit Committee
members (where Ms. Conlin also serves), not to mention shareholders, would also be appalled if
they knew one of their Audit Committee members had such a disregard for federal securities laws.
We have offered you and Mary Murphy Conlin a path to preserving your seats on the Board of the
Company, and hope you both will realize the self-destructive effects of not taking it. I will praise
both you and Ms. Conlin in a press release announcing our cooperation agreement, but will do the
very opposite if this proceeds any further to a proxy contest.

* * *

I UNDISCLOSED SECTION 16 VIOLATIONS AND IMPLICIT WAIVERS.

As detailed in our December 13, 2025 correspondence, multiple members of the Board—
including two members of the Audit Committee—filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that
were delinquent by as many as six years. The specifics bear repeating:

*  You, John B. Frank: Became a director in February 2022. Filed Form 3 and Form
4 on October 3, 2025—more than three and a half years after the statutory deadline.

*  Mary Murphy Conlin: Became a director in May 2019. Filed Form 3 and Form 4
on October 3, 2025—more than six years after the statutory deadline.

* Rasool Rayani: Became a director in June 2024. As of the date of this letter, Mr.
Rayani has still not filed his required Form 3 or any required Form 4 reports—a
delinquency now exceeding eighteen months.

+ Steven Myhill-Jones: Became acting Chief Executive Officer on March 28, 2022.
Filed his Form 3 on December 16, 2024—approximately two years and nine months
after the statutory deadline. As discussed further below, Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form
3 filing contains additional deficiencies that warrant separate examination, as we
do below.

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors and officers to file
a Form 3 within ten days of becoming a reporting person and a Form 4 within two business
days of any transaction in the Company’s securities.
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II.

Section D(2) of the Company’s Code of Ethics—"Timely and Truthful Disclosure"—
provides:

"In reports and documents filed with or submitted to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and other regulators, and in other public communications made by the
Company, the Company’s directors, officers and employees involved in the
preparation of such reports, documents and communications shall make
disclosures that are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable."”

Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics—"Legal Compliance"—provides:

"In conducting the business of the Company, all directors, officers and employees
shall comply with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations at all levels
of government in the United States and in any non-U.S. jurisdiction in which the
Company does business."

The years-long failures by Messrs. Frank, Rayani, and Myhill-Jones, and Ms. Conlin, to
comply with Section 16(a) filing requirements are violations of both Section D(2) and
Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics. The Company’s failure to take action against these
violations constitutes an "implicit waiver" under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K.

The Company has never filed a Form 8-K disclosing these implicit waivers. Item
5.05(b) of Form 8-K requires disclosure within four business days of any waiver, including
any implicit waiver, granted to a director or executive officer. An "implicit waiver" is
defined as the company's failure to take action within a reasonable period of time regarding
a material departure from a provision of the code of ethics that has been made known to
the company.

The Audit Committee—which you chair—has, on top of everything else, failed to ensure
the Company’s compliance with these additional disclosure requirements. The Company
was required to file Form 8-Ks disclosing the implicit waivers granted to each of these
individuals. It did not. This is a separate and independent disclosure failure layered on top
of the underlying Section 16 violations.

STEVEN MYHILL-JONES’ DEFECTIVE FORM 3 FILING.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3, filed December 16, 2024, warrants separate examination
because it appears to have been structured to conceal, rather than remedy, his Section 16
violations (just the same as Mr. Myhill-Jones’ July 29 Form 8-K was apparent to be
structured to conceal his disclosure violations there, too).
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II1.

To begin, Mr. Myahill-Jones falsely stated the “Date of Event Requiring Statement” as
December 11, 2024, knowing very well that his employment started nearly two years
before that date.

Further, a Form 3 is an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership of Securities." As earlier
noted, Form 3 is required to be filed within ten days of a person becoming a director or
officer. It reports the securities beneficially owned by the reporting person as of the date
they became a reporting person (indisputable by the “initial statement” form header)—not
as of the date the form is filed.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 on December 16, 2024, reported that he beneficially owned 400
shares of Company common stock at the time he began service at the Company. However,
at the Company’s February 15, 2023, annual shareholder meeting, Mr. Myhill-Jones stated:
"while I don’t have equity yet, I'm certainly keen to participate in the future growth of the
business..." If Mr. Myhill-Jones had never purchased shares of Company stock, then he
could not have owned 400 shares as of March 28, 2022—the date he became acting CEO
and the date as of which he was being asked to report ownership for.

As then admitted by Mr. Myhill-Jones himself, the 400 shares reported on Mr. Myhill-
Jones’ Form 3 were granted to him after he became CEO—mnot shares he owned when he
initially assumed the role. Any acquisition of shares after becoming a reporting person was
required to be reported on a Form 4, not a Form 3. Form 4 requires disclosure of the
transaction date, the nature of the transaction, and the number of shares acquired or
disposed of. Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 contains none of this information because there is
no place on a Form 3 to report it—Form 3 is not designed to report acquisitions, only initial
holdings at the time of beginning service.

The structure of Mr. Myhill-Jones’ filing suggests an attempt to mask a dual violation—
the failure to timely file a Form 3 and the failure to timely file a Form 4 reporting a stock
grant—by combining both into a single, defective Form 3 that obscures the date and nature
of the acquisition. The failure to disclose the grant date is particularly notable; without it,
shareholders cannot determine when the violation occurred or how long it went unreported.

This, too, required an Item 5.05 Form 8-K disclosure for his personal disclosure violations.
The Company has never filed one. Nor did the Company disclose Mr. Myhill-Jones'
implicit waiver in its proxy statement filed January 8, 2025—which was filed after his
defective Form 3 but made no mention of his years-long Section 16 delinquency or the
implicit waiver it necessarily entailed.

THE AUGUST 14, 2025 FORM 10-Q: WILLFUL FALSE CERTIFICATION.

On August 14, 2025, Mr. Myhill-Jones and then-Chief Financial Officer Tu To signed and
filed the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2025. In connection with
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that filing, both executives provided certifications pursuant to Section 302 and Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, certifying that the financial statements "fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations" of the Company.

Those certifications were false when made. More importantly, Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms.
To knew they were false when they signed them.

Between July 14, 2025, and July 29, 2025, Buxton Helmsley sent five separate letters to
the Board detailing material violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP") and SEC reporting requirements in the Company’s financial statements. Any
jury of reasonable minds (or your peers at the California State Bar) would have understood
the contents of those letters, for which Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To decided to bury their
heads in the sand, in complete disregard of federal securities laws. Our letters of July 14,
July 18, July 23, July 28, and July 29, 2025, explained in detail:

» The Company’s failure to capitalize software development costs as required by
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20");

* The Company’s failure to separately disclose research and development expenses
as required by Regulation S-X § 210.5-03; and

» The materiality of these violations, given the Company’s own admission in its SEC
filings that software development costs are “significant” (there is no dispute of
materiality under Regulation S-X).

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To received these letters. They were on notice that the
Company’s financial reporting had long violated GAAP and Regulation S-X. They were
on notice that the financial statements they were about to certify were going to continue
those violations of GAAP and Regulation S-X. They signed anyway.

Section D(1) of the Code of Ethics—"Honest and Ethical Conduct"—provides:

"All directors, officers and employees shall behave honestly and ethically at all
times and with all people.... They shall not misrepresent facts or engage in illegal,
unethical, or anti-competitive practices for personal or professional gain."”

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To engaged in clearly illegal practices—the willful false
certification of financial statements under 18 U.S.C. § 1350—for professional gain. They
signed the certifications to keep their jobs. They were given clear details to know that the
financial reporting was misstated and non-compliant (even if they wanted to argue they did
not understand the GAAP issues, the Regulation S-X issue of not separately disclosing
research and development was indisputable, as they already admitted those expenses to be
“significant”, which clearly met the materiality threshold for requiring separate disclosure
pursuant to Regulation S-X). They signed anyway.
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IVv.

The Audit Committee’s failure to take action against this conduct constitutes another
implicit waiver requiring Form 8-K disclosure under Item 5.05. No such Form 8-K has
been filed.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.
Let us be direct about what has occurred:

* Four directors and officers violated Section 16(a) filing requirements—some for
more than six years.

* The Company took no action against any of them.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waivers.

* The Company’s CEO attempted to mask his dual Section 16 violations with a
defective Form 3 filing, falsely dating it and attempting to combine it with the
contents of a Form 4 to minimize the appearance of the violations.

* The CEO and CFO signed knowingly false Sarbanes-Oxley certifications after
being put on written notice of GAAP violations.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waiver of the Code of
Ethics arising from that conduct.

» The Company’s January 8, 2025, proxy statement made no mention of the implicit
waivers related to Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 and Form 4 disclosure violations.

This is not inadvertence. This is a pattern of concealment. The Audit Committee—which
you chair—has systematically failed to ensure the Company’s compliance with disclosure
requirements designed to inform shareholders when insiders have been permitted to violate
the Company’s own ethical standards.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the Audit Committee will not disclose when directors
violate basic filing requirements, and will not disclose when executives sign false
certifications, what else is being concealed? If these failures were mistakes and not in line
with your personal ethical standards as a securities lawyer expected to uphold the law, you
need to avoid any further delay in remediation of this Company’s governance and
compliance failures.

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you, as Audit Committee Chair, of the

failures described herein. Any further delay by the Audit Committee to address these matters—
including by ensuring appropriate disclosure in the Company’s forthcoming proxy statement—
will be considered in connection with our pending notice of potential referral to the State Bar of
California regarding your professional conduct.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.
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Cc:

Respectfully,

Ao—————

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Mary Murphy Conlin (Audit Committee member, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "christopher.krogh@bakertilly.com"

Cc: Relampagos, Stella C.; Sayerwin, Scarlet; jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: Daily Journal Corporation — Formal Notice to Baker Tilly Los Angeles Office Leadership
Date: Monday, December 22, 2025 12:43:00 PM

Attachments: image001.png

20251219 - Books and Records Demand (EXECUTED).pdf
20251215 - Rule 14a-19 Notice - Combined (EXECUTED).pdf
Audit Committee Email.pdf
20251219 - Private Letter to Erik Nakamura.pdf
20251221 - Private Letter to Frank and Conlin re Active Form 8-K Failures.pdf
20251213 - Private Letter to DJCO Board.pdf
20251217 - Private Letter to DJCO Board.pdf
20251218 - Private Letter to DJCO Board.pdf
20251218 - Private Letter to John B Frank re Bar Referral.pdf
Importance: High
Sensitivity: Confidential

Dear Mr. Krogh:

I am writing to ensure that Baker Tilly’s Los Angeles office leadership is aware of matters previously
communicated to your colleagues Scarlet Sayerwin and Stella Relampagos, regarding the Daily
Journal Corporation (NASDAQ: DJCO), to ensure no plausible deniability on your part.

At the outset, | direct your attention to the attached email exchange (“Audit Committee Email.pdf”)
with Daily Journal Corporation Audit Committee member Rasool Rayani, in which Mr. Rayani—in
writing—dismissed Section 16 compliance as "the flimsiest of technicalities." This is a sitting
member of the Audit Committee, your firm relies upon for oversight of the Company's financial
reporting and internal controls. Under the COSO Internal Control—-Integrated Framework, which
forms the basis for evaluating internal controls over financial reporting under Section 404 of
Sarbanes-Oxley, "tone at the top" and commitment to integrity are foundational elements of an
effective control environment. An Audit Committee member who regards federal securities laws as
"flimsy technicalities"—in writing, to a shareholder—is not a member of an Audit Committee that
can credibly oversee anything. Baker Tilly has a professional obligation not to stand behind an Audit
Committee that expresses such open disregard for the laws it is charged with ensuring the Company
follows.

The attached correspondence documents the following matters:

® December 13, 2025 — Rule 14a-19 Notice: Formal notice of our intent to solicit proxies in
support of our director nominees at the Company's 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, as
required under Rule 14a-19 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

® December 13, 2025 - Private Letter to Board: Notice to the Daily Journal Corporation Board
of our Rule 14a-19 notice delivery; documentation of Section 16(a) violations by John B. Frank
(3+ years delinquent) and Mary Murphy Conlin (6+ years delinquent); and demand for
governance remediation. Notably, the very next business day after receiving this letter, the
Board awarded restricted stock units to Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin—the two directors
implicated in Section 16(a) violations, which would surely unsettle the other Audit
Committees they sit on at Chevron and Beachbody—in what appears to be an attempt to

secure their continued loyalty in the face of our demands.
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BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3
New York, N.Y. 10036-2600
December 19, 2025

VIA FEDEX AND EMAIL (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attention: Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary

Re: Demand to Inspect Books and Records Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South
Carolina Business Corporation Act

Dear Mr. Cardile:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., a New York corporation (the "Shareholder"), is—as of the
date set forth above—a record shareholder of Daily Journal Corporation (the "Corporation").

Reference is made to the Notice of Intent to Solicit Proxies in Support of Director
Nominees Pursuant to Rule 14a-19 Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, dated December
13, 2025 (the "Notice"). As further described in the Notice, the Shareholder intends to solicit
proxies in support of the nomination of certain persons for election to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation (the "Board") at the 2026 annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation,
expected to be held on or about February 19, 2026, including any adjournments or postponements
thereof or any special meeting that may be held in lieu thereof (the "2026 Annual Meeting").

I SHAREHOLDER LIST AND RELATED RECORDS

Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act of 1988
(the "SCBCA"), as a shareholder of the Corporation, the Shareholder hereby demands that
it and its attorneys, representatives and agents be given, during regular business hours and
at the Corporation's principal office or other reasonable location specified by the
Corporation, the opportunity to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom, the following
records of the Corporation for the purpose of (1) disseminating a definitive proxy statement
to the Corporation's shareholders in connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the
2026 Annual Meeting and (2) communicating with the Corporation's shareholders in
connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the 2026 Annual Meeting (the
"Demand"), including, but not limited to:

a) a complete record or list of the shareholders of the Corporation in electronic
medium form, certified by the Corporation's transfer agent(s) and/or registrar(s),
setting forth the name, address and email address of, and the number, series and
class of shares of stock of the Corporation held by, each shareholder as of the most













b)

d)

recent date available, and, when available, such list for each shareholder as of any
record date (the "Record Date") established or to be established for the 2026 Annual
Meeting or any other meeting of shareholders held in lieu thereof (the most recent
available date and any such record date, a "Determination Date");

a complete record or list of shareholders of the Corporation and respondent banks
who have elected to receive electronic copies of proxy materials with respect to
meetings of the shareholders of the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-16(j)(2) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), including,
for each such shareholder, the email address provided by such shareholder;

all transfer journals and daily transfer sheets showing changes in the names and
addresses of the Corporation's shareholders and the number, series or class of shares
of stock of the Corporation held by the Corporation's shareholders that are in or
come into the possession of the Corporation or its transfer agent(s), registrar(s), or
proxy solicitor(s), or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks,
clearing agencies or voting trusts or their nominees from the date of the shareholder
list referred to in paragraph (a) through the date of the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's or its transfer agent(s)' or
registrar(s)' or proxy solicitor(s)' possession, custody or control or that can
reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing agencies, voting
trusts or their nominees relating to the names and addresses and telephone numbers
of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation as of each
Determination Date held by the participating brokers and banks named in the
individual nominee names of Cede & Co. and other similar depositories or
nominees of any central certificate depository system, including respondent bank
lists, and all omnibus proxies and related respondent bank proxies and listings
issued pursuant to Rule 14b-2 under the Exchange Act, including a Weekly Report
of Security Position Listings from The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (a
"Weekly DTC Report") as of each Determination Date, and, following the setting
and occurrence of the Record Date, a Weekly DTC Report for each of the weeks
until the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's possession, custody or
control or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing
agencies, voting trusts or their nominees, relating to the names and addresses of,
and shares of stock of the Corporation held by, the non-objecting beneficial owners
(or "NOBOs") of the shares of stock of the Corporation as of each Determination
Date (or any other date established or obtained by the Corporation) pursuant to Rule
14b-1(c) or Rule 14b-2(c) under the Exchange Act, in Microsoft Excel, or, if the
information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel file, means by which the
Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft Excel file, and a hard copy
printout of such information in order of descending balance for verification
purposes. If such information is not in the Corporation's possession, custody, or
control, such information should be requested from Broadridge Financial Solutions,
Inc., Say Technologies, LLC, and Mediant Communications LLC, or any other
similar shareholder communications services company that has been engaged by
the Corporation to provide investor communications services in connection with a
meeting of shareholders;














f) an alphabetical breakdown of any holdings in the respective names of Cede & Co.
and other similar depositories or nominees, as well as any material request list
provided by Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and
Mediant Communications, LLC, and any omnibus proxies issued by such entities
in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. If such information is not in the
Corporation's possession, custody, or control, such information should be requested
from Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and Mediant
Communications, LLC;

g) all lists and electronic files (together with such computer processing data as is
necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such files) containing the name and
address of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation
attributable to any participant in any employee share ownership plan, stock
ownership dividend reinvestment, employee share purchase plan or other employee
compensation or benefit plan of the Corporation in which the decision to vote shares
of stock of the Corporation held by such plan is made, directly or indirectly,
individually or collectively, by the participants in the plan and the method(s) by
which the Shareholder or its agents may communicate with each such participant,
as well as the name, affiliation and telephone number of the trustee or administrator
of each such plan, and a detailed explanation of the treatment not only of shares for
which the trustee or administrator receives instructions from participants, but also
shares for which either the trustee or administrator does not receive instructions or
shares that are outstanding in the plan but are unallocated to any participant, in
Microsoft Excel, or, if the information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel
file, means by which the Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft
Excel file, and a hard copy printout of such information in alphabetical order for
verification purposes; and

h) to the extent not already referred to above, any electronic file which contains any
or all of the information encompassed in this Demand, together with any program,
software, manual, or other instructions necessary for the practical use of such
information.

The information and records specified in the foregoing paragraphs (a) through (h) should
be given as of the most recent available date and, unless stated otherwise, should be updated
as of the Record Date promptly as such information becomes available to the Corporation,
its registrar, its proxy solicitor, or any of the Corporation's or their respective agents.

To reiterate, all information requested in paragraphs (a) through (h) should be provided in
hard copy (paper) form, as well as CD-ROM format, electronically transmitted file, or
similar electronic medium (any such electronic storage medium, an "Electronic Medium"),
and such computer processing data as is necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such
list on an Electronic Medium; and a hard copy printout of the total aggregate accounts and
shares represented by such list on an Electronic Medium for verification purposes;
provided, however if the hard copy (paper) form exceeds fifty (50) printed pages then in
lieu of hard copy (paper), the Corporation should provide such data in an Electronic
Medium.














II.

ADDITIONAL BOOKS AND RECORDS

In addition to the shareholder list and related records described in Part I above, and pursuant
to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the Shareholder hereby demands the opportunity to
inspect and copy the following books and records of the Corporation for the purposes of
(1) investigating potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of
internal controls at the Corporation, (2) evaluating the qualifications, performance, and
independence of the Corporation's directors and officers, and (3) assessing the adequacy of
the Corporation's financial reporting and compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("GAAP"):

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

all minutes of meetings of the Board and any committee thereof, including but
not limited to the Audit Committee, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20"), (C)
capitalization of software development costs at Journal Technologies, Inc. or any
subsidiary or division of the Corporation, (D) any internal or external review,
investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices or policies,
or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

all written communications between the Corporation and its independent
auditors, including Baker Tilly US, LLP and any predecessor auditors, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, (D) any deficiency in internal controls over financial
reporting, (E) any disagreement between the Corporation and its auditors
regarding accounting treatment or disclosure, or (F) any management
representation letters provided to the auditors concerning software development
costs or related accounting policies;

all documents, reports, memoranda, presentations, and analyses prepared by or
for the Board, any committee thereof, or any officer of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to any internal
review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's software development
cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or potential GAAP
violations, including any reports or findings of internal or external counsel,
accountants, or other advisors retained in connection with any such review,
investigation, or inquiry;

all written communications sent or received by Tu To, in her capacity as Chief
Financial Officer or in any other capacity on behalf of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, or (D) any internal or external review, investigation, or
inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices;

all Audit Committee meeting materials, including agendas, presentations,
reports, and supporting documentation, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)
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ASC 985-20, (C) Journal Technologies, Inc., (D) any communication from the
Corporation's independent auditors regarding accounting policies or internal
controls, or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

(vi) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present, that discuss,
reference, or relate to (A) Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., Buxton Helmsley, Inc.,
or any affiliate thereof, (B) Alexander Parker, (C) any shareholder proposal,
nomination, or other communication received from Buxton Helmsley or Mr.
Parker, (D) any public statement or filing made by or concerning Buxton
Helmsley or Mr. Parker, or (E) the Corporation's response to any of the
foregoing;

(vii) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors and officers of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present,
that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) any investigation of the Corporation's
accounting practices initiated in response to concerns raised by shareholders, (B)
the scope, findings, or conclusions of any such investigation, or (C) any remedial
actions taken or considered in response to any such investigation;

(viii) all engagement letters, statements of work, and invoices from any outside
counsel, accounting firm, or other advisor retained by the Corporation in
connection with (A) any review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's
software development cost accounting practices or compliance with GAAP, or
(B) any response to shareholder concerns regarding the Corporation's accounting
practices; and

(ix) all documents and communications reflecting any communication between the
Corporation and the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board, or any other regulatory body, from January 1, 2020
to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to the Corporation's software
development cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or any
other accounting matter.

PURPOSE OF DEMAND

The purpose of the requests in Part [ of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder and certain
of its affiliates and representatives to communicate with other holders of common stock
with respect to matters relating to their interests as shareholders, including, without
limitation, an affiliate of the Shareholder soliciting proxies from the Corporation's
shareholders in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting.

The purpose of the requests in Part II of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder to (1)
investigate potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal
controls relating to the Corporation's accounting practices and financial reporting, (2)
evaluate the qualifications, performance, and independence of the Corporation's current
directors and officers, including their oversight of financial reporting and response to
shareholder concerns, (3) assess whether the Corporation's financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP and whether any restatement may be required, and (4)













IVv.

make an informed decision regarding how to vote its shares and communicate with other
shareholders at the 2026 Annual Meeting regarding the election of directors and other
matters.

The Shareholder represents that (i) it is seeking this inspection for a proper purpose
reasonably related to its interest as a shareholder, (ii) it describes with reasonable
particularity its purpose and the records it desires to inspect, (iii) the records requested are
directly connected with the Shareholder's purpose, and (iv) it will not sell the requested
information to any person, give the requested information to any competitor of the
Corporation, or otherwise use the information for any improper purpose.

The records enumerated in this Demand are directly connected with the above purposes of
this Demand and are reasonably related to the Shareholder's interests as a shareholder of
the Corporation.

CONTINUING DEMAND AND RESPONSE

This Demand is a continuing demand. The Shareholder demands that all modifications,
corrections, additions, or deletions to any and all information referred to in Parts I and II
above be immediately furnished to the Shareholder as such modifications, corrections,
additions, or deletions become available to the Corporation or its agents or representatives.

The Shareholder hereby designates the undersigned and any other persons designated by
them or by the Shareholder, acting singly or in any combination, to conduct the inspection
and copying herein requested. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the materials
identified above shall be made available to the Shareholder and its representatives initially
no later than five business days following the date hereof and each Determination Date.
All documents responsive to this Demand shall be produced in electronic format to the
extent such documents exist in electronic form or can reasonably be converted to electronic
form. Production shall be made by secure electronic transmission or other electronic means
agreed upon by the parties. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, you are required
to respond to this demand within five business days of the date hereof. Please advise the
Shareholder's legal department, at legal@buxtonhelmsley.com, as promptly as practicable
within the requisite timeframe.

If the Corporation contends that this request is incomplete or is otherwise deficient in any
respect, please immediately notify the Shareholder immediately in writing, setting forth
any facts that the Corporation contends support its position and specifying any additional
information believed to be required. In the absence of such prompt notice, the Shareholder
will assume that the Corporation agrees that this request complies in all respects with the
requirements of the SCBCA. The Shareholder reserves the right to withdraw or modify this
request at any time.

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS













This Demand is being made without prejudice to (i) any previous requests made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the Exchange Act, (ii) any previous demand made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the SCBCA or (iii) any other demands, which may be
made by the Shareholder or its affiliates, from time to time, whether pursuant to the
Exchange Act, the SCBCA, or other applicable federal or state law, or the Corporation's
organizational documents.

[Signature Page Follows]













Very truly yours,

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

A

By: boxsiGN 4K8WWQP1-1RV5Z5PR

Name: Alexander E. Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Cc: Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation













												alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com





						2025-12-19T18:19:43+0000





						Signed with Box Sign by Alexander Parker (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com)


































BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3
New York, N.Y. 10036-2600
+1(212) 561-5540

December 13, 2025

VIA EMAIL AND FEDEX TO BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012
Attention: Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re: Notice of Intent to Solicit Proxies in Support of Director Nominees Pursuant to Rule 14a-
19 Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Dear Mr. Cardile:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (the “Notifying Person”), hereby submits this formal notice
(this “Notice™) to Daily Journal Corporation, a South Carolina corporation (the “Company”),
pursuant to Rule 14a-19 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), of its intent to conduct a solicitation of proxies in support of nominees for election to the
Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) other than the Company’s nominees at the Company’s
2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (including any adjournment or postponement thereof or any
special meeting held in lieu thereof, the “2026 Annual Meeting”’). The term “Notifying Person”
is used herein to mirror the statutory language of Rule 14a-19, which imposes obligations on any
“person”—not “shareholder,” let alone shareholder of record—who intends to solicit proxies in a
contested election. See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(a), (b).

This usage is consistent with Rule 14a-2 under the Exchange Act, which similarly employs
the term “person” and under which non-shareholders—including proxy solicitation firms, financial
advisors, and non-profit organizations—routinely conduct solicitations. The SEC’s consistent use
of “person” rather than “shareholder” throughout the proxy rules reflects a deliberate regulatory
choice.

The Notifying Person is providing this Notice at least sixty (60) calendar days before the
first anniversary of the date of the Company’s 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which was
held on February 19, 2025, in accordance with the timing requirements of Rule 14a-19(b)(1). See
17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(1).

The Notifying Person further represents that (i) it is a beneficial owner of shares of the
Company, to be held as of the record date for the 2026 Annual Meeting (the “Record Date™),
entitling it to vote at the 2026 Annual Meeting and that it intends to appear in person or by proxy
at the 2026 Annual Meeting to nominate the Future Nominees, and (ii) has an impending
registration of certain Company shares with the Company’s transfer agent for holder of record
status.
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I. NOMINEES FOR ELECTION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(b)(2), the Notifying Person hereby provides notice of the names
of the following individuals (collectively, the “Future Nominees’’) for whom the Notifying Person
intends to solicit proxies for election as directors of the Company at the 2026 Annual Meeting:

a) Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello;
b) Alexander Parker; and
c) Weiyee In.

Each Future Nominee has consented to being named in this Notice and, if elected, to
serving as a director of the Company, with such consents attached as Annex A. Biographical
information, qualifications, and other information required by Schedule 14A with respect to each
Future Nominee is attached as Annex B.

The Notifying Person reserves the right to (i) nominate substitute or additional persons as
Future Nominees, (ii) withdraw one or more Future Nominees, or (iii) otherwise modify its slate
of Future Nominees prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting, subject to applicable law and the
Company’s governing documents. See SEC Division of Corporation Finance, Compliance and
Disclosure Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules 14A/14C, Question 139.02 (Aug. 25, 2022)
(permitting inclusion of alternate nominees in Rule 14a-19(b) notice). In accordance with Rule
14a-19(c), the Notifying Person will promptly notify the Company of any changes to its Future
Nominees.

From time to time throughout this Notice, Mr. Parker and the Notifying Person, together
with its, his, and their affiliates, collectively, may be referred to as “Buxton” or the “Buxton
Parties,” and the Buxton Parties, together with the Future Nominees, may be referred to as the

“Participants.”

Each of the Future Nominees has entered into a nomination agreement (collectively, the
“Future Nominee Agreements”) with the Notifying Person substantially in the form attached as
Annex C, whereby such Future Nominees agreed, upon the election of the Notifying Person, to
become members of a slate of nominees and stand for election as directors of the Company in
connection with a proxy solicitation which may be conducted in respect of the 2026 Annual
Meeting. Pursuant to the Future Nominee Agreements, the Notifying Person has agreed to pay the
costs of soliciting proxies in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting, and to defend and
indemnify the Future Nominees against, and with respect to, any losses that may be incurred by
the Future Nominees in the event they become a party to litigation based on their nomination as
candidates for election to the Board and the solicitation of proxies in support of their election. The
foregoing summary of the Future Nominee Agreements does not purport to be complete and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the form of the Future Nominee Agreement,
which is attached hereto as Annex C and is incorporated by reference herein.
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If elected or appointed, each of the Future Nominees would be considered an independent
director of the Company under each of (i) Rule 5605(a) of NASDAQ’s Listing Rules and (ii)
paragraph (a)(1) of Item 407 of Regulation S-K.

The Notifying Person hereby states with respect to each Future Nominee, as applicable, to
the knowledge of the Notifying Person, other than as described in this Notice (including the
Annexes hereto):

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

none of the Participants is, or was within the past year, a party to any contract,
arrangement, or understanding with any person with respect to any securities of the
Company, including, but not limited to, joint ventures, loan or option arrangements,
puts or calls, guarantees against loss, or guarantees of profit, division of losses, or
profits, or the giving or withholding of proxies;

(a) none of the Participants has any position or office with the Company, nor does
any Participant have any arrangement or understanding with any other person
pursuant to which such person was selected to be a nominee; (b) none of the
Participants or any of their “associates” (which term, for purposes of this Notice,
shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Rule 14a-1 of Regulation 14A of the
Exchange Act) is a party to any arrangement or understanding with any person
with respect to (1) any future employment by the Company or its affiliates or (2)
any future transactions to which the Company or any of its affiliates will or may be
a party; (c) there were no transactions since the beginning of the Company’s last
fiscal year nor are there any currently proposed involving any Participant or any of
their associates, in which the Company was or is to be a participant and in which
such Participant or any of their associates or their respective immediate family
members or any persons sharing their respective households, as applicable, have or
will have a direct or indirect material interest that would require disclosure under
Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(“Regulation S-K”); (d) there are no material proceedings to which any Participant
or any of their associates is a party adverse to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or has a material interest adverse to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and (e)
none of the Participants or any of their associates has a substantial interest, direct
or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise in any matter to be acted on at the
2026 Annual Meeting or in the Proxy Solicitation;

none of the entities or organizations referred to in Annex B with which any Future
Nominee has been involved during the past five years is a parent, subsidiary, or
other affiliate of the Company;

none of the Participants or any of their associates has received any fees earned or
paid in cash, stock awards, option awards, non-equity incentive plan compensation,
changes in pension value or nonqualified deferred compensation earnings or any
other compensation from the Company during the Company’s last completed fiscal
year, or is subject to any other compensation arrangement described in Item 402 of
Regulation S-K;

(a) there are no relationships involving any Participant or any of their associates
that would have required disclosure under Item 407(e)(4) of Regulation S-K had
any such person been a director of the Company; (b) there are no events required
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

to be disclosed under Item 401(f) of Regulation S-K that have occurred during the
past ten years and that are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any
Participant; (c) there are no “family relationships” (as defined in Item 401(d) of
Regulation S-K) between any Participant and any director or executive officer of
the Company or person known to the Notifying Person to be nominated by the
Company to become a director or executive officer; and (d) no Participant has been
convicted in a criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations or similar
misdemeanors) in the past ten years;

there are no direct or indirect compensation or other material monetary agreements,
arrangements, and understandings during the past three years, or any other material
relationships, between or among the Notifying Person or others acting in concert
therewith, on the one hand, and each Future Nominee, and his or her respective
affiliates and associates, or others acting in concert therewith, on the other hand;
no part of the purchase price or market value of the securities of the Company
owned by any of the Participants is represented by funds borrowed or otherwise
obtained for the purpose of acquiring or holding such securities;

no Participants directly or indirectly beneficially own any derivative instruments or
any other direct or indirect opportunity to profit, or share in any profit derived, from
any increase or decrease in the value of shares of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties have given any proxy
(other than a revocable proxy given in response to a solicitation made pursuant to
Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act by way of a solicitation statement filed on
Schedule 14A), contract, arrangement, understanding or relationship pursuant to
which any of the foregoing persons has a right to vote any shares of the Company;
neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties holds any short interest
in any security of the Company (including, directly or indirectly, through any
contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, has the
opportunity to profit, or share in any profit derived, from any decrease in the value
of the subject security);

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties beneficially own,
directly or indirectly, any rights to dividends on the shares of the Company that are
separated or separable from the underlying shares of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties has any significant
equity interests or any derivative interests or short interests in any principal
competitor of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties owns, directly or
indirectly, any proportionate interest in shares of the Company or derivative
instruments by a general or limited partnership in which any of the foregoing
persons is a general partner or, directly or indirectly, beneficially owns an interest
in a general partner;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties are entitled to any
performance-related fees (other than an asset-based fee) based on any increase or
decrease in the value of the shares of the Company or derivative instruments,
including any such interest held by members of any of the foregoing persons’
immediate family sharing the same household;
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(xv) there are no agreements, arrangements, or understandings (written or oral) between
or among any Participants or any other person or persons (including their names)
pursuant to which the nomination or nominations or proposed removal or removals,
as applicable, are to be made by such Participant; and

(xvi) neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties have any interest in the
nominations or election of the Future Nominees except as otherwise described in
this Notice, and neither of the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties
believe it or they may derive any other benefits from the outcome of the
nominations of the Future Nominees except as described in this Notice, nor do any
of the foregoing have any other agreements with any other person in connection
with the nominations of the Future Nominees.

The Notifying Person represents, on behalf of itself and the other Participants, that this
Notice contains all of the information that would be required to be affirmatively disclosed as of
the date hereof by it and the other Participants under Rule 14a-101 of the Exchange Act (including
pursuant to the Company’s Amended and Restated Bylaws, as exhibited in the Company’s Form
10-K filing on December 31, 2024 (the “Bylaws™)), and that no other information is required to be
disclosed thereunder with respect to any Participant, to the best of its knowledge.

Mr. Parker serves as: (a) the Managing Partner of Buxton Helmsley Fund GP, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“BHGP”); (b) Managing Member of Buxton Helmsley Fund
Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“BHM”); (c) a director and Chief
Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., a New York corporation (“BHUSA”); and (d)
majority shareholder, Chairman, and Chief Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley, Inc., a Nevada
corporation (“BHI). As such, Mr. Parker has a proportionate interest in the shares of common
stock in the Company held by the Notifying Person and its affiliates. As equity owners in Buxton
Helmsley, Inc., Mr. Parker and Ms. Petrozzello have an economic interest in the management fees
received by BHM that are based on the level of assets managed, and in the performance-based fees
and allocations received by BHGP, which are based on investment performance. The foregoing
applies to all securities beneficially owned by BHGP. The performance-based fees or allocations
vary by vehicle but presently do not vary from 30% of realized and unrealized capital appreciation
above a benchmark or an annual performance fee of 8% above a hurdle. Further information
concerning such fees is available in the Notifying Person’s Form ADYV, filed with the SEC on
March 26, 2025, and incorporated by reference herein.

I1. STATEMENT OF INTENT TO SOLICIT PROXIES

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(a)(3) and Rule 14a-19(b)(3), the Notifying Person hereby states
its intent to solicit the holders of shares representing at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the

voting power of shares entitled to vote on the election of directors at the 2026 Annual Meeting in
support of the Future Nominees. See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(a)(3); 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(3).

The Notifying Person intends to satisfy this solicitation requirement through, among other
methods, the delivery of a definitive proxy statement or notice of internet availability of proxy
materials to holders of shares representing at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the voting power
of shares entitled to vote on the election of directors, in accordance with Rules 14a-3 and 14a-16
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under the Exchange Act. See Exchange Act Release No. 34-93596, at 65-66 (Nov. 17, 2021)
(“Adopting Release”) (confirming that “notice and access” method satisfies solicitation
requirement).

It is anticipated that the Notifying Person and the Future Nominees will participate in the
solicitation of proxies in support of the Future Nominees (the “Proxy Solicitation”). Such persons
will receive no additional consideration if they assist in the solicitation of proxies. It is anticipated
that proxies will be solicited by mail, courier services, Internet advertising, e-mail, telephone,
facsimile, and/or in person.

The Notifying Person may seek reimbursement from the Company for expenses associated
with the Proxy Solicitation if any of the Future Nominees are elected, and do not intend to seek
shareholder approval of such reimbursement. The Notifying Person’s current best estimate is that
the total expenses that the Notifying Person or any other participants will incur in furtherance of,
or in connection with, the Proxy Solicitation will be approximately $1,500,000.

III. SEPARATE COMPLIANCE WITH COMPANY BYLAWS

The Notifying Person acknowledges that this Notice is provided pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Exchange Act and is separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any notice of director
nominations required under Article I1I, Section 3 of the Bylaws.

Article III, Section 3 of the Bylaws provides, in relevant part:

“All nominations for the board of directors must be made in writing and
received by the secretary of the corporation no less than 10 days prior to
the date of the shareholders’ meeting at which one or more directors are to
be elected.”

See Amended and Restated Bylaws of Daily Journal Corporation, Art. III § 3.

This Notice constitutes notice of the Notifying Person’s intent to conduct a proxy
solicitation pursuant to Rule 14a-19; it does not constitute, and shall not be construed as, a formal
nomination of directors under the Company’s Bylaws. The Notifying Person (or an affiliated
entity that establishes record ownership of the Company’s common stock) intends to deliver a
separate written notice of director nominations to the Company’s Secretary in compliance with the
Bylaws’ ten (10)-day advance notice requirement prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting (the “Bylaw
Nomination Notice). Such Bylaw Nomination Notice will contain all information required by
the Bylaws and applicable law, will be delivered by a shareholder of record of the Company, and
will be received by the Secretary in accordance with the timing requirements specified in Article
III, Section 3 of the Bylaws.

The Notifying Person notes that the Rule 14a-19 notice requirement and the Bylaw
nomination requirement serve different purposes and operate independently:
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(a) Rule 14a-19 Notice (This Letter): This Notice provides the Company with
advance notice of the Notifying Person’s intent to conduct a proxy solicitation using
a universal proxy card, thereby enabling the Company to include the Future
Nominees on its universal proxy card in accordance with Rule 14a-19(e). As noted
above, Rule 14a-19 uses the term “person”—not “shareholder”—and imposes no
ownership requirement for delivery of this Notice. See Adopting Release at 29-30,
37-40.

(b) Bylaw Nomination Notice (To Be Delivered Separately): The
forthcoming Bylaw Nomination Notice will satisfy the procedural requirements
under the Company’s governing documents for the Future Nominees to be “duly
nominated” and eligible for election at the 2026 Annual Meeting. Although the
Company’s Bylaws do not explicitly require the nominating party to be a
shareholder of record, the Notifying Person (or an affiliated entity) intends to
establish record ownership of the Company’s common stock prior to delivering the
Bylaw Nomination Notice, which will be delivered no less than ten (10) days prior
to the 2026 Annual Meeting in accordance with Article III, Section 3 of the Bylaws.
See SEC Division of Corporation Finance, Compliance and Disclosure
Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules 14A/14C, Question 139.04 (Dec. 6,
2022) (“Only duly nominated candidates are required to be included on a universal
proxy card.”).

For the avoidance of doubt, record holder status is not required under federal proxy rules
for purposes of delivering this Rule 14a-19 Notice. Nevertheless, the Notifying Person (or an
affiliated entity) intends to establish record ownership of the Company’s common stock prior to
delivering the Bylaw Nomination Notice to eliminate any procedural objection the Company might
raise under state law or its governing documents.

The Notifying Person represents that it is currently in the process of registering certain
shares directly with the Company’s transfer agent to establish record holder status in advance of
delivering the Bylaw Nomination Notice.

The SEC has expressly confirmed that a dissident shareholder’s obligation to comply with
Rule 14a-19 is “in addition to” its obligation to comply with any advance notice provisions in a
company’s governing documents. See Adopting Release at 42; see also SEC Division of
Corporation Finance, Compliance and Disclosure Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules
14A/14C, Question 139.06 (Aug. 25, 2022) (“Rule 14a-19(b)(1) establishes a minimum, not a
maximum, notice period for a dissident shareholder to inform the registrant of its intent to present
its own director nominees.”).

For the avoidance of doubt, the notice deadline for this Rule 14a-19 Notice is governed
exclusively by Rule 14a-19(b)(1), which requires notice “no later than 60 calendar days prior to
the anniversary date of the meeting.” 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(1). The Notifying Person is aware
that the Company’s proxy statement for the 2025 Annual Meeting stated that “[s]hareholders
intending to present proposals from the floor of the 2026 Annual Meeting in compliance with Rule
14a-4 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, must notify the Company of such
intentions before November 24, 2025.” That deadline is inapplicable to this Notice. Rule 14a-4
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governs the circumstances under which a company’s proxy may confer discretionary voting
authority on matters not specifically set forth in the proxy statement—it has no bearing on the
notice requirements for a contested director election under Rule 14a-19. Compare 17 C.F.R. §
240.14a-4(c) (discretionary authority for “matters which the persons making the solicitation do not
know... are to be presented”), with 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19 (universal proxy requirements for
contested director elections). These are separate regulatory provisions serving entirely distinct
purposes.

IV.  REQUEST FOR COMPANY NOMINEE INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(d), the Notifying Person hereby requests that the Company
provide the names of the Company’s nominees for director at the 2026 Annual Meeting no later
than fifty (50) calendar days before the first anniversary of the 2025 Annual Meeting. See 17
C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(d). Based on the 2025 Annual Meeting date of February 19, 2025, the
Company’s response is due no later than December 31, 2025.

V. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The Notifying Person expressly reserves all rights available under applicable law,
including but not limited to the right to:

a) Nominate additional or substitute Future Nominees, or withdraw any Future
Nominee, in accordance with Rule 14a-19(c) and the Company’s Bylaws;

b) Seek judicial relief or other remedies if the Company fails to comply with Rule
14a-19, applicable state law, or the Company’s governing documents;

c) Challenge any determination by the Company that the Future Nominees are not
“duly nominated” or otherwise ineligible for inclusion on a universal proxy card;

d) Engage in additional solicitation activities, communications, and filings as
permitted by law;

e) Take any other action permitted by law to protect the interests of the Company’s
shareholders.

Nothing in this Notice shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. The Notifying Person’s delivery of this Notice does not constitute
an acknowledgment that the Company’s Bylaws or any particular provision thereof is valid or
enforceable as applied to the Notifying Person or the Future Nominees.

The Notifying Person notes that certain prior public statements by or on behalf of the
Company have inaccurately characterized the regulatory registration of Buxton Helmsley USA,
Inc. and the professional licensing of its principals. For the record, Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. is
listed on FINRA’s BrokerCheck system as reporting to regulators (filing its Form ADV far before
the Company falsely claimed otherwise), and its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer holds a
Series 65 license, for which a FINRA examination results letter is attached as Annex D. The
Notifying Person reserves the right to seek injunctive or other equitable relief against the
Company, its directors, officers, or agents in the event of any continued dissemination of such
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misstatements, including, without limitation, an injunction of any proxy solicitation by the
Company that contains or incorporates such materially false or misleading statements.

Additionally, the Notifying Person hereby notifies the Company that any previously
contemplated proposal for contingent compensation based on increases in the Company’s equity
market capitalization has been withdrawn and is no longer under consideration. The Notifying
Person reserves the right to seek injunctive or other equitable relief, including, without limitation,
an injunction of any proxy solicitation by the Company, in the event any person publicly
represents—including in any proxy statement or soliciting materials—that such proposal remains
in effect or under consideration.

The Notifying Person understands that certain information regarding the 2026 Annual
Meeting (including, but not limited to, the record date, voting shares outstanding and the date, time
and place of the 2026 Annual Meeting) and the Company (including, but not limited to, its various
committees and proposal deadlines and the beneficial ownership of the Company’s securities) will
be set forth in the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A to be filed with the SEC in
connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. To the extent the Company believes any such
information is required to be set forth herein, the Notifying Person hereby refers the Company to
such filing. The Notifying Person accepts no responsibility for any information set forth in any
such filing not made by the Notifying Person.

The Annexes are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Notice. Accordingly, all
matters disclosed in any part of this Notice, including the Annexes, shall be deemed disclosed for
all purposes of this Notice. All capitalized terms appearing in one of the Annexes that are not
defined in such Annex shall have the meanings given in the body of this Notice or in another of
the Annexes, as applicable.

The Notifying Person believes that this Notice is sufficient to provide adequate notice and
information to the Company regarding the intended nomination of the Future Nominees and
complies with all valid notification and other requirements applicable to the Company, if any.
Additionally, the Notifying Person represents that, to the best of its knowledge, the information
set forth in this Notice is accurate. If, however, you believe that this Notice for any reason does
not comply with such requirements or is otherwise insufficient or defective in any respect, the
Notifying Person requests that you so notify it by December 18, 2025, by e-mail at
legal@buxtonhelmsley.com, for determination as to whether the matter is most suitable for review
by internal or external counsel. Absent notification from you by the method listed above indicating
otherwise, the Notifying Person will assume that the Company agrees that this Notice complies in
all respects with the requirements of the Bylaws.

Please be advised that neither the delivery of this Notice nor the delivery of additional
information, if any, provided by or on behalf of the Participants or any of their affiliates to the
Company from and after the date hereof shall be deemed to constitute (i) an admission by the
Participants or any of their affiliates, that this Notice is in any way defective, (ii) an admission as
to the legality or enforceability of any particular provision of the Articles of Incorporation, as
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amended (the “Charter”), the Bylaws or any other matter, (iii) a waiver by the Participants or any
of their affiliates of the right to, in any way, contest or challenge the enforceability of any provision
of the Charter, the Bylaws, or of any other matter, or (iv) consent by the Notifying Person, any
other Participant or any affiliate of any of the foregoing to publicly disclose any information
contained herein with respect to such persons. If this Notice shall be deemed for any reason by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be ineffective with respect to the nomination of any of the Future
Nominees, or if any individual Future Nominee is unable or unwilling to serve as a director of the
Company for any reason, this Notice shall continue to be effective with respect to any remaining
Future Nominee. The Notifying Person reserves the right to withdraw or modify this Notice at
any time prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Very truly yours,

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

A2

By: boxsiGN 4K8WWQP1-1RVY2KL9

Name: Alexander Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Cc:  Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
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ANNEX A

Notarized Written Consent of Each Nominee

[See attached]
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CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a director
of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a member of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy statement and
proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and distributed
to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of the foregoing and
other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the Corporation to be voted at
the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or
postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof), and (z) serving as a director of
the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: December 13, 2025

Print Name: Alexander Parker













Docusign Envelope ID: 18160EE0-9CD2-47CD-817B-4E8DBEC6689E

CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a director
of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a member of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy statement and
proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and distributed
to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of the foregoing and
other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the Corporation to be voted at
the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or
postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof), and (z) serving as a director of
the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: November 2° 2025

Kumbidmai Bwerinafa—Petromslls

Print Name: Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
State Of New Jersey )
)ss.:
County of  Camden )

On the ?° day of November in the year 2025, before me, Nicolette Hall

the undersigned notary public, personally appeared Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello  known
to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument

and acknowledged that he/she/they executed the same for the purposes contained therein.

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand.

6 Nicolette Hall
/{/L@@('z{tz 'Q) h@f) Notary Public, State of New Jersey
Notary Public ‘ My Commission Expires 01/17/2027
/I'u"’:i(f".:)./l'{f‘; Shop 11/25/2025 50182507

Completed via remote online notarization using 2 way audio/video technology













CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a
director of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a
member of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy
statement and proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
and distributed to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton
Helmsley USA, Inc. and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of
the foregoing and other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation
pursuant to Rule 14a-19 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in
connection with the solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the
Corporation to be voted at the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation
(including any adjournment or postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof),
and (z) serving as a director of the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: December 9, 2025

Print Name: Weiyee IN z[/ . J?L

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Florida
State of XEWX6¥K )
Marion )ss.:
CounfFbT e ¥ork )
ecember ‘
On the %" day of Nowemksr in the year 2025, before me, Lydia Morales ,
the undersigned notary public, personally appeared Weiyee In , known

to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged that he/she/they executed the same for the purposes contained
therein.

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand.

Online Notary
gaary Public

LYDIA MORALES
Notary Public - State of Florida

Commission # HH521893

Expires on May 4, 2028

HH521893 05/04/2028

Notarized remotely online using communication technology via Proof.
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ANNEX B

Information about the Nominees

Name: Alexander E. Parker

Age: 29

Business Address: 1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3, N.Y. 10036
Residence Address: 1 Columbus Place, Apt. S32G, New York, N.Y. 10019
Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Alexander Parker is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley, an
alternative asset manager recognized globally for its expertise in investor advocacy and active
corporate engagement. Mr. Parker founded Buxton Helmsley in 2014. Mr. Parker has established
a distinguished track record of identifying accounting irregularities and securities law violations
at public companies, with his research uncovering over $20 billion in corporate accounting
misstatements since 2014.

Under Mr. Parker’s leadership, Buxton Helmsley has achieved recognition as a top-
performing activist investor, ranking in the top 15% of global activist investors by engagement
volume, according to Bloomberg. Mr. Parker’s expertise in forensic analysis and corporate
governance initiatives has resulted in significant shareholder value creation across campaigns
while, more importantly, exposing accounting misstatements and restoring transparency for
investors at companies engaged in financial reporting violations and other misconduct. Notable
engagements include his work at Mallinckrodt plc (formerly, NYSE: MNK), where Buxton
Helmsley’s identification of accounting irregularities preceded enforcement actions by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, and Fossil Group, Inc. (NASDAQ: FOSL), where Buxton
Helmsley successfully secured board representation in 2024, followed by stock appreciation
exceeding 270% within eighteen months thereafter.

Mr. Parker practices what he terms “defensive activism,” a disciplined investment
approach that combines technical forensic analysis with traditional activist strategies to identify
and remediate corporate governance failures and financial reporting violations, and, where
possible, engage in positive corporate transformations. His firm specializes in detecting violations
of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and failures in securities law compliance.
This technical expertise has enabled Mr. Parker to successfully engage with boards of directors,
management teams, and regulatory authorities to drive operational improvements and financial
transparency.

Mr. Parker has built a reputation as an effective whistleblower, with securities regulators
subsequently charging violations at entities he identified. His investor engagement campaigns
have gained recognition in prestigious publications, including 7he Harvard Law School Forum on
Corporate Governance. Mr. Parker’s work has been featured in leading financial publications,
including The Wall Street Journal, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com.
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Mr. Parker serves as a FINRA-appointed arbitrator, a position that reflects his expertise in
securities regulation and dispute resolution. As a licensed investment professional through the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), he brings additional credibility and regulatory
insight to his investment and governance activities. His appointment as a FINRA arbitrator
demonstrates the securities industry’s self-regulatory organization’s recognition of his judgment,
integrity, and ability to understand complex matters.

Mr. Parker has built institutional relationships with prominent investment firms and has
successfully raised capital from sophisticated investors. Under his leadership, Buxton Helmsley
has transitioned from a retail-focused operation to an institutionally-backed activist platform,
while maintaining its commitment to forensic accounting excellence and shareholder advocacy.

Mr. Parker’s expertise encompasses complex areas of financial reporting, including
software development cost accounting (ASC 985-20), contingent loss recognition (ASC 450-20),
asset value recognition (including ASC 350 and 360), other technical accounting standards, and
securities-related legislation, including Regulation S-X. His firm works closely with forensic
accountants, securities attorneys, and corporate governance specialists to pursue compliance and
accountability at target companies.

Mr. Parker studied finance and economics at Mercy University of New York City, where
he participated in the school’s honors business program.

Mr. Parker’s qualifications to serve as a director include his deep expertise in financial
reporting, corporate governance, and regulatory compliance, his proven track record of identifying
and remediating accounting-related uncertainty that has (as in the case of Fossil) resulted in
significant shareholder value creation, his sophisticated understanding of complex technical
accounting standards and securities law requirements, his FINRA arbitrator appointment reflecting
industry recognition of his judgment and expertise, and his demonstrated ability to work
constructively with boards of directors and management teams to implement strategic initiatives
while maintaining the highest standards of financial transparency and corporate governance. His
forensic expertise, regulatory credentials, and activist investment experience provide unique
perspectives on financial oversight, risk management, and strategic planning that would benefit
any board of directors committed to shareholder value creation and regulatory compliance.
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Name: Weiyee In

Age: 60

Business Address: 1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3, N.Y. 10036
Residence Address: 45 Tudor City Place, New York, N.Y. 10017
Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Weiyee In was a ranked Wall Street tech analyst, three-time head of equity research,
seasoned executive, strategic advisor, digital transformation specialist, and angel investor with
over three decades of experience leading technology and strategy in the global financial ecosystem,
specializing in digital transformation, FinTech, Machine Learning, and regulatory technology
(RegTech). His expertise spans capital markets, digital assets, TMT (Telecoms, Media, and
Technology), software development strategy, and Al/Machine Learning governance. He has a
strong record of success in building and mentoring cross-border teams, driving innovation, and
serving on key working groups for major industry bodies, including IBM and DTCC, on Al
governance and security. He has been recognized as an IBM Champion multiple times and serves
on the IBM Financial Services Council. He is a regular speaker at NY Techweek Fintech and
RegTech events, as well as other industry events.

Career History (Selected Roles):

CIO - Protego Trust/ National Digital Trust, New York City Metropolitan Area
Oct 2020 — Present (5 years, 2 months)

Chief Information Officer for a chartered financial institution designed to securely and
efficiently serve institutional investors’ digital asset needs. This regulated bank offers
comprehensive digital asset services, including custody, trading, lending, and issuance, within a
vertically integrated framework. He was instrumental in the strategic design and build of the bank
by collaborating with financial industry veterans and early innovators in digital assets, tech, and
security.

Angel Investor / CIO - Fortress Payments, United States
Feb 2024 — Present (1 year, 10 months)

Angel Investor and Chief Information Officer (CIO) for a global fintech providing issuing,
acquiring, and processing services. He is responsible for unlocking the future of payments through
biometric technology and payment processing orchestration. His core focus is on Biometrics,
Cross-border Transactions, PCI DSS, and Data Governance.

Member Board Of Directors, Techcreate (NYSE: TCGL)
Mar 2025 — Present (8 months)

Served on the Board of Directors for a new digital bank, the first in the USA for
international customers, focused on deploying deposit, payments, and custody solutions.
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Angel Investor & Advisor - Self-Employed (FinTech, Al, Data Analytics)
Apr 2017 — Present (8 years, 8§ months)

Provides strategy and technology advisory services, including deep regulatory advisory
and solutions development for complex global compliance mandates (e.g., MiFID II, GDPR/PII,
FATF/GAFI, BSA), leveraging advanced technologies such as NLP, Al, RPA, and Machine
Learning. This includes developing and deploying a MiFID II solution and implementing Machine
Learning models for RegTech vendors. He advises on financial custody, trust, DLT (Distributed
Ledger Technology) integration, and trade analytics across FinTech, New Media, and Al sectors.

Content Strategy - Bloomberg LP, Greater New York City Area
Jun 2015 — Apr 2017 (1 year, 11 months)

Analyzed regulatory, technology, and industry trends across the global financial ecosystem
(MiFID, MAR, GDPR) to assess impact and strategize Bloomberg’s responses. He collaborated
on innovation, IPR, and the development of best practices for core technologies within Bloomberg
Global Data.

MD, Head of Telecoms, Media and Technology, TMT Strategy, Head of ESG - BNP
Paribas, Global
Oct 2009 — Dec 2013 (4 years, 3 months)

Managing Director and Head of TMT Equity Research. He managed and mentored a
regional team of analysts, publishing thematic reports on megatrends such as “pervasive
computing,” “the impact of unstructured (big) data,” and the “Internet of Everything,” integrating
cross-border, cross-sector, and ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance) issues. He raised
the firm’s visibility by speaking at global industry events.

Global Technologist Equity Research - UBS, Greater New York City Area/Asia
Nov 1999 — Apr 2003 (3 years, 6 months)

Equity Research Strategist on the Global Technology Team. He focused on raising UBS’s
visibility as a tech-savvy bank in Asia, mentoring local analysts, and organizing/speaking at major
industry conferences (e.g., the Wireless Internet Seminar in Tokyo and the Bluetooth Congress).

Qualifications to Serve as a Director:

The nominee’s qualifications include extensive experience in strategic leadership and
technology governance at the intersection of finance and regulation. His key strengths include:

o FinTech and Digital Asset Expertise: Deep, current experience as a CIO in digital
asset banking (Protego Trust) and as an investor/advisor in FinTech, DLT, and cross-border

payments (Fortress Payments).

e Technology and AI/RegTech Governance: Recognized leadership as an IBM
Champion with direct involvement in working groups and councils for Al governance and security,
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and demonstrated practical experience developing and deploying complex regulatory solutions
(including MiFID II) and leveraging ML for regulatory technology.

e Global Strategy, Regulation, and Media: A track record of analyzing and
responding to disruptive regulatory changes (MiFID II, GDPR, FATF) across global financial and
TMT sectors (BNP Paribas, Bloomberg LP), with significant expertise in the Media and
Telecommunications verticals.

e Entrepreneurship and Advisory: 11+ years of experience as an active Angel
Investor and Advisor to startups in Europe, the USA, and Asia, focusing on technology, data
analytics, and robotic automation, providing a critical perspective on emerging market dynamics
and innovation adoption.

Direct Applicability to The Daily Journal Corporation (DJCO):

e Mr. In’s 11+ years of experience as an Investor & Advisor—including eight years
as an Angel Investor & Advisor focused on FinTech, Al, Data Analytics, and New Media—
directly addresses the dual challenge facing The Daily Journal: modernizing its newspaper
business and expertly stewarding its legacy investment portfolio. As a former Head of TMT Equity
Research (BNP Paribas) and Global Technologist Equity Research (UBS), he possesses the deep
analytical expertise required to evaluate the company’s sizable marketable securities portfolio and
provide strategic oversight on high-stakes investment decisions. His background in Capital
Markets and Equity Research is crucial for navigating the scrutiny of activist investors and
ensuring transparent, defensible valuation of financial assets.

e Mr. In’s proven ability to develop, deploy, and execute complex regulatory
technology (RegTech) solutions is uniquely suited to stabilizing and expanding the Journal
Technologies platform. He has direct, practical experience developing MiFID II solutions and
implementing Machine Learning models for RegTech vendors, demonstrating his capacity to drive
both technical compliance and commercial growth in regulatory software. This history aligns
perfectly with the current need to clarify the accounting treatment and future strategic direction of
Journal Technologies. Furthermore, his status as an IBM Champion and heavy involvement in
working groups focused on Al and Quantum security solutions (leveraging skills like Artificial
Intelligence (Al), Data Governance, Digital Transformation, and Risk Management) provides him
with the cutting-edge expertise necessary to transform the platform into a focused growth driver,
guiding the business through essential modernization, maximizing its value, and ensuring its
technical and financial governance meets the highest standards demanded by the market.
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Name: Rumbidzai (“Rumbi”) Petrozzello

Age: 53

Business Address: c/o Seramount, 2445 M St. NW, Washington, D.C.
20037

Residence Address: 6916 Beach Front Road, #2, Arverne, N.Y. 11692

Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Since 2024, Ms. Petrozzello has been a member of the board of directors of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “AICPA”). Since 2021, Ms. Petrozzello has served
as Head of Strategy and Consulting at Seramount, a professional services and research firm
focused on fostering high-performing, inclusive workplaces. In addition, since 2015, she has
served as a Principal at Rock Consulting, LL.C, a forensic accounting firm. From 2015 to 2019,
Ms. Petrozzello served as a Core and Risk Assurance Consultant for PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited (PwC), a global accounting firm recognized as the second-largest
professional services network in the world, where she worked on audits with multiple in-scope
applications, prominent hedge funds, and top law firms. Prior to that, Ms. Petrozzello spent seven
years as a Controller at TGM Associates, a real estate investment company, where she oversaw
the financials of funds holding over $500 million in assets, directed the financial aspect of
investigations and audits for prospective acquisitions, identified potential risks, and conducted
internal investigations of financial discrepancies.

Since 2012, Ms. Petrozzello has been a member of the New York State Society of Certified
Public Accountants (NYSSCPA), including serving as a member of the Litigation Services
Committee. She served as President of NYSSCPA from 2021 to 2022 and as Immediate Past
President from 2022 to 2023. From 2013 to 2020, Ms. Petrozzello served as a Diversity and
Inclusion Advocate for NYSSCPA and, from 2015 to 2016, as President of the Brooklyn/Queens
Chapter of NYSSCPA. She also served as Vice President of the Richmond chapter of the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners from 2015 to 2019. She is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, where she has served on the Forensic and Litigation
Services Committee, as a member of the Fraud Task Force, and as a member of the National
Accreditation Commission.

Ms. Petrozzello holds a B.A. from Mount Holyoke College and a BCompt from the
University of South Africa. She is a certified public accountant, a certified financial forensics
professional, and a certified fraud examiner.

Ms. Petrozzello’s qualifications to serve as a director include her deep knowledge and
experience in forensic accounting practices and techniques, evaluating and improving workplace
culture, and examining financials for a broad range of clientele, including Fortune 500 companies
and technology companies such as the Daily Journal Corporation. She has also spearheaded
diversity, equity, and inclusion efforts in the accounting industry and in workplaces more
generally.
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ANNEX C

Form of Nominee Agreement

NOMINATION AGREEMENT

This Nomination Agreement (the “Agreement”) is by and between Buxton Helmsley USA,
Inc. (“Buxton Helmsley,” “we” or “us”) and [*] (“you”).

You agree that you are willing, should we so elect, to become a member of a slate of
nominees (the “Slate”) of a Buxton Helmsley affiliate (the “Nominating Party”), which
nominees shall stand for election or appointment as directors of Daily Journal Corporation,
a South Carolina corporation (the “Corporation”), in connection with a campaign (the
“Campaign”) or a proxy solicitation (the “Proxy Solicitation™) that we may conduct in
respect of the Corporation, whether in connection with the 2026 annual meeting of
stockholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or postponement thereof or
any special meeting held in lieu thereof, the “Annual Meeting”) or otherwise. You further
agree to serve as a director of the Corporation if so elected or appointed. We agree to pay
the costs of the Proxy Solicitation and agree to reimburse you for any documented and
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses you incur in connection with the Campaign or the Proxy
Solicitation that are approved in writing in advance by us, including reasonable expenses
for travel requested by us in connection therewith.

Buxton Helmsley agrees on behalf of the Nominating Party that, so long as you agree to
inclusion on the Slate and comply with the reasonable requests from Buxton Helmsley in
such capacity, Buxton Helmsley will defend, indemnify and hold you harmless from and
against any and all losses, claims, damages, penalties, judgments, awards, settlements,
liabilities, costs, expenses and disbursements (including, without limitation, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, costs, expenses and disbursements) incurred by you in the event that you
become a party, to any civil, criminal, administrative or arbitrative action, suit or
proceeding, (i) relating to your role as a nominee for director of the Corporation on the
Slate, or (ii) otherwise arising from or in connection with or relating to the Campaign or
the Proxy Solicitation. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, Buxton Helmsley
is not indemnifying you for any action taken by you or on your behalf that occurs prior to
the date hereof or subsequent to the conclusion of the Proxy Solicitation or such earlier
time as you are no longer a nominee on the Slate or for any claims made against you in
your capacity as a director of the Corporation or actions taken by you as a director of the
Corporation, if you are elected or appointed. Nothing herein shall be construed to provide
you with indemnification (i) if you violate any provision of state or federal law or commit
any criminal actions; (ii) if you acted in a manner that constitutes fraud, gross negligence,
bad faith or willful misconduct; or (ii1) you breach the terms of this Agreement. You shall
promptly notify Buxton Helmsley in writing in the event of any third-party claims actually
made against you or known by you to be threatened (along with any supporting documents
in your possession) if you intend to seek indemnification hereunder in respect of such
claims. In addition, upon your delivery of notice with respect to any such claim, Buxton
Helmsley, in its sole discretion, shall be entitled to assume control of the defense of such
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claim with counsel chosen by Buxton Helmsley. Buxton Helmsley shall not be responsible
for any settlement of any claim against you covered by this indemnity without its prior
written consent. However, Buxton Helmsley may not enter into any settlement of any such
claim without your consent unless such settlement includes (i) no admission of liability or
guilt by you, and (ii) an unconditional release of you from any and all liability or obligation
in respect of such claim.

You understand that it may be difficult, if not impossible, to replace a nominee who, such
as yourself, has agreed to be included on the Slate and, if elected or appointed, to serve as
a director of the Corporation if such nominee later changes his or her mind and determines
not to be included on the Slate or, if elected or appointed, to serve as a director of the
Corporation. Accordingly, Buxton Helmsley is relying upon your agreement to serve on
the Slate and, if elected or appointed, as a director of the Corporation. In that regard, you
are being supplied with a written representation and agreement required by the Corporation
for members of the Slate at the Annual Meeting (the “Company Representation”), in which
you will provide Buxton Helmsley with information necessary for the Nominating Party to
make appropriate disclosure to the Corporation and to use in creating the proxy solicitation
materials to be sent to stockholders of the Corporation and filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) in connection with the Campaign and Proxy
Solicitation (collectively, the “Nominee Information”).

You agree that (i) upon request you will promptly complete, sign and return the Company
Representation and provide any other Nominee Information reasonably requested by
Buxton Helmsley, (ii) your Nominee Information will be true, complete and correct in all
respects, (ii1) you will promptly inform us in writing of any changes to the Nominee
Information, and (iv) you will provide any additional information or instruments related to
the Campaign and Proxy Solicitation as may be reasonably requested by Buxton Helmsley.
In addition, you agree that you will execute and return a separate instrument confirming
that you consent to being named in any proxy statement and proxy card and nominated for
election or appointment as a director of the Corporation and, if elected or appointed,
consent to serving as a director of the Corporation. Upon being notified that you have been
chosen, Buxton Helmsley and the Nominating Party may forward your consent and
completed Company Representation (or summaries thereof) and any other Nominee
Information, to the Corporation. Buxton Helmsley and the Nominating Party may at any
time, in our and their discretion, disclose the information contained therein, as well as the
existence and contents of this Agreement. Furthermore, you understand that Buxton
Helmsley may elect, at its expense, to conduct a background and reference check on you,
and you agree to complete and execute any necessary authorization forms or other
documents required in connection therewith. You also agree to reasonably consult with us
prior to taking any actions that are likely to interfere with your obligations hereunder or
result in an adverse recommendation from Institutional Shareholder Services, Inc. or Glass,
Lewis & Co.

You further agree that (i) you will treat confidentially and not disclose to any party any

information relating to the Campaign, the Proxy Solicitation, or Buxton Helmsley or its
affiliates; (ii) from the date hereof until the Annual Meeting, neither you nor your
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10.

11.

immediate family will purchase or sell shares in the Corporation without the written
permission of Buxton Helmsley and that you will comply with certain compliance policies
and procedures of Buxton Helmsley as communicated to you from time to time; (iii) you
will not issue, publish or otherwise make any public statement or any other form of public
communication relating to the Corporation, the Campaign or the Proxy Solicitation without
the prior written approval of Buxton Helmsley; and (iv) you will not agree to serve, or
agree to be nominated to stand for election, by the Corporation or any other stockholder of
the Corporation (other than Buxton Helmsley and its affiliates), as a director of the
Corporation without the prior written approval of Buxton Helmsley.

From the date hereof until the Annual Meeting, you may only invest in securities of the
Corporation with the prior approval of Buxton Helmsley. With respect to any purchases
by you or your immediate family of securities of the Corporation approved by Buxton
Helmsley, (i) you agree to consult with Buxton Helmsley regarding such purchases and
provide necessary information following such purchases so that we may comply with any
applicable disclosure or other obligations which may result from such investment and (ii)
Buxton Helmsley or its affiliates shall prepare and complete any required disclosures
including all regulatory filings related thereto at no cost to you. With respect to any
purchases made pursuant to this paragraph, you agree not to dispose of any such securities
prior to the termination of this Agreement.

Each of us recognizes that should you be elected or appointed to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation (the “Board”) all of your activities and decisions as a director will be
governed by applicable law and subject to your fiduciary duties, as applicable, to the
Corporation and to the stockholders of the Corporation and, as a result, that there is, and
can be, no agreement between you and Buxton Helmsley that governs the decisions which
you will make as a director of the Corporation.

This Agreement shall automatically terminate on the earliest to occur of (i) the conclusion
of the Annual Meeting (including the certification of the results thereof), (ii) your election
or appointment to the Board, (iii) the termination of the Campaign and the Proxy
Solicitation or (iv) our election to not include you as part of the Slate, provided, however,
that the applicable indemnification provisions in the third paragraph, the confidentiality
obligations in the sixth paragraph, and the eighth through twelfth paragraphs of this
Agreement shall survive such termination.

This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between Buxton Helmsley and you as to
the subject matter contained herein, and cannot be amended, modified, or terminated except
by a writing executed by Buxton Helmsley and you.

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York, without giving
effect to principles of conflicts of laws. Each party to this letter hereby irrevocably agrees
that any legal action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this letter shall exclusively
be brought in a New York State or Federal court located in New York County in the State
of New York and hereby expressly submits to the personal jurisdiction and venue of such
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courts for the purposes thereof, and expressly waives any claim of improper venue and any
claim that such courts are an inconvenient forum.

12. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, which together shall
constitute a single agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]

Page 22 of 24













Agreed to as of the date both parties have signed:

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

By:

Name: Alexander E. Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date:

NOMINEE:

Name: [°]
Date:
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ANNEX D

FINRA Exam Results Letter

[See attached]
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Parker, Alexander E.

From: Parker, Alexander E.

Sent: Thursday, December 18, 2025 9:25 PM
To: ‘Rasool'

Cc: jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: RE:

Rasool,

Thank you for your response. It clarifies a great deal.

You write that the Section 16 violations involve "late Section 16 filings for the first-ever shares that vested under the
directors' plan."

This reflects a fundamental misunderstanding of Form 3 requirements. Form 3 is due within 10 days of becoming a
director, regardless of whether any shares have vested or whether the director owns any securities at all. The obligation
is triggered by becoming a director, not by acquiring shares. Many times, directors begin by filing a Form 3 showing zero
beneficial ownership. The form is called an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership" because it establishes a baseline
at the time of becoming an insider, before possible vesting of compensation.

You joined the Board in June 2024. Your Form 3 was due within 10 days of that date. Itis now 18 months later. No Form
3 has ever been filed.

You are a member of the Audit Committee—the committee responsible for overseeing the Company's compliance with
SEC reporting obligations. You do not understand the most basic of those obligations. And you have now put that
misunderstanding and lack of care in writing.

You also describe Section 16 compliance as "the flimsiest of technicalities." This is a remarkable statement from an Audit
Committee member. Section 16 is not a technicality. It is a federal securities law enacted by Congress to ensure
transparency in the ownership interests of corporate insiders. The fact that you regard compliance with federal
securities laws as a trivial matter—while sitting on the committee responsible for such compliance—tells shareholders
everything they need to know about the current Board's approach to governance.

You describe the CFQO's departure as a "thoughtful transition rather than anything nefarious." Thoughtful transitions do
not require separation agreements with general releases of claims and non-disparagement obligations. Perhaps you
have not reviewed the terms of Ms. To's departure. Or perhaps you have, and this is simply the message you have been
instructed to deliver.

You state that our proxy contest "will fail, as few shareholders will vote for you." | would remind you that 40% of
shareholders voted against the incumbent directors at the last annual meeting—before the CFO's departure, before the
Section 16 violations were exposed, and before shareholders learned that the entire Audit Committee cannot comply
with a two-page beneficial ownership form (not to mention, the GAAP and Regulation S-X issues).

As for your request that Ms. Petrozzello respond in my place: No. | do not take direction from you. But since you have
expressed curiosity about why Ms. Petrozzello is standing behind this, | am happy to clarify. It is because she sees
companies, just like the Daily Journal, consistently violating their obligations under accounting standards and securities
laws, and no one says anything about it. Ms. Petrozzello is a CPA and Certified Fraud Examiner who serves on the Board
of Directors of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants—the organization that develops and grades the CPA
examination. She is, in other words, among the professionals who determine whether accountants are qualified to
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practice. | am confident her understanding of ASC 985-20 exceeds that of whoever has been advising your Board. | am
sure you have been provided with the authoritative AICPA guidance we previously delivered, which clearly states that the
Daily Journal's position on ASC 985-20 is incorrect. That guidance includes a diagram of the activities in an agile
development sprint that are subject to capitalization—activities the Daily Journal has ignored entirely. The result is to
grossly mislead shareholders as to whether capital is being expended or invested in the business. These are two very
different things, which any member of an audit committee should understand.

This correspondence will be part of the record.

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

T +1(212) 951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Rasool <rasool.rayani@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, December 18, 2025 8:57 PM

To: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>
Subject:

Caution: This is an external email from outside the Buxton Helmsley network. Please take care when clicking links or
opening attachments. If you question or doubt, contact the Buxton Helmsley Compliance Department.

Alexander,

In most circumstances, | would consider engaging with a solicitation like this to understand if there has been a
misunderstanding that can be navigated and rectified.

In this case, I'm starting from a basis of zero trust. Your behaviour so far is not that of someone acting in good faith. You
have not earned any trust because, whatever your larger strategy or “reasons”

might be, you have consistently mischaracterized matters and sought to make ado of the flimsiest of technicalities to
further your objectives. It strikes me that something like late Section 16 filings for the first-ever shares that vested under
the directors’ plan are very meager sticks to build a campfire where, as you probably know, the remedy is simple
disclosure of the late filings in the proxy statement.

Broadly, | consider your claims meritless and your conduct adverse to the interest of Daily Journal’s shareholders. You
have claimed an "accounting mess," but there is no mess. Your criticism is misplaced and reflects a misunderstanding of
the applicable accounting rules.

The CFQO's departure is part of a thoughtful transition rather than anything nefarious.













You are free to launch a proxy contest, which will fail, as few shareholders will vote for you. Rather than launch a
baseless fight, which will cost your fund significant money that will not be recoverable, you should simply apologize and
move on.

All that said, the conversation that | would consider in the spirit of what you’re suggesting would be one with Ms.
Petrozzello. I'd be curious to get her perspective on the factors at play because I’'m keen to understand the basis for her
being willing to risk her reputation on an endeavor like this.

In fact, | request any reply to this email come from her and not you.

Sincerely,
Rasool

From: Alexander E. Parker <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>
Date: Monday, December 15 2025 at 10:07 PM PST
Subject:

Rasool,

I'll be direct with you. I've been aggressive with the board. I've had my reasons, and | stand by what I've said. But | also
recognize that makes me an unlikely person to reach out looking for dialogue.

I’'m reaching out to you because you weren’t part of any of this. You joined eighteen months ago to add value to a
company, and instead you’ve inherited an accounting mess, a CFO departure, and now a proxy fight. I'm very sure that’s
not what you signed up for.

I’'m not asking you to take my side or go against your colleagues. | know how boards work, and | know that’s not a
realistic ask. But | think there’s a version of this that doesn’t end in a courtroom.

Rather, a version of this where the company gets stronger, shareholders are better served, and nobody has to spend the
next six months in a war of attrition.

If you're willing to have a conversation, I'd welcome it. No preconditions. If you’re not, | understand, and | won’t bother
you again.

Alexander


















BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 19, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO ERIK NAKAMURA (ENAKAMURA@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Mr. Erik Nakamura

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice Regarding Potential
Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350

Dear Mr. Nakamura:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (“Buxton Helmsley” or “we”’) beneficially owns shares of the
Company. We are writing to put you on formal notice—before you possibly certify the Company’s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025—of material accounting deficiencies
that, if left unremediated, may expose you to personal criminal liability under Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

The Company’s financial statements contain two distinct and independent violations of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) and SEC reporting requirements. Each
violation alone would render the financial statements materially misstated. Together, they
demonstrate a fundamental failure of financial reporting at the Company.

VIOLATION ONE: Failure to Capitalize Software Development Costs Under ASC 985-20

As you are aware, the Company’s subsidiary, Journal Technologies, Inc., develops and
licenses software for external use by courts and other justice agencies. The accounting treatment
for costs incurred in developing software for external sale or licensing is governed by Accounting
Standards Codification Topic 985-20 (“ASC 985-20").

Under ASC 985-20, once technological feasibility has been established, software
development costs must be capitalized. These costs are then amortized over the product’s
economic life. The threshold for capitalization is met when the entity has completed all planning,
designing, coding, and testing activities necessary to establish that the product can be produced to
meet its design specifications.

For years, the Company has expensed 100% of its software development costs, capitalizing
nothing. This accounting treatment is incorrect. It results in material understatement of assets,
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material overstatement of expenses, and material misstatement of net income in every period in
which capitalizable development activities occurred.

The Company’s Own Admissions

In its Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, the Company stated, on
page 7:

“As a technology-based company, Journal Technologies’ success depends on the
continued improvement of its products, which is why the costs to update and
upgrade them consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s
expenses.”

The Company has thus admitted that (1) it incurs significant costs to “update”, “upgrade”,
and “improve[]” its software products, and (2) these costs constitute a “significant” portion of the
Company’s expenses. The Company has already admitted how “significant” (i.e., material) this
error has been overs years of quarterly financials.

Development costs related to updating and upgrading existing software products are
precisely the types of costs that are subject to capitalization under ASC 985-20, once technological
feasibility is established. The Company cannot simultaneously claim that these costs are
“significant” while entirely omitting them from its balance sheet. The Company has failed to keep
proper accounting records for years, which means it must reconstruct its historical financial
statements to regain compliance—there is no choice, given such “significant” non-compliance.

The Absurdity of the Company’s Accounting Position

Let us be direct about the logical impossibility of the Company’s historical accounting
treatment.

The only justification under GAAP for expensing 100% of software development costs is
a claim that technological feasibility has never been established—that the Company’s software
products have never progressed beyond the preliminary project stage.

This position is facially absurd.

Journal Technologies currently derives approximately 76% of the Company’s consolidated
revenues from its software products. These are not experimental prototypes or conceptual designs.
These are fully developed, commercially deployed software systems that courts and justice
agencies across the country rely upon every day to manage their operations. You cannot generate
76% of your revenues from a product that is not technologically feasible. The revenue itself is
conclusive proof that technological feasibility was achieved long ago.
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Moreover, the Company’s own language betrays the fallacy of its accounting position. A
product cannot be “upgraded” unless it already exists in a completed, functional state. The very
concept of an “upgrade” presupposes a working product that is being enhanced. You do not
“upgrade” something that has not yet demonstrated it can be produced to meet its design
specifications—you develop it. The fact that the Company describes its development activities as

“updates”, “upgrades”, and “improvements” is an admission that the underlying products have
long since achieved technological feasibility.

To put it simply: if the software works, it is feasible. If it generates revenue, it works. If
the Company is upgrading it, it already exists. The Company cannot have it both ways—claiming
its products are technologically unproven for accounting purposes while simultaneously selling
those same products to customers and generating tens of millions of dollars in annual revenue.

We expect you, as an incoming Chief Financial Officer, to understand the fundamental
difference between an expense and an investment. This distinction is not a technicality—it is the
cornerstone of accrual accounting and the very issue at the heart of the Company’s longstanding
violation of ASC 985-20. Costs that provide future economic benefit are capitalized as assets;
costs that do not are expensed. The Company’s policy of expensing all development costs—
including those incurred to create valuable, revenue-generating software enhancements—treats
investments as if they were worthless the moment they are made. That is not consistent with
GAAP.

VIOLATION TWO: Failure to Separately Report Research and Development Expenses
Under Regulation S-X

Entirely independent of the ASC 985-20 capitalization issue, the Company’s financial
statements violate Regulation S-X by failing to separately disclose research and development
expenses on the face of the income statement.

Regulation S-X § 210.5-03 prescribes the form and content of income statements for SEC
registrants. That section requires registrants to present research and development costs as a
separate line item on the income statement when the category is “material” (as the Company has
admitted, “significant”), distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses. It is a violation
of Regulation S-X to lump material categories of expenses together.

The Company has admitted—in its own words—that its software development costs
“consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s expenses.” The word
“significant” is a term of art in accounting and SEC reporting. By the Company’s own admission,
these costs are material.

Yet the Company does not report research and development expenses as a separate line
item on its consolidated statements of operations. Instead, these material costs are improperly
buried within selling, general and administrative expenses, invisible to investors reviewing the
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face of the financial statements, leaving it impossible for investors to understand how much capital
is being invested into Journal Technologies’ software products. This presentation violates Section
210.5-03 of Regulation S-X.

This is a violation of Regulation S-X that is entirely separate from the ASC 985-20
capitalization issue. Even if the Company’s policy of expensing all development costs were
correct (which it is not), the Company would still be required to separately disclose those expenses
on the income statement—apart from SG&A—when they are material. The Company has
admitted materiality. The Company has failed to make the required disclosure.

To be clear: the Form 10-K must separately report true research and development
expenses—meaning research and development costs that are properly expensed, excluding those
development activities that should be capitalized under ASC 985-20—as a line item distinct from
selling, general and administrative expenses. The Company’s current presentation fails on both
counts: it neither capitalizes what should be capitalized nor separately discloses what should be
disclosed.

Authoritative Guidance

We are enclosing for your reference an article published by the Journal of Accountancy,
the official publication of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA™), titled
“Accounting for external-use software development costs in an agile environment” (March 12,
2018). The article is available at:

https://www.journalofaccountancy.com/news/2018/mar/accounting-for-external-use-software-
development-costs-201818259/

As you are aware, the AICPA is the organization that develops and grades the CPA exam,
determining who is and is not qualified to hold a CPA license. It, therefore, would be a mistake
not to agree with them.

The article explains, with accompanying diagrams (if you should require a visual), how
software development costs should be analyzed under ASC 985-20, including in modern agile
development environments. It states unequivocally: “[c]ompanies using an agile approach to
develop software might conclude inappropriately that technological feasibility has not been met
significantly before the software enhancement is available to customers, resulting in costs being
expensed as incurred rather than being capitalized.”

The article further states that “[d]istinguishing between costs that can be capitalized and
those that cannot be capitalized can complicate the project accounting, reporting, and
documentation steps within each sprint somewhat. But the additional administrative work does not
have to be onerous. In most cases the various tasks and deliverables within each sprint can be
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segmented into broad categories, so that all costs associated with that task can be either expensed
or capitalized.”

The article further explains that “[f]ailure to take this initial action could make it difficult
to correctly separate costs between those that should be capitalized and those that should be
expensed. This could lead to errors in the application of GAAP as well as errors in the amount of

net income or loss entities report.”

That is precisely what has occurred at Journal Technologies, quarter after quarter, year
after year.

For your reference, the AICPA’s diagram depicting which activities within an agile
“sprint” are subject to capitalization:

06

v

Capitalizable
Feature Activities Occur

3 Within “Sprints”
w of Activities

Software Release

Your Certification Obligations

When you sign the Form 10-K, you will be required to provide certifications pursuant to
Section 302 and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Under Section 302, you will
certify that the financial statements “fairly present in all material respects the financial condition
and results of operations” of the Company. Under Section 906 (codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350), you
will certify that the periodic report “fully complies” with SEC reporting requirements and that the
information “fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
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operations” of the Company. There is no mistake that, if you certify financials within the
upcoming Form 10-K that perpetuate these violations involving “significant” financial activities,
that you would be falsely certifying the financial statements to fairly represent, in all “material”
aspects, the financial condition and results of operations.

Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350(c), any person who certifies a statement knowing that the periodic
report does not comport with all the requirements of the statute shall be fined not more than
$1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 10 years, or both. Any person who willfully certifies a
statement knowing it does not comport with all requirements shall be fined not more than
$5,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.

You Now Have No Plausible Deniability

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you of the Company’s failure to comply with
ASC 985-20 and Regulation S-X. You are now on notice that:

1. The Company has a longstanding policy of expensing 100% of software
development costs, in violation of ASC 985-20, requiring restatement of several
periods of historical financial statements;

2. ASC 985-20 requires capitalization of development costs incurred after
technological feasibility is established;

3. The Company has admitted in its own SEC filings that it incurs “significant” costs
to “update”, “upgrade”, and “improve[]” its software products;

4. The Company generates approximately 76% of its consolidated revenues from the
very software products it implicitly claims have never achieved technological
feasibility;

5. No reasonable accountant could conclude that software generating tens of millions
of dollars in annual revenue has not achieved technological feasibility;

6. Separately and independently, the Company fails to report research and
development expenses as a separate line item on its income statement, in violation
of Regulation S-X Section 210.5-03;

7. The Company has admitted these expenses are “significant,” establishing their
materiality for disclosure purposes; and

8. These two violations—the failure to capitalize under ASC 985-20 and the failure
to separately disclose under Regulation S-X—each independently result in material
misstatement of the Company’s financial statements.

If you sign a Form 10-K that continues to entirely omit capitalization of software
development costs—or that fails to separately disclose true research and development expenses
(excluding development activities subject to capitalization) as a line item on the income statement
distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses—you will be certifying financial
statements that you know, based on this notice, do not fairly present the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company and do not fully comply with SEC reporting requirements.
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Such certification, made with knowledge of these deficiencies, would be quite impossible
to argue not constituting a willful false certification under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

Consequences

If you certify a Form 10-K that perpetuates the Company’s noncompliance with ASC 985-
20 and Regulation S-X after receiving this notice, Buxton Helmsley intends to:

1. Refer the matter to the Division of Enforcement of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission, with a recommendation that the Commission investigate
potential violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and other applicable securities laws;

2. File a complaint with the California Board of Accountancy and any other state
licensing authority with jurisdiction over your CPA license, seeking disciplinary
action for your role in willfully certifying materially misstated financial statements,
in violation of accounting standards and federal securities laws; and

3. Pursue all available legal remedies against you personally, including but not limited
to claims for securities fraud and breach of fiduciary duty, following the conclusion
of our proxy contest.

Conclusion

You have an opportunity to do the right thing. You should refuse to certify financial
statements that continue to materially misstate the Company’s assets, expenses, and net income.

The choice is yours. But you cannot later claim ignorance. This letter ensures that any
certification you provide will be made with full knowledge of the issues we have described.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 21, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attn: John B. Frank, Chair of Audit Committee

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice of Additional Audit
Committee Failures; Undisclosed Implicit Waivers of Code of Ethics; Missing Form 8-K
Filings Under Item 5.05

Dear Mr. Frank (and Ms. Conlin):

After further investigation alongside advisors and counsel over the weekend, we write
again to now put you on formal notice—in your capacity as Chair of the Audit Committee of the
Company—of additional failures by the Audit Committee to discharge its oversight
responsibilities. Specifically, the Audit Committee has failed to ensure the Company’s compliance
with Item 5.05 of Form 8-K, which requires disclosure of waivers (including implicit waivers) of
the Company’s Code of Ethics, filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2020 (the "Code of Ethics"). These failures compound the governance
deficiencies we have previously identified and further demonstrate the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

You will note Mr. Rayani is not copied on this new correspondence (only copying Ms.
Conlin and Baker Tilly), as will be clear by the end.

It is worth noting, at the forefront, that we have now discovered that Steven Myhill-Jones—
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer—was also in violation of his Section 16(a) filing
obligations. This means that four out of four current directors failed to comply with basic federal
securities law reporting requirements. One hundred percent of the Board. The CEO’s delinquent
Form 3 was not filed until December 16, 2024—nearly three years late—and, as detailed below,
that filing appears to have been deliberately structured to conceal the full extent of his violations.
The Form 3 falsely reports Mr. Myhill-Jones owned shares before beginning his service at the
Company when, by his own admission (we include a quote below), he had never purchased a single
share of Company stock. The 400 shares reported were granted to him after he became CEO—an
acquisition that should have been reported on a separate Form 4, with a transaction date, which
Mr. Myhill-Jones conspicuously omitted. This is the same executive who backdated the
Company’s July 29, 2025, Form 8-K to July 26, 2025, to conceal the Board’s failure to timely
disclose its accounting investigation into the issues raised by us. The pattern is unmistakable:
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when faced with disclosure failures, this CEO’s instinct is not to remedy them but to falsify filings
to cover them up.

Given no response yet to our December 18, 2025, letter informing of our possible referral
of the violations of federal law you are continuing to stand behind, we are increasingly believing
that either you or Ms. Conlin must believe (there must be a majority consensus among Audit
Committee members) that, as Mr. Rayani admitted belief himself, federal securities laws are
“flimsy technicalities”. We stand firm on our deadline of hearing from you by tomorrow,
December 22, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time, or we intend to proceed with the contemplated
California State Bar complaint filing, which will be publicly filed with a copy to the Chevron
fiduciaries and shareholders who are then also likely to be harmed by your then-apparent disdain
for federal securities laws. We are certain Beachbody Company Inc.’s remaining Audit Committee
members (where Ms. Conlin also serves), not to mention shareholders, would also be appalled if
they knew one of their Audit Committee members had such a disregard for federal securities laws.
We have offered you and Mary Murphy Conlin a path to preserving your seats on the Board of the
Company, and hope you both will realize the self-destructive effects of not taking it. I will praise
both you and Ms. Conlin in a press release announcing our cooperation agreement, but will do the
very opposite if this proceeds any further to a proxy contest.

* * *

I UNDISCLOSED SECTION 16 VIOLATIONS AND IMPLICIT WAIVERS.

As detailed in our December 13, 2025 correspondence, multiple members of the Board—
including two members of the Audit Committee—filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that
were delinquent by as many as six years. The specifics bear repeating:

*  You, John B. Frank: Became a director in February 2022. Filed Form 3 and Form
4 on October 3, 2025—more than three and a half years after the statutory deadline.

*  Mary Murphy Conlin: Became a director in May 2019. Filed Form 3 and Form 4
on October 3, 2025—more than six years after the statutory deadline.

* Rasool Rayani: Became a director in June 2024. As of the date of this letter, Mr.
Rayani has still not filed his required Form 3 or any required Form 4 reports—a
delinquency now exceeding eighteen months.

+ Steven Myhill-Jones: Became acting Chief Executive Officer on March 28, 2022.
Filed his Form 3 on December 16, 2024—approximately two years and nine months
after the statutory deadline. As discussed further below, Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form
3 filing contains additional deficiencies that warrant separate examination, as we
do below.

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors and officers to file
a Form 3 within ten days of becoming a reporting person and a Form 4 within two business
days of any transaction in the Company’s securities.
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II.

Section D(2) of the Company’s Code of Ethics—"Timely and Truthful Disclosure"—
provides:

"In reports and documents filed with or submitted to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and other regulators, and in other public communications made by the
Company, the Company’s directors, officers and employees involved in the
preparation of such reports, documents and communications shall make
disclosures that are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable."”

Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics—"Legal Compliance"—provides:

"In conducting the business of the Company, all directors, officers and employees
shall comply with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations at all levels
of government in the United States and in any non-U.S. jurisdiction in which the
Company does business."

The years-long failures by Messrs. Frank, Rayani, and Myhill-Jones, and Ms. Conlin, to
comply with Section 16(a) filing requirements are violations of both Section D(2) and
Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics. The Company’s failure to take action against these
violations constitutes an "implicit waiver" under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K.

The Company has never filed a Form 8-K disclosing these implicit waivers. Item
5.05(b) of Form 8-K requires disclosure within four business days of any waiver, including
any implicit waiver, granted to a director or executive officer. An "implicit waiver" is
defined as the company's failure to take action within a reasonable period of time regarding
a material departure from a provision of the code of ethics that has been made known to
the company.

The Audit Committee—which you chair—has, on top of everything else, failed to ensure
the Company’s compliance with these additional disclosure requirements. The Company
was required to file Form 8-Ks disclosing the implicit waivers granted to each of these
individuals. It did not. This is a separate and independent disclosure failure layered on top
of the underlying Section 16 violations.

STEVEN MYHILL-JONES’ DEFECTIVE FORM 3 FILING.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3, filed December 16, 2024, warrants separate examination
because it appears to have been structured to conceal, rather than remedy, his Section 16
violations (just the same as Mr. Myhill-Jones’ July 29 Form 8-K was apparent to be
structured to conceal his disclosure violations there, too).
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II1.

To begin, Mr. Myahill-Jones falsely stated the “Date of Event Requiring Statement” as
December 11, 2024, knowing very well that his employment started nearly two years
before that date.

Further, a Form 3 is an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership of Securities." As earlier
noted, Form 3 is required to be filed within ten days of a person becoming a director or
officer. It reports the securities beneficially owned by the reporting person as of the date
they became a reporting person (indisputable by the “initial statement” form header)—not
as of the date the form is filed.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 on December 16, 2024, reported that he beneficially owned 400
shares of Company common stock at the time he began service at the Company. However,
at the Company’s February 15, 2023, annual shareholder meeting, Mr. Myhill-Jones stated:
"while I don’t have equity yet, I'm certainly keen to participate in the future growth of the
business..." If Mr. Myhill-Jones had never purchased shares of Company stock, then he
could not have owned 400 shares as of March 28, 2022—the date he became acting CEO
and the date as of which he was being asked to report ownership for.

As then admitted by Mr. Myhill-Jones himself, the 400 shares reported on Mr. Myhill-
Jones’ Form 3 were granted to him after he became CEO—mnot shares he owned when he
initially assumed the role. Any acquisition of shares after becoming a reporting person was
required to be reported on a Form 4, not a Form 3. Form 4 requires disclosure of the
transaction date, the nature of the transaction, and the number of shares acquired or
disposed of. Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 contains none of this information because there is
no place on a Form 3 to report it—Form 3 is not designed to report acquisitions, only initial
holdings at the time of beginning service.

The structure of Mr. Myhill-Jones’ filing suggests an attempt to mask a dual violation—
the failure to timely file a Form 3 and the failure to timely file a Form 4 reporting a stock
grant—by combining both into a single, defective Form 3 that obscures the date and nature
of the acquisition. The failure to disclose the grant date is particularly notable; without it,
shareholders cannot determine when the violation occurred or how long it went unreported.

This, too, required an Item 5.05 Form 8-K disclosure for his personal disclosure violations.
The Company has never filed one. Nor did the Company disclose Mr. Myhill-Jones'
implicit waiver in its proxy statement filed January 8, 2025—which was filed after his
defective Form 3 but made no mention of his years-long Section 16 delinquency or the
implicit waiver it necessarily entailed.

THE AUGUST 14, 2025 FORM 10-Q: WILLFUL FALSE CERTIFICATION.

On August 14, 2025, Mr. Myhill-Jones and then-Chief Financial Officer Tu To signed and
filed the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2025. In connection with
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that filing, both executives provided certifications pursuant to Section 302 and Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, certifying that the financial statements "fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations" of the Company.

Those certifications were false when made. More importantly, Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms.
To knew they were false when they signed them.

Between July 14, 2025, and July 29, 2025, Buxton Helmsley sent five separate letters to
the Board detailing material violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP") and SEC reporting requirements in the Company’s financial statements. Any
jury of reasonable minds (or your peers at the California State Bar) would have understood
the contents of those letters, for which Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To decided to bury their
heads in the sand, in complete disregard of federal securities laws. Our letters of July 14,
July 18, July 23, July 28, and July 29, 2025, explained in detail:

» The Company’s failure to capitalize software development costs as required by
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20");

* The Company’s failure to separately disclose research and development expenses
as required by Regulation S-X § 210.5-03; and

» The materiality of these violations, given the Company’s own admission in its SEC
filings that software development costs are “significant” (there is no dispute of
materiality under Regulation S-X).

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To received these letters. They were on notice that the
Company’s financial reporting had long violated GAAP and Regulation S-X. They were
on notice that the financial statements they were about to certify were going to continue
those violations of GAAP and Regulation S-X. They signed anyway.

Section D(1) of the Code of Ethics—"Honest and Ethical Conduct"—provides:

"All directors, officers and employees shall behave honestly and ethically at all
times and with all people.... They shall not misrepresent facts or engage in illegal,
unethical, or anti-competitive practices for personal or professional gain."”

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To engaged in clearly illegal practices—the willful false
certification of financial statements under 18 U.S.C. § 1350—for professional gain. They
signed the certifications to keep their jobs. They were given clear details to know that the
financial reporting was misstated and non-compliant (even if they wanted to argue they did
not understand the GAAP issues, the Regulation S-X issue of not separately disclosing
research and development was indisputable, as they already admitted those expenses to be
“significant”, which clearly met the materiality threshold for requiring separate disclosure
pursuant to Regulation S-X). They signed anyway.
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IVv.

The Audit Committee’s failure to take action against this conduct constitutes another
implicit waiver requiring Form 8-K disclosure under Item 5.05. No such Form 8-K has
been filed.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.
Let us be direct about what has occurred:

* Four directors and officers violated Section 16(a) filing requirements—some for
more than six years.

* The Company took no action against any of them.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waivers.

* The Company’s CEO attempted to mask his dual Section 16 violations with a
defective Form 3 filing, falsely dating it and attempting to combine it with the
contents of a Form 4 to minimize the appearance of the violations.

* The CEO and CFO signed knowingly false Sarbanes-Oxley certifications after
being put on written notice of GAAP violations.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waiver of the Code of
Ethics arising from that conduct.

» The Company’s January 8, 2025, proxy statement made no mention of the implicit
waivers related to Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 and Form 4 disclosure violations.

This is not inadvertence. This is a pattern of concealment. The Audit Committee—which
you chair—has systematically failed to ensure the Company’s compliance with disclosure
requirements designed to inform shareholders when insiders have been permitted to violate
the Company’s own ethical standards.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the Audit Committee will not disclose when directors
violate basic filing requirements, and will not disclose when executives sign false
certifications, what else is being concealed? If these failures were mistakes and not in line
with your personal ethical standards as a securities lawyer expected to uphold the law, you
need to avoid any further delay in remediation of this Company’s governance and
compliance failures.

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you, as Audit Committee Chair, of the

failures described herein. Any further delay by the Audit Committee to address these matters—
including by ensuring appropriate disclosure in the Company’s forthcoming proxy statement—
will be considered in connection with our pending notice of potential referral to the State Bar of
California regarding your professional conduct.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.
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Cc:

Respectfully,

Ao—————

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Mary Murphy Conlin (Audit Committee member, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 13, 2025

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”’) — Delivery of Rule 14a-19 Notice;
Observations Regarding Recent Governance Developments

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Enclosed with this letter please find our formal notice of intent to solicit proxies in support
of alternate director nominees pursuant to Rule 14a-19 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Notice”). The Notice is being delivered in accordance with the timing requirements of Rule 14a-
19(b)(1), which requires delivery no later than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the anniversary
date of the prior year’s annual meeting.

We write separately to address certain governance developments that have occurred since
our initial correspondence with the Company in July 2025, and that bear directly on the matters
raised in our Notice. We believe these developments underscore the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

I. DEPARTURE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.

On October 29, 2025, the Company filed a Form 8-K disclosing that Chief Financial
Officer Tu To would “retire” effective January 15, 2026. The filing reveals that Ms. To’s
departure was structured not as a conventional retirement, but as a negotiated separation
pursuant to a “Separation Agreement and Release” dated October 27, 2025. The terms of
that Agreement warrant careful examination:

* Ms. To will receive a lump-sum payment of $175,000, characterized as a
“retroactive pay adjustment”;

* Ms. To will receive a $40,000 cash bonus for fiscal year 2025;

* Ms. To is eligible for contingent milestone bonuses of up to $75,000 “primarily
associated with the Company’s financial system conversion”; and
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II.

* Ms. To agreed to provide a “general release and waiver of claims” and “reaffirmed
her confidentiality and non-disparagement obligations.”

These are not the hallmarks of a voluntary retirement after forty-two years of service.
Separation agreements containing general releases of claims and non-disparagement
obligations are instruments of risk management employed when there is potential exposure
to be managed. A CFO who is simply choosing to retire after a long career does not require
a negotiated release of claims; she simply retires.

The timing is notable. Ms. To’s departure was announced approximately three months
after our July 2025 correspondence identified material concerns regarding the Company’s
software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20—concerns that Ms. To, as the
certifying officer responsible for the accuracy of the Company’s financial statements,
would have been directly accountable for. The Board’s decision to structure her exit with
a release of claims and a prohibition on public comment speaks for itself.

We further note that the “milestone bonuses” tied to the “financial system conversion” are
being paid to assist in remediation of the very internal control failures that Ms. To oversaw.
The Company acknowledged in its May 2025 Form NT 10-Q that it was “migrating to a
new accounting system as part of its efforts to enhance its internal control over financial
reporting.” Ms. To is now being compensated to help repair systems that failed under her
watch.

DELINQUENT SECTION 16 FILINGS BY AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS.

We have also identified that two members of the Company’s Audit Committee recently
filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that were delinquent by as many as seven years:

» John B. Frank, a lawyer at Oaktree Capital Management, L.P., who is designated
as the Board’s “financial expert” for purposes of SEC disclosure requirements; and
* Mary Murphy Conlin, also a member of the Audit Committee.

For reference, Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires directors to file:

* Form 3 (Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership): Within ten days of becoming
a director; and

* Form 4 (Statement of Changes in Beneficial Ownership): Within two business days
of any transaction in a company’s securities.

These are not obscure compliance requirements. These are some of the most basic
obligations for every public company director. Mr. Frank is a securities lawyer at Oaktree
Capital-—one of the world’s largest alternative investment managers, with approximately
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$180 billion in assets under management. Such personal compliance failures are not
indicative of a “financial expert” suitable to be leading the Audit Committee.

Yet, such personal compliance failures are not limited to Mr. Frank. Ms. Conlin, also
serving on the Audit Committee, had the same delinquencies. The fact that both Audit
Committee members failed to file required ownership reports for years—and that neither
the Company’s management nor its external counsel identified or remedied the
deficiency—reflects systemic oversight failure at the committee charged with overseeing
financial reporting and internal controls.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the individuals entrusted with overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting cannot comply with a two-page beneficial ownership form
due within ten days of their appointments, what confidence can shareholders have in their
oversight of complex accounting standards such as ASC 985-20? None.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.

These developments—the negotiated departure of the CFO with a release of claims and
gag order, the years-long Section 16 reporting failures by both Audit Committee members,
the acknowledged internal control deficiencies requiring system-wide remediation—are
not isolated incidents. They reflect a governance environment in which basic compliance
obligations have been neglected for years.

We remind the Board that on July 29, 2025, the Company filed a Form 8-K containing
statements about Buxton Helmsley’s regulatory status that were demonstrably false—
including the assertion of false claims of holding securities licenses. Attached as Annex D
to the enclosed Notice is a FINRA examination results letter confirming that, contrary to
your false public claims, I do, indeed, hold a Series 65 license. We are delivering this
document directly to the Board to avoid any future claim of uncertainty on this point. The
Company’s July 29 statements were false when made, and any repetition of those
statements in the Company’s proxy materials will be grounds for injunctive relief under
Rule 14a-9.

The July 29 Form 8-K contains an additional false statement that remains uncorrected to
this day. The cover page of that filing states that the “Date of earliest event reported” is
July 28, 2025. Yet Item 8.01 of the same filing states: “Two weeks ago, we received a
letter from Alexander E. Parker,” and later: “His initial July 14 letter is attached as Exhibit
99.1.” The filing thus explicitly identifies July 14, 2025, as the date of the earliest event
being reported—while the cover page certifies that date as July 28, 2025. This is not
ambiguous; the filing contradicts itself on its face. Mr. Myhill-Jones signed this document.
We raised this discrepancy in our July 29, 2025, correspondence, yet the filing has never
been corrected. The Company has since hired a Director of SEC Reporting, yet this
demonstrably false statement remains in the Company’s public filings. If the Company
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cannot accurately report a date on a Form 8-K—when the correct date appears in the body
of the very same document—shareholders may reasonably question the accuracy of
anything else in the Company’s SEC filings. The fact that this false disclosure remains
uncorrected demonstrates that the Company’s attempt to hire a Director of SEC Reporting
is inadequate and that the Company requires a Board-level governance refresh (the Board
not forcing correction of knowingly false SEC filings either).

We also wish to make clear that the contingent compensation proposal referenced in our
earlier correspondence has been withdrawn and is no longer under consideration. Given
the severity of the governance failures now evident—the CFO’s negotiated departure, the
Audit Committee’s years-long Section 16 delinquencies, the internal control deficiencies,
and the Board’s response of attacking the messenger rather than addressing the message—
we have concluded that this situation requires Board reconstitution as a matter of fiduciary
necessity, without regard for compensation. Any representation by the Company in its
proxy materials that we continue to seek contingent compensation, or any implication to
that effect, will similarly be grounds for injunctive relief to prevent any further tampering
of this election through false statements.

Rather than engage substantively with the accounting concerns we raised, the Company
elected to attack the messenger with false statements. Three months later, the CFO
responsible for the accounting in question was shown the door with a separation agreement.
The Board’s response to our concerns has been to quietly take the remedial actions we
identified as necessary while publicly maintaining that our concerns were unfounded.
Shareholders deserve better.

We remain prepared to engage constructively with the Board should it wish to discuss a
consensual resolution of these matters. However, absent such engagement, we intend to proceed
with the proxy solicitation described in the enclosed Notice and to present shareholders with a
clear choice regarding the future governance of this Company.

Baker Tilly US, LLP, copied on this letter, is reminded ahead of DJCO’s imminent Form
10-K filing (due to contain audited financials) that they were sent (months ago) an authoritative
publication of the AICPA that directly supports Buxton Helmsley’s position that the Company’s
stated rationale for its accounting treatment does not comply with ASC 985-20.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.

Respectfully,
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A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 17, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company’) — Appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

We must follow up after our December 13 letter to express obvious concerns regarding the
Company’s Form 8-K filed yesterday, December 16, 2025, announcing the appointment of Erik
Nakamura as Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial Officer of Daily Journal Corporation
(the “December 16 Form 8-K”).

Suspicious Process

The December 16 Form 8-K states that the Board approved Mr. Nakamura’s appointment
on December 12, 2025. Yet the December 16 Form 8-K also discloses that, as of the filing date
(four days later), “the specific compensation arrangements have not been finalized.” The
Compensation Committee merely “authorized the Company to finalize the terms” of his
appointment.

This is not how CFO appointments work. Boards do not approve the appointment of a
principal financial officer without knowing what the company will pay him. Compensation is not
an afterthought to be delegated for later resolution—it is a material term that is approved as part
of the appointment itself. Without acceptable compensation terms, there is no appointment. The
notion that the Board definitively approved this appointment on December 12, while leaving
compensation entirely undetermined (handing management carte blanche authority and a blank
check), defies belief and underscores the inappropriate governance by the Board.

We also note that the December 16 Form 8-K disclosed an event that supposedly occurred
on December 12, yet was filed on December 16—the final day of the four-business-day window
permitted under Item 5.02 of Form 8-K. We further note that Buxton Helmsley's Rule 14a-19
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notice of intent to solicit proxies was delivered to the Company on December 13, 2025, just one
day after the Board’s purported approval of Mr. Nakamura's appointment.

Shareholders are entitled to have confidence that material corporate actions are taken
through proper deliberative processes, not rushed or reconstructed in response to external
pressures. The circumstances here do not inspire that confidence. Any shareholder will agree that
the claimed timing of the event disclosed in the December 16 Form 8-K is highly suspicious once
they are informed of the behind-the-scenes events involving Buxton Helmsley’s Rule 14a-19
notice.

The Very Wrong Choice

Even setting aside questions about process, the substance of this appointment is deeply
troubling.

Mr. Nakamura has served as Chief Financial Officer of Journal Technologies, Inc. since
October 2024. Journal Technologies is the subsidiary at the very center of the Company’s ongoing
accounting issues. Buxton Helmsley has publicly identified stark, sweeping violations of ASC
985-20 in relation to Journal Technologies’ complete failure to properly capitalize software
development costs, in addition to a complete failure to disclose the “significant” research and
development expenses on a separate line item of the Company’s income statement, in violation of
Regulation S-X.

Mr. Nakamura has been directly responsible for Journal Technologies’ books and records
during periods of this non-compliance, including the Company’s last quarterly report filed with
the U.S. SEC. He is the subsidiary CFO who oversaw the very accounting practices now under
scrutiny, even more directly than CFO Tu To (though Ms. To absolutely should have noticed the
suspicious complete absence of a “research and development expense” line item on the income
statement, and nonexistent intangible assets on the balance sheet). Promoting Mr. Nakamura to
parent company CFO does not signal a commitment to addressing these issues—it signals a
commitment to defending them.

The December 16 Form 8-K describes this appointment as “a continuation of the
Company's initiatives since 2023 to build the required finance team for the future alongside
modernized accounting systems and improved internal controls.” If the Company were genuinely
committed to improved internal controls, it would not elevate the executive most directly
associated with the subsidiary’s questioned accounting to the top financial role at the parent
company. This appointment suggests the Board either does not understand the seriousness of the
financial reporting violations that have been ongoing at the Company’s Journal Technologies
subsidiary, or does not care.

A Pattern of Governance Failure
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This appointment is consistent with the Board’s broader pattern of prioritizing
entrenchment over accountability. Rather than engage constructively with shareholder concerns
about accounting practices, the Board has chosen to circle the wagons. Rather than bring in fresh
leadership that was not a part of creating the issues under review, the Board has promoted from
within the very unit where the problems originated.

We remind the Board that approximately 40% of shareholders voted against multiple
directors at the last annual meeting, before the full scope of the accounting issues became public,
and before the departures of Ms. To and others. The Board’s response to that vote of no confidence
has been to double down on the status quo, which we are sure will not end well at the 2026 annual
meeting.

This appointment comes as the Company’s Form 10-K is due in fifteen days, and Baker
Tilly US, LLP must decide whether to sign off on financial statements that may contain the very
misstatements Buxton Helmsley has identified. Elevating the Journal Technologies CFO to the
parent company role at this moment sends a message, and is about as assuring as if Baker Tilly
signs off on financials that entirely contradict authoritative guidance published by their own
industry body (the AICPA).

As we said in our letter to the Board just days ago, shareholders deserve better.

* * *

Buxton Helmsley reserves all rights, at law and in equity, including the right to pursue any
and all remedies available to it in connection with the matters described herein and the Company’s
ongoing governance failures.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Additional Section 16 Violations
Identified

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Following our letter of December 17, 2025, regarding the appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer, we have now discovered an additional compliance failure that warrants
immediate attention. Our December 13, 2025 letter identified years-long Section 16(a) reporting
failures by Audit Committee members John B. Frank and Mary Murphy Conlin. We have now
discovered that the third member of the Audit Committee—Rasool Rayani—has the same
compliance failures. Mr. Rayani joined the Board in June 2024. To date, eighteen months later,
no Form 3 has ever been filed on his behalf. Additionally, no Form 4 has been filed to report the
equity compensation he received, which the Company's own proxy statement discloses as $8,172.

To summarize: the Company recently filed delinquent Form 3 and Form 4 reports for Mr.
Frank and Ms. Conlin—apparently believing it had remedied its Section 16 compliance failures.
Yet somehow, in the course of this remediation, neither the Company, its management, its outside
counsel, nor any member of the Audit Committee noticed that the third Audit Committee member
had no filings at all. This is not a clerical oversight. Compliance is a function at DJCO that clearly
does not exist, even with the Company’s new “Director of SEC Reporting”.

Every single member of the Company's Audit Committee has violated Section 16(a), and
Rasool Rayani is actively violating Section 16(a). The committee charged with overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting and internal controls is composed entirely of directors who cannot
comply with the most basic SEC reporting obligations. This is the same committee that has
overseen the accounting failures we have identified, the same committee that allowed a falsely
dated Form 8-K to remain uncorrected for five months, and the same committee whose Chair we
have notified (earlier today) of potential referral to the State Bar of California.
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Mr. Rayani should understand that he will not escape scrutiny in the upcoming proxy
contest. Our prior correspondence focused on Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin because, at that time, we
believed Mr. Rayani’s filings were in order. They are not. Mr. Rayani will be included in all
future public communications regarding the Board’s systemic compliance failures.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

John B. Frank, Esq.

Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.
333 South Grand Avenue, 28th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”’) — Notice of Potential Referral to
the State Bar of California

Dear Mr. Frank:

I write on behalf of Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. regarding conduct that we believe may
warrant referral to the State Bar of California for investigation under the California Rules of
Professional Conduct.

Section 16 Reporting Violations

As you are aware, you recently filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission that were delinquent by as many as three years. Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors of public companies to file Form 3 within ten
days of becoming a director and Form 4 within two business days of any transaction in the
company's securities. These are not obscure compliance requirements. They are among the most
basic obligations imposed on every public company director.

You are a securities lawyer at Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.—one of the world's
largest alternative investment managers, with approximately $180 billion in assets under
management. You have held yourself out to the Company and its shareholders as a “financial
expert” for purposes of SEC disclosure requirements and serve as Chair of the Company's Audit
Committee. A securities lawyer at a major investment firm who serves as the designated financial
expert on a public company’s audit committee should not require three years to file a two-page
beneficial ownership form.

“Financial Expert” Designation and Audit Committee Failures

Your acceptance of the “financial expert” designation carries with it an implicit self-
representation to shareholders that you possess the competence to oversee, and commitment to
ensuring compliance with, the Company’s financial reporting and internal control obligations. Yet
the record suggests otherwise.
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Since July 2025, Buxton Helmsley has identified material concerns regarding the
Company's software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20 and violations of Regulation
S-X related to the failure to separately disclose research and development costs. We have provided
the Company—and its auditor, Baker Tilly US, LLP—with authoritative guidance from the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the organization that develops and grades the
CPA examination) that directly contradicts the Company’s stated accounting rationale. The
Company has never substantively responded to these concerns.

The potential exposure is not trivial. We have estimated that the Company has failed to
report approximately $50 million or more in intangible asset value due to improper expensing of
software development costs that were subject to mandatory capitalization under GAAP. We have
also identified violations of Regulation S-X, which requires separate disclosure of research and
development costs on the income statement when material—costs the Company itself has
described as “significant” (admittedly material) but has failed to quantify for years. Between these
issues, you have not only allowed these long-running violations of accounting standards and
securities laws to linger and go uncorrected, but also oversaw the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer continue to flagrantly violate those accounting standards and
securities laws with the Company’s latest Form 10-Q filing, dated August 14, 2025. That Form
10-Q filing also included a false certification (by Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To, pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) of compliance with financial reporting, constituting an
apparent criminal violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and the Company’s designated financial expert, you bear
direct responsibility for oversight of these matters. The fact that these potential violations have
persisted for months, and have translated into apparent criminal violations, despite detailed written
notice and authoritative contrary guidance, raises serious questions about the discharge of your
fiduciary duties.

Failure to Correct a Falsely Dated SEC Filing—and the Disclosure Violations It Was
Designed to Conceal

There is an additional matter that bears directly on your responsibilities as a securities
lawyer serving on this Board.

On July 29, 2025, CEO Steven Myhill-Jones signed and filed a Form 8-K that was falsely
dated on its face. The cover page of that filing states that the “Date of earliest event reported” is
July 28, 2025. Yet the body of the same filing explicitly states: "Two weeks ago, we received a
letter from Alexander E. Parker,” and later references “His initial July 14 letter is attached as
Exhibit 99.1.” The filing thus identifies July 14, 2025 as the earliest event being reported—while
the cover page certifies that date as July 28, 2025.
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The false dating was not a clerical error. It appears to have been designed to obscure the
Company’s failure to comply with the four-business-day disclosure requirement for Form 8-K
filings. Upon receiving our July 14 letter identifying potential ASC 985-20 violations, the Board
launched an accounting investigation—a material event requiring disclosure. Yet the Company
waited nearly two weeks to file the 8-K, well beyond the four-business-day requirement, and only
after Buxton Helmsley publicly demanded the Board force such disclosure twice. By falsely dating
the filing as July 28, the Company attempted to conceal how late the disclosure actually was.

The disclosure failures do not end there. Before filing the July 29 Form 8-K, the Company
selectively disclosed the existence of the Board's accounting investigation to Buxton Helmsley
alone—a single public market participant—in apparent violation of Regulation FD. Regulation
FD prohibits issuers from selectively disclosing material nonpublic information to certain market
participants without simultaneous public disclosure. The Company disclosed the investigation to
us, then waited days before disclosing it to the public, and only after the Company was publicly
exposed twice for the disclosure failure and apparent Regulation FD violation. As a securities
lawyer, you are presumably familiar with Regulation FD’s requirements.

This is not ambiguous. The filing contradicts itself on its face, the late filing violated the
four-business-day requirement, and the selective disclosure violated Regulation FD. We raised
these issues in writing to the Company on July 29, 2025—the same day the Form 8-K was filed.
It has never been corrected. The Company has since hired a Director of SEC Reporting, yet these
demonstrably false and misleading disclosures remain in the Company's public filings nearly five
months later.

You are a securities lawyer. You serve on the Board that is responsible for the accuracy
and timeliness of the Company’s SEC filings and compliance with Regulation FD. You are where
the buck stops for accurate public disclosures to shareholders, as Chair of the Company’s Audit
Committee. You have been aware of these disclosure failures since at least July 29, 2025. Yet
you have taken no action to cause the Company to correct the false filing or address the Regulation
FD violation. A securities lawyer who allows demonstrably false SEC filings and apparent
Regulation FD violations to persist uncorrected for months—after written notice—is not fulfilling
his professional responsibilities, and is part of the misconduct and violations of law.

California Rules of Professional Conduct

Rule 8.4 of the California Rules of Professional Conduct provides that it is professional
misconduct for a lawyer to “(b) commit a criminal act that reflects adversely on the lawyer’s
honesty, trustworthiness, or fitness as a lawyer” or “(c) engage in conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit, or reckless or intentional misrepresentation.” California Code, Business and
Professions Code section 6068(a) further requires California attorneys to “support the Constitution
and laws of the United States and of this state.”
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We believe that your years-long failure to comply with Section 16(a) of the Exchange
Act—a federal securities law with which you, as a securities lawyer, are presumably familiar—
combined with your failure to cause correction of a falsely dated SEC filing that was designed to
conceal untimely disclosure, your apparent acquiescence to a Regulation FD violation, your
ongoing failure to ensure the Company’s compliance with GAAP and Regulation S-X while
serving as the Company’s designated “financial expert,” and apparent allowance of violations of
18 U.S.C. § 1350, constitute conduct warranting investigation by the State Bar.

Demand

We are prepared to file a complaint with the State Bar of California and to provide the State
Bar with all supporting documentation, including the Company’s SEC filings (including the falsely
dated July 29 Form 8-K), our July 29, 2025 correspondence identifying the false date and the
Regulation FD violation, evidence of the selective disclosure to Buxton Helmsley prior to public
filing, the authoritative AICPA guidance completely contradicting the Company’s accounting
position, and our extensive correspondence with the Company and its auditor.

However, we are willing to forego such a filing if the Company takes immediate and
appropriate remedial action to address the governance and financial reporting failures we have
identified. In the alternative, if you conclude that the Board is unwilling to take such action, we
believe the appropriate course would be for you to resign from the Board rather than continue to
lend your name and professional credentials to a governance structure that has demonstrably failed
shareholders.

We request a response to this letter no later than 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on December
22, 2025. In the absence of a satisfactory response by that deadline, we intend to proceed with a
referral to the State Bar.

Reservation of Rights

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law,
including the right to file a complaint with the State Bar at any time and to pursue any other
remedies available to us.

This letter is being provided to you directly in your personal capacity as a member of the
State Bar of California, with a copy to the Board of Directors of Daily Journal Corporation.
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Cc:

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
Brian Cardile (Corporate Secretary, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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® December 17, 2025 — Private Letter to Board: Formal objection to the appointment of Erik
Nakamura as Chief Financial Officer, noting that Mr. Nakamura has served as CFO of Journal
Technologies, Inc.—the very subsidiary at the center of the Company’s accounting failures—
since October 2024, and that promoting the executive who directly oversaw the questioned
accounting practices does not signal a commitment to addressing these issues but rather a
commitment to defending them. The letter also noted the suspicious timing of the Board’s
purported December 12, 2025, approval of Mr. Nakamura’s appointment (one day before
receipt of our Rule 14a-19 notice), with compensation terms left entirely undetermined—a
process that, as we noted, “defies belief.” We further note that, on information and belief,
Mr. Nakamura is not a Certified Public Accountant, meaning that between the Audit
Committee and the CFO, the Company does not have a single CPA overseeing its financial
reporting.

® December 18, 2025 — Private Letter to Board: Notice that we had discovered that the third
member of the Audit Committee—Rasool Rayani—is in active violation of Section 16(a), never
having filed a Form 3 or Form 4 over his tenure as a director. This means that every single
member of the Audit Committee has violated Section 16(a). The letter noted that the
Company had recently filed remedial forms for Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin, yet somehow, in the
course of this botched remediation, neither the Company, its management, its outside
counsel, nor any member of the Audit Committee noticed that the third Audit Committee
member had no filings at all—eighteen months after joining the Board. As we stated: “This is
not a clerical oversight. Compliance is a function at DJCO that clearly does not exist.”

® December 18, 2025 — Private Letter to John B. Frank: Notice of potential referral to the State
Bar of California regarding Mr. Frank's professional conduct as a licensed attorney serving as
Audit Committee Chair, given his failure to ensure compliance with basic federal securities
laws—including his own personal Section 16 obligations.

® December 19, 2025 — Private Letter to Erik Nakamura: Notice to the Company's incoming
Chief Financial Officer regarding the personal criminal liability under 18 U.S.C. § 1350 that
would attach to any officer who signs a Sarbanes-Oxley certification on a Form 10-K
containing the GAAP and Regulation S-X violations we have identified. We particularly warn
Mr. Nakamura of potential criminal liability if he signs the Company’s Form 10-K that typically
would be filed on or about December 31. The letter references authoritative AICPA
guidance published in the Journal of Accountancy
(https://www.journalofaccountancy.com/news/2018/mar/accounting-for-external-use-
software-development-costs-201818259/), which includes a literal diagram of the agile
development sprint activities that are subject to capitalization under ASC 985-20—
activities the Company has failed to capitalize for years despite admitting in its own SEC
filings that software development costs are “significant” (there is no dispute of materiality

of these issues).
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® December 19, 2025 — Books and Records Demand: Formal demand under Section 33-16-102
of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act, for inspection of books and records relating
to, among other things, the Board's oversight of financial reporting, the circumstances of the
CFO's departure, and the Company's response to the accounting and compliance issues we
have raised. We have also demanded communications with Baker Tilly.

® December 21, 2025 - Private Letter to John B. Frank and Mary Murphy Conlin:
Comprehensive documentation of the Company's failures to file Form 8-Ks under Item 5.05
disclosing implicit waivers of the Code of Ethics; analysis of CEO Steven Myhill-Jones's falsified
Form 3, including a quote from the Company's February 15, 2023 shareholder meeting in
which Mr. Myhill-Jones admitted he owned no shares (contradicting the Form 3 he later filed
reporting 400 shares of beneficial ownership); and documentation of the willful false
Sarbanes-Oxley certifications signed by Mr. Myhill-Jones and former CFO Tu To on August 14,
2025—after receiving five separate letters from us detailing the Company's GAAP and

Regulation S-X violations.

We are sending this correspondence to you directly so that there is no plausible deniability at the
Los Angeles office level regarding these matters. Baker Tilly faces significant professional liability
exposure, which we intend to pursue after the proxy contest, should it permit the Company to file its
Form 10-K in the coming days without correction of:

® The material violations of ASC 985-20 (capitalization of software development costs);

® The material violations of Regulation S-X § 210.5-03 (separate disclosure of research and
development expenses);

® The numerous unfiled Form 8-Ks required under Item 5.05 for implicit waivers of the Code of
Ethics;

® The Section 16(a) violations by four out of four current directors—one hundred percent of the
Board,;

® The false statements in the CEQ's Form 3 filing (which require correction); and

® The false statements in the Company's July 29, 2025 Form 8-K (backdated from July 29 to July
26).

As set forth in our December 18, 2025, letter to Mr. Frank (attached), we have notified him of our
intention to file a complaint with the State Bar of California regarding his professional conduct,
absent his agreement to remediate the Company's governance and compliance failures by 5:00 p.m.
Eastern Time today.

Respectfully,
Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Cc: christopher.krogh@bakertilly.com; Sayerwin, Scarlet; Relampagos, Stella C.
Subject: State Bar Complaint Filed

Date: Monday, December 22, 2025 5:40:00 PM

Attachments: image001.png

Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Frank:

The deadline for agreement to remediate Daily Journal Corporation's governance and compliance
failures has passed. Accordingly, we have filed a substantive complaint with the State Bar of
California regarding your professional conduct as Audit Committee Chair of Daily Journal
Corporation, and the violations of federal securities laws you have overseen. We will submit follow-
on correspondence after our initial complaint if you should oversee another violation of 18 U.S.C. §
1350, by allowing the Company to continue its "significant” violations of Regulation S-X and ASC 985-
20 as part of an upcoming Form 10-K filing. If you do not agree with the Company's continuing
violations of federal securities laws (that is, if the other Audit Committee members believe federal
securities laws are “flimsy technicalities”, as one has already admitted), the correct course of action
is to resign. You are otherwise complicit.

As stated in our December 21 letter, the Board of Directors of Chevron Corporation will be notified
of our being required to file this bar complaint, the circumstances for why it was required, and that
you had an opportunity to agree to cure these matters before it was filed. We will also make the
complaint public for the consideration of Daily Journal Corporation shareholders, ISS, and Glass
Lewis, very shortly.

Separately, we will be promptly communicating with the Board of Directors of The Beachbody
Company, Inc. regarding Ms. Conlin's involvement in these matters. You should forward her a copy
of this email, so she is aware.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 24, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attention: Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary

Re:

Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company’’) — Response to December 24, 2025
Letter; Demand Under Rule 14a-7 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; Continued
Demand Under Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act

Dear Mr. Cardile:

We are in receipt of the letter dated December 24, 2025, from Robert Y. Knowlton of

Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., purportedly responding to our December 19, 2025 demand to
inspect the books and records of the Company. That response is inadequate, reflects yet another
misrepresentation by or on behalf of the Company, and fails to satisfy the Company's obligations
under both state and federal law.

I.

THE COMPANY IS MISREPRESENTING THE TRANSFER AGENT RECORDS.

Mr. Knowlton's letter claims that "the records of Equiniti, the Company's transfer agent,
show one share now being owned by an entity called 'Buxton Helmsley, Inc."" This is false.

Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a copy of the DRS position transfer confirmation from
Interactive Brokers, the broker that initiated the transfer. As the confirmation plainly
shows, the transfer was initiated for "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc."—not "Buxton
Helmsley, Inc." The confirmation reflects:

* Account Title (at broker): Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

* Account Title at Transfer Agent: Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
* Request Date: December 15, 2025

e Date Processed: December 18, 2025

"Buxton Helmsley, Inc." is a completely separate legal entity from "Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc." Our broker does not have an account for any entity called "Buxton Helmsley,
Inc.," nor is our broker aware of any such entity. It would have been impossible for our
broker to initiate a transfer for an entity for which it has no account and no record.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

II.

Either the Company's transfer agent made a transcription error, or the Company (through
its counsel) is misrepresenting the contents of the transfer agent's records. Given the
Company's well-documented pattern of making false statements—including the falsely
dated July 29, 2025, Form 8-K, the demonstrably false claims about Buxton Helmsley's
regulatory status in that same filing, and the ongoing failure to correct those false
statements despite being put on notice five months ago—shareholders are entitled to be
skeptical of any factual representation made by or on behalf of this Company.

We demand that the Company immediately produce a copy of the transfer agent records it
claims to have reviewed. If those records reflect an error, we demand that the Company
cause Equiniti to correct its records to reflect the actual registered owner: Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc.

In any event, the Company's own letter acknowledges that the transfer was completed as
of December 18, 2025—one day before our December 19, 2025 demand was submitted.
Whether the transfer agent's records reflect "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc." (as they should)
or "Buxton Helmsley, Inc." (if in error), the undisputed fact is that a Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc. should have been a record shareholder of the Company as of December 18, 2025,
and the Company received a valid demand on December 19, 2025. The Company cannot
use a ministerial transcription error—if one exists—to evade its legal obligations.

We also note the Company's apparent fixation on the fact that the transfer agent records
reflect "one share." Mr. Knowlton's letter underlines this phrase as if it were significant.
It is not. It is standard practice for activist investors conducting proxy contests to transfer
a nominal number of shares—often a single share—into record name for the purpose of
establishing standing to make books and records demands and exercise other shareholder
rights that require record holder status. The bulk of an activist's economic position is
typically held in street name through brokerage accounts. Any company with experience
in contested situations would understand this. That the Company's counsel apparently does
not speaks volumes about the Board's preparedness to navigate a proxy contest—and
further underscores the need for the governance refresh we are seeking.

To be clear: Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. hereby reiterates, in full, the books and records
demand set forth in its December 19, 2025 letter. To the extent the Company contends that
Equiniti's records reflect a different entity name, any such error is Equiniti's to correct—it
does not vitiate the demand, and it does not restart the Company's response deadlines. The
Company received a valid demand from the actual beneficial and record owner of the
shares on December 19, 2025. The Company's obligations under Rule 14a-7 and Section
33-16-102 were triggered on that date, and the Company may not use a ministerial
transcription error by its own transfer agent to buy itself additional time.

THE COMPANY HAS VIOLATED RULE 14A-7.
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Daily Journal Corporation

December 24, 2025

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

I11.

Our December 19, 2025 letter was an unambiguous written request by a record holder to
inspect and copy the shareholder list in connection with a proxy solicitation. Rule 14a-7(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 provides that upon such a request, "regardless of
whether the request references this section," the registrant shall:

"(1) Deliver to the requesting security holder within five business days after receipt
of the request:

(1) Notification as to whether the registrant has elected to mail the security
holder's soliciting materials or provide a security holder list...

(i1) A statement of the approximate number of record holders and beneficial
holders..."

See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-7(a)(1).

The Company's December 24, 2025 response does not comply with Rule 14a-7. It does
not notify us whether the Company has elected to mail our soliciting materials or provide
a shareholder list. It does not provide a statement of the approximate number of record
holders and beneficial holders. Instead, it raises a frivolous technicality about entity names
and purports to condition access on the submission of a "new demand."

Rule 14a-7 does not permit such gamesmanship. The rule applies "regardless of whether
the request references this section." Our December 19 demand was plainly a request for
shareholder list information in connection with a proxy solicitation. The Company's five-
business-day deadline under Rule 14a-7 is December 29, 2025 (accounting for the
December 25 holiday). We expect full compliance by that date.

Rule 14a-7(a)(2)(ii) further requires the registrant to deliver shareholder list information
"in the form requested by the security holder to the extent that such form is available to the
registrant without undue burden or expense." Our December 19 demand specifically
requested electronic formats, including Microsoft Excel. The Company's invitation to
"visit" its Los Angeles office to manually inspect paper records is not compliant with either
the letter or the spirit of Rule 14a-7. We demand electronic delivery of the shareholder list
and related information as specified in our December 19 demand, as is customary.

THE COMPANY'S REFUSAL TO COMPLY WITH SECTION 33-16-102 IS
IMPROPER.

With respect to the records demanded under Section 33-16-102(b) of the South Carolina
Business Corporation Act, Mr. Knowlton's letter asserts that the Company "has grounds to
doubt [our] good faith" because our demand "goes well beyond what [we] know a
stockholder is entitled to inspect under South Carolina law."
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This is legally incorrect. A shareholder does not forfeit its inspection rights by requesting
more documents than the corporation believes it may ultimately be entitled to receive. The
statute requires that the demand be made "in good faith and for a proper purpose" and that
the requested records be "directly connected with" that purpose. S.C. Code Ann. § 33-16-
102(c). Our demand clearly stated proper purposes—investigating potential
mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal controls; evaluating
director and officer qualifications and performance; and assessing the adequacy of the
Company's financial reporting.

The Company's characterization of our purposes as lacking "good faith" is not only legally
baseless but also defamatory. We are a shareholder of this Company. We have identified
serious accounting and disclosure failures that the Company has tacitly acknowledged
through remedial actions (including the CFO's departure and the belated Section 16
filings). We are engaged in a proxy solicitation seeking Board reconstitution. These are
quintessentially "proper purposes" under South Carolina law.

Mr. Knowlton's letter characterizes our activities as "attempts to threaten the Company and
its directors and officers." This is false and defamatory.

First, we never "threatened" to refer the Company to the SEC. We already had referred
the Company to the SEC's Division of Enforcement before any Company representative
claimed otherwise. When Steven Myhill-Jones falsely characterized our prior referral as a
"threat" in the Company's July 29, 2025 Form 8-K, we had already notified him on July
23, 2025 that the referral had been made. The Company's continued mischaracterization
of this timeline—now repeated by Mr. Knowlton—is yet another example of the pattern of
false statements that pervades this Company's public disclosures.

Second, it is entirely proper—indeed, it is a public service—to inform the Chair of an Audit
Committee who is a licensed attorney that continued violations of federal securities laws
may result in a referral to the California State Bar. John B. Frank, Esq. has professional
obligations under the California Rules of Professional Conduct, including the duty not to
commit acts involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, or corruption. Notifying a lawyer that
his conduct may implicate those obligations is not a "threat"—it is a courtesy that provides
him the opportunity to remediate before formal action is taken. Corporate fiduciaries, and
especially those who are licensed attorneys, are expected to uphold federal securities laws
without having to be told to do so. The fact that this Board apparently requires such
reminders is itself an indictment of its governance.

Identifying violations of federal securities laws and holding directors accountable for those
violations is not improper conduct—it is the exercise of rights that every shareholder
possesses. The Company's attempt to reframe legitimate shareholder oversight as "threats"
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IVv.

is precisely the kind of entrenchment behavior that underscores the need for Board
reconstitution.

If the Company continues to refuse to produce records to which we are entitled under
Section 33-16-102, we reserve the right to seek a court order under Section 33-16-104,
together with an award of costs and attorney's fees as provided by that section.

For the avoidance of doubt, Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. hereby reiterates its demand for
the records specified in Part II of its December 19, 2025 letter pursuant to Section 33-16-
102. To the extent the Company contends that Equiniti's records reflect a different entity
name, any such error does not vitiate the demand, and it does not restart the five-business-
day response period under Section 33-16-102(a). The Company received a valid demand
from the actual shareholder of record on December 19, 2025, and the Company's
obligations under South Carolina law were triggered on that date.

WE WILL NOT ROUTE COMMUNICATIONS THROUGH OUTSIDE
COUNSEL.

Mr. Knowlton's letter "requests" that we direct all future correspondence to outside
counsel. We decline.

We have documented extensive violations of federal securities laws at this Company—and
those violations remain ongoing and unremediated. Rasool Rayani, an Audit Committee
member, remains in violation of Section 16(a) to this day. Steven Myhill-Jones has still
not corrected his falsified Form 3 filing from December 16, 2024, which falsely stated the
"Date of Event Requiring Statement" as December 11, 2024, when his employment began
nearly two years earlier. Nor has Mr. Myhill-Jones filed the separate Form 4 that was
required to report his acquisition of 400 shares—an acquisition he attempted to improperly
cram into his defective Form 3 to obscure his dual Form 3 and Form 4 violations. The
Company also has several far-delinquent Form 8-K disclosures under Item 5.05 that were
required to report the implicit waivers of the Company's Code of Ethics arising from these
Section 16(a) failures—as well as the willful false certifications under 18 U.S.C. § 1350
that Mr. Myhill-Jones and former CFO Tu To signed on August 14, 2025, after having
been put on written notice of the Company's GAAP and Regulation S-X violations. These
violations have occurred on the watch of the Company's directors and officers. Those
directors and officers will not be permitted to insulate themselves from accountability by
routing shareholder communications through intermediaries.

As we have stated in prior correspondence: if any director or officer later claims ignorance
of the issues we have raised, we want there to be no ambiguity that they received our
communications directly. Given the Company's demonstrated pattern of willful
noncompliance, we will not provide any basis for plausible deniability.
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We will continue to communicate directly with the Company's Corporate Secretary, Board
members, and officers as appropriate. Copies of this letter are being sent to outside counsel
as a courtesy, not as an acknowledgment that such routing is required or appropriate.

V. DEMAND AND RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.

We demand that the Company:

a)
b)

c)

d)

e)

Immediately produce a copy of the transfer agent records it claims show ownership
by "Buxton Helmsley, Inc." rather than "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.";

If those records reflect an error, immediately cause the transfer agent to correct the
records;

No later than December 29, 2025, provide the notification and information required
by Rule 14a-7(a)(1), including whether the Company elects to mail our soliciting
materials or provide a shareholder list, and a statement of the approximate number
of record and beneficial holders;

Provide the shareholder list and related information in the electronic formats
specified in our December 19, 2025 demand; and

Produce the records specified in Part II of our December 19, 2025 demand,
consistent with Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act.

If the Company fails to comply with its obligations under Rule 14a-7 and Section 33-16-
102, we will not hesitate to seek judicial relief and to refer the matter to the Division of
Enforcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission. We note that obstruction of a proxy
solicitation through refusal to provide shareholder list access is precisely the type of conduct that
warrants SEC attention, particularly where—as here—it is part of a broader pattern of disclosure
and compliance failures. Continued obstruction by the Board and its counsel will only aid us in a
proxy contest, indicating a negative inference as to the documents that would be produced,
underscoring how much the Company has lost its way of transparency and ethics since the passing
of Mr. Munger.

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law.
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Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

cc: John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation
Robert Y. Knowlton, Esq., Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A.
Brett Rodda, Esq., Baker McKenzie
Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner

Enclosure: Exhibit A — DRS Position Transfer Confirmation
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https://ndcdyn.interactivebrokers.com/AccountManagement/AmAuthentication?action=TransactionHistory#!#317c98ec-c4c1-4ade-b2d9-a274e38e844c

Transaction Status & History

Outbound Position - DRS

Your DRS position transfer request has been completed and the transferred assets are now available.

Reference Number

Status

Request Date

Account ID

Account Title

Date Processed

Asset Type Description

Stock DAILY JOURNAL CORP

Contra Broker

Account Number at Transfer Agent

Account Title

Tax Identification Number

474166336

Available

2025-12-15

U23254158

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

2025-12-18
Identifiers Quantity
Symbol: DJCO 1

DRS

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

w4084
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: enakamura@journaltech.com
Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet; Relampagos, Stella C.; christopher.krogh@bakertilly.com
Subject: RE: Daily Journal Corporation - Notice Regarding Potential Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350
Date: Wednesday, December 24, 2025 5:01:00 PM
Attachments: 20251221 - Private Letter to Frank and Conlin re Active Form 8-K Failures.pdf
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20251224 - Response to December 24 Letter re Books and Records Demand.pdf
Knowilton letter to Parker re demand 12007669.1.pdf
20251219 - Books and Records Demand (EXECUTED).pdf

Importance: High
Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Nakamura,

We are forwarding the attached letters for your review:

1. Our letter dated December 21, 2025, addressed to Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin regarding
additional Audit Committee failures, undisclosed implicit waivers of the Company's Code of
Ethics, and missing Form 8-K filings under Item 5.05; and

2. Our letter dated December 24, 2025, responding to the Company's December 24, 2025, letter
rejecting our books and records demand (our initial books and records demand, and

according December 24 response to it from the Company, also attached).

We are copying you on these communications so that you have no plausible deniability regarding
the false statements the Company is making and the ongoing violations that remain unremediated.

In particular, we draw your attention to the following:

® The December 21 letter documents additional disclosure violations that were not addressed
in our December 19 letter to you, including the Company's failure to file Form 8-Ks under Item
5.05 disclosing implicit waivers of the Code of Ethics arising from years-long Section 16(a)
failures by multiple directors and officers, Mr. Myhill-Jones' Form 3 containing false
representations, and the willful false SOX certifications signed by Mr. Myhill-Jones and former
CFO Tu To on August 14, 2025.

® The December 24 letter documents that the Company, through outside counsel, has made
demonstrably false claims about Equiniti's transfer agent records. The attached broker
confirmation proves the transfer was initiated for Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.—not the entity

name the Company claims appears in the records.

This is a pattern. The July 29, 2025, Form 8-K was falsely dated. That filing contained false
statements about Buxton Helmsley. The Company has made no effort to correct those false
statements despite being on notice for five months. Now the Company, through its counsel, has
made additional false statements. And the disclosure violations documented in the December 21
letter remain unremediated.

As we stated in our December 19 letter to you: if you sign a Form 10-K that perpetuates these
violations, you will be certifying financial statements that you know do not fairly present the financial
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December 21, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attn: John B. Frank, Chair of Audit Committee

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice of Additional Audit
Committee Failures; Undisclosed Implicit Waivers of Code of Ethics; Missing Form 8-K
Filings Under Item 5.05

Dear Mr. Frank (and Ms. Conlin):

After further investigation alongside advisors and counsel over the weekend, we write
again to now put you on formal notice—in your capacity as Chair of the Audit Committee of the
Company—of additional failures by the Audit Committee to discharge its oversight
responsibilities. Specifically, the Audit Committee has failed to ensure the Company’s compliance
with Item 5.05 of Form 8-K, which requires disclosure of waivers (including implicit waivers) of
the Company’s Code of Ethics, filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2020 (the "Code of Ethics"). These failures compound the governance
deficiencies we have previously identified and further demonstrate the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

You will note Mr. Rayani is not copied on this new correspondence (only copying Ms.
Conlin and Baker Tilly), as will be clear by the end.

It is worth noting, at the forefront, that we have now discovered that Steven Myhill-Jones—
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer—was also in violation of his Section 16(a) filing
obligations. This means that four out of four current directors failed to comply with basic federal
securities law reporting requirements. One hundred percent of the Board. The CEO’s delinquent
Form 3 was not filed until December 16, 2024—nearly three years late—and, as detailed below,
that filing appears to have been deliberately structured to conceal the full extent of his violations.
The Form 3 falsely reports Mr. Myhill-Jones owned shares before beginning his service at the
Company when, by his own admission (we include a quote below), he had never purchased a single
share of Company stock. The 400 shares reported were granted to him after he became CEO—an
acquisition that should have been reported on a separate Form 4, with a transaction date, which
Mr. Myhill-Jones conspicuously omitted. This is the same executive who backdated the
Company’s July 29, 2025, Form 8-K to July 26, 2025, to conceal the Board’s failure to timely
disclose its accounting investigation into the issues raised by us. The pattern is unmistakable:

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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when faced with disclosure failures, this CEO’s instinct is not to remedy them but to falsify filings
to cover them up.

Given no response yet to our December 18, 2025, letter informing of our possible referral
of the violations of federal law you are continuing to stand behind, we are increasingly believing
that either you or Ms. Conlin must believe (there must be a majority consensus among Audit
Committee members) that, as Mr. Rayani admitted belief himself, federal securities laws are
“flimsy technicalities”. We stand firm on our deadline of hearing from you by tomorrow,
December 22, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time, or we intend to proceed with the contemplated
California State Bar complaint filing, which will be publicly filed with a copy to the Chevron
fiduciaries and shareholders who are then also likely to be harmed by your then-apparent disdain
for federal securities laws. We are certain Beachbody Company Inc.’s remaining Audit Committee
members (where Ms. Conlin also serves), not to mention shareholders, would also be appalled if
they knew one of their Audit Committee members had such a disregard for federal securities laws.
We have offered you and Mary Murphy Conlin a path to preserving your seats on the Board of the
Company, and hope you both will realize the self-destructive effects of not taking it. I will praise
both you and Ms. Conlin in a press release announcing our cooperation agreement, but will do the
very opposite if this proceeds any further to a proxy contest.

* * *

I UNDISCLOSED SECTION 16 VIOLATIONS AND IMPLICIT WAIVERS.

As detailed in our December 13, 2025 correspondence, multiple members of the Board—
including two members of the Audit Committee—filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that
were delinquent by as many as six years. The specifics bear repeating:

*  You, John B. Frank: Became a director in February 2022. Filed Form 3 and Form
4 on October 3, 2025—more than three and a half years after the statutory deadline.

*  Mary Murphy Conlin: Became a director in May 2019. Filed Form 3 and Form 4
on October 3, 2025—more than six years after the statutory deadline.

* Rasool Rayani: Became a director in June 2024. As of the date of this letter, Mr.
Rayani has still not filed his required Form 3 or any required Form 4 reports—a
delinquency now exceeding eighteen months.

+ Steven Myhill-Jones: Became acting Chief Executive Officer on March 28, 2022.
Filed his Form 3 on December 16, 2024—approximately two years and nine months
after the statutory deadline. As discussed further below, Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form
3 filing contains additional deficiencies that warrant separate examination, as we
do below.

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors and officers to file
a Form 3 within ten days of becoming a reporting person and a Form 4 within two business
days of any transaction in the Company’s securities.
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II.

Section D(2) of the Company’s Code of Ethics—"Timely and Truthful Disclosure"—
provides:

"In reports and documents filed with or submitted to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and other regulators, and in other public communications made by the
Company, the Company’s directors, officers and employees involved in the
preparation of such reports, documents and communications shall make
disclosures that are full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable."”

Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics—"Legal Compliance"—provides:

"In conducting the business of the Company, all directors, officers and employees
shall comply with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations at all levels
of government in the United States and in any non-U.S. jurisdiction in which the
Company does business."

The years-long failures by Messrs. Frank, Rayani, and Myhill-Jones, and Ms. Conlin, to
comply with Section 16(a) filing requirements are violations of both Section D(2) and
Section D(3) of the Code of Ethics. The Company’s failure to take action against these
violations constitutes an "implicit waiver" under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K.

The Company has never filed a Form 8-K disclosing these implicit waivers. Item
5.05(b) of Form 8-K requires disclosure within four business days of any waiver, including
any implicit waiver, granted to a director or executive officer. An "implicit waiver" is
defined as the company's failure to take action within a reasonable period of time regarding
a material departure from a provision of the code of ethics that has been made known to
the company.

The Audit Committee—which you chair—has, on top of everything else, failed to ensure
the Company’s compliance with these additional disclosure requirements. The Company
was required to file Form 8-Ks disclosing the implicit waivers granted to each of these
individuals. It did not. This is a separate and independent disclosure failure layered on top
of the underlying Section 16 violations.

STEVEN MYHILL-JONES’ DEFECTIVE FORM 3 FILING.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3, filed December 16, 2024, warrants separate examination
because it appears to have been structured to conceal, rather than remedy, his Section 16
violations (just the same as Mr. Myhill-Jones’ July 29 Form 8-K was apparent to be
structured to conceal his disclosure violations there, too).
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To begin, Mr. Myahill-Jones falsely stated the “Date of Event Requiring Statement” as
December 11, 2024, knowing very well that his employment started nearly two years
before that date.

Further, a Form 3 is an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership of Securities." As earlier
noted, Form 3 is required to be filed within ten days of a person becoming a director or
officer. It reports the securities beneficially owned by the reporting person as of the date
they became a reporting person (indisputable by the “initial statement” form header)—not
as of the date the form is filed.

Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 on December 16, 2024, reported that he beneficially owned 400
shares of Company common stock at the time he began service at the Company. However,
at the Company’s February 15, 2023, annual shareholder meeting, Mr. Myhill-Jones stated:
"while I don’t have equity yet, I'm certainly keen to participate in the future growth of the
business..." If Mr. Myhill-Jones had never purchased shares of Company stock, then he
could not have owned 400 shares as of March 28, 2022—the date he became acting CEO
and the date as of which he was being asked to report ownership for.

As then admitted by Mr. Myhill-Jones himself, the 400 shares reported on Mr. Myhill-
Jones’ Form 3 were granted to him after he became CEO—mnot shares he owned when he
initially assumed the role. Any acquisition of shares after becoming a reporting person was
required to be reported on a Form 4, not a Form 3. Form 4 requires disclosure of the
transaction date, the nature of the transaction, and the number of shares acquired or
disposed of. Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 contains none of this information because there is
no place on a Form 3 to report it—Form 3 is not designed to report acquisitions, only initial
holdings at the time of beginning service.

The structure of Mr. Myhill-Jones’ filing suggests an attempt to mask a dual violation—
the failure to timely file a Form 3 and the failure to timely file a Form 4 reporting a stock
grant—by combining both into a single, defective Form 3 that obscures the date and nature
of the acquisition. The failure to disclose the grant date is particularly notable; without it,
shareholders cannot determine when the violation occurred or how long it went unreported.

This, too, required an Item 5.05 Form 8-K disclosure for his personal disclosure violations.
The Company has never filed one. Nor did the Company disclose Mr. Myhill-Jones'
implicit waiver in its proxy statement filed January 8, 2025—which was filed after his
defective Form 3 but made no mention of his years-long Section 16 delinquency or the
implicit waiver it necessarily entailed.

THE AUGUST 14, 2025 FORM 10-Q: WILLFUL FALSE CERTIFICATION.

On August 14, 2025, Mr. Myhill-Jones and then-Chief Financial Officer Tu To signed and
filed the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2025. In connection with
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that filing, both executives provided certifications pursuant to Section 302 and Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, certifying that the financial statements "fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations" of the Company.

Those certifications were false when made. More importantly, Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms.
To knew they were false when they signed them.

Between July 14, 2025, and July 29, 2025, Buxton Helmsley sent five separate letters to
the Board detailing material violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("GAAP") and SEC reporting requirements in the Company’s financial statements. Any
jury of reasonable minds (or your peers at the California State Bar) would have understood
the contents of those letters, for which Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To decided to bury their
heads in the sand, in complete disregard of federal securities laws. Our letters of July 14,
July 18, July 23, July 28, and July 29, 2025, explained in detail:

» The Company’s failure to capitalize software development costs as required by
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20");

* The Company’s failure to separately disclose research and development expenses
as required by Regulation S-X § 210.5-03; and

» The materiality of these violations, given the Company’s own admission in its SEC
filings that software development costs are “significant” (there is no dispute of
materiality under Regulation S-X).

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To received these letters. They were on notice that the
Company’s financial reporting had long violated GAAP and Regulation S-X. They were
on notice that the financial statements they were about to certify were going to continue
those violations of GAAP and Regulation S-X. They signed anyway.

Section D(1) of the Code of Ethics—"Honest and Ethical Conduct"—provides:

"All directors, officers and employees shall behave honestly and ethically at all
times and with all people.... They shall not misrepresent facts or engage in illegal,
unethical, or anti-competitive practices for personal or professional gain."”

Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To engaged in clearly illegal practices—the willful false
certification of financial statements under 18 U.S.C. § 1350—for professional gain. They
signed the certifications to keep their jobs. They were given clear details to know that the
financial reporting was misstated and non-compliant (even if they wanted to argue they did
not understand the GAAP issues, the Regulation S-X issue of not separately disclosing
research and development was indisputable, as they already admitted those expenses to be
“significant”, which clearly met the materiality threshold for requiring separate disclosure
pursuant to Regulation S-X). They signed anyway.
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The Audit Committee’s failure to take action against this conduct constitutes another
implicit waiver requiring Form 8-K disclosure under Item 5.05. No such Form 8-K has
been filed.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.
Let us be direct about what has occurred:

* Four directors and officers violated Section 16(a) filing requirements—some for
more than six years.

* The Company took no action against any of them.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waivers.

* The Company’s CEO attempted to mask his dual Section 16 violations with a
defective Form 3 filing, falsely dating it and attempting to combine it with the
contents of a Form 4 to minimize the appearance of the violations.

* The CEO and CFO signed knowingly false Sarbanes-Oxley certifications after
being put on written notice of GAAP violations.

* The Company filed no Form 8-K disclosing the implicit waiver of the Code of
Ethics arising from that conduct.

» The Company’s January 8, 2025, proxy statement made no mention of the implicit
waivers related to Mr. Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 and Form 4 disclosure violations.

This is not inadvertence. This is a pattern of concealment. The Audit Committee—which
you chair—has systematically failed to ensure the Company’s compliance with disclosure
requirements designed to inform shareholders when insiders have been permitted to violate
the Company’s own ethical standards.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the Audit Committee will not disclose when directors
violate basic filing requirements, and will not disclose when executives sign false
certifications, what else is being concealed? If these failures were mistakes and not in line
with your personal ethical standards as a securities lawyer expected to uphold the law, you
need to avoid any further delay in remediation of this Company’s governance and
compliance failures.

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you, as Audit Committee Chair, of the

failures described herein. Any further delay by the Audit Committee to address these matters—
including by ensuring appropriate disclosure in the Company’s forthcoming proxy statement—
will be considered in connection with our pending notice of potential referral to the State Bar of
California regarding your professional conduct.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.
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Cc:

Respectfully,

Ao—————

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Mary Murphy Conlin (Audit Committee member, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 24, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attention: Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary

Re:

Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company’’) — Response to December 24, 2025
Letter; Demand Under Rule 14a-7 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; Continued
Demand Under Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act

Dear Mr. Cardile:

We are in receipt of the letter dated December 24, 2025, from Robert Y. Knowlton of

Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A., purportedly responding to our December 19, 2025 demand to
inspect the books and records of the Company. That response is inadequate, reflects yet another
misrepresentation by or on behalf of the Company, and fails to satisfy the Company's obligations
under both state and federal law.

I.

THE COMPANY IS MISREPRESENTING THE TRANSFER AGENT RECORDS.

Mr. Knowlton's letter claims that "the records of Equiniti, the Company's transfer agent,
show one share now being owned by an entity called 'Buxton Helmsley, Inc."" This is false.

Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a copy of the DRS position transfer confirmation from
Interactive Brokers, the broker that initiated the transfer. As the confirmation plainly
shows, the transfer was initiated for "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc."—not "Buxton
Helmsley, Inc." The confirmation reflects:

* Account Title (at broker): Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

* Account Title at Transfer Agent: Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
* Request Date: December 15, 2025

e Date Processed: December 18, 2025

"Buxton Helmsley, Inc." is a completely separate legal entity from "Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc." Our broker does not have an account for any entity called "Buxton Helmsley,
Inc.," nor is our broker aware of any such entity. It would have been impossible for our
broker to initiate a transfer for an entity for which it has no account and no record.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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II.

Either the Company's transfer agent made a transcription error, or the Company (through
its counsel) is misrepresenting the contents of the transfer agent's records. Given the
Company's well-documented pattern of making false statements—including the falsely
dated July 29, 2025, Form 8-K, the demonstrably false claims about Buxton Helmsley's
regulatory status in that same filing, and the ongoing failure to correct those false
statements despite being put on notice five months ago—shareholders are entitled to be
skeptical of any factual representation made by or on behalf of this Company.

We demand that the Company immediately produce a copy of the transfer agent records it
claims to have reviewed. If those records reflect an error, we demand that the Company
cause Equiniti to correct its records to reflect the actual registered owner: Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc.

In any event, the Company's own letter acknowledges that the transfer was completed as
of December 18, 2025—one day before our December 19, 2025 demand was submitted.
Whether the transfer agent's records reflect "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc." (as they should)
or "Buxton Helmsley, Inc." (if in error), the undisputed fact is that a Buxton Helmsley
USA, Inc. should have been a record shareholder of the Company as of December 18, 2025,
and the Company received a valid demand on December 19, 2025. The Company cannot
use a ministerial transcription error—if one exists—to evade its legal obligations.

We also note the Company's apparent fixation on the fact that the transfer agent records
reflect "one share." Mr. Knowlton's letter underlines this phrase as if it were significant.
It is not. It is standard practice for activist investors conducting proxy contests to transfer
a nominal number of shares—often a single share—into record name for the purpose of
establishing standing to make books and records demands and exercise other shareholder
rights that require record holder status. The bulk of an activist's economic position is
typically held in street name through brokerage accounts. Any company with experience
in contested situations would understand this. That the Company's counsel apparently does
not speaks volumes about the Board's preparedness to navigate a proxy contest—and
further underscores the need for the governance refresh we are seeking.

To be clear: Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. hereby reiterates, in full, the books and records
demand set forth in its December 19, 2025 letter. To the extent the Company contends that
Equiniti's records reflect a different entity name, any such error is Equiniti's to correct—it
does not vitiate the demand, and it does not restart the Company's response deadlines. The
Company received a valid demand from the actual beneficial and record owner of the
shares on December 19, 2025. The Company's obligations under Rule 14a-7 and Section
33-16-102 were triggered on that date, and the Company may not use a ministerial
transcription error by its own transfer agent to buy itself additional time.

THE COMPANY HAS VIOLATED RULE 14A-7.
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I11.

Our December 19, 2025 letter was an unambiguous written request by a record holder to
inspect and copy the shareholder list in connection with a proxy solicitation. Rule 14a-7(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 provides that upon such a request, "regardless of
whether the request references this section," the registrant shall:

"(1) Deliver to the requesting security holder within five business days after receipt
of the request:

(1) Notification as to whether the registrant has elected to mail the security
holder's soliciting materials or provide a security holder list...

(i1) A statement of the approximate number of record holders and beneficial
holders..."

See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-7(a)(1).

The Company's December 24, 2025 response does not comply with Rule 14a-7. It does
not notify us whether the Company has elected to mail our soliciting materials or provide
a shareholder list. It does not provide a statement of the approximate number of record
holders and beneficial holders. Instead, it raises a frivolous technicality about entity names
and purports to condition access on the submission of a "new demand."

Rule 14a-7 does not permit such gamesmanship. The rule applies "regardless of whether
the request references this section." Our December 19 demand was plainly a request for
shareholder list information in connection with a proxy solicitation. The Company's five-
business-day deadline under Rule 14a-7 is December 29, 2025 (accounting for the
December 25 holiday). We expect full compliance by that date.

Rule 14a-7(a)(2)(ii) further requires the registrant to deliver shareholder list information
"in the form requested by the security holder to the extent that such form is available to the
registrant without undue burden or expense." Our December 19 demand specifically
requested electronic formats, including Microsoft Excel. The Company's invitation to
"visit" its Los Angeles office to manually inspect paper records is not compliant with either
the letter or the spirit of Rule 14a-7. We demand electronic delivery of the shareholder list
and related information as specified in our December 19 demand, as is customary.

THE COMPANY'S REFUSAL TO COMPLY WITH SECTION 33-16-102 IS
IMPROPER.

With respect to the records demanded under Section 33-16-102(b) of the South Carolina
Business Corporation Act, Mr. Knowlton's letter asserts that the Company "has grounds to
doubt [our] good faith" because our demand "goes well beyond what [we] know a
stockholder is entitled to inspect under South Carolina law."
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This is legally incorrect. A shareholder does not forfeit its inspection rights by requesting
more documents than the corporation believes it may ultimately be entitled to receive. The
statute requires that the demand be made "in good faith and for a proper purpose" and that
the requested records be "directly connected with" that purpose. S.C. Code Ann. § 33-16-
102(c). Our demand clearly stated proper purposes—investigating potential
mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal controls; evaluating
director and officer qualifications and performance; and assessing the adequacy of the
Company's financial reporting.

The Company's characterization of our purposes as lacking "good faith" is not only legally
baseless but also defamatory. We are a shareholder of this Company. We have identified
serious accounting and disclosure failures that the Company has tacitly acknowledged
through remedial actions (including the CFO's departure and the belated Section 16
filings). We are engaged in a proxy solicitation seeking Board reconstitution. These are
quintessentially "proper purposes" under South Carolina law.

Mr. Knowlton's letter characterizes our activities as "attempts to threaten the Company and
its directors and officers." This is false and defamatory.

First, we never "threatened" to refer the Company to the SEC. We already had referred
the Company to the SEC's Division of Enforcement before any Company representative
claimed otherwise. When Steven Myhill-Jones falsely characterized our prior referral as a
"threat" in the Company's July 29, 2025 Form 8-K, we had already notified him on July
23, 2025 that the referral had been made. The Company's continued mischaracterization
of this timeline—now repeated by Mr. Knowlton—is yet another example of the pattern of
false statements that pervades this Company's public disclosures.

Second, it is entirely proper—indeed, it is a public service—to inform the Chair of an Audit
Committee who is a licensed attorney that continued violations of federal securities laws
may result in a referral to the California State Bar. John B. Frank, Esq. has professional
obligations under the California Rules of Professional Conduct, including the duty not to
commit acts involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, or corruption. Notifying a lawyer that
his conduct may implicate those obligations is not a "threat"—it is a courtesy that provides
him the opportunity to remediate before formal action is taken. Corporate fiduciaries, and
especially those who are licensed attorneys, are expected to uphold federal securities laws
without having to be told to do so. The fact that this Board apparently requires such
reminders is itself an indictment of its governance.

Identifying violations of federal securities laws and holding directors accountable for those
violations is not improper conduct—it is the exercise of rights that every shareholder
possesses. The Company's attempt to reframe legitimate shareholder oversight as "threats"
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IVv.

is precisely the kind of entrenchment behavior that underscores the need for Board
reconstitution.

If the Company continues to refuse to produce records to which we are entitled under
Section 33-16-102, we reserve the right to seek a court order under Section 33-16-104,
together with an award of costs and attorney's fees as provided by that section.

For the avoidance of doubt, Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. hereby reiterates its demand for
the records specified in Part II of its December 19, 2025 letter pursuant to Section 33-16-
102. To the extent the Company contends that Equiniti's records reflect a different entity
name, any such error does not vitiate the demand, and it does not restart the five-business-
day response period under Section 33-16-102(a). The Company received a valid demand
from the actual shareholder of record on December 19, 2025, and the Company's
obligations under South Carolina law were triggered on that date.

WE WILL NOT ROUTE COMMUNICATIONS THROUGH OUTSIDE
COUNSEL.

Mr. Knowlton's letter "requests" that we direct all future correspondence to outside
counsel. We decline.

We have documented extensive violations of federal securities laws at this Company—and
those violations remain ongoing and unremediated. Rasool Rayani, an Audit Committee
member, remains in violation of Section 16(a) to this day. Steven Myhill-Jones has still
not corrected his falsified Form 3 filing from December 16, 2024, which falsely stated the
"Date of Event Requiring Statement" as December 11, 2024, when his employment began
nearly two years earlier. Nor has Mr. Myhill-Jones filed the separate Form 4 that was
required to report his acquisition of 400 shares—an acquisition he attempted to improperly
cram into his defective Form 3 to obscure his dual Form 3 and Form 4 violations. The
Company also has several far-delinquent Form 8-K disclosures under Item 5.05 that were
required to report the implicit waivers of the Company's Code of Ethics arising from these
Section 16(a) failures—as well as the willful false certifications under 18 U.S.C. § 1350
that Mr. Myhill-Jones and former CFO Tu To signed on August 14, 2025, after having
been put on written notice of the Company's GAAP and Regulation S-X violations. These
violations have occurred on the watch of the Company's directors and officers. Those
directors and officers will not be permitted to insulate themselves from accountability by
routing shareholder communications through intermediaries.

As we have stated in prior correspondence: if any director or officer later claims ignorance
of the issues we have raised, we want there to be no ambiguity that they received our
communications directly. Given the Company's demonstrated pattern of willful
noncompliance, we will not provide any basis for plausible deniability.
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We will continue to communicate directly with the Company's Corporate Secretary, Board
members, and officers as appropriate. Copies of this letter are being sent to outside counsel
as a courtesy, not as an acknowledgment that such routing is required or appropriate.

V. DEMAND AND RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.

We demand that the Company:

a)
b)

c)

d)

e)

Immediately produce a copy of the transfer agent records it claims show ownership
by "Buxton Helmsley, Inc." rather than "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.";

If those records reflect an error, immediately cause the transfer agent to correct the
records;

No later than December 29, 2025, provide the notification and information required
by Rule 14a-7(a)(1), including whether the Company elects to mail our soliciting
materials or provide a shareholder list, and a statement of the approximate number
of record and beneficial holders;

Provide the shareholder list and related information in the electronic formats
specified in our December 19, 2025 demand; and

Produce the records specified in Part II of our December 19, 2025 demand,
consistent with Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act.

If the Company fails to comply with its obligations under Rule 14a-7 and Section 33-16-
102, we will not hesitate to seek judicial relief and to refer the matter to the Division of
Enforcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission. We note that obstruction of a proxy
solicitation through refusal to provide shareholder list access is precisely the type of conduct that
warrants SEC attention, particularly where—as here—it is part of a broader pattern of disclosure
and compliance failures. Continued obstruction by the Board and its counsel will only aid us in a
proxy contest, indicating a negative inference as to the documents that would be produced,
underscoring how much the Company has lost its way of transparency and ethics since the passing
of Mr. Munger.

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law.
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Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

cc: John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation
Robert Y. Knowlton, Esq., Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A.
Brett Rodda, Esq., Baker McKenzie
Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner

Enclosure: Exhibit A — DRS Position Transfer Confirmation
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ROBERT Y. KNOWLTON
DIRECT 803.540.7843
bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com

December 24, 2025

Via email (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com)

Alexander E. Parker

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
1185 Avenue of the Americas
Third Floor

New York, NY 10036-2600

Re:  Demand pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act
Dear Mr. Parker:

Daily Journal Corporation (the “Company”) is in receipt of your letter dated December 19, 2025
demanding to inspect the books and records of the Company pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the
South Carolina Business Corporation Act.

You state in the letter that Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. is a registered stockholder of the Company,
but that does not appear true. Rather, effective December 18, 2025, the records of Equiniti, the
Company’s transfer agent, show one share now being owned by an entity called “Buxton Helmsley,
Inc.” We assume this is an entity affiliated with Buxton Hemsley USA, Inc., and upon a new demand
from the actual stockholder of record, the Company will grant that entity or its agent or attorney
access to the records required by Section 33-16-102(a).

In that regard, one or more representatives of Buxton Helmsley, Inc. are invited to visit the
Company’s principal office at 915 East First Street, Los Angeles, California 90012, during regular
business hours, to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom the records of the Company specified
in Section 33-16-101(e). Because it appears that Buxton Helmsley, Inc. does not own at least 1% of
the Company’s outstanding stock, however, it will not be given access to the Company’s income tax
returns specified in Section 33-16-101(e)(8).

Please contact Brian Cardile, the Company’s Corporate Secretary, at bcardile@journaltech.com, to
request an appointment.

With respect to the records noted in Section 33-16-102(b), a stockholder is only entitled to inspect
those records if, among other things, the demand is made in good faith and for a proper purpose, with
the records directly related to such purpose. Given that your demand for documents goes well beyond
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Alexander E. Parker
December 24, 2025
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what you know a stockholder is entitled to inspect under South Carolina law, even with a proper
purpose, the Company has grounds to doubt your good faith. The Company believes that your request
is part of your ongoing attempts to threaten the Company and its directors and officers into entering
into a cooperation agreement with you in exchange for not running a proxy contest and not referring
them to the SEC and professional licensing bodies.

In addition, the Board has instructed me to request that you and your affiliates direct to both my office
and the office of Brett Rodda, Esquire, all future correspondence meant for the Company or its
directors and employees. My email address is bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com and my mailing address
is 1201 Main Street, Columbia, South Carolina 29201. Mr. Rodda’s email address is
Brett.Rodda@bakermckenzie.com, and his mailing address is 815 Connecticut Avenue NW, 12
Floor, Washington, D.C. 20006.

Sincerely,
ff‘/

Robert Y. Knowlton

//
/ Ff

f

RYK/kdp

Cc:  Brett Rodda, Esquire
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BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3
New York, N.Y. 10036-2600
December 19, 2025

VIA FEDEX AND EMAIL (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attention: Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary

Re: Demand to Inspect Books and Records Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South
Carolina Business Corporation Act

Dear Mr. Cardile:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., a New York corporation (the "Shareholder"), is—as of the
date set forth above—a record shareholder of Daily Journal Corporation (the "Corporation").

Reference is made to the Notice of Intent to Solicit Proxies in Support of Director
Nominees Pursuant to Rule 14a-19 Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, dated December
13, 2025 (the "Notice"). As further described in the Notice, the Shareholder intends to solicit
proxies in support of the nomination of certain persons for election to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation (the "Board") at the 2026 annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation,
expected to be held on or about February 19, 2026, including any adjournments or postponements
thereof or any special meeting that may be held in lieu thereof (the "2026 Annual Meeting").

I SHAREHOLDER LIST AND RELATED RECORDS

Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act of 1988
(the "SCBCA"), as a shareholder of the Corporation, the Shareholder hereby demands that
it and its attorneys, representatives and agents be given, during regular business hours and
at the Corporation's principal office or other reasonable location specified by the
Corporation, the opportunity to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom, the following
records of the Corporation for the purpose of (1) disseminating a definitive proxy statement
to the Corporation's shareholders in connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the
2026 Annual Meeting and (2) communicating with the Corporation's shareholders in
connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the 2026 Annual Meeting (the
"Demand"), including, but not limited to:

a) a complete record or list of the shareholders of the Corporation in electronic
medium form, certified by the Corporation's transfer agent(s) and/or registrar(s),
setting forth the name, address and email address of, and the number, series and
class of shares of stock of the Corporation held by, each shareholder as of the most













b)

d)

recent date available, and, when available, such list for each shareholder as of any
record date (the "Record Date") established or to be established for the 2026 Annual
Meeting or any other meeting of shareholders held in lieu thereof (the most recent
available date and any such record date, a "Determination Date");

a complete record or list of shareholders of the Corporation and respondent banks
who have elected to receive electronic copies of proxy materials with respect to
meetings of the shareholders of the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-16(j)(2) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), including,
for each such shareholder, the email address provided by such shareholder;

all transfer journals and daily transfer sheets showing changes in the names and
addresses of the Corporation's shareholders and the number, series or class of shares
of stock of the Corporation held by the Corporation's shareholders that are in or
come into the possession of the Corporation or its transfer agent(s), registrar(s), or
proxy solicitor(s), or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks,
clearing agencies or voting trusts or their nominees from the date of the shareholder
list referred to in paragraph (a) through the date of the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's or its transfer agent(s)' or
registrar(s)' or proxy solicitor(s)' possession, custody or control or that can
reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing agencies, voting
trusts or their nominees relating to the names and addresses and telephone numbers
of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation as of each
Determination Date held by the participating brokers and banks named in the
individual nominee names of Cede & Co. and other similar depositories or
nominees of any central certificate depository system, including respondent bank
lists, and all omnibus proxies and related respondent bank proxies and listings
issued pursuant to Rule 14b-2 under the Exchange Act, including a Weekly Report
of Security Position Listings from The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (a
"Weekly DTC Report") as of each Determination Date, and, following the setting
and occurrence of the Record Date, a Weekly DTC Report for each of the weeks
until the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's possession, custody or
control or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing
agencies, voting trusts or their nominees, relating to the names and addresses of,
and shares of stock of the Corporation held by, the non-objecting beneficial owners
(or "NOBOs") of the shares of stock of the Corporation as of each Determination
Date (or any other date established or obtained by the Corporation) pursuant to Rule
14b-1(c) or Rule 14b-2(c) under the Exchange Act, in Microsoft Excel, or, if the
information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel file, means by which the
Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft Excel file, and a hard copy
printout of such information in order of descending balance for verification
purposes. If such information is not in the Corporation's possession, custody, or
control, such information should be requested from Broadridge Financial Solutions,
Inc., Say Technologies, LLC, and Mediant Communications LLC, or any other
similar shareholder communications services company that has been engaged by
the Corporation to provide investor communications services in connection with a
meeting of shareholders;














f) an alphabetical breakdown of any holdings in the respective names of Cede & Co.
and other similar depositories or nominees, as well as any material request list
provided by Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and
Mediant Communications, LLC, and any omnibus proxies issued by such entities
in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. If such information is not in the
Corporation's possession, custody, or control, such information should be requested
from Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and Mediant
Communications, LLC;

g) all lists and electronic files (together with such computer processing data as is
necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such files) containing the name and
address of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation
attributable to any participant in any employee share ownership plan, stock
ownership dividend reinvestment, employee share purchase plan or other employee
compensation or benefit plan of the Corporation in which the decision to vote shares
of stock of the Corporation held by such plan is made, directly or indirectly,
individually or collectively, by the participants in the plan and the method(s) by
which the Shareholder or its agents may communicate with each such participant,
as well as the name, affiliation and telephone number of the trustee or administrator
of each such plan, and a detailed explanation of the treatment not only of shares for
which the trustee or administrator receives instructions from participants, but also
shares for which either the trustee or administrator does not receive instructions or
shares that are outstanding in the plan but are unallocated to any participant, in
Microsoft Excel, or, if the information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel
file, means by which the Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft
Excel file, and a hard copy printout of such information in alphabetical order for
verification purposes; and

h) to the extent not already referred to above, any electronic file which contains any
or all of the information encompassed in this Demand, together with any program,
software, manual, or other instructions necessary for the practical use of such
information.

The information and records specified in the foregoing paragraphs (a) through (h) should
be given as of the most recent available date and, unless stated otherwise, should be updated
as of the Record Date promptly as such information becomes available to the Corporation,
its registrar, its proxy solicitor, or any of the Corporation's or their respective agents.

To reiterate, all information requested in paragraphs (a) through (h) should be provided in
hard copy (paper) form, as well as CD-ROM format, electronically transmitted file, or
similar electronic medium (any such electronic storage medium, an "Electronic Medium"),
and such computer processing data as is necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such
list on an Electronic Medium; and a hard copy printout of the total aggregate accounts and
shares represented by such list on an Electronic Medium for verification purposes;
provided, however if the hard copy (paper) form exceeds fifty (50) printed pages then in
lieu of hard copy (paper), the Corporation should provide such data in an Electronic
Medium.














II.

ADDITIONAL BOOKS AND RECORDS

In addition to the shareholder list and related records described in Part I above, and pursuant
to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the Shareholder hereby demands the opportunity to
inspect and copy the following books and records of the Corporation for the purposes of
(1) investigating potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of
internal controls at the Corporation, (2) evaluating the qualifications, performance, and
independence of the Corporation's directors and officers, and (3) assessing the adequacy of
the Corporation's financial reporting and compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("GAAP"):

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

all minutes of meetings of the Board and any committee thereof, including but
not limited to the Audit Committee, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20"), (C)
capitalization of software development costs at Journal Technologies, Inc. or any
subsidiary or division of the Corporation, (D) any internal or external review,
investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices or policies,
or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

all written communications between the Corporation and its independent
auditors, including Baker Tilly US, LLP and any predecessor auditors, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, (D) any deficiency in internal controls over financial
reporting, (E) any disagreement between the Corporation and its auditors
regarding accounting treatment or disclosure, or (F) any management
representation letters provided to the auditors concerning software development
costs or related accounting policies;

all documents, reports, memoranda, presentations, and analyses prepared by or
for the Board, any committee thereof, or any officer of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to any internal
review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's software development
cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or potential GAAP
violations, including any reports or findings of internal or external counsel,
accountants, or other advisors retained in connection with any such review,
investigation, or inquiry;

all written communications sent or received by Tu To, in her capacity as Chief
Financial Officer or in any other capacity on behalf of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, or (D) any internal or external review, investigation, or
inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices;

all Audit Committee meeting materials, including agendas, presentations,
reports, and supporting documentation, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)
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ASC 985-20, (C) Journal Technologies, Inc., (D) any communication from the
Corporation's independent auditors regarding accounting policies or internal
controls, or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

(vi) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present, that discuss,
reference, or relate to (A) Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., Buxton Helmsley, Inc.,
or any affiliate thereof, (B) Alexander Parker, (C) any shareholder proposal,
nomination, or other communication received from Buxton Helmsley or Mr.
Parker, (D) any public statement or filing made by or concerning Buxton
Helmsley or Mr. Parker, or (E) the Corporation's response to any of the
foregoing;

(vii) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors and officers of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present,
that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) any investigation of the Corporation's
accounting practices initiated in response to concerns raised by shareholders, (B)
the scope, findings, or conclusions of any such investigation, or (C) any remedial
actions taken or considered in response to any such investigation;

(viii) all engagement letters, statements of work, and invoices from any outside
counsel, accounting firm, or other advisor retained by the Corporation in
connection with (A) any review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's
software development cost accounting practices or compliance with GAAP, or
(B) any response to shareholder concerns regarding the Corporation's accounting
practices; and

(ix) all documents and communications reflecting any communication between the
Corporation and the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board, or any other regulatory body, from January 1, 2020
to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to the Corporation's software
development cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or any
other accounting matter.

PURPOSE OF DEMAND

The purpose of the requests in Part [ of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder and certain
of its affiliates and representatives to communicate with other holders of common stock
with respect to matters relating to their interests as shareholders, including, without
limitation, an affiliate of the Shareholder soliciting proxies from the Corporation's
shareholders in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting.

The purpose of the requests in Part II of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder to (1)
investigate potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal
controls relating to the Corporation's accounting practices and financial reporting, (2)
evaluate the qualifications, performance, and independence of the Corporation's current
directors and officers, including their oversight of financial reporting and response to
shareholder concerns, (3) assess whether the Corporation's financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP and whether any restatement may be required, and (4)
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make an informed decision regarding how to vote its shares and communicate with other
shareholders at the 2026 Annual Meeting regarding the election of directors and other
matters.

The Shareholder represents that (i) it is seeking this inspection for a proper purpose
reasonably related to its interest as a shareholder, (ii) it describes with reasonable
particularity its purpose and the records it desires to inspect, (iii) the records requested are
directly connected with the Shareholder's purpose, and (iv) it will not sell the requested
information to any person, give the requested information to any competitor of the
Corporation, or otherwise use the information for any improper purpose.

The records enumerated in this Demand are directly connected with the above purposes of
this Demand and are reasonably related to the Shareholder's interests as a shareholder of
the Corporation.

CONTINUING DEMAND AND RESPONSE

This Demand is a continuing demand. The Shareholder demands that all modifications,
corrections, additions, or deletions to any and all information referred to in Parts I and II
above be immediately furnished to the Shareholder as such modifications, corrections,
additions, or deletions become available to the Corporation or its agents or representatives.

The Shareholder hereby designates the undersigned and any other persons designated by
them or by the Shareholder, acting singly or in any combination, to conduct the inspection
and copying herein requested. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the materials
identified above shall be made available to the Shareholder and its representatives initially
no later than five business days following the date hereof and each Determination Date.
All documents responsive to this Demand shall be produced in electronic format to the
extent such documents exist in electronic form or can reasonably be converted to electronic
form. Production shall be made by secure electronic transmission or other electronic means
agreed upon by the parties. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, you are required
to respond to this demand within five business days of the date hereof. Please advise the
Shareholder's legal department, at legal@buxtonhelmsley.com, as promptly as practicable
within the requisite timeframe.

If the Corporation contends that this request is incomplete or is otherwise deficient in any
respect, please immediately notify the Shareholder immediately in writing, setting forth
any facts that the Corporation contends support its position and specifying any additional
information believed to be required. In the absence of such prompt notice, the Shareholder
will assume that the Corporation agrees that this request complies in all respects with the
requirements of the SCBCA. The Shareholder reserves the right to withdraw or modify this
request at any time.

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS













This Demand is being made without prejudice to (i) any previous requests made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the Exchange Act, (ii) any previous demand made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the SCBCA or (iii) any other demands, which may be
made by the Shareholder or its affiliates, from time to time, whether pursuant to the
Exchange Act, the SCBCA, or other applicable federal or state law, or the Corporation's
organizational documents.

[Signature Page Follows]













Very truly yours,

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

A

By: boxsiGN 4K8WWQP1-1RV5Z5PR

Name: Alexander E. Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Cc: Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation













												alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com
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						Signed with Box Sign by Alexander Parker (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com)


































condition and results of operations of the Company and do not fully comply with SEC reporting
requirements. Such certification, made with knowledge of these deficiencies, would constitute a
willful false certification under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

We have also discovered that you are, on information and belief, not a licensed CPA. This does not
help your position—it makes it worse. A CPA who signs a false certification might at least attempt to
argue that they exercised professional judgment and reached a different conclusion on the
accounting issues. You cannot make that argument. You have no professional accounting
credentials that would permit you to second-guess the GAAP and Regulation S-X violations we have
documented—particularly when we have provided you authoritative AICPA guidance establishing
that the Company's financial reporting is non-compliant.

To be clear: you have been told, in writing, by a shareholder with a dual-CPA/Certified Fraud
Examiner on its board of directors—who is also on the board of the AICPA, the very organization that
develops and grades the CPA exam—that the Company's financial statements do not comply with
GAAP and Regulation S-X. We have laid out the applicable standards in detail. If you nonetheless
sign a Form 10-K certifying those financial statements, you will be signing a certification you have no
professional basis to believe is true. That is the definition of willfulness under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

You cannot later claim you did not know.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212)641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Parker, Alexander E.

Sent: Friday, December 19, 2025 4:51 PM

To: 'enakamura@journaltech.com' <enakamura@journaltech.com>

Cc: jfrank@oaktreecap.com; Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com>; Relampagos,
Stella C. <stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>

Subject: Daily Journal Corporation - Notice Regarding Potential Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. §
1350

Importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential
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Mr. Nakamura,

Please find attached formal correspondence regarding material accounting deficiencies at Daily
Journal Corporation that may expose you to personal criminal liability under 18 U.S.C. § 1350, if you
certify the Company's upcoming Form 10-K.

This letter details two independent GAAP and SEC reporting violations—the Company’s failure to
capitalize software development costs under ASC 985-20 and its failure to separately report research
and development expenses under Regulation S-X § 210.5-03—and explains why certification of
financial statements that perpetuate these violations would constitute willful false certification
under Sarbanes-Oxley.

I strongly encourage you to read this letter carefully before signing any SEC filings on behalf of the
Company.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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HAYNSWORTH
SINKLER BOYD

HAYNSWORTH SINKLER BOYD, P.A.
1201 MAIN STREET, 22ND FLOOR
POST OFFICE BOX 11889 (29211)
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29201
MAIN 803.779.3080

FAX 803.765.1243
www.hsblawfirm.com

ROBERT Y. KNOWLTON
DIRECT 803.540.7843
bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com

December 24, 2025

Via email (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com)

Alexander E. Parker

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
1185 Avenue of the Americas
Third Floor

New York, NY 10036-2600

Re:  Demand pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act
Dear Mr. Parker:

Daily Journal Corporation (the “Company”) is in receipt of your letter dated December 19, 2025
demanding to inspect the books and records of the Company pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the
South Carolina Business Corporation Act.

You state in the letter that Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. is a registered stockholder of the Company,
but that does not appear true. Rather, effective December 18, 2025, the records of Equiniti, the
Company’s transfer agent, show one share now being owned by an entity called “Buxton Helmsley,
Inc.” We assume this is an entity affiliated with Buxton Hemsley USA, Inc., and upon a new demand
from the actual stockholder of record, the Company will grant that entity or its agent or attorney
access to the records required by Section 33-16-102(a).

In that regard, one or more representatives of Buxton Helmsley, Inc. are invited to visit the
Company’s principal office at 915 East First Street, Los Angeles, California 90012, during regular
business hours, to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom the records of the Company specified
in Section 33-16-101(e). Because it appears that Buxton Helmsley, Inc. does not own at least 1% of
the Company’s outstanding stock, however, it will not be given access to the Company’s income tax
returns specified in Section 33-16-101(e)(8).

Please contact Brian Cardile, the Company’s Corporate Secretary, at bcardile@journaltech.com, to
request an appointment.

With respect to the records noted in Section 33-16-102(b), a stockholder is only entitled to inspect
those records if, among other things, the demand is made in good faith and for a proper purpose, with
the records directly related to such purpose. Given that your demand for documents goes well beyond
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HAYNSWORTH
SINKLER BOYD

Alexander E. Parker
December 24, 2025
Page 2

what you know a stockholder is entitled to inspect under South Carolina law, even with a proper
purpose, the Company has grounds to doubt your good faith. The Company believes that your request
is part of your ongoing attempts to threaten the Company and its directors and officers into entering
into a cooperation agreement with you in exchange for not running a proxy contest and not referring
them to the SEC and professional licensing bodies.

In addition, the Board has instructed me to request that you and your affiliates direct to both my office
and the office of Brett Rodda, Esquire, all future correspondence meant for the Company or its
directors and employees. My email address is bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com and my mailing address
is 1201 Main Street, Columbia, South Carolina 29201. Mr. Rodda’s email address is
Brett.Rodda@bakermckenzie.com, and his mailing address is 815 Connecticut Avenue NW, 12
Floor, Washington, D.C. 20006.

Sincerely,
ff‘/

Robert Y. Knowlton

//
/ Ff

f

RYK/kdp

Cc:  Brett Rodda, Esquire
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "Rodda, Brett"
Cc: Knowlton, Bob; Brian Cardile; Relampagos, Stella C.; Sayerwin, Scarlet; smj@dailyjournal.com; Krogh,
Christopher; jfrank@oaktreecap.com
Subject: RE: Response to December 24, 2025 Letter; Continued Demand Under Rule 14a-7 and Section 33-16-102
Date: Friday, December 26, 2025 5:40:00 PM
Attachments: 20251226 - Response to December 26 Email.pdf
image002.png
image003.png
Sensitivity: Confidential
Mr. Rodda,

Please see the attached correspondence, in response to your e-mail below.

Regarding the company’s press release this morning (which we assume does not reflect your
knowledge of securities laws), we will be responding in court shortly.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | Linkedin

From: Rodda, Brett <brett.rodda@bakermckenzie.com>

Sent: Friday, December 26, 2025 10:13 AM

To: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>

Cc: Knowlton, Bob <bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com>; Brian Cardile <bcardile@journaltech.com>
Subject: RE: Response to December 24, 2025 Letter; Continued Demand Under Rule 14a-7 and
Section 33-16-102

Sensitivity: Confidential

Caution: This is an external email from outside the Buxton Helmsley network. Please take care when clicking links or
opening attachments. If you question or doubt, contact the Buxton Helmsley Compliance Department.

Dear Mr. Parker,

Attached is the official record from Equiniti showing one share of Daily Journal Corporation held by an
entity called "Buxton Helmsley Inc." in account number 209710923. If this is incorrect, you will need to
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 26, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO BRETT RODDA (BRETT.RODDA@BAKERMCKENZIE.COM)

Baker & McKenzie LLP

815 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20006-4078
Attention: Brett Rodda

Re:

Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Response to December 26
Email; Continued Rule 14a-7 Non-Compliance; Demand for Immediate Compliance

Dear Mr. Rodda:

We are in receipt of your December 26, 2025, email and the attached Equiniti record. Your

response is deficient in several respects and reflects continued non-compliance with federal law.

I.

THE ENTITY NAME ISSUE IS A RED HERRING.

The Equiniti record provided states the correct address for Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
The account creation date matches our broker's DRS confirmation exactly. The only
discrepancy is that Equiniti appears to have truncated "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc." to
"BUXTON HELMSLEY INC"—stripping both the "USA" designation and all
punctuation.

We also note that Equiniti is the Company's transfer agent—not ours. The Company was
aware that this transfer was incoming in connection with our proxy solicitation. We find
it difficult to believe that a transfer agent's system would spontaneously truncate an entity
name by removing a material designation like "USA" without some form of instruction or
input. We reserve the right to investigate the circumstances surrounding this discrepancy,
including any communications between the Company and Equiniti regarding the incoming
DRS transfer that the Company had knowledge of prior to completion.

Your assertion that we must "work with [our] broker to change it" is meritless. Our broker
submitted the transfer correctly. The broker confirmation—which we provided to you—
shows the transfer was initiated for "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc." with the account title at
the transfer agent listed as "Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc." If Equiniti's system truncated the
name upon intake, that is an error in the Company's transfer agent's system—not an error
by our broker.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com













Mr. Brett Rodda
December 26, 2025

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

II.

The Company can resolve this with a single instruction to Equiniti (again, the Company’s
chosen vendor for keeping accurate shareholder records). The Company's refusal to do
so—while simultaneously demanding that we "submit a new state law records request"—
is transparent gamesmanship designed to delay our proxy solicitation. We decline to
participate.

We also note that your email states the Company "will not insist upon a new 5-day period
if [we] correct the error in [our] account and wish to visit sooner." This is a telling
admission. If the Company believed our original demand was invalid due to the entity
name discrepancy, there would be no "5-day period" to waive—the clock would never have
started. By offering not to insist on a new response period, the Company implicitly
concedes that our December 19, 2025 demand was valid and triggered the Company's
obligations under both Rule 14a-7 and Section 33-16-102.

The Company does not get to have it both ways. It cannot simultaneously claim our
demand was defective and offer to waive response deadlines that would only exist if the
demand were valid. Nor does the Company get to stall production while it instructs (and
stalls in instruction of) its own transfer agent to correct its own error. The Company's
obligations were triggered on December 19, 2025.

THE COMPANY’S CONTINUED NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 14A-7.

Your letter does not mention Rule 14a-7 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. This is,
again, a glaring omission.

Our December 19, 2025, letter was an unambiguous written request by a record holder to
inspect and copy the shareholder list in connection with a proxy solicitation. Rule 14a-
7(a)(1) required the Company, within five business days of receipt, to deliver:

"(1) Notification as to whether the registrant has elected to mail the security holder's
soliciting materials or provide a security holder list; and

(i1)) A statement of the approximate number of record holders and beneficial
holders..."

See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-7(a)(1).

The five-business-day deadline, accounting for the December 25 holiday, is December 29,
2025. The Company has provided neither the required notification nor the required
statement.

To be clear: regardless of whatever election the Company may belatedly claim to make
under Rule 14a-7, we demand production of the shareholder list. Given the Company's
documented pattern of false statements—including the falsely dated July 29, 2025 Form 8-
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I11.

K, the false claims about Buxton Helmsley's regulatory status, and now the transparent
gamesmanship over the entity name—we have no confidence that the Company would
perform a mailing obligation in good faith. We will not entrust the delivery of our proxy
materials to a Board that has repeatedly demonstrated its willingness to make false
statements and obstruct shareholder oversight.

We are entitled to the shareholder list under Section 33-16-102(b)(3) of the South Carolina
Business Corporation Act, independent of and in addition to our rights under Rule 14a-7.
Communicating with fellow shareholders in connection with a proxy solicitation is a proper
purpose as a matter of law. The Company cannot defeat that right by purporting to elect
to mail under Rule 14a-7.

To be clear about what we are demanding: we require the list of shareholders entitled to
vote at the Company's 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Rule 14a-7 exists to
facilitate proxy solicitation—which necessarily means solicitation of shareholders who can
actually vote. A list of shareholders as of some arbitrary date, rather than as of the record
date for the meeting, would not satisfy the Company's obligations.

We understand the Company has not yet publicly announced a record date for the 2026
Annual Meeting. We demand that the Company:

a) Immediately provide a current shareholder list so that we may commence
solicitation efforts; and

b) Promptly notify us when the record date is set, and provide an updated list of
shareholders entitled to vote as of that record date within two business days of the
record date being fixed.

Any attempt to provide a stale list, or to set a record date without notifying us and providing
the updated list, will be treated as further obstruction of our proxy solicitation.

IN-PERSON INSPECTION DOES NOT COMPLY WITH FEDERAL LAW.

Your invitation to "visit the company's office in Los Angeles during regular business
hours" does not satisfy the Company's obligations.

Our December 19, 2025, demand specifically requested that the shareholder list and related
information be provided in electronic format, including Microsoft Excel. Rule 14a-
7(a)(2)(iii) requires the Company to furnish the list "in the form requested by the security
holder to the extent that such form is available to the registrant without undue burden or
expense."
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IV.

Equiniti maintains shareholder records electronically. Exporting those records to Excel is
trivial. Electronic delivery is unquestionably "available to the registrant without undue
burden or expense."

The Company's insistence that a New York-based shareholder fly across the country to
physically inspect an electronic file—in the weeks leading up to a contested annual
meeting—is not a good-faith interpretation of any statute. It is obstruction.

If the Company refuses to provide the shareholder list in the electronic format we
requested, we will immediately file an action under Section 33-16-104 of the South
Carolina Business Corporation Act seeking a court order compelling production in
electronic format, together with costs and attorney's fees. If necessary to preserve our
proxy solicitation timeline pending resolution of that action, we may send counsel to the
Company's Los Angeles office to inspect whatever records the Company deigns to make
available—but any such inspection will not waive our demand for electronic delivery, cure
the Company's violation, or moot our claims. Further, any categories of documents refused
to be voluntarily produced will be treated as a negative inference.

We also note that ISS and Glass Lewis take a dim view of incumbent boards that erect
procedural barriers to obstruct proxy contests. Forcing a dissident shareholder to incur the
time and expense of cross-country travel to obtain records that could be transmitted
electronically in seconds—while simultaneously litigating that very issue—is precisely the
type of entrenching behavior that proxy advisory firms flag in their analyses. We will
ensure that ISS, Glass Lewis, and the Company's shareholders are made aware of the
lengths to which this Board has gone to obstruct a proxy solicitation by a shareholder who
has documented serious, unremediated securities law violations.

THE COMPANY HAS IGNORED OUR SECTION 33-16-102(B) DEMAND.

Your letter addresses only the shareholder list records under Section 33-16-101(e). It says
nothing about our demand under Section 33-16-102(b) for books and records to investigate
mismanagement—including Board and Audit Committee minutes, auditor
communications, and correspondence with the SEC related to the accounting matters (all
of which are Board- or “accounting”-related records).

The Company's December 24, 2025, letter purported to deny this demand on "good faith"
grounds. Our December 24, 2025, response explained why that denial was legally
incorrect. Your December 26 email does not acknowledge or respond to any of those
arguments.

We reiterate our demand for the records specified in Part II of our December 19, 2025,
letter pursuant to Section 33-16-102(b). The Company's continued refusal to produce these
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records will result in an action under Section 33-16-104 seeking a court order compelling
inspection, together with costs and attorney's fees.

V. DEMAND AND RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.
We demand that the Company, no later than 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time on December 29, 2025:

a) Deliver the shareholder list and related information electronically in the formats
specified in our December 19, 2025, demand, as required by Rule 14a-7(a)(2)(ii)
and Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act—including
(a) a current list of shareholders for immediate solicitation purposes, and (b) a
commitment to provide an updated list of shareholders entitled to vote at the 2026
Annual Meeting within two business days of the record date being fixed, along with
prompt notification of the record date when it is set;

b) Provide a statement of the approximate number of record holders and beneficial
holders, as required by Rule 14a-7(a)(1)(ii);

c) Notify us immediately when the record date for the 2026 Annual Meeting is set,
and provide an updated list of shareholders entitled to vote as of that record date
within two business days;

d) Instruct Equiniti to correct its records to reflect the registered owner as "Buxton
Helmsley USA, Inc." and provide confirmation that the correction has been made;
and

e) Produce the books and records demanded under Section 33-16-102(b) in our
December 19, 2025, letter, or provide a written explanation of the Company's legal
basis for continued refusal.

If the Company elects to mail soliciting materials under Rule 14a-7(a)(1)(i) rather than
provide the shareholder list, that election will not extinguish our independent right to the list under
South Carolina law, and we will pursue the remedies described above. We will not permit a
Company with this record of false statements to serve as the sole intermediary between us and our
fellow shareholders.

If the Company continues to refuse production of the Section 33-16-102(b) records, we
will include that refusal in our Section 33-16-104 action and will seek an award of costs and
attorney's fees.

The Company's obstruction of our proxy solicitation will also be referred to the Division
of Enforcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission and documented in our
communications with shareholders and proxy advisory firms.

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law.
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CC:

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation
Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation

Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary, Daily Journal Corporation
Robert Y. Knowlton, Esq., Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A.

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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work with your broker to change it. The Company cannot do that.

Once it is changed, you can submit a new state law records request in the name of the actual
stockholder, and then that stockholder or its agent is invited to visit the company's office in Los Angeles
during regular business hours upon notice to Brian Cardile to inspect the records set forth in Section 33-
16-101(e)(1) through (7) of the South Carolina Code of Laws. The company will not insist upon a new 5-
day period if you correct the error in your account and wish to visit sooner. Thank you for your attention
to this matter.

Sincerely,
Brett Rodda

Brett Rodda

Principal, M&A and Governance
Baker & McKenzie LLP

815 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006-4078
United States

Tel: +1 202 835 4237
brett.rodda@bakermckenzie.com

Baker
McKenzie.

This message may contain confidential and privileged information. If it has been sent to you in error, please reply to advise
the sender of the error and then immediately delete this message. Please visit www.bakermckenzie.com/disclaimers for other
important information concerning this message.

From: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>

Sent: Wednesday, December 24, 2025 1:16 PM

To: Brian Cardile <bcardile@journaltech.com>

Cc: christopher.krogh@bakertilly.com; Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.saverwin@bakertilly.com>;
Relampagos, Stella C. <stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>; jffrank@oaktreecap.com; Steven Myhill-
Jones <smj@dailyjournal.com>; Knowlton, Bob <bknowlton@hsblawfirm.com>; Rodda, Brett
<brett.rodda@bakermckenzie.com>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Response to December 24, 2025 Letter; Continued Demand Under Rule 14a-7
and Section 33-16-102

Importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Cardile,

Please see the attached letter and exhibit.

Very truly yours,
Alexander
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Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message and any attachments are intended solely for the named recipient(s) and may contain
confidential, privileged, and/or attorney-client communications. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, distribution, or copying is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately at +1 (212) 561-5540 or by
return email, and permanently delete this message and its attachments. Buxton Helmsley, Inc. disclaims liability for any damage caused
by viruses transmitted through this email, and recipients are responsible for their own virus screening.

LEGAL & INVESTMENT DISCLAIMER: This communication is provided for informational purposes only. It does not constitute, and should
not be construed as, investment advice, an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities or to provide management
services. Any such offer will only be made through a confidential private placement memorandum or other formal offering documents,
which contain important information and risk disclosures. Prospective investors should consult their own investment, legal, accounting,
and tax advisers before making any investment decision. No representation is made that past or projected performance is indicative of
future results.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS: This message may include statements, estimates, or projections that constitute “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws. Such statements are inherently uncertain, based on current assumptions
and expectations, and subject to risks and factors outside Buxton Helmsley’s control. Actual results may differ materially from those
expressed or implied. The firm undertakes no obligation to update or revise such statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events, or otherwise.
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December 27, 2025

VIA FORM TCR TRANSMISSION

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Office of the Whistleblower

100 F Street, N.E.

Washington, D.C. 20549

Re:  Supplemental Complaint — Daily Journal Corporation (NASDAQ: DJCO)
TCR No. [17668-125-799-623, 17535-452-459-469, 17532-990-865-245]; Additional
Violations Identified and Anticipated

Dear Sir or Madam:

This letter follows our submission earlier today regarding Daily Journal Corporation’s
violation of Rule 21F-17(a). We write to include a revised version of the letter submitted yesterday
(as part of TCR No. 17668-125-799-623), to report an additional violation of securities laws
occurring after our letter submitted yesterday, and to provide exhibits that the online submission
system prevented from being uploaded yesterday.

Additional Violation—Rule 14a-6(b). The December 26, 2025, press release issued by
Daily Journal Corporation constitutes proxy solicitation material. It contains the standard
“Additional Information and Where to Find It” and “Participants in the Solicitation” disclosures,
references the Company’s forthcoming proxy statement, and is plainly designed to influence
shareholders' voting decisions in the upcoming proxy contest.

Rule 14a-6(b) requires that soliciting material used by a registrant be filed with the
Commission no later than the date of first public dissemination. The Company failed to file this
press release on EDGAR on the date of first public dissemination.

Anticipated Violation — Rule 14a-9. The December 26 press release contains numerous
materially false and misleading statements. I wish to alert the Commission that if the Company
attempts to cure its Rule 14a-6(b) violation by filing the press release as a DEFA14A without first
correcting those false statements, the Company will not be curing the violation—it will be
compounding it by adding a Rule 14a-9 violation.

The false and misleading statements include, but are not limited to:

1. False accusations of criminal conduct. The press release characterizes Buxton
Helmsley’s conduct as “extortion,” a “‘shakedown,” and a “transparent hustle,” and

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
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announces a referral for criminal prosecution. These characterizations are false.
Our December 13, 2025 letter—five days before the communications the
Company now attacks—expressly withdrew any compensation proposal and
committed to pursue board reconstitution “without regard for compensation.” The
Company knew the compensation proposal had been withdrawn when it published
the December 26 press release.

2. False claim that allegations have “no merit.” The press release states that “there
is no merit to any of the accusations” and characterizes our allegations as
“baseless” and “error-filled.” This is internally contradicted by the same press
release, which admits that the Section 16(a) allegations are “true.” A company
cannot simultaneously admit violations are true and claim allegations of those
violations have “no merit.”

3. False claim that ASC 985-20 capitalization is not “mandatory.” The press release
states that capitalization of software development costs is not “mandatory.” This
is demonstrably false. ASC 985-20-25-1 provides that such costs “shall be
capitalized.” Under GAAP, “shall” denotes a mandatory requirement, not a
discretionary option.

4. False claim that Regulation S-X allegations are “baseless.” The Company’s own
Form 10-K filed December 31, 2024, admits that research and development costs
are “significant.” This is an admission of materiality that triggers the Regulation
S-X separate disclosure requirement. The Company cannot simultaneously admit
its R&D costs are “significant” and claim that allegations of a separate disclosure
violation are “baseless.”

5. False claim that Regulation FD disclosure was not required. The press release
claims the Company was not required to disclose its engagement of an independent
consultant to investigate accounting practices. Industry practice contradicts this.
On August 8, 2019, Mattel, Inc. filed a Form 8-K under Item 7.01 (Regulation FD
Disclosure) disclosing the mere receipt of a whistleblower letter—before even
opening an investigation. If the mere receipt of a letter requires disclosure, the
decision to actually engage an independent consultant to investigate accounting
practices is, a fortiori, material and required disclosure.

6. False characterization of State Bar referral as “groundless.” The press release
characterizes the State Bar referral as “groundless.” The referral was based on,
among other things, the Audit Committee Chair’s oversight of years of Section
16(a) violations that the Company admits occurred, not to mention the numerous
other violations of the Company’s securities laws that he is apparently refusing to
force curing of. A disciplinary referral based on admitted violations is not
“groundless.”

7. Misleading statements about FINRA credentials. The press release attacks Mr.
Parker’s credentials by stating that FINRA “does not issue Series 65 licenses.”
This attacks a strawman. Mr. Parker never claimed FINRA issued Series 65
licenses. Mr. Parker is a FINRA-appointed arbitrator, was previously registered
as an investment adviser representative through FINRA’s CRD system, and passed
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the Series 65 examination. The press release is designed to create a false
impression that Mr. Parker misrepresented his credentials.

8. Materially misleading characterization of compensation proposal. The press
release characterizes our proposal as a demand for a “cash payment” of “$24
million.” In fact, our initial proposal was for equity-based performance warrants
that would vest only upon achievement of market capitalization milestones. If no
shareholder value was created, Buxton Helmsley would receive nothing. Most
critically, this proposal was formally withdrawn on December 13, 2025—before
any of the communications the Company falsely characterized as a “shakedown.”

9. Misleading characterization of Form 3 filing requirements. The press release
suggests that directors who “did not own stock” were somehow exempt from filing
Form 3. This is false. Section 16(a) and Rule 16a-3(a) require a Form 3 within
ten days of becoming a director or officer, regardless of whether the person owns
any securities. Even a “zero shares” Form 3 must be filed.  This
mischaracterization is itself a false statement to shareholders.

10. Omission of ongoing Form 8-K violations. The press release makes no mention
of the Company’s ongoing Form 8-K violations under Item 5.05 for failure to
disclose implicit waivers of the Code of Ethics granted to directors and officers
who violated Section 16(a) and are apparent to have violated 18 U.S.C. § 1350.
These are separate and independent disclosure violations that the Company has
never addressed.

We also note that Steven Myhill-Jones’ Form 3 filed December 16, 2024—which the
Company implies remedied his Section 16(a) violation—was itself defective. The Form 3 falsely
stated the “Date of Event Requiring Statement” as December 11, 2024, when the triggering event
(Mr. Myhill-Jones becoming acting CEO) occurred on March 28, 2022. The Form 3 was nearly
three years late and appears to have been structured to conceal both a late Form 3 violation and a
late Form 4 violation for a subsequent stock grant. Mr. Myhill-Jones still has not corrected the
false representations in his Form 3, nor has he filed a Form 4 to properly disclose the transactions
he apparently attempted to lump into that faulty Form 3 initially filed by him three years late.

We are forwarding this letter and yesterday’s correspondence to the Company’s General
Counsel this morning, informing them of the Rule 14a-6(b) violation and that any DEFA14A filing
must correct the false statements before submission. If the Company files the press release without
correction, it will do so with full knowledge that the statements are false, misleading, and that it
has been warned.

This pattern of conduct—Rule 21F-17(a) retaliation, Rule 14a-6(b) noncompliance, and
now potentially Rule 14a-9 false statements—is consistent with the Company’s broader disregard
for its disclosure obligations, as documented in our letter from yesterday (again, a slightly revised
version enclosed here).
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Exhibits. Attached to this follow-on submission are the exhibits referenced in our

complaint from yesterday, which the online system did not permit uploading of at that time:

CcC:

Exhibit A: Daily Journal Corporation Press Release (December 26, 2025);
Exhibit B: Buxton Helmsley Letter to DJCO Board (December 13, 2025); and
Exhibit C: Full Correspondence from December 13, 2025, Forward (Letters from

July to August of 2025 Found at https:// www.buxtonhelmsley.com/news-and-
insights/campaigns).

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Very truly yours,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Enforcement Division, U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation
Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation

Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary, Daily Journal Corporation
Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 26, 2025

VIA FORM TCR TRANSMISSION

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Office of the Whistleblower

100 F Street, N.E.

Washington, D.C. 20549

Re:

Supplemental Complaint — Daily Journal Corporation (NASDAQ: DJCO)
TCR No. [17535-452-459-469, 17532-990-865-245]; Request to Investigate Violation of
Rule 21F-17(a)

Dear Sir or Madam:

I write on behalf of Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (“Buxton Helmsley” or “we”) to

supplement our pending complaint (TCR No. [17535-452-459-469, 17532-990-865-245]) and to
request that the Commission investigate the Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the
“Company”) for violation of Rule 21F-17(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

I.

BACKGROUND.

Since July 2025, Buxton Helmsley has submitted multiple tips and complaints to the
Commission’s Enforcement Division regarding securities law violations at DJCO,
including:

Active and long-running violations of Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act by all of
the Company’s directors and officers, with delinquencies ranging from 18 months
to over seven years;

Potential violations of Regulation FD arising from the Company’s failure to
disclose its engagement of an independent consultant to investigate accounting
practices after receiving our initial July 2025 correspondence;

A falsely dated Form 8-K filed July 29, 2025, which states on its cover page that
the “Date of Earliest Event Being Reported” is July 28, 2025, while the body of the
same filing references events occurring on July 14, 2025;

Apparent violations of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) under
ASC 985-20, which requires capitalization of software development costs after
technological feasibility is established; and

Violations of Regulation S-X arising from the Company’s failure to separately
disclose research and development expenses despite admitting such expenses are
“significant”, and therefore admittedly indisputably material, requiring separate
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II.

disclosure so investors can understand how “‘significant of dollars” are being spent
on research and development. That issue is completely separate from the GAAP
issue, obviously.

We have also filed a complaint with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
regarding the audit failures of Baker Tilly US, LLP, the Company’s independent auditor,
and a complaint with the California State Bar regarding the professional conduct of Audit
Committee Chair John B. Frank, Esq., Vice Chairman of Oaktree Capital.

Our complaints are well-documented and based on publicly available SEC filings. Indeed,
DJCO has now admitted that certain of our allegations—specifically, the Section 16(a)
violations by its directors and officers—are “frue.” See Exhibit A (DJCO Press Release
dated December 26, 2025), at p. 4.

DJCO’S RETALIATORY CONDUCT.

On December 26, 2025—the day after Christmas—DJCO issued a press release via

GlobeNewswire that is plainly intended to intimidate Buxton Helmsley and deter further
communications with the Commission and shareholders. The press release:

1. Publicly accuses Buxton Helmsley and its CEO, Alexander E. Parker, of criminal
conduct, characterizing our shareholder advocacy and regulatory complaints as a
“shakedown,” a “transparent hustle,” and “extortion.”

2. Announces that DJCO has “referred” Buxton Helmsley and Mr. Parker to “federal
and state authorities for consideration of criminal prosecution.”

3. Attacks the credibility of Buxton Helmsley, Mr. Parker, and its nominees with
demonstrably false statements about our qualifications and the substance of our
allegations, even as they are admitting they are “true.”

4. Names and pressures Mr. Parker’s associates and board nominees—Rumbizai
Bwerinofa-Petrozzello CPA, CFF, CFE, Weiyee In, and myself—in an apparent
attempt to intimidate them into abandoning the proxy contest to restore a Board
running afoul of countless securities laws, with one Audit Committee member
(Rasool Rayani) telling Buxton Helmsley that securities laws like Rule 16(a) are
the “flimsiest of technicalities.” Apparently, the rest of the Board thinks the same.
They clearly bucket those laws with the accounting standards, is all we can see.

The press release was issued in direct response to Buxton Helmsley’s communications with
the Commission and other regulatory bodies. The timing is unmistakable: the retaliatory
attack came immediately after we filed a complaint with the California State Bar on
December 22, 2025 (against John B. Frank), and sent correspondence to the Company’s
new CFO on December 19, 2025, warning of potential criminal liability under 18 U.S.C. §
1350 for signing a Form 10-K with known independent GAAP and Regulation S-X
violations, since the CEO that had misreprented information on a Form 3 in an apparent
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I11.

attempt to conceal a dual-Form 4 violation, attempting to cram both violations into one
form to obscure.

This conduct is designed to chill Buxton Helmsley’s continued communications with the
Commission and other regulators, and to deter other shareholders, employees, or
whistleblowers from speaking amongst each other about concerns of violations of
securities laws, undisclosed violations of Codes of Ethics, and the need to intervene if such
violations of laws and ethics are not cured.

RULE 21F-17(a) VIOLATION.
Rule 21F-17(a) provides:

“No person may take any action to impede an individual from communicating
directly with the Commission staff about a possible securities law violation,
including enforcing, or threatening to enforce, a confidentiality agreement...with
respect to such communications.”

The rule’s prohibition on “any action to impede” is deliberately broad. While the rule
expressly addresses confidentiality agreements, its language is not limited to that context.
The Commission has stated that Rule 21F-17 “prohibit[s] any efforts to impede individuals
from communicating directly with the Commission staff about a possible securities law
violation”; or attempting to come to the Commission staff in a group requiring to be banded
together, to make sure an issuer got the Commission’s attention for a case much worse that
companies attempting to intimidate unions from forming, but Board members and
managements attempting to destroy whistleblowers to retain cover questionable accounting
practices and endless violations of securities laws, as if they entirely cannot comprehend
the disclosure obligations of a public company to ensure fair and accurate markets; again,
DJCO’s Audit Committee members admitting to viewing federal securities laws “flimsy
technicalities.”

DJCO’s conduct constitutes a textbook effort to impede whistleblower communications
with the SEC and with potential whistleblower-to-whistleblower communications.
Attempting to even possibly obstruct justice, even when the initial financial reporting
errors, Section 16(a) violations, and others were likely just an honest mistake, and in this
case, positively resulting in an understatement of asset and equity value, doesn’t seem to
be adverse to investor interests. Just as market values of securities are inflated when equity
values are overstated, they are just as artificially depressed when investors who do not
understand accounting cannot determine where material information is disclosed to
shareholders in financial statements. GAAP serves to protect those very shareholders, and
we have observed that many, even large shareholders, do not have someone on their team
capable of detecting problematic information lurking within financial statements that
misleads investors. We are very sure DJCO’s Journal Technologies software assets are
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IV.

worth more than $0 (See ASC 9850-20 violation explanation on p. 1 of the letter to DJCO
CFO Erik Nakamura, dated December 19, 2025).

Public Accusation of Criminal Conduct: Publicly branding a whistleblower a
criminal—and announcing a referral for prosecution—sends an unmistakable
message: if you report this company’s clear violations of accounting standards and
securities laws (again, those DJCO’s Audit Committee members regard as “the
flimsiest of technicalities’), we will attempt to destroy you.

Attacks on Credibility: The press release contains demonstrably false statements
about Buxton Helmsley’s qualification and the substance of its allegations,
designed to undermine the credibility of our regulatory complaints.

Pressure on Associates: By naming Mr. Parker’s board nominees and associates,
DJCO is attempting to isolate the whistleblower and pressure others to distance
themselves from him.

Chilling Effect: The message to any shareholder, employee, or market participant
who might consider communicating with the Commission about DJCO’s ongoing
compliance failures is clear: we will publicly accuse you of crimes and refer you
for prosecution.

The retaliatory nature of DJCO’s conduct is confirmed by its own admissions. In the same
press release where DJCO accuses Buxton Helmsley of criminal conduct, DJCO admits
that our Section 16(a) violation allegations are “frue”. A company that admits its accuser
is correct about the underlying violations cannot credibly claim that the accuser is a
criminal extortionist for reporting these violations and pressuring remediation “without
regard for compensation”.

REQUEST FOR INVESTIGATION.

We respectfully request that the Commission:

1.

Investigate DJCO’s conduct under Rule 21F-17(a), including the December 26,
2025, press release and any other actions designed to impede or chill Buxton
Helmsley’s communications with the Commission or with other
shareholders/whistleblowers about ongoing violations at publicly traded companies
of the United States.

Consider this supplemental complaint in connection with our pending TCR
complaints regarding DJCO’s securities law violations;

Take appropriate enforcement action against DJCO and any individuals responsible
for the retaliatory conduct; and

Consider whether the false statements in the Company’s December 26, 2025, press
release—which is a proxy solicitation document containing standard “Additional
Information” and “Participants in the Solicitation” disclosures—also violate Rule
14a-9.
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V. EXHIBITS.
We attach the following exhibits in support of this supplemental complaint:
Exhibit A: DJCO Press Release dated December 26, 2025;

Exhibit B: Buxton Hemsley Letter to DJCO Board dated December 13, 2025 (in
this letter, Buxton Helmsley withdrawing its compensation proposal and declaring:
‘Given the severity of the governance failures now evident... we have concluded
that this situation requires Board reconstitution as a matter of fiduciary necessity,
without regard for compensation,” because DJCO is not an operational
tranformation case, but a complete internal controls breakdown, and DJCO has
admitted as such over the last year through the filing of multiple NT 10-Q/K filings
citing—they never actually remediate the issues, and do not know where half of
them are); and

Exhibit C: Prior SEC Correspondence (documenting our communications with
the Enforcement Division).

Buxton Helmsley remains committed to cooperating with the Commission in its
investigation of DJCO’s securities law violations. DJCO’s attempt to silence us through
public intimidation will not succeed. We trust the Commission will take appropriate action
to protect whistleblowers and ensure that companies cannot retaliate against those who
report violations to regulators with impunity.

We are available to provide any additional information the Commission may require.

Very truly yours,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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cc: Enforcement Division, U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation
Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary, Daily Journal Corporation
Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 26, 2025 09:00 ET

DAILY JOURNAL
CORPORATION ADDRESSES
BUXTON HELMSLEY’'S
BRAZEN THREATS AND
EXPOSES THE FIRM'S
DISINGENUOUS, SELF-
SERVING AGENDA

The Company has Referred Buxton and its CEO, Alexander Erwin Parker, to Federal and State
Authorities for Consideration of Criminal Prosecution

The Company Stands Firmly Behind its Financial Statements and Accounting Judgments

LOS ANGELES, Dec. 26, 2025 (GLOBE NEWSWIRE) -- Daily Journal Corporation (the “Company”)
today issued the following statement in response to a flood of false, misleading and self-interested
correspondence from Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (“BuHeUI”) and its Chief Executive Officer,
Alexander Erwin Parker, to the Company and members of its Board of Directors (the “Board”).
BuHeUl, which until recently held no shares of the Company and now appears to be the record
holder of one share, has threatened to run a campaign to take control of the Board unless the
Company agrees to enter into a “cooperation agreement” with BuHeUIl. Needless to say, the Board
has unanimously rejected BuHeUI's latest shakedown attempts.

A Recap of BuHeUl’s Self-Serving Campaign

Mr. Parker started sending error-filled letters to the Company in July alleging that it was improperly
expensing software development costs that should be capitalized under ASC 985-20, Costs of
Software to be Sold, Leased or Marketed. Expensing less and capitalizing more would overstate the
Company’'s net income and, according to Mr. Parker, “unlock value.” He then demanded two seats
on the Company's Board and a consulting contract that would give him a cash payment of 15 cents
for every dollar of appreciation in the Company'’s stock price. He estimated that this would pay him
$24 million. Keep in mind, he was not a stockholder of the Company - just a young, self-styled
activist looking to make easy money at the expense of stockholders.

The Company refuted Mr. Parker's accounting allegations and rejected his transparent hustle, so
he's back with a new approach. In the last two weeks, Mr. Parker has sent no fewer than 13 letters
and emails to the Company, its directors and officers. Like his letters from over the summer, Mr.
Parker's most recent communications again baselessly allege that the Company's software
accounting is incorrect, add allegations of securities law violations and governance failures (which









we address below) and threaten a proxy contest for control of the Board unless the Company
agrees to his demands. The letters also double down on Mr. Parker's modus operandi: threaten
everyone with reputational ruin until they give you what you want.

But you're not allowed to do that. Mr. Parker has stepped over the line.

BuHeUl's Threats to Baselessly Damage Professional Reputations Represent a New Low

Mr. Parker threatened one of the Company’'s directors, John Frank (who is a lawyer), with a
groundless disciplinary referral to the State Bar of California unless he agreed to terminate the
Company's CEO and support a “cooperation agreement” with BuHeUl. He also threatened
Company director Mary Conlin as part of his scheme. Both Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin joined the
Company Board at the invitation of Charlie Munger, based on many decades of association and
mutual respect. Here are excerpts (underlining is ours) from Mr. Parker’s letters, where we consider
his approach coercive and inappropriate:

December 18, 2025 Letter from Mr. Parker:

“We are prepared to file a complaint with the State Bar of California .. However, we are
willing to forego such a filing_if the Company takes immediate and appropriate remedial
action to address the governance and financial reporting failures we have identified.”

December 18, 2025 Follow-Up Email from Mr. Parker:

“You and Mary have the votes to terminate [the CEO] and settle this matter. If you do
that ... | am prepared to work with you and Mary, not against you. You do not have to
resign. The bar referral goes away. We move forward together.”

December 21, 2025 Letter from Mr. Parker:

“We have offered you and Mary Murphy Conlin a path to preserving your seats on the
Board of the Company, and hope you both realize the self-destructive effects of not
taking it. | _will praise both you and Ms. Conlin in a press release announcing_our
cooperation agreement, but will do the very opposite if this proceeds any further to a
proxy contest.”

Since July 2025, Mr. Parker has:

¢ referred the Company to the SEC Enforcement Division when we refused to pay him money;

o referred the Company’s auditor, Baker Tilly, to the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board when they refused to withdraw their audit opinion;

¢ threatened the Company’'s CFO with a disciplinary referral to the SEC and the California Board
of Accountancy if he certifies this year’s financial statements; and

e threatened a Company director with a disciplinary referral to the State Bar of California unless
he agreed to Mr. Parker's demands.

To be clear, there is no merit to any of the accusations underlying these threats or referrals. Mr.
Parker has made these threats and referrals solely to harass and intimidate the Company, its
auditor, its directors and its senior executives into making some sort of deal with him.

In the Board’s view, enough is enough. The Company has referred this matter to federal and state
authorities to evaluate the evidence and consider criminal prosecution of BuHeUl and Mr. Parker. It
has also referred them to the SEC’s Enforcement Division for consideration of civil charges related to
their threats.

The Company wants to assure its stockholders that it stands firmly behind its financial statements,
accounting judgments and disclosures related to software development costs.

Finally, Mr. Parker has identified Weiyee In and Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozello (as well as himself)
as “future nominees” in a potential proxy contest at the Company’'s 2026 Annual Meeting. We ask
Mr. In and Ms. Bwerinofa-Petrozello to seriously consider whether they want to be associated with
this kind of behavior. Sometimes age is just a number, but we think the 29-year-old Mr. Parker
needs to acquire more experience and better judgment, which is on full display once again. Setting
aside whatever incentives he may have offered them, Mr. In and Ms. Bwerinofa-Petrozello should
know better and should be urging Mr. Parker to stop his destructive campaign. The same goes for









Charles Garcia and Beth Haddock, Esq., who serve with Ms. Bwerinofa-Petrozello on the Board of
BuHeUl, and anyone else who might be considering a partnership with Mr. Parker or assisting in his
efforts.

Supplemental Information Regarding BuHeUl's Assertions

Claim #1: The Company should capitalize its software development costs. There's a 2018 Journal of
Accountancy article that says companies using “agile” development methods must do so.

Wrong. Mr. Parker is making assumptions about the Company’s software development
cycle without the necessary knowledge of it. By contrast, the Company’'s accounting
personnel work closely with the Company’s software engineering teams and outside experts
to understand the development cycle, the nature of upgrades and enhancements, and the
activities occurring in the window between technological feasibility and when the software is
made available to customers.

There's nothing wrong with the article that Mr. Parker cites about “agile” development - but
he is not correctly applying it to the facts, nor is capitalization mandatory. Second, Mr. Parker
continues to misunderstand the units of account evaluated under ASC 985-20. While the
underlying software may have reached technological feasibility in a prior period, each new
upgrade or enhancement must undergo its own feasibility assessment. Also, only costs
between technological feasibility and the point at which the software is available for customer
use can be capitalized, and the Company has no such costs. Finally, Mr. Parker has yet to
acknowledge that he was wrong when he claimed that other public companies were
capitalizing software development costs like ours under ASC 985-20, when it appears they
were actually capitalizing costs for internal use software under an entirely different
accounting standard.

The Company’'s approach to software development accounting was reviewed by a third-party
expert, and the Company’'s auditor has signed off on our prior financial statements. The
Company expects to file its Annual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal Year 2025 next week, and it
will reflect the Company’s continued application of ASC 985-20, consistent with past practice.

Claim #2: The retirement of the Company’s CFO, Tu To, was connected to Mr. Parker’'s “concerns
regarding the Company’s software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20."

Wrong. Ms. To is retiring after 42 years of dedicated service to the Company. The
appointment of Erik Nakamura represents a continuation of the Company’s initiatives since
2023 to build a first-class finance team for the future, alongside modernized accounting
systems and improved internal controls.

Claim #3: The Company's July 29, 2025 Form 8-K should have referenced the date of Mr. Parker's
initial letter as the “date of earliest event reported.”

Wrong. The Company was not required to report the receipt of Mr. Parker’s letter under any
of the Items in Form 8-K. The Company filed the Form 8-K voluntarily in order to make Mr.
Parker’'s scheme available for all to see.

Claim #4: The Company violated Regulation FD by informing Mr. Parker that it would look into his
claims.

Wrong. Regulation FD prohibits companies from making selective disclosures of material
non-public information to certain market participants. There was nothing “material” about
telling Mr. Parker that we'd evaluate his accounting claims and get back to him.

Claim #5: Mr. Parker is “licensed by FINRA.”

Wrong. The FINRA website lists Mr. Parker as “currently not registered” and as a “previously
registered investment adviser.” Mr. Parker says he has passed the Series 65 exam, but that
does not mean he is a licensed broker in good standing with FINRA. FINRA does not issue
Series 65 licenses, so we think he should probably stop claiming that.

Claim #6: The Company’s executive officers engaged in “clearly illegal practices” by making willful
false certifications of financial statements.









Wrong. The Company’s CEO and CFO have properly certified the Company’s financial
statements in accordance with law. Mr. Parker simply cannot accept that the initial premise
of his attempt to get money from the Company was based on a mistake he made.

Claim #7: The Company’s directors and officers filed late Section 16 reports.

This one is true. The directors and officers who did not own stock when they joined the
Company did not file Forms 3 at that time, given there was nothing to report. They were
indeed supposed to file Forms 3 listing their “zero” shares. Also, directors and officers are
supposed to file Forms 4 to report the acquisition of stock when equity grants are made or
vest, rather than when the shares are delivered. When the Company recognized the error, the
late reports were filed, and the Company revised its procedures to ensure compliance going
forward. Just to be clear, no director or officer bought or sold any Company stock that was
not reported. Each of the late Section 16 reports related only to equity grants from the
Company that were detailed in the Company’s proxy statements. Also, Mr. Parker did not
“discover” these late filings. They were clearly noted as such in the Forms 3 and 4 and will also
be noted in the Company’s proxy statement in accordance with SEC rules.

In conclusion, the Board is confident in the Company’s financial reporting, governance practices
and leadership. While our forthcoming Form 10-K and proxy materials will likely trigger another
round of nonsense from Mr. Parker that might require additional comment, the Company believes
it has addressed the substance of the recurring assertions and does not intend to engage further in
public debate on these matters. (Although the Company does expect to file a Form 8-K on
December 29 attaching this press release and all of Mr. Parker’'s recent correspondence so that
stockholders can read for themselves what the Company has been dealing with.) The Board
remains fully focused on acting in the best interests of the Company and all of its stockholders. It
will not be diverted from that responsibility by coercive tactics, nor will it compromise the
Company's integrity, independence or governance standards.

Stockholders do not need to take any action at this time.

Forward-Looking_Statements

This press release includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 2IE of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. Certain statements contained in this press release are “forward-looking” statements that
involve risks and uncertainties that may cause actual future events or results to differ materially
from those described in the forward-looking statements. Words such as “expects,” “intends,”
“anticipates,” “should,” “believes,” “wil plans,” “estimates,” “may,” variations of such words and
similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. We disclaim any
intention or obligation to revise any forward-looking statements whether as a result of new
information, future developments, or otherwise. Although we believe that the expectations
reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance that such
expectations will prove to have been correct. Additional information concerning factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements is contained
from time to time in documents we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

I ’" "

Additional Information and Where to Find It

The Company intends to file with the SEC a proxy statement on Schedule 14A with respect to its
solicitation of proxies for the 2026 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. STOCKHOLDERS ARE URGED
TO READ THE PROXY STATEMENT (INCLUDING ANY AMENDMENTS OR SUPPLEMENTS THERETO)
FILED BY THE COMPANY AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT DOCUMENTS FILED WITH THE SEC WHEN
THEY BECOME AVAILABLE CAREFULLY AND IN THEIR ENTIRETY BECAUSE THEY WILL CONTAIN
IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT ANY SOLICITATION. Stockholders may obtain copies of these
documents and other documents filed with the SEC by the Company free of charge through the
website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov. Copies of the documents filed by the Company are
also available free of charge by accessing the Company’s website at ir.dailyjournal.com.

Participants

The Company, along with its directors, officers and certain employees, will be participants in the
solicitation of proxies with respect to the 2026 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Information about
the Company's executive officers and directors and their holdings of Company stock is located in
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the Company’s proxy statement for the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, filed with the SEC on
January 8, 2025, and will be updated in the proxy statement for the 2026 Annual Meeting. These
documents are or will be available free of charge at www.sec.gov and at ir.dailyjournal.com.
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Contact: Jessica Marshall (778) 716-6706
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December 13, 2025

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”’) — Delivery of Rule 14a-19 Notice;
Observations Regarding Recent Governance Developments

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Enclosed with this letter please find our formal notice of intent to solicit proxies in support
of alternate director nominees pursuant to Rule 14a-19 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Notice”). The Notice is being delivered in accordance with the timing requirements of Rule 14a-
19(b)(1), which requires delivery no later than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the anniversary
date of the prior year’s annual meeting.

We write separately to address certain governance developments that have occurred since
our initial correspondence with the Company in July 2025, and that bear directly on the matters
raised in our Notice. We believe these developments underscore the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

I. DEPARTURE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.

On October 29, 2025, the Company filed a Form 8-K disclosing that Chief Financial
Officer Tu To would “retire” effective January 15, 2026. The filing reveals that Ms. To’s
departure was structured not as a conventional retirement, but as a negotiated separation
pursuant to a “Separation Agreement and Release” dated October 27, 2025. The terms of
that Agreement warrant careful examination:

* Ms. To will receive a lump-sum payment of $175,000, characterized as a
“retroactive pay adjustment”;

* Ms. To will receive a $40,000 cash bonus for fiscal year 2025;

* Ms. To is eligible for contingent milestone bonuses of up to $75,000 “primarily
associated with the Company’s financial system conversion”; and

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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* Ms. To agreed to provide a “general release and waiver of claims” and “reaffirmed
her confidentiality and non-disparagement obligations.”

These are not the hallmarks of a voluntary retirement after forty-two years of service.
Separation agreements containing general releases of claims and non-disparagement
obligations are instruments of risk management employed when there is potential exposure
to be managed. A CFO who is simply choosing to retire after a long career does not require
a negotiated release of claims; she simply retires.

The timing is notable. Ms. To’s departure was announced approximately three months
after our July 2025 correspondence identified material concerns regarding the Company’s
software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20—concerns that Ms. To, as the
certifying officer responsible for the accuracy of the Company’s financial statements,
would have been directly accountable for. The Board’s decision to structure her exit with
a release of claims and a prohibition on public comment speaks for itself.

We further note that the “milestone bonuses” tied to the “financial system conversion” are
being paid to assist in remediation of the very internal control failures that Ms. To oversaw.
The Company acknowledged in its May 2025 Form NT 10-Q that it was “migrating to a
new accounting system as part of its efforts to enhance its internal control over financial
reporting.” Ms. To is now being compensated to help repair systems that failed under her
watch.

DELINQUENT SECTION 16 FILINGS BY AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS.

We have also identified that two members of the Company’s Audit Committee recently
filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that were delinquent by as many as seven years:

» John B. Frank, a lawyer at Oaktree Capital Management, L.P., who is designated
as the Board’s “financial expert” for purposes of SEC disclosure requirements; and
* Mary Murphy Conlin, also a member of the Audit Committee.

For reference, Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires directors to file:

* Form 3 (Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership): Within ten days of becoming
a director; and

* Form 4 (Statement of Changes in Beneficial Ownership): Within two business days
of any transaction in a company’s securities.

These are not obscure compliance requirements. These are some of the most basic
obligations for every public company director. Mr. Frank is a securities lawyer at Oaktree
Capital-—one of the world’s largest alternative investment managers, with approximately
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$180 billion in assets under management. Such personal compliance failures are not
indicative of a “financial expert” suitable to be leading the Audit Committee.

Yet, such personal compliance failures are not limited to Mr. Frank. Ms. Conlin, also
serving on the Audit Committee, had the same delinquencies. The fact that both Audit
Committee members failed to file required ownership reports for years—and that neither
the Company’s management nor its external counsel identified or remedied the
deficiency—reflects systemic oversight failure at the committee charged with overseeing
financial reporting and internal controls.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the individuals entrusted with overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting cannot comply with a two-page beneficial ownership form
due within ten days of their appointments, what confidence can shareholders have in their
oversight of complex accounting standards such as ASC 985-20? None.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.

These developments—the negotiated departure of the CFO with a release of claims and
gag order, the years-long Section 16 reporting failures by both Audit Committee members,
the acknowledged internal control deficiencies requiring system-wide remediation—are
not isolated incidents. They reflect a governance environment in which basic compliance
obligations have been neglected for years.

We remind the Board that on July 29, 2025, the Company filed a Form 8-K containing
statements about Buxton Helmsley’s regulatory status that were demonstrably false—
including the assertion of false claims of holding securities licenses. Attached as Annex D
to the enclosed Notice is a FINRA examination results letter confirming that, contrary to
your false public claims, I do, indeed, hold a Series 65 license. We are delivering this
document directly to the Board to avoid any future claim of uncertainty on this point. The
Company’s July 29 statements were false when made, and any repetition of those
statements in the Company’s proxy materials will be grounds for injunctive relief under
Rule 14a-9.

The July 29 Form 8-K contains an additional false statement that remains uncorrected to
this day. The cover page of that filing states that the “Date of earliest event reported” is
July 28, 2025. Yet Item 8.01 of the same filing states: “Two weeks ago, we received a
letter from Alexander E. Parker,” and later: “His initial July 14 letter is attached as Exhibit
99.1.” The filing thus explicitly identifies July 14, 2025, as the date of the earliest event
being reported—while the cover page certifies that date as July 28, 2025. This is not
ambiguous; the filing contradicts itself on its face. Mr. Myhill-Jones signed this document.
We raised this discrepancy in our July 29, 2025, correspondence, yet the filing has never
been corrected. The Company has since hired a Director of SEC Reporting, yet this
demonstrably false statement remains in the Company’s public filings. If the Company
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cannot accurately report a date on a Form 8-K—when the correct date appears in the body
of the very same document—shareholders may reasonably question the accuracy of
anything else in the Company’s SEC filings. The fact that this false disclosure remains
uncorrected demonstrates that the Company’s attempt to hire a Director of SEC Reporting
is inadequate and that the Company requires a Board-level governance refresh (the Board
not forcing correction of knowingly false SEC filings either).

We also wish to make clear that the contingent compensation proposal referenced in our
earlier correspondence has been withdrawn and is no longer under consideration. Given
the severity of the governance failures now evident—the CFO’s negotiated departure, the
Audit Committee’s years-long Section 16 delinquencies, the internal control deficiencies,
and the Board’s response of attacking the messenger rather than addressing the message—
we have concluded that this situation requires Board reconstitution as a matter of fiduciary
necessity, without regard for compensation. Any representation by the Company in its
proxy materials that we continue to seek contingent compensation, or any implication to
that effect, will similarly be grounds for injunctive relief to prevent any further tampering
of this election through false statements.

Rather than engage substantively with the accounting concerns we raised, the Company
elected to attack the messenger with false statements. Three months later, the CFO
responsible for the accounting in question was shown the door with a separation agreement.
The Board’s response to our concerns has been to quietly take the remedial actions we
identified as necessary while publicly maintaining that our concerns were unfounded.
Shareholders deserve better.

We remain prepared to engage constructively with the Board should it wish to discuss a
consensual resolution of these matters. However, absent such engagement, we intend to proceed
with the proxy solicitation described in the enclosed Notice and to present shareholders with a
clear choice regarding the future governance of this Company.

Baker Tilly US, LLP, copied on this letter, is reminded ahead of DJCO’s imminent Form
10-K filing (due to contain audited financials) that they were sent (months ago) an authoritative
publication of the AICPA that directly supports Buxton Helmsley’s position that the Company’s
stated rationale for its accounting treatment does not comply with ASC 985-20.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.

Respectfully,
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A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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December 13, 2025

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”’) — Delivery of Rule 14a-19 Notice;
Observations Regarding Recent Governance Developments

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Enclosed with this letter please find our formal notice of intent to solicit proxies in support
of alternate director nominees pursuant to Rule 14a-19 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Notice”). The Notice is being delivered in accordance with the timing requirements of Rule 14a-
19(b)(1), which requires delivery no later than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the anniversary
date of the prior year’s annual meeting.

We write separately to address certain governance developments that have occurred since
our initial correspondence with the Company in July 2025, and that bear directly on the matters
raised in our Notice. We believe these developments underscore the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

I. DEPARTURE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.

On October 29, 2025, the Company filed a Form 8-K disclosing that Chief Financial
Officer Tu To would “retire” effective January 15, 2026. The filing reveals that Ms. To’s
departure was structured not as a conventional retirement, but as a negotiated separation
pursuant to a “Separation Agreement and Release” dated October 27, 2025. The terms of
that Agreement warrant careful examination:

* Ms. To will receive a lump-sum payment of $175,000, characterized as a
“retroactive pay adjustment”;

* Ms. To will receive a $40,000 cash bonus for fiscal year 2025;

* Ms. To is eligible for contingent milestone bonuses of up to $75,000 “primarily
associated with the Company’s financial system conversion”; and
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II.

* Ms. To agreed to provide a “general release and waiver of claims” and “reaffirmed
her confidentiality and non-disparagement obligations.”

These are not the hallmarks of a voluntary retirement after forty-two years of service.
Separation agreements containing general releases of claims and non-disparagement
obligations are instruments of risk management employed when there is potential exposure
to be managed. A CFO who is simply choosing to retire after a long career does not require
a negotiated release of claims; she simply retires.

The timing is notable. Ms. To’s departure was announced approximately three months
after our July 2025 correspondence identified material concerns regarding the Company’s
software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20—concerns that Ms. To, as the
certifying officer responsible for the accuracy of the Company’s financial statements,
would have been directly accountable for. The Board’s decision to structure her exit with
a release of claims and a prohibition on public comment speaks for itself.

We further note that the “milestone bonuses” tied to the “financial system conversion” are
being paid to assist in remediation of the very internal control failures that Ms. To oversaw.
The Company acknowledged in its May 2025 Form NT 10-Q that it was “migrating to a
new accounting system as part of its efforts to enhance its internal control over financial
reporting.” Ms. To is now being compensated to help repair systems that failed under her
watch.

DELINQUENT SECTION 16 FILINGS BY AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS.

We have also identified that two members of the Company’s Audit Committee recently
filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that were delinquent by as many as seven years:

» John B. Frank, a lawyer at Oaktree Capital Management, L.P., who is designated
as the Board’s “financial expert” for purposes of SEC disclosure requirements; and
* Mary Murphy Conlin, also a member of the Audit Committee.

For reference, Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires directors to file:

* Form 3 (Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership): Within ten days of becoming
a director; and

* Form 4 (Statement of Changes in Beneficial Ownership): Within two business days
of any transaction in a company’s securities.

These are not obscure compliance requirements. These are some of the most basic
obligations for every public company director. Mr. Frank is a securities lawyer at Oaktree
Capital-—one of the world’s largest alternative investment managers, with approximately
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I11.

$180 billion in assets under management. Such personal compliance failures are not
indicative of a “financial expert” suitable to be leading the Audit Committee.

Yet, such personal compliance failures are not limited to Mr. Frank. Ms. Conlin, also
serving on the Audit Committee, had the same delinquencies. The fact that both Audit
Committee members failed to file required ownership reports for years—and that neither
the Company’s management nor its external counsel identified or remedied the
deficiency—reflects systemic oversight failure at the committee charged with overseeing
financial reporting and internal controls.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the individuals entrusted with overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting cannot comply with a two-page beneficial ownership form
due within ten days of their appointments, what confidence can shareholders have in their
oversight of complex accounting standards such as ASC 985-20? None.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.

These developments—the negotiated departure of the CFO with a release of claims and
gag order, the years-long Section 16 reporting failures by both Audit Committee members,
the acknowledged internal control deficiencies requiring system-wide remediation—are
not isolated incidents. They reflect a governance environment in which basic compliance
obligations have been neglected for years.

We remind the Board that on July 29, 2025, the Company filed a Form 8-K containing
statements about Buxton Helmsley’s regulatory status that were demonstrably false—
including the assertion of false claims of holding securities licenses. Attached as Annex D
to the enclosed Notice is a FINRA examination results letter confirming that, contrary to
your false public claims, I do, indeed, hold a Series 65 license. We are delivering this
document directly to the Board to avoid any future claim of uncertainty on this point. The
Company’s July 29 statements were false when made, and any repetition of those
statements in the Company’s proxy materials will be grounds for injunctive relief under
Rule 14a-9.

The July 29 Form 8-K contains an additional false statement that remains uncorrected to
this day. The cover page of that filing states that the “Date of earliest event reported” is
July 28, 2025. Yet Item 8.01 of the same filing states: “Two weeks ago, we received a
letter from Alexander E. Parker,” and later: “His initial July 14 letter is attached as Exhibit
99.1.” The filing thus explicitly identifies July 14, 2025, as the date of the earliest event
being reported—while the cover page certifies that date as July 28, 2025. This is not
ambiguous; the filing contradicts itself on its face. Mr. Myhill-Jones signed this document.
We raised this discrepancy in our July 29, 2025, correspondence, yet the filing has never
been corrected. The Company has since hired a Director of SEC Reporting, yet this
demonstrably false statement remains in the Company’s public filings. If the Company
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cannot accurately report a date on a Form 8-K—when the correct date appears in the body
of the very same document—shareholders may reasonably question the accuracy of
anything else in the Company’s SEC filings. The fact that this false disclosure remains
uncorrected demonstrates that the Company’s attempt to hire a Director of SEC Reporting
is inadequate and that the Company requires a Board-level governance refresh (the Board
not forcing correction of knowingly false SEC filings either).

We also wish to make clear that the contingent compensation proposal referenced in our
earlier correspondence has been withdrawn and is no longer under consideration. Given
the severity of the governance failures now evident—the CFO’s negotiated departure, the
Audit Committee’s years-long Section 16 delinquencies, the internal control deficiencies,
and the Board’s response of attacking the messenger rather than addressing the message—
we have concluded that this situation requires Board reconstitution as a matter of fiduciary
necessity, without regard for compensation. Any representation by the Company in its
proxy materials that we continue to seek contingent compensation, or any implication to
that effect, will similarly be grounds for injunctive relief to prevent any further tampering
of this election through false statements.

Rather than engage substantively with the accounting concerns we raised, the Company
elected to attack the messenger with false statements. Three months later, the CFO
responsible for the accounting in question was shown the door with a separation agreement.
The Board’s response to our concerns has been to quietly take the remedial actions we
identified as necessary while publicly maintaining that our concerns were unfounded.
Shareholders deserve better.

We remain prepared to engage constructively with the Board should it wish to discuss a
consensual resolution of these matters. However, absent such engagement, we intend to proceed
with the proxy solicitation described in the enclosed Notice and to present shareholders with a
clear choice regarding the future governance of this Company.

Baker Tilly US, LLP, copied on this letter, is reminded ahead of DJCO’s imminent Form
10-K filing (due to contain audited financials) that they were sent (months ago) an authoritative
publication of the AICPA that directly supports Buxton Helmsley’s position that the Company’s
stated rationale for its accounting treatment does not comply with ASC 985-20.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.

Respectfully,
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A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3
New York, N.Y. 10036-2600
+1(212) 561-5540

December 13, 2025

VIA EMAIL AND FEDEX TO BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012
Attention: Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re: Notice of Intent to Solicit Proxies in Support of Director Nominees Pursuant to Rule 14a-
19 Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Dear Mr. Cardile:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (the “Notifying Person”), hereby submits this formal notice
(this “Notice™) to Daily Journal Corporation, a South Carolina corporation (the “Company”),
pursuant to Rule 14a-19 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), of its intent to conduct a solicitation of proxies in support of nominees for election to the
Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) other than the Company’s nominees at the Company’s
2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (including any adjournment or postponement thereof or any
special meeting held in lieu thereof, the “2026 Annual Meeting”’). The term “Notifying Person”
is used herein to mirror the statutory language of Rule 14a-19, which imposes obligations on any
“person”—not “shareholder,” let alone shareholder of record—who intends to solicit proxies in a
contested election. See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(a), (b).

This usage is consistent with Rule 14a-2 under the Exchange Act, which similarly employs
the term “person” and under which non-shareholders—including proxy solicitation firms, financial
advisors, and non-profit organizations—routinely conduct solicitations. The SEC’s consistent use
of “person” rather than “shareholder” throughout the proxy rules reflects a deliberate regulatory
choice.

The Notifying Person is providing this Notice at least sixty (60) calendar days before the
first anniversary of the date of the Company’s 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which was
held on February 19, 2025, in accordance with the timing requirements of Rule 14a-19(b)(1). See
17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(1).

The Notifying Person further represents that (i) it is a beneficial owner of shares of the
Company, to be held as of the record date for the 2026 Annual Meeting (the “Record Date™),
entitling it to vote at the 2026 Annual Meeting and that it intends to appear in person or by proxy
at the 2026 Annual Meeting to nominate the Future Nominees, and (ii) has an impending
registration of certain Company shares with the Company’s transfer agent for holder of record
status.

Page 1 of 24











I. NOMINEES FOR ELECTION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(b)(2), the Notifying Person hereby provides notice of the names
of the following individuals (collectively, the “Future Nominees’’) for whom the Notifying Person
intends to solicit proxies for election as directors of the Company at the 2026 Annual Meeting:

a) Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello;
b) Alexander Parker; and
c) Weiyee In.

Each Future Nominee has consented to being named in this Notice and, if elected, to
serving as a director of the Company, with such consents attached as Annex A. Biographical
information, qualifications, and other information required by Schedule 14A with respect to each
Future Nominee is attached as Annex B.

The Notifying Person reserves the right to (i) nominate substitute or additional persons as
Future Nominees, (ii) withdraw one or more Future Nominees, or (iii) otherwise modify its slate
of Future Nominees prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting, subject to applicable law and the
Company’s governing documents. See SEC Division of Corporation Finance, Compliance and
Disclosure Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules 14A/14C, Question 139.02 (Aug. 25, 2022)
(permitting inclusion of alternate nominees in Rule 14a-19(b) notice). In accordance with Rule
14a-19(c), the Notifying Person will promptly notify the Company of any changes to its Future
Nominees.

From time to time throughout this Notice, Mr. Parker and the Notifying Person, together
with its, his, and their affiliates, collectively, may be referred to as “Buxton” or the “Buxton
Parties,” and the Buxton Parties, together with the Future Nominees, may be referred to as the

“Participants.”

Each of the Future Nominees has entered into a nomination agreement (collectively, the
“Future Nominee Agreements”) with the Notifying Person substantially in the form attached as
Annex C, whereby such Future Nominees agreed, upon the election of the Notifying Person, to
become members of a slate of nominees and stand for election as directors of the Company in
connection with a proxy solicitation which may be conducted in respect of the 2026 Annual
Meeting. Pursuant to the Future Nominee Agreements, the Notifying Person has agreed to pay the
costs of soliciting proxies in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting, and to defend and
indemnify the Future Nominees against, and with respect to, any losses that may be incurred by
the Future Nominees in the event they become a party to litigation based on their nomination as
candidates for election to the Board and the solicitation of proxies in support of their election. The
foregoing summary of the Future Nominee Agreements does not purport to be complete and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the form of the Future Nominee Agreement,
which is attached hereto as Annex C and is incorporated by reference herein.
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If elected or appointed, each of the Future Nominees would be considered an independent
director of the Company under each of (i) Rule 5605(a) of NASDAQ’s Listing Rules and (ii)
paragraph (a)(1) of Item 407 of Regulation S-K.

The Notifying Person hereby states with respect to each Future Nominee, as applicable, to
the knowledge of the Notifying Person, other than as described in this Notice (including the
Annexes hereto):

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

none of the Participants is, or was within the past year, a party to any contract,
arrangement, or understanding with any person with respect to any securities of the
Company, including, but not limited to, joint ventures, loan or option arrangements,
puts or calls, guarantees against loss, or guarantees of profit, division of losses, or
profits, or the giving or withholding of proxies;

(a) none of the Participants has any position or office with the Company, nor does
any Participant have any arrangement or understanding with any other person
pursuant to which such person was selected to be a nominee; (b) none of the
Participants or any of their “associates” (which term, for purposes of this Notice,
shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Rule 14a-1 of Regulation 14A of the
Exchange Act) is a party to any arrangement or understanding with any person
with respect to (1) any future employment by the Company or its affiliates or (2)
any future transactions to which the Company or any of its affiliates will or may be
a party; (c) there were no transactions since the beginning of the Company’s last
fiscal year nor are there any currently proposed involving any Participant or any of
their associates, in which the Company was or is to be a participant and in which
such Participant or any of their associates or their respective immediate family
members or any persons sharing their respective households, as applicable, have or
will have a direct or indirect material interest that would require disclosure under
Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(“Regulation S-K”); (d) there are no material proceedings to which any Participant
or any of their associates is a party adverse to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or has a material interest adverse to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and (e)
none of the Participants or any of their associates has a substantial interest, direct
or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise in any matter to be acted on at the
2026 Annual Meeting or in the Proxy Solicitation;

none of the entities or organizations referred to in Annex B with which any Future
Nominee has been involved during the past five years is a parent, subsidiary, or
other affiliate of the Company;

none of the Participants or any of their associates has received any fees earned or
paid in cash, stock awards, option awards, non-equity incentive plan compensation,
changes in pension value or nonqualified deferred compensation earnings or any
other compensation from the Company during the Company’s last completed fiscal
year, or is subject to any other compensation arrangement described in Item 402 of
Regulation S-K;

(a) there are no relationships involving any Participant or any of their associates
that would have required disclosure under Item 407(e)(4) of Regulation S-K had
any such person been a director of the Company; (b) there are no events required
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

to be disclosed under Item 401(f) of Regulation S-K that have occurred during the
past ten years and that are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any
Participant; (c) there are no “family relationships” (as defined in Item 401(d) of
Regulation S-K) between any Participant and any director or executive officer of
the Company or person known to the Notifying Person to be nominated by the
Company to become a director or executive officer; and (d) no Participant has been
convicted in a criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations or similar
misdemeanors) in the past ten years;

there are no direct or indirect compensation or other material monetary agreements,
arrangements, and understandings during the past three years, or any other material
relationships, between or among the Notifying Person or others acting in concert
therewith, on the one hand, and each Future Nominee, and his or her respective
affiliates and associates, or others acting in concert therewith, on the other hand;
no part of the purchase price or market value of the securities of the Company
owned by any of the Participants is represented by funds borrowed or otherwise
obtained for the purpose of acquiring or holding such securities;

no Participants directly or indirectly beneficially own any derivative instruments or
any other direct or indirect opportunity to profit, or share in any profit derived, from
any increase or decrease in the value of shares of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties have given any proxy
(other than a revocable proxy given in response to a solicitation made pursuant to
Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act by way of a solicitation statement filed on
Schedule 14A), contract, arrangement, understanding or relationship pursuant to
which any of the foregoing persons has a right to vote any shares of the Company;
neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties holds any short interest
in any security of the Company (including, directly or indirectly, through any
contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, has the
opportunity to profit, or share in any profit derived, from any decrease in the value
of the subject security);

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties beneficially own,
directly or indirectly, any rights to dividends on the shares of the Company that are
separated or separable from the underlying shares of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties has any significant
equity interests or any derivative interests or short interests in any principal
competitor of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties owns, directly or
indirectly, any proportionate interest in shares of the Company or derivative
instruments by a general or limited partnership in which any of the foregoing
persons is a general partner or, directly or indirectly, beneficially owns an interest
in a general partner;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties are entitled to any
performance-related fees (other than an asset-based fee) based on any increase or
decrease in the value of the shares of the Company or derivative instruments,
including any such interest held by members of any of the foregoing persons’
immediate family sharing the same household;
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(xv) there are no agreements, arrangements, or understandings (written or oral) between
or among any Participants or any other person or persons (including their names)
pursuant to which the nomination or nominations or proposed removal or removals,
as applicable, are to be made by such Participant; and

(xvi) neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties have any interest in the
nominations or election of the Future Nominees except as otherwise described in
this Notice, and neither of the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties
believe it or they may derive any other benefits from the outcome of the
nominations of the Future Nominees except as described in this Notice, nor do any
of the foregoing have any other agreements with any other person in connection
with the nominations of the Future Nominees.

The Notifying Person represents, on behalf of itself and the other Participants, that this
Notice contains all of the information that would be required to be affirmatively disclosed as of
the date hereof by it and the other Participants under Rule 14a-101 of the Exchange Act (including
pursuant to the Company’s Amended and Restated Bylaws, as exhibited in the Company’s Form
10-K filing on December 31, 2024 (the “Bylaws™)), and that no other information is required to be
disclosed thereunder with respect to any Participant, to the best of its knowledge.

Mr. Parker serves as: (a) the Managing Partner of Buxton Helmsley Fund GP, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“BHGP”); (b) Managing Member of Buxton Helmsley Fund
Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“BHM”); (c) a director and Chief
Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., a New York corporation (“BHUSA”); and (d)
majority shareholder, Chairman, and Chief Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley, Inc., a Nevada
corporation (“BHI). As such, Mr. Parker has a proportionate interest in the shares of common
stock in the Company held by the Notifying Person and its affiliates. As equity owners in Buxton
Helmsley, Inc., Mr. Parker and Ms. Petrozzello have an economic interest in the management fees
received by BHM that are based on the level of assets managed, and in the performance-based fees
and allocations received by BHGP, which are based on investment performance. The foregoing
applies to all securities beneficially owned by BHGP. The performance-based fees or allocations
vary by vehicle but presently do not vary from 30% of realized and unrealized capital appreciation
above a benchmark or an annual performance fee of 8% above a hurdle. Further information
concerning such fees is available in the Notifying Person’s Form ADYV, filed with the SEC on
March 26, 2025, and incorporated by reference herein.

I1. STATEMENT OF INTENT TO SOLICIT PROXIES

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(a)(3) and Rule 14a-19(b)(3), the Notifying Person hereby states
its intent to solicit the holders of shares representing at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the

voting power of shares entitled to vote on the election of directors at the 2026 Annual Meeting in
support of the Future Nominees. See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(a)(3); 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(3).

The Notifying Person intends to satisfy this solicitation requirement through, among other
methods, the delivery of a definitive proxy statement or notice of internet availability of proxy
materials to holders of shares representing at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the voting power
of shares entitled to vote on the election of directors, in accordance with Rules 14a-3 and 14a-16
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under the Exchange Act. See Exchange Act Release No. 34-93596, at 65-66 (Nov. 17, 2021)
(“Adopting Release”) (confirming that “notice and access” method satisfies solicitation
requirement).

It is anticipated that the Notifying Person and the Future Nominees will participate in the
solicitation of proxies in support of the Future Nominees (the “Proxy Solicitation”). Such persons
will receive no additional consideration if they assist in the solicitation of proxies. It is anticipated
that proxies will be solicited by mail, courier services, Internet advertising, e-mail, telephone,
facsimile, and/or in person.

The Notifying Person may seek reimbursement from the Company for expenses associated
with the Proxy Solicitation if any of the Future Nominees are elected, and do not intend to seek
shareholder approval of such reimbursement. The Notifying Person’s current best estimate is that
the total expenses that the Notifying Person or any other participants will incur in furtherance of,
or in connection with, the Proxy Solicitation will be approximately $1,500,000.

III. SEPARATE COMPLIANCE WITH COMPANY BYLAWS

The Notifying Person acknowledges that this Notice is provided pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Exchange Act and is separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any notice of director
nominations required under Article I1I, Section 3 of the Bylaws.

Article III, Section 3 of the Bylaws provides, in relevant part:

“All nominations for the board of directors must be made in writing and
received by the secretary of the corporation no less than 10 days prior to
the date of the shareholders’ meeting at which one or more directors are to
be elected.”

See Amended and Restated Bylaws of Daily Journal Corporation, Art. III § 3.

This Notice constitutes notice of the Notifying Person’s intent to conduct a proxy
solicitation pursuant to Rule 14a-19; it does not constitute, and shall not be construed as, a formal
nomination of directors under the Company’s Bylaws. The Notifying Person (or an affiliated
entity that establishes record ownership of the Company’s common stock) intends to deliver a
separate written notice of director nominations to the Company’s Secretary in compliance with the
Bylaws’ ten (10)-day advance notice requirement prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting (the “Bylaw
Nomination Notice). Such Bylaw Nomination Notice will contain all information required by
the Bylaws and applicable law, will be delivered by a shareholder of record of the Company, and
will be received by the Secretary in accordance with the timing requirements specified in Article
III, Section 3 of the Bylaws.

The Notifying Person notes that the Rule 14a-19 notice requirement and the Bylaw
nomination requirement serve different purposes and operate independently:
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(a) Rule 14a-19 Notice (This Letter): This Notice provides the Company with
advance notice of the Notifying Person’s intent to conduct a proxy solicitation using
a universal proxy card, thereby enabling the Company to include the Future
Nominees on its universal proxy card in accordance with Rule 14a-19(e). As noted
above, Rule 14a-19 uses the term “person”—not “shareholder”—and imposes no
ownership requirement for delivery of this Notice. See Adopting Release at 29-30,
37-40.

(b) Bylaw Nomination Notice (To Be Delivered Separately): The
forthcoming Bylaw Nomination Notice will satisfy the procedural requirements
under the Company’s governing documents for the Future Nominees to be “duly
nominated” and eligible for election at the 2026 Annual Meeting. Although the
Company’s Bylaws do not explicitly require the nominating party to be a
shareholder of record, the Notifying Person (or an affiliated entity) intends to
establish record ownership of the Company’s common stock prior to delivering the
Bylaw Nomination Notice, which will be delivered no less than ten (10) days prior
to the 2026 Annual Meeting in accordance with Article III, Section 3 of the Bylaws.
See SEC Division of Corporation Finance, Compliance and Disclosure
Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules 14A/14C, Question 139.04 (Dec. 6,
2022) (“Only duly nominated candidates are required to be included on a universal
proxy card.”).

For the avoidance of doubt, record holder status is not required under federal proxy rules
for purposes of delivering this Rule 14a-19 Notice. Nevertheless, the Notifying Person (or an
affiliated entity) intends to establish record ownership of the Company’s common stock prior to
delivering the Bylaw Nomination Notice to eliminate any procedural objection the Company might
raise under state law or its governing documents.

The Notifying Person represents that it is currently in the process of registering certain
shares directly with the Company’s transfer agent to establish record holder status in advance of
delivering the Bylaw Nomination Notice.

The SEC has expressly confirmed that a dissident shareholder’s obligation to comply with
Rule 14a-19 is “in addition to” its obligation to comply with any advance notice provisions in a
company’s governing documents. See Adopting Release at 42; see also SEC Division of
Corporation Finance, Compliance and Disclosure Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules
14A/14C, Question 139.06 (Aug. 25, 2022) (“Rule 14a-19(b)(1) establishes a minimum, not a
maximum, notice period for a dissident shareholder to inform the registrant of its intent to present
its own director nominees.”).

For the avoidance of doubt, the notice deadline for this Rule 14a-19 Notice is governed
exclusively by Rule 14a-19(b)(1), which requires notice “no later than 60 calendar days prior to
the anniversary date of the meeting.” 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(1). The Notifying Person is aware
that the Company’s proxy statement for the 2025 Annual Meeting stated that “[s]hareholders
intending to present proposals from the floor of the 2026 Annual Meeting in compliance with Rule
14a-4 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, must notify the Company of such
intentions before November 24, 2025.” That deadline is inapplicable to this Notice. Rule 14a-4
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governs the circumstances under which a company’s proxy may confer discretionary voting
authority on matters not specifically set forth in the proxy statement—it has no bearing on the
notice requirements for a contested director election under Rule 14a-19. Compare 17 C.F.R. §
240.14a-4(c) (discretionary authority for “matters which the persons making the solicitation do not
know... are to be presented”), with 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19 (universal proxy requirements for
contested director elections). These are separate regulatory provisions serving entirely distinct
purposes.

IV.  REQUEST FOR COMPANY NOMINEE INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(d), the Notifying Person hereby requests that the Company
provide the names of the Company’s nominees for director at the 2026 Annual Meeting no later
than fifty (50) calendar days before the first anniversary of the 2025 Annual Meeting. See 17
C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(d). Based on the 2025 Annual Meeting date of February 19, 2025, the
Company’s response is due no later than December 31, 2025.

V. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The Notifying Person expressly reserves all rights available under applicable law,
including but not limited to the right to:

a) Nominate additional or substitute Future Nominees, or withdraw any Future
Nominee, in accordance with Rule 14a-19(c) and the Company’s Bylaws;

b) Seek judicial relief or other remedies if the Company fails to comply with Rule
14a-19, applicable state law, or the Company’s governing documents;

c) Challenge any determination by the Company that the Future Nominees are not
“duly nominated” or otherwise ineligible for inclusion on a universal proxy card;

d) Engage in additional solicitation activities, communications, and filings as
permitted by law;

e) Take any other action permitted by law to protect the interests of the Company’s
shareholders.

Nothing in this Notice shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. The Notifying Person’s delivery of this Notice does not constitute
an acknowledgment that the Company’s Bylaws or any particular provision thereof is valid or
enforceable as applied to the Notifying Person or the Future Nominees.

The Notifying Person notes that certain prior public statements by or on behalf of the
Company have inaccurately characterized the regulatory registration of Buxton Helmsley USA,
Inc. and the professional licensing of its principals. For the record, Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. is
listed on FINRA’s BrokerCheck system as reporting to regulators (filing its Form ADV far before
the Company falsely claimed otherwise), and its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer holds a
Series 65 license, for which a FINRA examination results letter is attached as Annex D. The
Notifying Person reserves the right to seek injunctive or other equitable relief against the
Company, its directors, officers, or agents in the event of any continued dissemination of such
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misstatements, including, without limitation, an injunction of any proxy solicitation by the
Company that contains or incorporates such materially false or misleading statements.

Additionally, the Notifying Person hereby notifies the Company that any previously
contemplated proposal for contingent compensation based on increases in the Company’s equity
market capitalization has been withdrawn and is no longer under consideration. The Notifying
Person reserves the right to seek injunctive or other equitable relief, including, without limitation,
an injunction of any proxy solicitation by the Company, in the event any person publicly
represents—including in any proxy statement or soliciting materials—that such proposal remains
in effect or under consideration.

The Notifying Person understands that certain information regarding the 2026 Annual
Meeting (including, but not limited to, the record date, voting shares outstanding and the date, time
and place of the 2026 Annual Meeting) and the Company (including, but not limited to, its various
committees and proposal deadlines and the beneficial ownership of the Company’s securities) will
be set forth in the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A to be filed with the SEC in
connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. To the extent the Company believes any such
information is required to be set forth herein, the Notifying Person hereby refers the Company to
such filing. The Notifying Person accepts no responsibility for any information set forth in any
such filing not made by the Notifying Person.

The Annexes are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Notice. Accordingly, all
matters disclosed in any part of this Notice, including the Annexes, shall be deemed disclosed for
all purposes of this Notice. All capitalized terms appearing in one of the Annexes that are not
defined in such Annex shall have the meanings given in the body of this Notice or in another of
the Annexes, as applicable.

The Notifying Person believes that this Notice is sufficient to provide adequate notice and
information to the Company regarding the intended nomination of the Future Nominees and
complies with all valid notification and other requirements applicable to the Company, if any.
Additionally, the Notifying Person represents that, to the best of its knowledge, the information
set forth in this Notice is accurate. If, however, you believe that this Notice for any reason does
not comply with such requirements or is otherwise insufficient or defective in any respect, the
Notifying Person requests that you so notify it by December 18, 2025, by e-mail at
legal@buxtonhelmsley.com, for determination as to whether the matter is most suitable for review
by internal or external counsel. Absent notification from you by the method listed above indicating
otherwise, the Notifying Person will assume that the Company agrees that this Notice complies in
all respects with the requirements of the Bylaws.

Please be advised that neither the delivery of this Notice nor the delivery of additional
information, if any, provided by or on behalf of the Participants or any of their affiliates to the
Company from and after the date hereof shall be deemed to constitute (i) an admission by the
Participants or any of their affiliates, that this Notice is in any way defective, (ii) an admission as
to the legality or enforceability of any particular provision of the Articles of Incorporation, as
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amended (the “Charter”), the Bylaws or any other matter, (iii) a waiver by the Participants or any
of their affiliates of the right to, in any way, contest or challenge the enforceability of any provision
of the Charter, the Bylaws, or of any other matter, or (iv) consent by the Notifying Person, any
other Participant or any affiliate of any of the foregoing to publicly disclose any information
contained herein with respect to such persons. If this Notice shall be deemed for any reason by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be ineffective with respect to the nomination of any of the Future
Nominees, or if any individual Future Nominee is unable or unwilling to serve as a director of the
Company for any reason, this Notice shall continue to be effective with respect to any remaining
Future Nominee. The Notifying Person reserves the right to withdraw or modify this Notice at
any time prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Very truly yours,

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

A2

By: boxsiGN 4K8WWQP1-1RVY2KL9

Name: Alexander Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Cc:  Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
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ANNEX A

Notarized Written Consent of Each Nominee

[See attached]
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CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a director
of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a member of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy statement and
proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and distributed
to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of the foregoing and
other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the Corporation to be voted at
the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or
postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof), and (z) serving as a director of
the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: December 13, 2025

Print Name: Alexander Parker











Docusign Envelope ID: 18160EE0-9CD2-47CD-817B-4E8DBEC6689E

CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a director
of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a member of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy statement and
proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and distributed
to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of the foregoing and
other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the Corporation to be voted at
the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or
postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof), and (z) serving as a director of
the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: November 2° 2025

Kumbidmai Bwerinafa—Petromslls

Print Name: Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
State Of New Jersey )
)ss.:
County of  Camden )

On the ?° day of November in the year 2025, before me, Nicolette Hall

the undersigned notary public, personally appeared Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello  known
to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument

and acknowledged that he/she/they executed the same for the purposes contained therein.

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand.

6 Nicolette Hall
/{/L@@('z{tz 'Q) h@f) Notary Public, State of New Jersey
Notary Public ‘ My Commission Expires 01/17/2027
/I'u"’:i(f".:)./l'{f‘; Shop 11/25/2025 50182507

Completed via remote online notarization using 2 way audio/video technology











CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a
director of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a
member of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy
statement and proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
and distributed to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton
Helmsley USA, Inc. and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of
the foregoing and other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation
pursuant to Rule 14a-19 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in
connection with the solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the
Corporation to be voted at the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation
(including any adjournment or postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof),
and (z) serving as a director of the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: December 9, 2025

Print Name: Weiyee IN z[/ . J?L

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Florida
State of XEWX6¥K )
Marion )ss.:
CounfFbT e ¥ork )
ecember ‘
On the %" day of Nowemksr in the year 2025, before me, Lydia Morales ,
the undersigned notary public, personally appeared Weiyee In , known

to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged that he/she/they executed the same for the purposes contained
therein.

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand.

Online Notary
gaary Public

LYDIA MORALES
Notary Public - State of Florida

Commission # HH521893

Expires on May 4, 2028

HH521893 05/04/2028

Notarized remotely online using communication technology via Proof.
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ANNEX B

Information about the Nominees

Name: Alexander E. Parker

Age: 29

Business Address: 1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3, N.Y. 10036
Residence Address: 1 Columbus Place, Apt. S32G, New York, N.Y. 10019
Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Alexander Parker is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley, an
alternative asset manager recognized globally for its expertise in investor advocacy and active
corporate engagement. Mr. Parker founded Buxton Helmsley in 2014. Mr. Parker has established
a distinguished track record of identifying accounting irregularities and securities law violations
at public companies, with his research uncovering over $20 billion in corporate accounting
misstatements since 2014.

Under Mr. Parker’s leadership, Buxton Helmsley has achieved recognition as a top-
performing activist investor, ranking in the top 15% of global activist investors by engagement
volume, according to Bloomberg. Mr. Parker’s expertise in forensic analysis and corporate
governance initiatives has resulted in significant shareholder value creation across campaigns
while, more importantly, exposing accounting misstatements and restoring transparency for
investors at companies engaged in financial reporting violations and other misconduct. Notable
engagements include his work at Mallinckrodt plc (formerly, NYSE: MNK), where Buxton
Helmsley’s identification of accounting irregularities preceded enforcement actions by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, and Fossil Group, Inc. (NASDAQ: FOSL), where Buxton
Helmsley successfully secured board representation in 2024, followed by stock appreciation
exceeding 270% within eighteen months thereafter.

Mr. Parker practices what he terms “defensive activism,” a disciplined investment
approach that combines technical forensic analysis with traditional activist strategies to identify
and remediate corporate governance failures and financial reporting violations, and, where
possible, engage in positive corporate transformations. His firm specializes in detecting violations
of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and failures in securities law compliance.
This technical expertise has enabled Mr. Parker to successfully engage with boards of directors,
management teams, and regulatory authorities to drive operational improvements and financial
transparency.

Mr. Parker has built a reputation as an effective whistleblower, with securities regulators
subsequently charging violations at entities he identified. His investor engagement campaigns
have gained recognition in prestigious publications, including 7he Harvard Law School Forum on
Corporate Governance. Mr. Parker’s work has been featured in leading financial publications,
including The Wall Street Journal, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com.
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Mr. Parker serves as a FINRA-appointed arbitrator, a position that reflects his expertise in
securities regulation and dispute resolution. As a licensed investment professional through the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), he brings additional credibility and regulatory
insight to his investment and governance activities. His appointment as a FINRA arbitrator
demonstrates the securities industry’s self-regulatory organization’s recognition of his judgment,
integrity, and ability to understand complex matters.

Mr. Parker has built institutional relationships with prominent investment firms and has
successfully raised capital from sophisticated investors. Under his leadership, Buxton Helmsley
has transitioned from a retail-focused operation to an institutionally-backed activist platform,
while maintaining its commitment to forensic accounting excellence and shareholder advocacy.

Mr. Parker’s expertise encompasses complex areas of financial reporting, including
software development cost accounting (ASC 985-20), contingent loss recognition (ASC 450-20),
asset value recognition (including ASC 350 and 360), other technical accounting standards, and
securities-related legislation, including Regulation S-X. His firm works closely with forensic
accountants, securities attorneys, and corporate governance specialists to pursue compliance and
accountability at target companies.

Mr. Parker studied finance and economics at Mercy University of New York City, where
he participated in the school’s honors business program.

Mr. Parker’s qualifications to serve as a director include his deep expertise in financial
reporting, corporate governance, and regulatory compliance, his proven track record of identifying
and remediating accounting-related uncertainty that has (as in the case of Fossil) resulted in
significant shareholder value creation, his sophisticated understanding of complex technical
accounting standards and securities law requirements, his FINRA arbitrator appointment reflecting
industry recognition of his judgment and expertise, and his demonstrated ability to work
constructively with boards of directors and management teams to implement strategic initiatives
while maintaining the highest standards of financial transparency and corporate governance. His
forensic expertise, regulatory credentials, and activist investment experience provide unique
perspectives on financial oversight, risk management, and strategic planning that would benefit
any board of directors committed to shareholder value creation and regulatory compliance.
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Name: Weiyee In

Age: 60

Business Address: 1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3, N.Y. 10036
Residence Address: 45 Tudor City Place, New York, N.Y. 10017
Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Weiyee In was a ranked Wall Street tech analyst, three-time head of equity research,
seasoned executive, strategic advisor, digital transformation specialist, and angel investor with
over three decades of experience leading technology and strategy in the global financial ecosystem,
specializing in digital transformation, FinTech, Machine Learning, and regulatory technology
(RegTech). His expertise spans capital markets, digital assets, TMT (Telecoms, Media, and
Technology), software development strategy, and Al/Machine Learning governance. He has a
strong record of success in building and mentoring cross-border teams, driving innovation, and
serving on key working groups for major industry bodies, including IBM and DTCC, on Al
governance and security. He has been recognized as an IBM Champion multiple times and serves
on the IBM Financial Services Council. He is a regular speaker at NY Techweek Fintech and
RegTech events, as well as other industry events.

Career History (Selected Roles):

CIO - Protego Trust/ National Digital Trust, New York City Metropolitan Area
Oct 2020 — Present (5 years, 2 months)

Chief Information Officer for a chartered financial institution designed to securely and
efficiently serve institutional investors’ digital asset needs. This regulated bank offers
comprehensive digital asset services, including custody, trading, lending, and issuance, within a
vertically integrated framework. He was instrumental in the strategic design and build of the bank
by collaborating with financial industry veterans and early innovators in digital assets, tech, and
security.

Angel Investor / CIO - Fortress Payments, United States
Feb 2024 — Present (1 year, 10 months)

Angel Investor and Chief Information Officer (CIO) for a global fintech providing issuing,
acquiring, and processing services. He is responsible for unlocking the future of payments through
biometric technology and payment processing orchestration. His core focus is on Biometrics,
Cross-border Transactions, PCI DSS, and Data Governance.

Member Board Of Directors, Techcreate (NYSE: TCGL)
Mar 2025 — Present (8 months)

Served on the Board of Directors for a new digital bank, the first in the USA for
international customers, focused on deploying deposit, payments, and custody solutions.
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Angel Investor & Advisor - Self-Employed (FinTech, Al, Data Analytics)
Apr 2017 — Present (8 years, 8§ months)

Provides strategy and technology advisory services, including deep regulatory advisory
and solutions development for complex global compliance mandates (e.g., MiFID II, GDPR/PII,
FATF/GAFI, BSA), leveraging advanced technologies such as NLP, Al, RPA, and Machine
Learning. This includes developing and deploying a MiFID II solution and implementing Machine
Learning models for RegTech vendors. He advises on financial custody, trust, DLT (Distributed
Ledger Technology) integration, and trade analytics across FinTech, New Media, and Al sectors.

Content Strategy - Bloomberg LP, Greater New York City Area
Jun 2015 — Apr 2017 (1 year, 11 months)

Analyzed regulatory, technology, and industry trends across the global financial ecosystem
(MiFID, MAR, GDPR) to assess impact and strategize Bloomberg’s responses. He collaborated
on innovation, IPR, and the development of best practices for core technologies within Bloomberg
Global Data.

MD, Head of Telecoms, Media and Technology, TMT Strategy, Head of ESG - BNP
Paribas, Global
Oct 2009 — Dec 2013 (4 years, 3 months)

Managing Director and Head of TMT Equity Research. He managed and mentored a
regional team of analysts, publishing thematic reports on megatrends such as “pervasive
computing,” “the impact of unstructured (big) data,” and the “Internet of Everything,” integrating
cross-border, cross-sector, and ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance) issues. He raised
the firm’s visibility by speaking at global industry events.

Global Technologist Equity Research - UBS, Greater New York City Area/Asia
Nov 1999 — Apr 2003 (3 years, 6 months)

Equity Research Strategist on the Global Technology Team. He focused on raising UBS’s
visibility as a tech-savvy bank in Asia, mentoring local analysts, and organizing/speaking at major
industry conferences (e.g., the Wireless Internet Seminar in Tokyo and the Bluetooth Congress).

Qualifications to Serve as a Director:

The nominee’s qualifications include extensive experience in strategic leadership and
technology governance at the intersection of finance and regulation. His key strengths include:

o FinTech and Digital Asset Expertise: Deep, current experience as a CIO in digital
asset banking (Protego Trust) and as an investor/advisor in FinTech, DLT, and cross-border

payments (Fortress Payments).

e Technology and AI/RegTech Governance: Recognized leadership as an IBM
Champion with direct involvement in working groups and councils for Al governance and security,
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and demonstrated practical experience developing and deploying complex regulatory solutions
(including MiFID II) and leveraging ML for regulatory technology.

e Global Strategy, Regulation, and Media: A track record of analyzing and
responding to disruptive regulatory changes (MiFID II, GDPR, FATF) across global financial and
TMT sectors (BNP Paribas, Bloomberg LP), with significant expertise in the Media and
Telecommunications verticals.

e Entrepreneurship and Advisory: 11+ years of experience as an active Angel
Investor and Advisor to startups in Europe, the USA, and Asia, focusing on technology, data
analytics, and robotic automation, providing a critical perspective on emerging market dynamics
and innovation adoption.

Direct Applicability to The Daily Journal Corporation (DJCO):

e Mr. In’s 11+ years of experience as an Investor & Advisor—including eight years
as an Angel Investor & Advisor focused on FinTech, Al, Data Analytics, and New Media—
directly addresses the dual challenge facing The Daily Journal: modernizing its newspaper
business and expertly stewarding its legacy investment portfolio. As a former Head of TMT Equity
Research (BNP Paribas) and Global Technologist Equity Research (UBS), he possesses the deep
analytical expertise required to evaluate the company’s sizable marketable securities portfolio and
provide strategic oversight on high-stakes investment decisions. His background in Capital
Markets and Equity Research is crucial for navigating the scrutiny of activist investors and
ensuring transparent, defensible valuation of financial assets.

e Mr. In’s proven ability to develop, deploy, and execute complex regulatory
technology (RegTech) solutions is uniquely suited to stabilizing and expanding the Journal
Technologies platform. He has direct, practical experience developing MiFID II solutions and
implementing Machine Learning models for RegTech vendors, demonstrating his capacity to drive
both technical compliance and commercial growth in regulatory software. This history aligns
perfectly with the current need to clarify the accounting treatment and future strategic direction of
Journal Technologies. Furthermore, his status as an IBM Champion and heavy involvement in
working groups focused on Al and Quantum security solutions (leveraging skills like Artificial
Intelligence (Al), Data Governance, Digital Transformation, and Risk Management) provides him
with the cutting-edge expertise necessary to transform the platform into a focused growth driver,
guiding the business through essential modernization, maximizing its value, and ensuring its
technical and financial governance meets the highest standards demanded by the market.
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Name: Rumbidzai (“Rumbi”) Petrozzello

Age: 53

Business Address: c/o Seramount, 2445 M St. NW, Washington, D.C.
20037

Residence Address: 6916 Beach Front Road, #2, Arverne, N.Y. 11692

Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Since 2024, Ms. Petrozzello has been a member of the board of directors of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “AICPA”). Since 2021, Ms. Petrozzello has served
as Head of Strategy and Consulting at Seramount, a professional services and research firm
focused on fostering high-performing, inclusive workplaces. In addition, since 2015, she has
served as a Principal at Rock Consulting, LL.C, a forensic accounting firm. From 2015 to 2019,
Ms. Petrozzello served as a Core and Risk Assurance Consultant for PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited (PwC), a global accounting firm recognized as the second-largest
professional services network in the world, where she worked on audits with multiple in-scope
applications, prominent hedge funds, and top law firms. Prior to that, Ms. Petrozzello spent seven
years as a Controller at TGM Associates, a real estate investment company, where she oversaw
the financials of funds holding over $500 million in assets, directed the financial aspect of
investigations and audits for prospective acquisitions, identified potential risks, and conducted
internal investigations of financial discrepancies.

Since 2012, Ms. Petrozzello has been a member of the New York State Society of Certified
Public Accountants (NYSSCPA), including serving as a member of the Litigation Services
Committee. She served as President of NYSSCPA from 2021 to 2022 and as Immediate Past
President from 2022 to 2023. From 2013 to 2020, Ms. Petrozzello served as a Diversity and
Inclusion Advocate for NYSSCPA and, from 2015 to 2016, as President of the Brooklyn/Queens
Chapter of NYSSCPA. She also served as Vice President of the Richmond chapter of the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners from 2015 to 2019. She is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, where she has served on the Forensic and Litigation
Services Committee, as a member of the Fraud Task Force, and as a member of the National
Accreditation Commission.

Ms. Petrozzello holds a B.A. from Mount Holyoke College and a BCompt from the
University of South Africa. She is a certified public accountant, a certified financial forensics
professional, and a certified fraud examiner.

Ms. Petrozzello’s qualifications to serve as a director include her deep knowledge and
experience in forensic accounting practices and techniques, evaluating and improving workplace
culture, and examining financials for a broad range of clientele, including Fortune 500 companies
and technology companies such as the Daily Journal Corporation. She has also spearheaded
diversity, equity, and inclusion efforts in the accounting industry and in workplaces more
generally.
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ANNEX C

Form of Nominee Agreement

NOMINATION AGREEMENT

This Nomination Agreement (the “Agreement”) is by and between Buxton Helmsley USA,
Inc. (“Buxton Helmsley,” “we” or “us”) and [*] (“you”).

You agree that you are willing, should we so elect, to become a member of a slate of
nominees (the “Slate”) of a Buxton Helmsley affiliate (the “Nominating Party”), which
nominees shall stand for election or appointment as directors of Daily Journal Corporation,
a South Carolina corporation (the “Corporation”), in connection with a campaign (the
“Campaign”) or a proxy solicitation (the “Proxy Solicitation™) that we may conduct in
respect of the Corporation, whether in connection with the 2026 annual meeting of
stockholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or postponement thereof or
any special meeting held in lieu thereof, the “Annual Meeting”) or otherwise. You further
agree to serve as a director of the Corporation if so elected or appointed. We agree to pay
the costs of the Proxy Solicitation and agree to reimburse you for any documented and
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses you incur in connection with the Campaign or the Proxy
Solicitation that are approved in writing in advance by us, including reasonable expenses
for travel requested by us in connection therewith.

Buxton Helmsley agrees on behalf of the Nominating Party that, so long as you agree to
inclusion on the Slate and comply with the reasonable requests from Buxton Helmsley in
such capacity, Buxton Helmsley will defend, indemnify and hold you harmless from and
against any and all losses, claims, damages, penalties, judgments, awards, settlements,
liabilities, costs, expenses and disbursements (including, without limitation, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, costs, expenses and disbursements) incurred by you in the event that you
become a party, to any civil, criminal, administrative or arbitrative action, suit or
proceeding, (i) relating to your role as a nominee for director of the Corporation on the
Slate, or (ii) otherwise arising from or in connection with or relating to the Campaign or
the Proxy Solicitation. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, Buxton Helmsley
is not indemnifying you for any action taken by you or on your behalf that occurs prior to
the date hereof or subsequent to the conclusion of the Proxy Solicitation or such earlier
time as you are no longer a nominee on the Slate or for any claims made against you in
your capacity as a director of the Corporation or actions taken by you as a director of the
Corporation, if you are elected or appointed. Nothing herein shall be construed to provide
you with indemnification (i) if you violate any provision of state or federal law or commit
any criminal actions; (ii) if you acted in a manner that constitutes fraud, gross negligence,
bad faith or willful misconduct; or (ii1) you breach the terms of this Agreement. You shall
promptly notify Buxton Helmsley in writing in the event of any third-party claims actually
made against you or known by you to be threatened (along with any supporting documents
in your possession) if you intend to seek indemnification hereunder in respect of such
claims. In addition, upon your delivery of notice with respect to any such claim, Buxton
Helmsley, in its sole discretion, shall be entitled to assume control of the defense of such

Page 19 of 24











claim with counsel chosen by Buxton Helmsley. Buxton Helmsley shall not be responsible
for any settlement of any claim against you covered by this indemnity without its prior
written consent. However, Buxton Helmsley may not enter into any settlement of any such
claim without your consent unless such settlement includes (i) no admission of liability or
guilt by you, and (ii) an unconditional release of you from any and all liability or obligation
in respect of such claim.

You understand that it may be difficult, if not impossible, to replace a nominee who, such
as yourself, has agreed to be included on the Slate and, if elected or appointed, to serve as
a director of the Corporation if such nominee later changes his or her mind and determines
not to be included on the Slate or, if elected or appointed, to serve as a director of the
Corporation. Accordingly, Buxton Helmsley is relying upon your agreement to serve on
the Slate and, if elected or appointed, as a director of the Corporation. In that regard, you
are being supplied with a written representation and agreement required by the Corporation
for members of the Slate at the Annual Meeting (the “Company Representation”), in which
you will provide Buxton Helmsley with information necessary for the Nominating Party to
make appropriate disclosure to the Corporation and to use in creating the proxy solicitation
materials to be sent to stockholders of the Corporation and filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) in connection with the Campaign and Proxy
Solicitation (collectively, the “Nominee Information”).

You agree that (i) upon request you will promptly complete, sign and return the Company
Representation and provide any other Nominee Information reasonably requested by
Buxton Helmsley, (ii) your Nominee Information will be true, complete and correct in all
respects, (ii1) you will promptly inform us in writing of any changes to the Nominee
Information, and (iv) you will provide any additional information or instruments related to
the Campaign and Proxy Solicitation as may be reasonably requested by Buxton Helmsley.
In addition, you agree that you will execute and return a separate instrument confirming
that you consent to being named in any proxy statement and proxy card and nominated for
election or appointment as a director of the Corporation and, if elected or appointed,
consent to serving as a director of the Corporation. Upon being notified that you have been
chosen, Buxton Helmsley and the Nominating Party may forward your consent and
completed Company Representation (or summaries thereof) and any other Nominee
Information, to the Corporation. Buxton Helmsley and the Nominating Party may at any
time, in our and their discretion, disclose the information contained therein, as well as the
existence and contents of this Agreement. Furthermore, you understand that Buxton
Helmsley may elect, at its expense, to conduct a background and reference check on you,
and you agree to complete and execute any necessary authorization forms or other
documents required in connection therewith. You also agree to reasonably consult with us
prior to taking any actions that are likely to interfere with your obligations hereunder or
result in an adverse recommendation from Institutional Shareholder Services, Inc. or Glass,
Lewis & Co.

You further agree that (i) you will treat confidentially and not disclose to any party any

information relating to the Campaign, the Proxy Solicitation, or Buxton Helmsley or its
affiliates; (ii) from the date hereof until the Annual Meeting, neither you nor your
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10.

11.

immediate family will purchase or sell shares in the Corporation without the written
permission of Buxton Helmsley and that you will comply with certain compliance policies
and procedures of Buxton Helmsley as communicated to you from time to time; (iii) you
will not issue, publish or otherwise make any public statement or any other form of public
communication relating to the Corporation, the Campaign or the Proxy Solicitation without
the prior written approval of Buxton Helmsley; and (iv) you will not agree to serve, or
agree to be nominated to stand for election, by the Corporation or any other stockholder of
the Corporation (other than Buxton Helmsley and its affiliates), as a director of the
Corporation without the prior written approval of Buxton Helmsley.

From the date hereof until the Annual Meeting, you may only invest in securities of the
Corporation with the prior approval of Buxton Helmsley. With respect to any purchases
by you or your immediate family of securities of the Corporation approved by Buxton
Helmsley, (i) you agree to consult with Buxton Helmsley regarding such purchases and
provide necessary information following such purchases so that we may comply with any
applicable disclosure or other obligations which may result from such investment and (ii)
Buxton Helmsley or its affiliates shall prepare and complete any required disclosures
including all regulatory filings related thereto at no cost to you. With respect to any
purchases made pursuant to this paragraph, you agree not to dispose of any such securities
prior to the termination of this Agreement.

Each of us recognizes that should you be elected or appointed to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation (the “Board”) all of your activities and decisions as a director will be
governed by applicable law and subject to your fiduciary duties, as applicable, to the
Corporation and to the stockholders of the Corporation and, as a result, that there is, and
can be, no agreement between you and Buxton Helmsley that governs the decisions which
you will make as a director of the Corporation.

This Agreement shall automatically terminate on the earliest to occur of (i) the conclusion
of the Annual Meeting (including the certification of the results thereof), (ii) your election
or appointment to the Board, (iii) the termination of the Campaign and the Proxy
Solicitation or (iv) our election to not include you as part of the Slate, provided, however,
that the applicable indemnification provisions in the third paragraph, the confidentiality
obligations in the sixth paragraph, and the eighth through twelfth paragraphs of this
Agreement shall survive such termination.

This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between Buxton Helmsley and you as to
the subject matter contained herein, and cannot be amended, modified, or terminated except
by a writing executed by Buxton Helmsley and you.

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York, without giving
effect to principles of conflicts of laws. Each party to this letter hereby irrevocably agrees
that any legal action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this letter shall exclusively
be brought in a New York State or Federal court located in New York County in the State
of New York and hereby expressly submits to the personal jurisdiction and venue of such
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courts for the purposes thereof, and expressly waives any claim of improper venue and any
claim that such courts are an inconvenient forum.

12. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, which together shall
constitute a single agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Agreed to as of the date both parties have signed:

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

By:

Name: Alexander E. Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date:

NOMINEE:

Name: [°]
Date:
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ANNEX D

FINRA Exam Results Letter

[See attached]
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "Brian Cardile"; Steven Myhill-Jones

Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet; Relampagos, Stella C.

Subject: RE: Daily Journal Corporation - Rule 14a-19 Nomination Notice
Date: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 12:21:00 PM

Attachments: image001.png

Sensitivity: Confidential

Brian,

By your own account, correspondence is handled Monday through Friday during regular business
hours. My follow-up was sent at 5:15pm on Monday. A full business day had elapsed.

In any event, I'm not looking for a dispute about timing. We appreciate the confirmation of receipt
and, if we do not hear back by December 18, we will assume the Company finds the Rule 14a-19
notice sufficient.

Thank you,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Brian Cardile <bcardile@journaltech.com>

Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 12:05 PM

To: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>; Steven Myhill-Jones
<smj@dailyjournal.com>

Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com>; Relampagos, Stella C.
<stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>

Subject: Re: Daily Journal Corporation - Rule 14a-19 Nomination Notice

Sensitivity: Confidential

Caution: This is an external email from outside the Buxton Helmsley network. Please take care when clicking links or
opening attachments. If you question or doubt, contact the Buxton Helmsley Compliance Department.

Alexander,
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| trust you realize this impatient follow-up was sent before the first business day elapsed since
your original communication.

You will understand that your correspondence is handled Monday to Friday during regular
business hours and in the context of many other things as DJCO prioritizes the actual running
of the business, as is appropriate.

Sincerely,
BC

Brian Cardile

In-House Counsel - Corporate Secretary

Journal Technologies |915 E. 1st Street; Los Angeles, CA 90012
Phone: (213) 229-5300 | Direct: (301) 922-7711
bcardile@journaltech.com | www.journaltech.com

Book time with Brian Cardile

From: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>

Sent: Monday, December 15, 2025 5:15 PM

To: Brian Cardile <bcardile@journaltech.com>; Steven Myhill-Jones <smj@dailyjournal.com>
Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com>; Relampagos, Stella C.
<stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>

Subject: RE: Daily Journal Corporation - Rule 14a-19 Nomination Notice

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Mr. Cardile:

I am following up on our email sent below, delivering Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.'s Rule 14a-19 notice
of intent to solicit proxies at the Company's 2026 Annual Meeting. You should be aware that we
received confirmation from the Company’s server that the email was delivered successfully.

It has now been approximately 48 hours since delivery, including a full business day, and we have
not received acknowledgment of receipt. This is not the first instance in which highly important
correspondence to the Company has gone without a mere acknowledgement for an inappropriate
amount of time, requiring us to follow up.

Please confirm receipt of the Rule 14a-19 notice and its attachments by close of business tomorrow,
December 16.

Very truly yours,
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Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Parker, Alexander E.

Sent: Saturday, December 13, 2025 6:49 PM

To: Brian Cardile <bcardile@journaltech.com>; Steven Myhill-Jones <smj@dailyjournal.com>
Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com>; Relampagos, Stella C.
<stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>

Subject: Daily Journal Corporation - Rule 14a-19 Nomination Notice

Importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Cardile (and all others copied):

Attached, please find:
1. Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.’s formal notice of intent to solicit proxies at the Daily Journal
Corporation 2026 Annual Meeting, pursuant to Rule 14a-19 (with Annexes A-D); and
2. A private letter to the Board (copying Baker Tilly US, LLP).

We look forward to prompt confirmation of receipt of this email and its attachments, in addition to
hearing from the Company as to its nominees by December 31, 2025.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message and any attachments are intended solely for the named recipient(s) and may contain
confidential, privileged, and/or attorney-client communications. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, distribution, or copying is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately at +1 (212) 561-5540 or by
return email, and permanently delete this message and its attachments. Buxton Helmsley, Inc. disclaims liability for any damage caused
by viruses transmitted through this email, and recipients are responsible for their own virus screening.

LEGAL & INVESTMENT DISCLAIMER: This communication is provided for informational purposes only. It does not constitute, and should
not be construed as, investment advice, an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities or to provide management
services. Any such offer will only be made through a confidential private placement memorandum or other formal offering documents,
which contain important information and risk disclosures. Prospective investors should consult their own investment, legal, accounting,
and tax advisers before making any investment decision. No representation is made that past or projected performance is indicative of
future results.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS: This message may include statements, estimates, or projections that constitute “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws. Such statements are inherently uncertain, based on current assumptions
and expectations, and subject to risks and factors outside Buxton Helmsley’s control. Actual results may differ materially from those
expressed or implied. The firm undertakes no obligation to update or revise such statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events, or otherwise.
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "Brian Cardile"; Steven Myhill-Jones
Cc: Relampagos, Stella C.; Sayerwin, Scarlet
Subject: Daily Journal Corporation - Tainted CFO Appointment
Date: Wednesday, December 17, 2025 1:34:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

20251217 - Private Letter to DJCO Board.pdf
Sensitivity: Confidential
Brian,

Please see the attached correspondence regarding yesterday's announcement, as filed with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 8-K. The Company has apparently appointed Mr.
Nakamura as CFO, despite his direct involvement in the financial reporting violations that have been
occurring at subsidiary Journal Technologies, even more so than Tu To.

We have copied Baker Tilly on this email, given the Board's inexplicable decision to promote a CFO
who was responsible for these financial reporting violations. This action further illustrates the
Board’s apparent lack of care for CFO proficiency in financial reporting that complies with accounting
standards and securities laws, which should even further preclude Baker Tilly from signing off on the
Company’s financials in an upcoming Form 10-K filing. We again provide Baker Tilly the AICPA
publishing, which clearly explains management’s position that ASC 985-20 is incorrect (showing a
chart depicting the very activities in an agile development sprint that are subject to capitalization),
and not in compliance with GAAP. Beyond the GAAP violations, the Company’s previous Form 10-Q
and Form 10-K filings fail to properly disclose the “significant” (as admitted by management in
previous quarterly filings) research and development expenses on a separate line item (in violation
of Regulation S-X), requiring restatement and re-filing for years, even further precluding Baker Tilly
from signing off on another set of audited financial statements in the midst of such long-running
regulatory violations.

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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December 17, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company’) — Appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

We must follow up after our December 13 letter to express obvious concerns regarding the
Company’s Form 8-K filed yesterday, December 16, 2025, announcing the appointment of Erik
Nakamura as Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial Officer of Daily Journal Corporation
(the “December 16 Form 8-K”).

Suspicious Process

The December 16 Form 8-K states that the Board approved Mr. Nakamura’s appointment
on December 12, 2025. Yet the December 16 Form 8-K also discloses that, as of the filing date
(four days later), “the specific compensation arrangements have not been finalized.” The
Compensation Committee merely “authorized the Company to finalize the terms” of his
appointment.

This is not how CFO appointments work. Boards do not approve the appointment of a
principal financial officer without knowing what the company will pay him. Compensation is not
an afterthought to be delegated for later resolution—it is a material term that is approved as part
of the appointment itself. Without acceptable compensation terms, there is no appointment. The
notion that the Board definitively approved this appointment on December 12, while leaving
compensation entirely undetermined (handing management carte blanche authority and a blank
check), defies belief and underscores the inappropriate governance by the Board.

We also note that the December 16 Form 8-K disclosed an event that supposedly occurred
on December 12, yet was filed on December 16—the final day of the four-business-day window
permitted under Item 5.02 of Form 8-K. We further note that Buxton Helmsley's Rule 14a-19
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notice of intent to solicit proxies was delivered to the Company on December 13, 2025, just one
day after the Board’s purported approval of Mr. Nakamura's appointment.

Shareholders are entitled to have confidence that material corporate actions are taken
through proper deliberative processes, not rushed or reconstructed in response to external
pressures. The circumstances here do not inspire that confidence. Any shareholder will agree that
the claimed timing of the event disclosed in the December 16 Form 8-K is highly suspicious once
they are informed of the behind-the-scenes events involving Buxton Helmsley’s Rule 14a-19
notice.

The Very Wrong Choice

Even setting aside questions about process, the substance of this appointment is deeply
troubling.

Mr. Nakamura has served as Chief Financial Officer of Journal Technologies, Inc. since
October 2024. Journal Technologies is the subsidiary at the very center of the Company’s ongoing
accounting issues. Buxton Helmsley has publicly identified stark, sweeping violations of ASC
985-20 in relation to Journal Technologies’ complete failure to properly capitalize software
development costs, in addition to a complete failure to disclose the “significant” research and
development expenses on a separate line item of the Company’s income statement, in violation of
Regulation S-X.

Mr. Nakamura has been directly responsible for Journal Technologies’ books and records
during periods of this non-compliance, including the Company’s last quarterly report filed with
the U.S. SEC. He is the subsidiary CFO who oversaw the very accounting practices now under
scrutiny, even more directly than CFO Tu To (though Ms. To absolutely should have noticed the
suspicious complete absence of a “research and development expense” line item on the income
statement, and nonexistent intangible assets on the balance sheet). Promoting Mr. Nakamura to
parent company CFO does not signal a commitment to addressing these issues—it signals a
commitment to defending them.

The December 16 Form 8-K describes this appointment as “a continuation of the
Company's initiatives since 2023 to build the required finance team for the future alongside
modernized accounting systems and improved internal controls.” If the Company were genuinely
committed to improved internal controls, it would not elevate the executive most directly
associated with the subsidiary’s questioned accounting to the top financial role at the parent
company. This appointment suggests the Board either does not understand the seriousness of the
financial reporting violations that have been ongoing at the Company’s Journal Technologies
subsidiary, or does not care.

A Pattern of Governance Failure
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This appointment is consistent with the Board’s broader pattern of prioritizing
entrenchment over accountability. Rather than engage constructively with shareholder concerns
about accounting practices, the Board has chosen to circle the wagons. Rather than bring in fresh
leadership that was not a part of creating the issues under review, the Board has promoted from
within the very unit where the problems originated.

We remind the Board that approximately 40% of shareholders voted against multiple
directors at the last annual meeting, before the full scope of the accounting issues became public,
and before the departures of Ms. To and others. The Board’s response to that vote of no confidence
has been to double down on the status quo, which we are sure will not end well at the 2026 annual
meeting.

This appointment comes as the Company’s Form 10-K is due in fifteen days, and Baker
Tilly US, LLP must decide whether to sign off on financial statements that may contain the very
misstatements Buxton Helmsley has identified. Elevating the Journal Technologies CFO to the
parent company role at this moment sends a message, and is about as assuring as if Baker Tilly
signs off on financials that entirely contradict authoritative guidance published by their own
industry body (the AICPA).

As we said in our letter to the Board just days ago, shareholders deserve better.

* * *

Buxton Helmsley reserves all rights, at law and in equity, including the right to pursue any
and all remedies available to it in connection with the matters described herein and the Company’s
ongoing governance failures.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 17, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company’) — Appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

We must follow up after our December 13 letter to express obvious concerns regarding the
Company’s Form 8-K filed yesterday, December 16, 2025, announcing the appointment of Erik
Nakamura as Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial Officer of Daily Journal Corporation
(the “December 16 Form 8-K”).

Suspicious Process

The December 16 Form 8-K states that the Board approved Mr. Nakamura’s appointment
on December 12, 2025. Yet the December 16 Form 8-K also discloses that, as of the filing date
(four days later), “the specific compensation arrangements have not been finalized.” The
Compensation Committee merely “authorized the Company to finalize the terms” of his
appointment.

This is not how CFO appointments work. Boards do not approve the appointment of a
principal financial officer without knowing what the company will pay him. Compensation is not
an afterthought to be delegated for later resolution—it is a material term that is approved as part
of the appointment itself. Without acceptable compensation terms, there is no appointment. The
notion that the Board definitively approved this appointment on December 12, while leaving
compensation entirely undetermined (handing management carte blanche authority and a blank
check), defies belief and underscores the inappropriate governance by the Board.

We also note that the December 16 Form 8-K disclosed an event that supposedly occurred
on December 12, yet was filed on December 16—the final day of the four-business-day window
permitted under Item 5.02 of Form 8-K. We further note that Buxton Helmsley's Rule 14a-19
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notice of intent to solicit proxies was delivered to the Company on December 13, 2025, just one
day after the Board’s purported approval of Mr. Nakamura's appointment.

Shareholders are entitled to have confidence that material corporate actions are taken
through proper deliberative processes, not rushed or reconstructed in response to external
pressures. The circumstances here do not inspire that confidence. Any shareholder will agree that
the claimed timing of the event disclosed in the December 16 Form 8-K is highly suspicious once
they are informed of the behind-the-scenes events involving Buxton Helmsley’s Rule 14a-19
notice.

The Very Wrong Choice

Even setting aside questions about process, the substance of this appointment is deeply
troubling.

Mr. Nakamura has served as Chief Financial Officer of Journal Technologies, Inc. since
October 2024. Journal Technologies is the subsidiary at the very center of the Company’s ongoing
accounting issues. Buxton Helmsley has publicly identified stark, sweeping violations of ASC
985-20 in relation to Journal Technologies’ complete failure to properly capitalize software
development costs, in addition to a complete failure to disclose the “significant” research and
development expenses on a separate line item of the Company’s income statement, in violation of
Regulation S-X.

Mr. Nakamura has been directly responsible for Journal Technologies’ books and records
during periods of this non-compliance, including the Company’s last quarterly report filed with
the U.S. SEC. He is the subsidiary CFO who oversaw the very accounting practices now under
scrutiny, even more directly than CFO Tu To (though Ms. To absolutely should have noticed the
suspicious complete absence of a “research and development expense” line item on the income
statement, and nonexistent intangible assets on the balance sheet). Promoting Mr. Nakamura to
parent company CFO does not signal a commitment to addressing these issues—it signals a
commitment to defending them.

The December 16 Form 8-K describes this appointment as “a continuation of the
Company's initiatives since 2023 to build the required finance team for the future alongside
modernized accounting systems and improved internal controls.” If the Company were genuinely
committed to improved internal controls, it would not elevate the executive most directly
associated with the subsidiary’s questioned accounting to the top financial role at the parent
company. This appointment suggests the Board either does not understand the seriousness of the
financial reporting violations that have been ongoing at the Company’s Journal Technologies
subsidiary, or does not care.

A Pattern of Governance Failure
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This appointment is consistent with the Board’s broader pattern of prioritizing
entrenchment over accountability. Rather than engage constructively with shareholder concerns
about accounting practices, the Board has chosen to circle the wagons. Rather than bring in fresh
leadership that was not a part of creating the issues under review, the Board has promoted from
within the very unit where the problems originated.

We remind the Board that approximately 40% of shareholders voted against multiple
directors at the last annual meeting, before the full scope of the accounting issues became public,
and before the departures of Ms. To and others. The Board’s response to that vote of no confidence
has been to double down on the status quo, which we are sure will not end well at the 2026 annual
meeting.

This appointment comes as the Company’s Form 10-K is due in fifteen days, and Baker
Tilly US, LLP must decide whether to sign off on financial statements that may contain the very
misstatements Buxton Helmsley has identified. Elevating the Journal Technologies CFO to the
parent company role at this moment sends a message, and is about as assuring as if Baker Tilly
signs off on financials that entirely contradict authoritative guidance published by their own
industry body (the AICPA).

As we said in our letter to the Board just days ago, shareholders deserve better.

* * *

Buxton Helmsley reserves all rights, at law and in equity, including the right to pursue any
and all remedies available to it in connection with the matters described herein and the Company’s
ongoing governance failures.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "Sayerwin, Scarlet"; "Relampagos, Stella C."
Cc: jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: FW:

Date: Thursday, December 18, 2025 9:58:00 PM
Importance: High

Dear Mses. Sayerwin and Relampagos:

We request that you immediately forward a copy of the below correspondence (with Rasool Rayani, a member of
the Daily Journal Corporation's Audit Committee) to the Audit Engagement Partner and Audit Quality Review
Partner overseeing the Daily Journal Corporation audit engagement.

Mr. Rayani describes compliance with Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act as "the flimsiest of technicalities."
He does not understand when a Form 3 is due. He has not filed one himself in 18 months of board service.

This is the tone at the top. Under the COSO Internal Control Framework, the control environment—including the
integrity and ethical values demonstrated by the board and management—is the foundation of effective internal
control over financial reporting. An Audit Committee which dismisses federal securities law as a "flimsy
technicality" is not demonstrating commitment to compliance. They are demonstrating disregard to it.

Baker Tilly is being asked to sign an audit opinion for a company whose Audit Committee regards compliance with
federal securities laws as a trivial nuisance. I would ask that you consider what that suggests about the Committee's
approach to compliance with GAAP and Regulation S-X, especially in light of the issues we have already raised (for
which Baker Tilly has been consistently provided copies of).

Respectfully,

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1 (212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Parker, Alexander E.

Sent: Thursday, December 18, 2025 9:25 PM
To: 'Rasool' <rasool.rayani@gmail.com>
Cec: jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: RE:

Rasool,
Thank you for your response. It clarifies a great deal.

You write that the Section 16 violations involve "late Section 16 filings for the first-ever shares that vested under the
directors' plan."
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This reflects a fundamental misunderstanding of Form 3 requirements. Form 3 is due within 10 days of becoming a
director, regardless of whether any shares have vested or whether the director owns any securities at all. The
obligation is triggered by becoming a director, not by acquiring shares. Many times, directors begin by filing a
Form 3 showing zero beneficial ownership. The form is called an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership"
because it establishes a baseline at the time of becoming an insider, before possible vesting of compensation.

You joined the Board in June 2024. Your Form 3 was due within 10 days of that date. It is now 18 months later.
No Form 3 has ever been filed.

You are a member of the Audit Committee—the committee responsible for overseeing the Company's compliance
with SEC reporting obligations. You do not understand the most basic of those obligations. And you have now put
that misunderstanding and lack of care in writing.

You also describe Section 16 compliance as "the flimsiest of technicalities." This is a remarkable statement from an
Audit Committee member. Section 16 is not a technicality. It is a federal securities law enacted by Congress to
ensure transparency in the ownership interests of corporate insiders. The fact that you regard compliance with
federal securities laws as a trivial matter—while sitting on the committee responsible for such compliance—tells
shareholders everything they need to know about the current Board's approach to governance.

You describe the CFO's departure as a "thoughtful transition rather than anything nefarious." Thoughtful transitions
do not require separation agreements with general releases of claims and non-disparagement obligations. Perhaps
you have not reviewed the terms of Ms. To's departure. Or perhaps you have, and this is simply the message you
have been instructed to deliver.

You state that our proxy contest "will fail, as few shareholders will vote for you." I would remind you that 40% of
shareholders voted against the incumbent directors at the last annual meeting—before the CFO's departure, before
the Section 16 violations were exposed, and before shareholders learned that the entire Audit Committee cannot
comply with a two-page beneficial ownership form (not to mention, the GAAP and Regulation S-X issues).

As for your request that Ms. Petrozzello respond in my place: No. I do not take direction from you. But since you
have expressed curiosity about why Ms. Petrozzello is standing behind this, I am happy to clarify. It is because she
sees companies, just like the Daily Journal, consistently violating their obligations under accounting standards and
securities laws, and no one says anything about it. Ms. Petrozzello is a CPA and Certified Fraud Examiner who
serves on the Board of Directors of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants—the organization that
develops and grades the CPA examination. She is, in other words, among the professionals who determine whether
accountants are qualified to practice. I am confident her understanding of ASC 985-20 exceeds that of whoever has
been advising your Board. I am sure you have been provided with the authoritative AICPA guidance we previously
delivered, which clearly states that the Daily Journal's position on ASC 985-20 is incorrect. That guidance includes a
diagram of the activities in an agile development sprint that are subject to capitalization—activities the Daily Journal
has ignored entirely. The result is to grossly mislead shareholders as to whether capital is being expended or
invested in the business. These are two very different things, which any member of an audit committee should
understand.

This correspondence will be part of the record.

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1 (212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
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From: Rasool <rasool.rayani@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, December 18, 2025 8:57 PM

To: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>
Subject:

Caution: This is an external email from outside the Buxton Helmsley network. Please take care when clicking links
or opening attachments. If you question or doubt, contact the Buxton Helmsley Compliance Department.

Alexander,

In most circumstances, I would consider engaging with a solicitation like this to understand if there has been a
misunderstanding that can be navigated and rectified.

In this case, I’m starting from a basis of zero trust. Your behaviour so far is not that of someone acting in good faith.
You have not earned any trust because, whatever your larger strategy or “reasons”

might be, you have consistently mischaracterized matters and sought to make ado of the flimsiest of technicalities to
further your objectives. It strikes me that something like late Section 16 filings for the first-ever shares that vested
under the directors’ plan are very meager sticks to build a campfire where, as you probably know, the remedy is
simple disclosure of the late filings in the proxy statement.

Broadly, I consider your claims meritless and your conduct adverse to the interest of Daily Journal’s shareholders.
You have claimed an "accounting mess," but there is no mess. Your criticism is misplaced and reflects a
misunderstanding of the applicable accounting rules.

The CFO's departure is part of a thoughtful transition rather than anything nefarious.

You are free to launch a proxy contest, which will fail, as few shareholders will vote for you. Rather than launch a
baseless fight, which will cost your fund significant money that will not be recoverable, you should simply
apologize and move on.

All that said, the conversation that I would consider in the spirit of what you’re suggesting would be one with Ms.
Petrozzello. I’d be curious to get her perspective on the factors at play because I’m keen to understand the basis for
her being willing to risk her reputation on an endeavor like this.

In fact, I request any reply to this email come from her and not you.

Sincerely,
Rasool

From: Alexander E. Parker <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>
Date: Monday, December 15 2025 at 10:07 PM PST
Subject:

Rasool,

I’ll be direct with you. I’ve been aggressive with the board. I've had my reasons, and I stand by what I’ve said. But
I also recognize that makes me an unlikely person to reach out looking for dialogue.

I’m reaching out to you because you weren’t part of any of this. You joined eighteen months ago to add value to a
company, and instead you’ve inherited an accounting mess, a CFO departure, and now a proxy fight. I'm very sure

that’s not what you signed up for.

I’m not asking you to take my side or go against your colleagues. I know how boards work, and I know that’s not a











realistic ask. But I think there’s a version of this that doesn’t end in a courtroom.

Rather, a version of this where the company gets stronger, shareholders are better served, and nobody has to spend
the next six months in a war of attrition.

If you’re willing to have a conversation, I’d welcome it. No preconditions. If you’re not, I understand, and I won’t
bother you again.

Alexander
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: FW: Additional Section 16 Violations Identified

Date: Thursday, December 18, 2025 8:11:00 PM

Attachments: 20251218 - Private Letter to DJCO Board.pdf
image001.png

Importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Frank,

Forwarding you the below and attached, given its relevance to the letter addressed to you earlier
today, and to ensure your timely receipt, given its urgency.

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Parker, Alexander E.

Sent: Thursday, December 18, 2025 7:55 PM

To: 'Brian Cardile' <bcardile@journaltech.com>; Steven Myhill-Jones <smj@dailyjournal.com>
Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com>; Relampagos, Stella C.
<stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>

Subject: Additional Section 16 Violations Identified

Importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Cardile,

Please find attached correspondence regarding additional (active) Section 16(a) compliance
violations identified at the Company.

It appears that, in the course of filing corrective reports for Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin, no one noticed
(not even the “Director of SEC Reporting”) that Mr. Rayani has had no Form 3 or Form 4 filings at all

since joining the Board eighteen months ago.

Once again, Baker Tilly is copied here, to observe the unending compliance failures.
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December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Additional Section 16 Violations
Identified

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Following our letter of December 17, 2025, regarding the appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer, we have now discovered an additional compliance failure that warrants
immediate attention. Our December 13, 2025 letter identified years-long Section 16(a) reporting
failures by Audit Committee members John B. Frank and Mary Murphy Conlin. We have now
discovered that the third member of the Audit Committee—Rasool Rayani—has the same
compliance failures. Mr. Rayani joined the Board in June 2024. To date, eighteen months later,
no Form 3 has ever been filed on his behalf. Additionally, no Form 4 has been filed to report the
equity compensation he received, which the Company's own proxy statement discloses as $8,172.

To summarize: the Company recently filed delinquent Form 3 and Form 4 reports for Mr.
Frank and Ms. Conlin—apparently believing it had remedied its Section 16 compliance failures.
Yet somehow, in the course of this remediation, neither the Company, its management, its outside
counsel, nor any member of the Audit Committee noticed that the third Audit Committee member
had no filings at all. This is not a clerical oversight. Compliance is a function at DJCO that clearly
does not exist, even with the Company’s new “Director of SEC Reporting”.

Every single member of the Company's Audit Committee has violated Section 16(a), and
Rasool Rayani is actively violating Section 16(a). The committee charged with overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting and internal controls is composed entirely of directors who cannot
comply with the most basic SEC reporting obligations. This is the same committee that has
overseen the accounting failures we have identified, the same committee that allowed a falsely
dated Form 8-K to remain uncorrected for five months, and the same committee whose Chair we
have notified (earlier today) of potential referral to the State Bar of California.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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Mr. Rayani should understand that he will not escape scrutiny in the upcoming proxy
contest. Our prior correspondence focused on Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin because, at that time, we
believed Mr. Rayani’s filings were in order. They are not. Mr. Rayani will be included in all
future public communications regarding the Board’s systemic compliance failures.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "jfrank@oaktreecap.com"
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Mr. Frank:

Please find attached correspondence requiring your attention. As noted in the letter, we request a
response no later than 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on December 22, 2025.

Respectfully,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

John B. Frank, Esq.

Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.
333 South Grand Avenue, 28th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”’) — Notice of Potential Referral to
the State Bar of California

Dear Mr. Frank:

I write on behalf of Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. regarding conduct that we believe may
warrant referral to the State Bar of California for investigation under the California Rules of
Professional Conduct.

Section 16 Reporting Violations

As you are aware, you recently filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission that were delinquent by as many as three years. Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors of public companies to file Form 3 within ten
days of becoming a director and Form 4 within two business days of any transaction in the
company's securities. These are not obscure compliance requirements. They are among the most
basic obligations imposed on every public company director.

You are a securities lawyer at Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.—one of the world's
largest alternative investment managers, with approximately $180 billion in assets under
management. You have held yourself out to the Company and its shareholders as a “financial
expert” for purposes of SEC disclosure requirements and serve as Chair of the Company's Audit
Committee. A securities lawyer at a major investment firm who serves as the designated financial
expert on a public company’s audit committee should not require three years to file a two-page
beneficial ownership form.

“Financial Expert” Designation and Audit Committee Failures

Your acceptance of the “financial expert” designation carries with it an implicit self-
representation to shareholders that you possess the competence to oversee, and commitment to
ensuring compliance with, the Company’s financial reporting and internal control obligations. Yet
the record suggests otherwise.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com













John B. Frank, Esq.

December 18, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

Since July 2025, Buxton Helmsley has identified material concerns regarding the
Company's software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20 and violations of Regulation
S-X related to the failure to separately disclose research and development costs. We have provided
the Company—and its auditor, Baker Tilly US, LLP—with authoritative guidance from the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the organization that develops and grades the
CPA examination) that directly contradicts the Company’s stated accounting rationale. The
Company has never substantively responded to these concerns.

The potential exposure is not trivial. We have estimated that the Company has failed to
report approximately $50 million or more in intangible asset value due to improper expensing of
software development costs that were subject to mandatory capitalization under GAAP. We have
also identified violations of Regulation S-X, which requires separate disclosure of research and
development costs on the income statement when material—costs the Company itself has
described as “significant” (admittedly material) but has failed to quantify for years. Between these
issues, you have not only allowed these long-running violations of accounting standards and
securities laws to linger and go uncorrected, but also oversaw the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer continue to flagrantly violate those accounting standards and
securities laws with the Company’s latest Form 10-Q filing, dated August 14, 2025. That Form
10-Q filing also included a false certification (by Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To, pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) of compliance with financial reporting, constituting an
apparent criminal violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and the Company’s designated financial expert, you bear
direct responsibility for oversight of these matters. The fact that these potential violations have
persisted for months, and have translated into apparent criminal violations, despite detailed written
notice and authoritative contrary guidance, raises serious questions about the discharge of your
fiduciary duties.

Failure to Correct a Falsely Dated SEC Filing—and the Disclosure Violations It Was
Designed to Conceal

There is an additional matter that bears directly on your responsibilities as a securities
lawyer serving on this Board.

On July 29, 2025, CEO Steven Myhill-Jones signed and filed a Form 8-K that was falsely
dated on its face. The cover page of that filing states that the “Date of earliest event reported” is
July 28, 2025. Yet the body of the same filing explicitly states: "Two weeks ago, we received a
letter from Alexander E. Parker,” and later references “His initial July 14 letter is attached as
Exhibit 99.1.” The filing thus identifies July 14, 2025 as the earliest event being reported—while
the cover page certifies that date as July 28, 2025.
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John B. Frank, Esq.

December 18, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

The false dating was not a clerical error. It appears to have been designed to obscure the
Company’s failure to comply with the four-business-day disclosure requirement for Form 8-K
filings. Upon receiving our July 14 letter identifying potential ASC 985-20 violations, the Board
launched an accounting investigation—a material event requiring disclosure. Yet the Company
waited nearly two weeks to file the 8-K, well beyond the four-business-day requirement, and only
after Buxton Helmsley publicly demanded the Board force such disclosure twice. By falsely dating
the filing as July 28, the Company attempted to conceal how late the disclosure actually was.

The disclosure failures do not end there. Before filing the July 29 Form 8-K, the Company
selectively disclosed the existence of the Board's accounting investigation to Buxton Helmsley
alone—a single public market participant—in apparent violation of Regulation FD. Regulation
FD prohibits issuers from selectively disclosing material nonpublic information to certain market
participants without simultaneous public disclosure. The Company disclosed the investigation to
us, then waited days before disclosing it to the public, and only after the Company was publicly
exposed twice for the disclosure failure and apparent Regulation FD violation. As a securities
lawyer, you are presumably familiar with Regulation FD’s requirements.

This is not ambiguous. The filing contradicts itself on its face, the late filing violated the
four-business-day requirement, and the selective disclosure violated Regulation FD. We raised
these issues in writing to the Company on July 29, 2025—the same day the Form 8-K was filed.
It has never been corrected. The Company has since hired a Director of SEC Reporting, yet these
demonstrably false and misleading disclosures remain in the Company's public filings nearly five
months later.

You are a securities lawyer. You serve on the Board that is responsible for the accuracy
and timeliness of the Company’s SEC filings and compliance with Regulation FD. You are where
the buck stops for accurate public disclosures to shareholders, as Chair of the Company’s Audit
Committee. You have been aware of these disclosure failures since at least July 29, 2025. Yet
you have taken no action to cause the Company to correct the false filing or address the Regulation
FD violation. A securities lawyer who allows demonstrably false SEC filings and apparent
Regulation FD violations to persist uncorrected for months—after written notice—is not fulfilling
his professional responsibilities, and is part of the misconduct and violations of law.

California Rules of Professional Conduct

Rule 8.4 of the California Rules of Professional Conduct provides that it is professional
misconduct for a lawyer to “(b) commit a criminal act that reflects adversely on the lawyer’s
honesty, trustworthiness, or fitness as a lawyer” or “(c) engage in conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit, or reckless or intentional misrepresentation.” California Code, Business and
Professions Code section 6068(a) further requires California attorneys to “support the Constitution
and laws of the United States and of this state.”
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John B. Frank, Esq.

December 18, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

We believe that your years-long failure to comply with Section 16(a) of the Exchange
Act—a federal securities law with which you, as a securities lawyer, are presumably familiar—
combined with your failure to cause correction of a falsely dated SEC filing that was designed to
conceal untimely disclosure, your apparent acquiescence to a Regulation FD violation, your
ongoing failure to ensure the Company’s compliance with GAAP and Regulation S-X while
serving as the Company’s designated “financial expert,” and apparent allowance of violations of
18 U.S.C. § 1350, constitute conduct warranting investigation by the State Bar.

Demand

We are prepared to file a complaint with the State Bar of California and to provide the State
Bar with all supporting documentation, including the Company’s SEC filings (including the falsely
dated July 29 Form 8-K), our July 29, 2025 correspondence identifying the false date and the
Regulation FD violation, evidence of the selective disclosure to Buxton Helmsley prior to public
filing, the authoritative AICPA guidance completely contradicting the Company’s accounting
position, and our extensive correspondence with the Company and its auditor.

However, we are willing to forego such a filing if the Company takes immediate and
appropriate remedial action to address the governance and financial reporting failures we have
identified. In the alternative, if you conclude that the Board is unwilling to take such action, we
believe the appropriate course would be for you to resign from the Board rather than continue to
lend your name and professional credentials to a governance structure that has demonstrably failed
shareholders.

We request a response to this letter no later than 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on December
22, 2025. In the absence of a satisfactory response by that deadline, we intend to proceed with a
referral to the State Bar.

Reservation of Rights

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law,
including the right to file a complaint with the State Bar at any time and to pursue any other
remedies available to us.

This letter is being provided to you directly in your personal capacity as a member of the
State Bar of California, with a copy to the Board of Directors of Daily Journal Corporation.
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John B. Frank, Esq.
December 18, 2025

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

Cc:

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
Brian Cardile (Corporate Secretary, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Additional Section 16 Violations
Identified

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Following our letter of December 17, 2025, regarding the appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer, we have now discovered an additional compliance failure that warrants
immediate attention. Our December 13, 2025 letter identified years-long Section 16(a) reporting
failures by Audit Committee members John B. Frank and Mary Murphy Conlin. We have now
discovered that the third member of the Audit Committee—Rasool Rayani—has the same
compliance failures. Mr. Rayani joined the Board in June 2024. To date, eighteen months later,
no Form 3 has ever been filed on his behalf. Additionally, no Form 4 has been filed to report the
equity compensation he received, which the Company's own proxy statement discloses as $8,172.

To summarize: the Company recently filed delinquent Form 3 and Form 4 reports for Mr.
Frank and Ms. Conlin—apparently believing it had remedied its Section 16 compliance failures.
Yet somehow, in the course of this remediation, neither the Company, its management, its outside
counsel, nor any member of the Audit Committee noticed that the third Audit Committee member
had no filings at all. This is not a clerical oversight. Compliance is a function at DJCO that clearly
does not exist, even with the Company’s new “Director of SEC Reporting”.

Every single member of the Company's Audit Committee has violated Section 16(a), and
Rasool Rayani is actively violating Section 16(a). The committee charged with overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting and internal controls is composed entirely of directors who cannot
comply with the most basic SEC reporting obligations. This is the same committee that has
overseen the accounting failures we have identified, the same committee that allowed a falsely
dated Form 8-K to remain uncorrected for five months, and the same committee whose Chair we
have notified (earlier today) of potential referral to the State Bar of California.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com











Daily Journal Corporation

December 18, 2025 BUXTON bj HELMSLEY

Mr. Rayani should understand that he will not escape scrutiny in the upcoming proxy
contest. Our prior correspondence focused on Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin because, at that time, we
believed Mr. Rayani’s filings were in order. They are not. Mr. Rayani will be included in all
future public communications regarding the Board’s systemic compliance failures.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

John B. Frank, Esq.

Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.
333 South Grand Avenue, 28th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”’) — Notice of Potential Referral to
the State Bar of California

Dear Mr. Frank:

I write on behalf of Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. regarding conduct that we believe may
warrant referral to the State Bar of California for investigation under the California Rules of
Professional Conduct.

Section 16 Reporting Violations

As you are aware, you recently filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission that were delinquent by as many as three years. Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors of public companies to file Form 3 within ten
days of becoming a director and Form 4 within two business days of any transaction in the
company's securities. These are not obscure compliance requirements. They are among the most
basic obligations imposed on every public company director.

You are a securities lawyer at Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.—one of the world's
largest alternative investment managers, with approximately $180 billion in assets under
management. You have held yourself out to the Company and its shareholders as a “financial
expert” for purposes of SEC disclosure requirements and serve as Chair of the Company's Audit
Committee. A securities lawyer at a major investment firm who serves as the designated financial
expert on a public company’s audit committee should not require three years to file a two-page
beneficial ownership form.

“Financial Expert” Designation and Audit Committee Failures

Your acceptance of the “financial expert” designation carries with it an implicit self-
representation to shareholders that you possess the competence to oversee, and commitment to
ensuring compliance with, the Company’s financial reporting and internal control obligations. Yet
the record suggests otherwise.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com











John B. Frank, Esq.

December 18, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

Since July 2025, Buxton Helmsley has identified material concerns regarding the
Company's software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20 and violations of Regulation
S-X related to the failure to separately disclose research and development costs. We have provided
the Company—and its auditor, Baker Tilly US, LLP—with authoritative guidance from the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the organization that develops and grades the
CPA examination) that directly contradicts the Company’s stated accounting rationale. The
Company has never substantively responded to these concerns.

The potential exposure is not trivial. We have estimated that the Company has failed to
report approximately $50 million or more in intangible asset value due to improper expensing of
software development costs that were subject to mandatory capitalization under GAAP. We have
also identified violations of Regulation S-X, which requires separate disclosure of research and
development costs on the income statement when material—costs the Company itself has
described as “significant” (admittedly material) but has failed to quantify for years. Between these
issues, you have not only allowed these long-running violations of accounting standards and
securities laws to linger and go uncorrected, but also oversaw the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer continue to flagrantly violate those accounting standards and
securities laws with the Company’s latest Form 10-Q filing, dated August 14, 2025. That Form
10-Q filing also included a false certification (by Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To, pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) of compliance with financial reporting, constituting an
apparent criminal violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and the Company’s designated financial expert, you bear
direct responsibility for oversight of these matters. The fact that these potential violations have
persisted for months, and have translated into apparent criminal violations, despite detailed written
notice and authoritative contrary guidance, raises serious questions about the discharge of your
fiduciary duties.

Failure to Correct a Falsely Dated SEC Filing—and the Disclosure Violations It Was
Designed to Conceal

There is an additional matter that bears directly on your responsibilities as a securities
lawyer serving on this Board.

On July 29, 2025, CEO Steven Myhill-Jones signed and filed a Form 8-K that was falsely
dated on its face. The cover page of that filing states that the “Date of earliest event reported” is
July 28, 2025. Yet the body of the same filing explicitly states: "Two weeks ago, we received a
letter from Alexander E. Parker,” and later references “His initial July 14 letter is attached as
Exhibit 99.1.” The filing thus identifies July 14, 2025 as the earliest event being reported—while
the cover page certifies that date as July 28, 2025.
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John B. Frank, Esq.

December 18, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

The false dating was not a clerical error. It appears to have been designed to obscure the
Company’s failure to comply with the four-business-day disclosure requirement for Form 8-K
filings. Upon receiving our July 14 letter identifying potential ASC 985-20 violations, the Board
launched an accounting investigation—a material event requiring disclosure. Yet the Company
waited nearly two weeks to file the 8-K, well beyond the four-business-day requirement, and only
after Buxton Helmsley publicly demanded the Board force such disclosure twice. By falsely dating
the filing as July 28, the Company attempted to conceal how late the disclosure actually was.

The disclosure failures do not end there. Before filing the July 29 Form 8-K, the Company
selectively disclosed the existence of the Board's accounting investigation to Buxton Helmsley
alone—a single public market participant—in apparent violation of Regulation FD. Regulation
FD prohibits issuers from selectively disclosing material nonpublic information to certain market
participants without simultaneous public disclosure. The Company disclosed the investigation to
us, then waited days before disclosing it to the public, and only after the Company was publicly
exposed twice for the disclosure failure and apparent Regulation FD violation. As a securities
lawyer, you are presumably familiar with Regulation FD’s requirements.

This is not ambiguous. The filing contradicts itself on its face, the late filing violated the
four-business-day requirement, and the selective disclosure violated Regulation FD. We raised
these issues in writing to the Company on July 29, 2025—the same day the Form 8-K was filed.
It has never been corrected. The Company has since hired a Director of SEC Reporting, yet these
demonstrably false and misleading disclosures remain in the Company's public filings nearly five
months later.

You are a securities lawyer. You serve on the Board that is responsible for the accuracy
and timeliness of the Company’s SEC filings and compliance with Regulation FD. You are where
the buck stops for accurate public disclosures to shareholders, as Chair of the Company’s Audit
Committee. You have been aware of these disclosure failures since at least July 29, 2025. Yet
you have taken no action to cause the Company to correct the false filing or address the Regulation
FD violation. A securities lawyer who allows demonstrably false SEC filings and apparent
Regulation FD violations to persist uncorrected for months—after written notice—is not fulfilling
his professional responsibilities, and is part of the misconduct and violations of law.

California Rules of Professional Conduct

Rule 8.4 of the California Rules of Professional Conduct provides that it is professional
misconduct for a lawyer to “(b) commit a criminal act that reflects adversely on the lawyer’s
honesty, trustworthiness, or fitness as a lawyer” or “(c) engage in conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit, or reckless or intentional misrepresentation.” California Code, Business and
Professions Code section 6068(a) further requires California attorneys to “support the Constitution
and laws of the United States and of this state.”
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John B. Frank, Esq.

December 18, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

We believe that your years-long failure to comply with Section 16(a) of the Exchange
Act—a federal securities law with which you, as a securities lawyer, are presumably familiar—
combined with your failure to cause correction of a falsely dated SEC filing that was designed to
conceal untimely disclosure, your apparent acquiescence to a Regulation FD violation, your
ongoing failure to ensure the Company’s compliance with GAAP and Regulation S-X while
serving as the Company’s designated “financial expert,” and apparent allowance of violations of
18 U.S.C. § 1350, constitute conduct warranting investigation by the State Bar.

Demand

We are prepared to file a complaint with the State Bar of California and to provide the State
Bar with all supporting documentation, including the Company’s SEC filings (including the falsely
dated July 29 Form 8-K), our July 29, 2025 correspondence identifying the false date and the
Regulation FD violation, evidence of the selective disclosure to Buxton Helmsley prior to public
filing, the authoritative AICPA guidance completely contradicting the Company’s accounting
position, and our extensive correspondence with the Company and its auditor.

However, we are willing to forego such a filing if the Company takes immediate and
appropriate remedial action to address the governance and financial reporting failures we have
identified. In the alternative, if you conclude that the Board is unwilling to take such action, we
believe the appropriate course would be for you to resign from the Board rather than continue to
lend your name and professional credentials to a governance structure that has demonstrably failed
shareholders.

We request a response to this letter no later than 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on December
22, 2025. In the absence of a satisfactory response by that deadline, we intend to proceed with a
referral to the State Bar.

Reservation of Rights

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law,
including the right to file a complaint with the State Bar at any time and to pursue any other
remedies available to us.

This letter is being provided to you directly in your personal capacity as a member of the
State Bar of California, with a copy to the Board of Directors of Daily Journal Corporation.
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John B. Frank, Esq.
December 18, 2025

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

Cc:

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
Brian Cardile (Corporate Secretary, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3
New York, N.Y. 10036-2600
December 19, 2025

VIA FEDEX AND EMAIL (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attention: Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary

Re: Demand to Inspect Books and Records Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South
Carolina Business Corporation Act

Dear Mr. Cardile:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., a New York corporation (the "Shareholder"), is—as of the
date set forth above—a record shareholder of Daily Journal Corporation (the "Corporation").

Reference is made to the Notice of Intent to Solicit Proxies in Support of Director
Nominees Pursuant to Rule 14a-19 Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, dated December
13, 2025 (the "Notice"). As further described in the Notice, the Shareholder intends to solicit
proxies in support of the nomination of certain persons for election to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation (the "Board") at the 2026 annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation,
expected to be held on or about February 19, 2026, including any adjournments or postponements
thereof or any special meeting that may be held in lieu thereof (the "2026 Annual Meeting").

I SHAREHOLDER LIST AND RELATED RECORDS

Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act of 1988
(the "SCBCA"), as a shareholder of the Corporation, the Shareholder hereby demands that
it and its attorneys, representatives and agents be given, during regular business hours and
at the Corporation's principal office or other reasonable location specified by the
Corporation, the opportunity to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom, the following
records of the Corporation for the purpose of (1) disseminating a definitive proxy statement
to the Corporation's shareholders in connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the
2026 Annual Meeting and (2) communicating with the Corporation's shareholders in
connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the 2026 Annual Meeting (the
"Demand"), including, but not limited to:

a) a complete record or list of the shareholders of the Corporation in electronic
medium form, certified by the Corporation's transfer agent(s) and/or registrar(s),
setting forth the name, address and email address of, and the number, series and
class of shares of stock of the Corporation held by, each shareholder as of the most











b)

d)

recent date available, and, when available, such list for each shareholder as of any
record date (the "Record Date") established or to be established for the 2026 Annual
Meeting or any other meeting of shareholders held in lieu thereof (the most recent
available date and any such record date, a "Determination Date");

a complete record or list of shareholders of the Corporation and respondent banks
who have elected to receive electronic copies of proxy materials with respect to
meetings of the shareholders of the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-16(j)(2) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), including,
for each such shareholder, the email address provided by such shareholder;

all transfer journals and daily transfer sheets showing changes in the names and
addresses of the Corporation's shareholders and the number, series or class of shares
of stock of the Corporation held by the Corporation's shareholders that are in or
come into the possession of the Corporation or its transfer agent(s), registrar(s), or
proxy solicitor(s), or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks,
clearing agencies or voting trusts or their nominees from the date of the shareholder
list referred to in paragraph (a) through the date of the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's or its transfer agent(s)' or
registrar(s)' or proxy solicitor(s)' possession, custody or control or that can
reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing agencies, voting
trusts or their nominees relating to the names and addresses and telephone numbers
of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation as of each
Determination Date held by the participating brokers and banks named in the
individual nominee names of Cede & Co. and other similar depositories or
nominees of any central certificate depository system, including respondent bank
lists, and all omnibus proxies and related respondent bank proxies and listings
issued pursuant to Rule 14b-2 under the Exchange Act, including a Weekly Report
of Security Position Listings from The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (a
"Weekly DTC Report") as of each Determination Date, and, following the setting
and occurrence of the Record Date, a Weekly DTC Report for each of the weeks
until the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's possession, custody or
control or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing
agencies, voting trusts or their nominees, relating to the names and addresses of,
and shares of stock of the Corporation held by, the non-objecting beneficial owners
(or "NOBOs") of the shares of stock of the Corporation as of each Determination
Date (or any other date established or obtained by the Corporation) pursuant to Rule
14b-1(c) or Rule 14b-2(c) under the Exchange Act, in Microsoft Excel, or, if the
information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel file, means by which the
Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft Excel file, and a hard copy
printout of such information in order of descending balance for verification
purposes. If such information is not in the Corporation's possession, custody, or
control, such information should be requested from Broadridge Financial Solutions,
Inc., Say Technologies, LLC, and Mediant Communications LLC, or any other
similar shareholder communications services company that has been engaged by
the Corporation to provide investor communications services in connection with a
meeting of shareholders;












f) an alphabetical breakdown of any holdings in the respective names of Cede & Co.
and other similar depositories or nominees, as well as any material request list
provided by Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and
Mediant Communications, LLC, and any omnibus proxies issued by such entities
in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. If such information is not in the
Corporation's possession, custody, or control, such information should be requested
from Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and Mediant
Communications, LLC;

g) all lists and electronic files (together with such computer processing data as is
necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such files) containing the name and
address of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation
attributable to any participant in any employee share ownership plan, stock
ownership dividend reinvestment, employee share purchase plan or other employee
compensation or benefit plan of the Corporation in which the decision to vote shares
of stock of the Corporation held by such plan is made, directly or indirectly,
individually or collectively, by the participants in the plan and the method(s) by
which the Shareholder or its agents may communicate with each such participant,
as well as the name, affiliation and telephone number of the trustee or administrator
of each such plan, and a detailed explanation of the treatment not only of shares for
which the trustee or administrator receives instructions from participants, but also
shares for which either the trustee or administrator does not receive instructions or
shares that are outstanding in the plan but are unallocated to any participant, in
Microsoft Excel, or, if the information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel
file, means by which the Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft
Excel file, and a hard copy printout of such information in alphabetical order for
verification purposes; and

h) to the extent not already referred to above, any electronic file which contains any
or all of the information encompassed in this Demand, together with any program,
software, manual, or other instructions necessary for the practical use of such
information.

The information and records specified in the foregoing paragraphs (a) through (h) should
be given as of the most recent available date and, unless stated otherwise, should be updated
as of the Record Date promptly as such information becomes available to the Corporation,
its registrar, its proxy solicitor, or any of the Corporation's or their respective agents.

To reiterate, all information requested in paragraphs (a) through (h) should be provided in
hard copy (paper) form, as well as CD-ROM format, electronically transmitted file, or
similar electronic medium (any such electronic storage medium, an "Electronic Medium"),
and such computer processing data as is necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such
list on an Electronic Medium; and a hard copy printout of the total aggregate accounts and
shares represented by such list on an Electronic Medium for verification purposes;
provided, however if the hard copy (paper) form exceeds fifty (50) printed pages then in
lieu of hard copy (paper), the Corporation should provide such data in an Electronic
Medium.












II.

ADDITIONAL BOOKS AND RECORDS

In addition to the shareholder list and related records described in Part I above, and pursuant
to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the Shareholder hereby demands the opportunity to
inspect and copy the following books and records of the Corporation for the purposes of
(1) investigating potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of
internal controls at the Corporation, (2) evaluating the qualifications, performance, and
independence of the Corporation's directors and officers, and (3) assessing the adequacy of
the Corporation's financial reporting and compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("GAAP"):

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

all minutes of meetings of the Board and any committee thereof, including but
not limited to the Audit Committee, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20"), (C)
capitalization of software development costs at Journal Technologies, Inc. or any
subsidiary or division of the Corporation, (D) any internal or external review,
investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices or policies,
or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

all written communications between the Corporation and its independent
auditors, including Baker Tilly US, LLP and any predecessor auditors, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, (D) any deficiency in internal controls over financial
reporting, (E) any disagreement between the Corporation and its auditors
regarding accounting treatment or disclosure, or (F) any management
representation letters provided to the auditors concerning software development
costs or related accounting policies;

all documents, reports, memoranda, presentations, and analyses prepared by or
for the Board, any committee thereof, or any officer of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to any internal
review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's software development
cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or potential GAAP
violations, including any reports or findings of internal or external counsel,
accountants, or other advisors retained in connection with any such review,
investigation, or inquiry;

all written communications sent or received by Tu To, in her capacity as Chief
Financial Officer or in any other capacity on behalf of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, or (D) any internal or external review, investigation, or
inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices;

all Audit Committee meeting materials, including agendas, presentations,
reports, and supporting documentation, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)
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ASC 985-20, (C) Journal Technologies, Inc., (D) any communication from the
Corporation's independent auditors regarding accounting policies or internal
controls, or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

(vi) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present, that discuss,
reference, or relate to (A) Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., Buxton Helmsley, Inc.,
or any affiliate thereof, (B) Alexander Parker, (C) any shareholder proposal,
nomination, or other communication received from Buxton Helmsley or Mr.
Parker, (D) any public statement or filing made by or concerning Buxton
Helmsley or Mr. Parker, or (E) the Corporation's response to any of the
foregoing;

(vii) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors and officers of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present,
that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) any investigation of the Corporation's
accounting practices initiated in response to concerns raised by shareholders, (B)
the scope, findings, or conclusions of any such investigation, or (C) any remedial
actions taken or considered in response to any such investigation;

(viii) all engagement letters, statements of work, and invoices from any outside
counsel, accounting firm, or other advisor retained by the Corporation in
connection with (A) any review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's
software development cost accounting practices or compliance with GAAP, or
(B) any response to shareholder concerns regarding the Corporation's accounting
practices; and

(ix) all documents and communications reflecting any communication between the
Corporation and the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board, or any other regulatory body, from January 1, 2020
to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to the Corporation's software
development cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or any
other accounting matter.

PURPOSE OF DEMAND

The purpose of the requests in Part [ of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder and certain
of its affiliates and representatives to communicate with other holders of common stock
with respect to matters relating to their interests as shareholders, including, without
limitation, an affiliate of the Shareholder soliciting proxies from the Corporation's
shareholders in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting.

The purpose of the requests in Part II of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder to (1)
investigate potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal
controls relating to the Corporation's accounting practices and financial reporting, (2)
evaluate the qualifications, performance, and independence of the Corporation's current
directors and officers, including their oversight of financial reporting and response to
shareholder concerns, (3) assess whether the Corporation's financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP and whether any restatement may be required, and (4)
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make an informed decision regarding how to vote its shares and communicate with other
shareholders at the 2026 Annual Meeting regarding the election of directors and other
matters.

The Shareholder represents that (i) it is seeking this inspection for a proper purpose
reasonably related to its interest as a shareholder, (ii) it describes with reasonable
particularity its purpose and the records it desires to inspect, (iii) the records requested are
directly connected with the Shareholder's purpose, and (iv) it will not sell the requested
information to any person, give the requested information to any competitor of the
Corporation, or otherwise use the information for any improper purpose.

The records enumerated in this Demand are directly connected with the above purposes of
this Demand and are reasonably related to the Shareholder's interests as a shareholder of
the Corporation.

CONTINUING DEMAND AND RESPONSE

This Demand is a continuing demand. The Shareholder demands that all modifications,
corrections, additions, or deletions to any and all information referred to in Parts I and II
above be immediately furnished to the Shareholder as such modifications, corrections,
additions, or deletions become available to the Corporation or its agents or representatives.

The Shareholder hereby designates the undersigned and any other persons designated by
them or by the Shareholder, acting singly or in any combination, to conduct the inspection
and copying herein requested. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the materials
identified above shall be made available to the Shareholder and its representatives initially
no later than five business days following the date hereof and each Determination Date.
All documents responsive to this Demand shall be produced in electronic format to the
extent such documents exist in electronic form or can reasonably be converted to electronic
form. Production shall be made by secure electronic transmission or other electronic means
agreed upon by the parties. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, you are required
to respond to this demand within five business days of the date hereof. Please advise the
Shareholder's legal department, at legal@buxtonhelmsley.com, as promptly as practicable
within the requisite timeframe.

If the Corporation contends that this request is incomplete or is otherwise deficient in any
respect, please immediately notify the Shareholder immediately in writing, setting forth
any facts that the Corporation contends support its position and specifying any additional
information believed to be required. In the absence of such prompt notice, the Shareholder
will assume that the Corporation agrees that this request complies in all respects with the
requirements of the SCBCA. The Shareholder reserves the right to withdraw or modify this
request at any time.

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS











This Demand is being made without prejudice to (i) any previous requests made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the Exchange Act, (ii) any previous demand made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the SCBCA or (iii) any other demands, which may be
made by the Shareholder or its affiliates, from time to time, whether pursuant to the
Exchange Act, the SCBCA, or other applicable federal or state law, or the Corporation's
organizational documents.

[Signature Page Follows]











Very truly yours,

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

A

By: boxsiGN 4K8WWQP1-1RV5Z5PR

Name: Alexander E. Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Cc: Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation











										alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com




					2025-12-19T18:19:43+0000




					Signed with Box Sign by Alexander Parker (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com)
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "enakamura@journaltech.com"
Cc: jfrank@oaktreecap.com; Sayerwin, Scarlet; Relampagos, Stella C.
Subject: Daily Journal Corporation - Notice Regarding Potential Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350
Date: Friday, December 19, 2025 4:50:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png
20251219 - Private Letter to Erik Nakamura.pdf
Importance: High
Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Nakamura,

Please find attached formal correspondence regarding material accounting deficiencies at Daily
Journal Corporation that may expose you to personal criminal liability under 18 U.S.C. § 1350, if you
certify the Company's upcoming Form 10-K.

This letter details two independent GAAP and SEC reporting violations—the Company’s failure to
capitalize software development costs under ASC 985-20 and its failure to separately report research
and development expenses under Regulation S-X § 210.5-03—and explains why certification of
financial statements that perpetuate these violations would constitute willful false certification
under Sarbanes-Oxley.

| strongly encourage you to read this letter carefully before signing any SEC filings on behalf of the
Company.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn






mailto:alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com




mailto:enakamura@journaltech.com




mailto:jfrank@oaktreecap.com




mailto:scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com




mailto:stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com




http://www.buxtonhelmsley.com/




https://www.linkedin.com/company/the-buxton-helmsley-group









BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY












BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 19, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO ERIK NAKAMURA (ENAKAMURA@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Mr. Erik Nakamura

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice Regarding Potential
Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350

Dear Mr. Nakamura:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (“Buxton Helmsley” or “we”) beneficially own shares of
Daily Journal Corporation (the “Company’). We are writing to put you on formal notice—before
you possibly certify the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025—of
material accounting deficiencies that, if left unremediated, may expose you to personal criminal
liability under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

The Company’s financial statements contain two distinct and independent violations of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) and SEC reporting requirements. Each
violation alone would render the financial statements materially misstated. Together, they
demonstrate a fundamental failure of financial reporting at the Company.

VIOLATION ONE: Failure to Capitalize Software Development Costs Under ASC 985-20

As you are aware, the Company’s subsidiary, Journal Technologies, Inc., develops and
licenses software for external use by courts and other justice agencies. The accounting treatment
for costs incurred in developing software for external sale or licensing is governed by Accounting
Standards Codification Topic 985-20 (“ASC 985-20").

Under ASC 985-20, once technological feasibility has been established, software
development costs must be capitalized. These costs are then amortized over the product’s
economic life. The threshold for capitalization is met when the entity has completed all planning,
designing, coding, and testing activities necessary to establish that the product can be produced to
meet its design specifications.

For years, the Company has expensed 100% of its software development costs, capitalizing
nothing. This accounting treatment is incorrect. It results in material understatement of assets,

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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material overstatement of expenses, and material misstatement of net income in every period in
which capitalizable development activities occurred.

The Company’s Own Admissions

In its Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, the Company stated, on
page 7:

“As a technology-based company, Journal Technologies’ success depends on the
continued improvement of its products, which is why the costs to update and
upgrade them consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s
expenses.”

The Company has thus admitted that (1) it incurs significant costs to “update”, “upgrade”,
and “improve[]” its software products, and (2) these costs constitute a “significant” portion of the
Company’s expenses. The Company has already admitted how “significant” (i.e., material) this
error has been overs years of quarterly financials.

Development costs related to updating and upgrading existing software products are
precisely the types of costs that are subject to capitalization under ASC 985-20, once technological
feasibility is established. The Company cannot simultaneously claim that these costs are
“significant” while entirely omitting them from its balance sheet. The Company has failed to keep
proper accounting records for years, which means it must reconstruct its historical financial
statements to regain compliance—there is no choice, given such “significant” non-compliance.

The Absurdity of the Company’s Accounting Position

Let us be direct about the logical impossibility of the Company’s historical accounting
treatment.

The only justification under GAAP for expensing 100% of software development costs is
a claim that technological feasibility has never been established—that the Company’s software
products have never progressed beyond the preliminary project stage.

This position is facially absurd.

Journal Technologies currently derives approximately 76% of the Company’s consolidated
revenues from its software products. These are not experimental prototypes or conceptual designs.
These are fully developed, commercially deployed software systems that courts and justice
agencies across the country rely upon every day to manage their operations. You cannot generate
76% of your revenues from a product that is not technologically feasible. The revenue itself is
conclusive proof that technological feasibility was achieved long ago.
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Moreover, the Company’s own language betrays the fallacy of its accounting position. A
product cannot be “upgraded” unless it already exists in a completed, functional state. The very
concept of an “upgrade” presupposes a working product that is being enhanced. You do not
“upgrade” something that has not yet demonstrated it can be produced to meet its design
specifications—you develop it. The fact that the Company describes its development activities as

“updates”, “upgrades”, and “improvements” is an admission that the underlying products have
long since achieved technological feasibility.

To put it simply: if the software works, it is feasible. If it generates revenue, it works. If
the Company is upgrading it, it already exists. The Company cannot have it both ways—claiming
its products are technologically unproven for accounting purposes while simultaneously selling
those same products to customers and generating tens of millions of dollars in annual revenue.

We expect you, as an incoming Chief Financial Officer, to understand the fundamental
difference between an expense and an investment. This distinction is not a technicality—it is the
cornerstone of accrual accounting and the very issue at the heart of the Company’s longstanding
violation of ASC 985-20. Costs that provide future economic benefit are capitalized as assets;
costs that do not are expensed. The Company’s policy of expensing all development costs—
including those incurred to create valuable, revenue-generating software enhancements—treats
investments as if they were worthless the moment they are made. That is not consistent with
GAAP.

VIOLATION TWO: Failure to Separately Report Research and Development Expenses
Under Regulation S-X

Entirely independent of the ASC 985-20 capitalization issue, the Company’s financial
statements violate Regulation S-X by failing to separately disclose research and development
expenses on the face of the income statement.

Regulation S-X § 210.5-03 prescribes the form and content of income statements for SEC
registrants. That section requires registrants to present research and development costs as a
separate line item on the income statement when the category is “material” (as the Company has
admitted, “significant”), distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses. It is a violation
of Regulation S-X to lump material categories of expenses together.

The Company has admitted—in its own words—that its software development costs
“consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s expenses.” The word
“significant” is a term of art in accounting and SEC reporting. By the Company’s own admission,
these costs are material.

Yet the Company does not report research and development expenses as a separate line
item on its consolidated statements of operations. Instead, these material costs are improperly
buried within selling, general and administrative expenses, invisible to investors reviewing the
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face of the financial statements, leaving it impossible for investors to understand how much capital
is being invested into Journal Technologies’ software products. This presentation violates Section
210.5-03 of Regulation S-X.

This is a violation of Regulation S-X that is entirely separate from the ASC 985-20
capitalization issue. Even if the Company’s policy of expensing all development costs were
correct (which it is not), the Company would still be required to separately disclose those expenses
on the income statement—apart from SG&A—when they are material. The Company has
admitted materiality. The Company has failed to make the required disclosure.

To be clear: the Form 10-K must separately report true research and development
expenses—meaning research and development costs that are properly expensed, excluding those
development activities that should be capitalized under ASC 985-20—as a line item distinct from
selling, general and administrative expenses. The Company’s current presentation fails on both
counts: it neither capitalizes what should be capitalized nor separately discloses what should be
disclosed.

Authoritative Guidance

We are enclosing for your reference an article published by the Journal of Accountancy,
the official publication of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA™), titled
“Accounting for external-use software development costs in an agile environment” (March 12,
2018). The article is available at:

https://www.journalofaccountancy.com/news/2018/mar/accounting-for-external-use-software-
development-costs-201818259/

As you are aware, the AICPA is the organization that develops and grades the CPA exam,
determining who is and is not qualified to hold a CPA license. It, therefore, would be a mistake
not to agree with them.

The article explains, with accompanying diagrams (if you should require a visual), how
software development costs should be analyzed under ASC 985-20, including in modern agile
development environments. It states unequivocally: “[c]ompanies using an agile approach to
develop software might conclude inappropriately that technological feasibility has not been met
significantly before the software enhancement is available to customers, resulting in costs being
expensed as incurred rather than being capitalized.”

The article further states that “[d]istinguishing between costs that can be capitalized and
those that cannot be capitalized can complicate the project accounting, reporting, and
documentation steps within each sprint somewhat. But the additional administrative work does not
have to be onerous. In most cases the various tasks and deliverables within each sprint can be
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segmented into broad categories, so that all costs associated with that task can be either expensed
or capitalized.”

The article further explains that “[f]ailure to take this initial action could make it difficult
to correctly separate costs between those that should be capitalized and those that should be
expensed. This could lead to errors in the application of GAAP as well as errors in the amount of

net income or loss entities report.”

That is precisely what has occurred at Journal Technologies, quarter after quarter, year
after year.

For your reference, the AICPA’s diagram depicting which activities within an agile
“sprint” are subject to capitalization:

06

v

Capitalizable
Feature Activities Occur

3 Within “Sprints”
w of Activities

Software Release

Your Certification Obligations

When you sign the Form 10-K, you will be required to provide certifications pursuant to
Section 302 and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Under Section 302, you will
certify that the financial statements “fairly present in all material respects the financial condition
and results of operations” of the Company. Under Section 906 (codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350), you
will certify that the periodic report “fully complies” with SEC reporting requirements and that the
information “fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
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operations” of the Company. There is no mistake that, if you certify financials within the
upcoming Form 10-K that perpetuate these violations involving “significant” financial activities,
that you would be falsely certifying the financial statements to fairly represent, in all “material”
aspects, the financial condition and results of operations.

Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350(c), any person who certifies a statement knowing that the periodic
report does not comport with all the requirements of the statute shall be fined not more than
$1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 10 years, or both. Any person who willfully certifies a
statement knowing it does not comport with all requirements shall be fined not more than
$5,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.

You Now Have No Plausible Deniability

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you of the Company’s failure to comply with
ASC 985-20 and Regulation S-X. You are now on notice that:

1. The Company has a longstanding policy of expensing 100% of software
development costs, in violation of ASC 985-20, requiring restatement of several
periods of historical financial statements;

2. ASC 985-20 requires capitalization of development costs incurred after
technological feasibility is established;

3. The Company has admitted in its own SEC filings that it incurs “significant” costs
to “update”, “upgrade”, and “improve[]” its software products;

4. The Company generates approximately 76% of its consolidated revenues from the
very software products it implicitly claims have never achieved technological
feasibility;

5. No reasonable accountant could conclude that software generating tens of millions
of dollars in annual revenue has not achieved technological feasibility;

6. Separately and independently, the Company fails to report research and
development expenses as a separate line item on its income statement, in violation
of Regulation S-X Section 210.5-03;

7. The Company has admitted these expenses are “significant,” establishing their
materiality for disclosure purposes; and

8. These two violations—the failure to capitalize under ASC 985-20 and the failure
to separately disclose under Regulation S-X—each independently result in material
misstatement of the Company’s financial statements.

If you sign a Form 10-K that continues to entirely omit capitalization of software
development costs—or that fails to separately disclose true research and development expenses
(excluding development activities subject to capitalization) as a line item on the income statement
distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses—you will be certifying financial
statements that you know, based on this notice, do not fairly present the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company and do not fully comply with SEC reporting requirements.
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Such certification, made with knowledge of these deficiencies, would be quite impossible
to argue not constituting a willful false certification under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

Consequences

If you certify a Form 10-K that perpetuates the Company’s noncompliance with ASC 985-
20 and Regulation S-X after receiving this notice, Buxton Helmsley intends to:

1. Refer the matter to the Division of Enforcement of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission, with a recommendation that the Commission investigate
potential violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and other applicable securities laws;

2. File a complaint with the California Board of Accountancy and any other state
licensing authority with jurisdiction over your CPA license, seeking disciplinary
action for your role in willfully certifying materially misstated financial statements,
in violation of accounting standards and federal securities laws; and

3. Pursue all available legal remedies against you personally, including but not limited
to claims for securities fraud and breach of fiduciary duty, following the conclusion
of our proxy contest.

Conclusion

You have an opportunity to do the right thing. You should refuse to certify financial
statements that continue to materially misstate the Company’s assets, expenses, and net income.

The choice is yours. But you cannot later claim ignorance. This letter ensures that any
certification you provide will be made with full knowledge of the issues we have described.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner

Page 8 of 8


























20251219 - Private Letter to Erik Nakamura.pdf



BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 19, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO ERIK NAKAMURA (ENAKAMURA@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Mr. Erik Nakamura

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice Regarding Potential
Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350

Dear Mr. Nakamura:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (“Buxton Helmsley” or “we”’) beneficially owns shares of the
Company. We are writing to put you on formal notice—before you possibly certify the Company’s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025—of material accounting deficiencies
that, if left unremediated, may expose you to personal criminal liability under Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

The Company’s financial statements contain two distinct and independent violations of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) and SEC reporting requirements. Each
violation alone would render the financial statements materially misstated. Together, they
demonstrate a fundamental failure of financial reporting at the Company.

VIOLATION ONE: Failure to Capitalize Software Development Costs Under ASC 985-20

As you are aware, the Company’s subsidiary, Journal Technologies, Inc., develops and
licenses software for external use by courts and other justice agencies. The accounting treatment
for costs incurred in developing software for external sale or licensing is governed by Accounting
Standards Codification Topic 985-20 (“ASC 985-20").

Under ASC 985-20, once technological feasibility has been established, software
development costs must be capitalized. These costs are then amortized over the product’s
economic life. The threshold for capitalization is met when the entity has completed all planning,
designing, coding, and testing activities necessary to establish that the product can be produced to
meet its design specifications.

For years, the Company has expensed 100% of its software development costs, capitalizing
nothing. This accounting treatment is incorrect. It results in material understatement of assets,
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material overstatement of expenses, and material misstatement of net income in every period in
which capitalizable development activities occurred.

The Company’s Own Admissions

In its Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, the Company stated, on
page 7:

“As a technology-based company, Journal Technologies’ success depends on the
continued improvement of its products, which is why the costs to update and
upgrade them consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s
expenses.”

The Company has thus admitted that (1) it incurs significant costs to “update”, “upgrade”,
and “improve[]” its software products, and (2) these costs constitute a “significant” portion of the
Company’s expenses. The Company has already admitted how “significant” (i.e., material) this
error has been overs years of quarterly financials.

Development costs related to updating and upgrading existing software products are
precisely the types of costs that are subject to capitalization under ASC 985-20, once technological
feasibility is established. The Company cannot simultaneously claim that these costs are
“significant” while entirely omitting them from its balance sheet. The Company has failed to keep
proper accounting records for years, which means it must reconstruct its historical financial
statements to regain compliance—there is no choice, given such “significant” non-compliance.

The Absurdity of the Company’s Accounting Position

Let us be direct about the logical impossibility of the Company’s historical accounting
treatment.

The only justification under GAAP for expensing 100% of software development costs is
a claim that technological feasibility has never been established—that the Company’s software
products have never progressed beyond the preliminary project stage.

This position is facially absurd.

Journal Technologies currently derives approximately 76% of the Company’s consolidated
revenues from its software products. These are not experimental prototypes or conceptual designs.
These are fully developed, commercially deployed software systems that courts and justice
agencies across the country rely upon every day to manage their operations. You cannot generate
76% of your revenues from a product that is not technologically feasible. The revenue itself is
conclusive proof that technological feasibility was achieved long ago.
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Moreover, the Company’s own language betrays the fallacy of its accounting position. A
product cannot be “upgraded” unless it already exists in a completed, functional state. The very
concept of an “upgrade” presupposes a working product that is being enhanced. You do not
“upgrade” something that has not yet demonstrated it can be produced to meet its design
specifications—you develop it. The fact that the Company describes its development activities as

“updates”, “upgrades”, and “improvements” is an admission that the underlying products have
long since achieved technological feasibility.

To put it simply: if the software works, it is feasible. If it generates revenue, it works. If
the Company is upgrading it, it already exists. The Company cannot have it both ways—claiming
its products are technologically unproven for accounting purposes while simultaneously selling
those same products to customers and generating tens of millions of dollars in annual revenue.

We expect you, as an incoming Chief Financial Officer, to understand the fundamental
difference between an expense and an investment. This distinction is not a technicality—it is the
cornerstone of accrual accounting and the very issue at the heart of the Company’s longstanding
violation of ASC 985-20. Costs that provide future economic benefit are capitalized as assets;
costs that do not are expensed. The Company’s policy of expensing all development costs—
including those incurred to create valuable, revenue-generating software enhancements—treats
investments as if they were worthless the moment they are made. That is not consistent with
GAAP.

VIOLATION TWO: Failure to Separately Report Research and Development Expenses
Under Regulation S-X

Entirely independent of the ASC 985-20 capitalization issue, the Company’s financial
statements violate Regulation S-X by failing to separately disclose research and development
expenses on the face of the income statement.

Regulation S-X § 210.5-03 prescribes the form and content of income statements for SEC
registrants. That section requires registrants to present research and development costs as a
separate line item on the income statement when the category is “material” (as the Company has
admitted, “significant”), distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses. It is a violation
of Regulation S-X to lump material categories of expenses together.

The Company has admitted—in its own words—that its software development costs
“consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s expenses.” The word
“significant” is a term of art in accounting and SEC reporting. By the Company’s own admission,
these costs are material.

Yet the Company does not report research and development expenses as a separate line
item on its consolidated statements of operations. Instead, these material costs are improperly
buried within selling, general and administrative expenses, invisible to investors reviewing the
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face of the financial statements, leaving it impossible for investors to understand how much capital
is being invested into Journal Technologies’ software products. This presentation violates Section
210.5-03 of Regulation S-X.

This is a violation of Regulation S-X that is entirely separate from the ASC 985-20
capitalization issue. Even if the Company’s policy of expensing all development costs were
correct (which it is not), the Company would still be required to separately disclose those expenses
on the income statement—apart from SG&A—when they are material. The Company has
admitted materiality. The Company has failed to make the required disclosure.

To be clear: the Form 10-K must separately report true research and development
expenses—meaning research and development costs that are properly expensed, excluding those
development activities that should be capitalized under ASC 985-20—as a line item distinct from
selling, general and administrative expenses. The Company’s current presentation fails on both
counts: it neither capitalizes what should be capitalized nor separately discloses what should be
disclosed.

Authoritative Guidance

We are enclosing for your reference an article published by the Journal of Accountancy,
the official publication of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA™), titled
“Accounting for external-use software development costs in an agile environment” (March 12,
2018). The article is available at:

https://www.journalofaccountancy.com/news/2018/mar/accounting-for-external-use-software-
development-costs-201818259/

As you are aware, the AICPA is the organization that develops and grades the CPA exam,
determining who is and is not qualified to hold a CPA license. It, therefore, would be a mistake
not to agree with them.

The article explains, with accompanying diagrams (if you should require a visual), how
software development costs should be analyzed under ASC 985-20, including in modern agile
development environments. It states unequivocally: “[c]ompanies using an agile approach to
develop software might conclude inappropriately that technological feasibility has not been met
significantly before the software enhancement is available to customers, resulting in costs being
expensed as incurred rather than being capitalized.”

The article further states that “[d]istinguishing between costs that can be capitalized and
those that cannot be capitalized can complicate the project accounting, reporting, and
documentation steps within each sprint somewhat. But the additional administrative work does not
have to be onerous. In most cases the various tasks and deliverables within each sprint can be
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segmented into broad categories, so that all costs associated with that task can be either expensed
or capitalized.”

The article further explains that “[f]ailure to take this initial action could make it difficult
to correctly separate costs between those that should be capitalized and those that should be
expensed. This could lead to errors in the application of GAAP as well as errors in the amount of

net income or loss entities report.”

That is precisely what has occurred at Journal Technologies, quarter after quarter, year
after year.

For your reference, the AICPA’s diagram depicting which activities within an agile
“sprint” are subject to capitalization:

06

v

Capitalizable
Feature Activities Occur

3 Within “Sprints”
w of Activities

Software Release

Your Certification Obligations

When you sign the Form 10-K, you will be required to provide certifications pursuant to
Section 302 and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Under Section 302, you will
certify that the financial statements “fairly present in all material respects the financial condition
and results of operations” of the Company. Under Section 906 (codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350), you
will certify that the periodic report “fully complies” with SEC reporting requirements and that the
information “fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
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operations” of the Company. There is no mistake that, if you certify financials within the
upcoming Form 10-K that perpetuate these violations involving “significant” financial activities,
that you would be falsely certifying the financial statements to fairly represent, in all “material”
aspects, the financial condition and results of operations.

Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350(c), any person who certifies a statement knowing that the periodic
report does not comport with all the requirements of the statute shall be fined not more than
$1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 10 years, or both. Any person who willfully certifies a
statement knowing it does not comport with all requirements shall be fined not more than
$5,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.

You Now Have No Plausible Deniability

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you of the Company’s failure to comply with
ASC 985-20 and Regulation S-X. You are now on notice that:

1. The Company has a longstanding policy of expensing 100% of software
development costs, in violation of ASC 985-20, requiring restatement of several
periods of historical financial statements;

2. ASC 985-20 requires capitalization of development costs incurred after
technological feasibility is established;

3. The Company has admitted in its own SEC filings that it incurs “significant” costs
to “update”, “upgrade”, and “improve[]” its software products;

4. The Company generates approximately 76% of its consolidated revenues from the
very software products it implicitly claims have never achieved technological
feasibility;

5. No reasonable accountant could conclude that software generating tens of millions
of dollars in annual revenue has not achieved technological feasibility;

6. Separately and independently, the Company fails to report research and
development expenses as a separate line item on its income statement, in violation
of Regulation S-X Section 210.5-03;

7. The Company has admitted these expenses are “significant,” establishing their
materiality for disclosure purposes; and

8. These two violations—the failure to capitalize under ASC 985-20 and the failure
to separately disclose under Regulation S-X—each independently result in material
misstatement of the Company’s financial statements.

If you sign a Form 10-K that continues to entirely omit capitalization of software
development costs—or that fails to separately disclose true research and development expenses
(excluding development activities subject to capitalization) as a line item on the income statement
distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses—you will be certifying financial
statements that you know, based on this notice, do not fairly present the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company and do not fully comply with SEC reporting requirements.
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Such certification, made with knowledge of these deficiencies, would be quite impossible
to argue not constituting a willful false certification under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

Consequences

If you certify a Form 10-K that perpetuates the Company’s noncompliance with ASC 985-
20 and Regulation S-X after receiving this notice, Buxton Helmsley intends to:

1. Refer the matter to the Division of Enforcement of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission, with a recommendation that the Commission investigate
potential violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and other applicable securities laws;

2. File a complaint with the California Board of Accountancy and any other state
licensing authority with jurisdiction over your CPA license, seeking disciplinary
action for your role in willfully certifying materially misstated financial statements,
in violation of accounting standards and federal securities laws; and

3. Pursue all available legal remedies against you personally, including but not limited
to claims for securities fraud and breach of fiduciary duty, following the conclusion
of our proxy contest.

Conclusion

You have an opportunity to do the right thing. You should refuse to certify financial
statements that continue to materially misstate the Company’s assets, expenses, and net income.

The choice is yours. But you cannot later claim ignorance. This letter ensures that any
certification you provide will be made with full knowledge of the issues we have described.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: ifrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: Your Call

Date: Thursday, December 18, 2025 10:30:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Sensitivity: Confidential

John,

You were copied on my correspondence with Rasool this evening, also forwarded to Baker Tilly. | am
going to assume that you—a securities lawyer—do not share his view that compliance with federal
securities laws is "the flimsiest of technicalities."

| want to be direct with you. My objective is to fix the governance and accounting failures at this
Company. Itis not to destroy careers unnecessarily.

You and Mary have the votes to terminate Steven and settle this matter. If you do that—if the Board
takes responsibility for what has happened and reconstitutes itself with appropriate oversight—I am
prepared to work with you and Mary, not against you. You do not have to resign. The bar referral
goes away. We move forward together.

You and Mary had 40% of shareholders vote against you at the last annual meeting. That was before
any of this came to light. If we work together to fix what is broken, | am confident we can restore
shareholder confidence in this Board. You can be part of the solution. A proxy contest will do the
opposite—it will make the failures public, the divisions permanent, and the outcome far worse for
everyone.

My deadline from the letter this morning remains Monday at 5pm. | would rather spend the
weekend negotiating a constructive path forward with you and Mary than this situation
deteriorating any further, but the choice is yours.

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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5. Exhibit C: Correspondence from December 13 to date.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 13, 2025

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”’) — Delivery of Rule 14a-19 Notice;
Observations Regarding Recent Governance Developments

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Enclosed with this letter please find our formal notice of intent to solicit proxies in support
of alternate director nominees pursuant to Rule 14a-19 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Notice”). The Notice is being delivered in accordance with the timing requirements of Rule 14a-
19(b)(1), which requires delivery no later than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the anniversary
date of the prior year’s annual meeting.

We write separately to address certain governance developments that have occurred since
our initial correspondence with the Company in July 2025, and that bear directly on the matters
raised in our Notice. We believe these developments underscore the necessity of the Board
reconstitution we are seeking.

I. DEPARTURE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.

On October 29, 2025, the Company filed a Form 8-K disclosing that Chief Financial
Officer Tu To would “retire” effective January 15, 2026. The filing reveals that Ms. To’s
departure was structured not as a conventional retirement, but as a negotiated separation
pursuant to a “Separation Agreement and Release” dated October 27, 2025. The terms of
that Agreement warrant careful examination:

* Ms. To will receive a lump-sum payment of $175,000, characterized as a
“retroactive pay adjustment”;

* Ms. To will receive a $40,000 cash bonus for fiscal year 2025;

* Ms. To is eligible for contingent milestone bonuses of up to $75,000 “primarily
associated with the Company’s financial system conversion”; and

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.
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II.

* Ms. To agreed to provide a “general release and waiver of claims” and “reaffirmed
her confidentiality and non-disparagement obligations.”

These are not the hallmarks of a voluntary retirement after forty-two years of service.
Separation agreements containing general releases of claims and non-disparagement
obligations are instruments of risk management employed when there is potential exposure
to be managed. A CFO who is simply choosing to retire after a long career does not require
a negotiated release of claims; she simply retires.

The timing is notable. Ms. To’s departure was announced approximately three months
after our July 2025 correspondence identified material concerns regarding the Company’s
software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20—concerns that Ms. To, as the
certifying officer responsible for the accuracy of the Company’s financial statements,
would have been directly accountable for. The Board’s decision to structure her exit with
a release of claims and a prohibition on public comment speaks for itself.

We further note that the “milestone bonuses” tied to the “financial system conversion” are
being paid to assist in remediation of the very internal control failures that Ms. To oversaw.
The Company acknowledged in its May 2025 Form NT 10-Q that it was “migrating to a
new accounting system as part of its efforts to enhance its internal control over financial
reporting.” Ms. To is now being compensated to help repair systems that failed under her
watch.

DELINQUENT SECTION 16 FILINGS BY AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS.

We have also identified that two members of the Company’s Audit Committee recently
filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports that were delinquent by as many as seven years:

» John B. Frank, a lawyer at Oaktree Capital Management, L.P., who is designated
as the Board’s “financial expert” for purposes of SEC disclosure requirements; and
* Mary Murphy Conlin, also a member of the Audit Committee.

For reference, Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires directors to file:

* Form 3 (Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership): Within ten days of becoming
a director; and

* Form 4 (Statement of Changes in Beneficial Ownership): Within two business days
of any transaction in a company’s securities.

These are not obscure compliance requirements. These are some of the most basic
obligations for every public company director. Mr. Frank is a securities lawyer at Oaktree
Capital-—one of the world’s largest alternative investment managers, with approximately
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I11.

$180 billion in assets under management. Such personal compliance failures are not
indicative of a “financial expert” suitable to be leading the Audit Committee.

Yet, such personal compliance failures are not limited to Mr. Frank. Ms. Conlin, also
serving on the Audit Committee, had the same delinquencies. The fact that both Audit
Committee members failed to file required ownership reports for years—and that neither
the Company’s management nor its external counsel identified or remedied the
deficiency—reflects systemic oversight failure at the committee charged with overseeing
financial reporting and internal controls.

Shareholders are entitled to ask: If the individuals entrusted with overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting cannot comply with a two-page beneficial ownership form
due within ten days of their appointments, what confidence can shareholders have in their
oversight of complex accounting standards such as ASC 985-20? None.

THE PATTERN IS CLEAR.

These developments—the negotiated departure of the CFO with a release of claims and
gag order, the years-long Section 16 reporting failures by both Audit Committee members,
the acknowledged internal control deficiencies requiring system-wide remediation—are
not isolated incidents. They reflect a governance environment in which basic compliance
obligations have been neglected for years.

We remind the Board that on July 29, 2025, the Company filed a Form 8-K containing
statements about Buxton Helmsley’s regulatory status that were demonstrably false—
including the assertion of false claims of holding securities licenses. Attached as Annex D
to the enclosed Notice is a FINRA examination results letter confirming that, contrary to
your false public claims, I do, indeed, hold a Series 65 license. We are delivering this
document directly to the Board to avoid any future claim of uncertainty on this point. The
Company’s July 29 statements were false when made, and any repetition of those
statements in the Company’s proxy materials will be grounds for injunctive relief under
Rule 14a-9.

The July 29 Form 8-K contains an additional false statement that remains uncorrected to
this day. The cover page of that filing states that the “Date of earliest event reported” is
July 28, 2025. Yet Item 8.01 of the same filing states: “Two weeks ago, we received a
letter from Alexander E. Parker,” and later: “His initial July 14 letter is attached as Exhibit
99.1.” The filing thus explicitly identifies July 14, 2025, as the date of the earliest event
being reported—while the cover page certifies that date as July 28, 2025. This is not
ambiguous; the filing contradicts itself on its face. Mr. Myhill-Jones signed this document.
We raised this discrepancy in our July 29, 2025, correspondence, yet the filing has never
been corrected. The Company has since hired a Director of SEC Reporting, yet this
demonstrably false statement remains in the Company’s public filings. If the Company
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cannot accurately report a date on a Form 8-K—when the correct date appears in the body
of the very same document—shareholders may reasonably question the accuracy of
anything else in the Company’s SEC filings. The fact that this false disclosure remains
uncorrected demonstrates that the Company’s attempt to hire a Director of SEC Reporting
is inadequate and that the Company requires a Board-level governance refresh (the Board
not forcing correction of knowingly false SEC filings either).

We also wish to make clear that the contingent compensation proposal referenced in our
earlier correspondence has been withdrawn and is no longer under consideration. Given
the severity of the governance failures now evident—the CFO’s negotiated departure, the
Audit Committee’s years-long Section 16 delinquencies, the internal control deficiencies,
and the Board’s response of attacking the messenger rather than addressing the message—
we have concluded that this situation requires Board reconstitution as a matter of fiduciary
necessity, without regard for compensation. Any representation by the Company in its
proxy materials that we continue to seek contingent compensation, or any implication to
that effect, will similarly be grounds for injunctive relief to prevent any further tampering
of this election through false statements.

Rather than engage substantively with the accounting concerns we raised, the Company
elected to attack the messenger with false statements. Three months later, the CFO
responsible for the accounting in question was shown the door with a separation agreement.
The Board’s response to our concerns has been to quietly take the remedial actions we
identified as necessary while publicly maintaining that our concerns were unfounded.
Shareholders deserve better.

We remain prepared to engage constructively with the Board should it wish to discuss a
consensual resolution of these matters. However, absent such engagement, we intend to proceed
with the proxy solicitation described in the enclosed Notice and to present shareholders with a
clear choice regarding the future governance of this Company.

Baker Tilly US, LLP, copied on this letter, is reminded ahead of DJCO’s imminent Form
10-K filing (due to contain audited financials) that they were sent (months ago) an authoritative
publication of the AICPA that directly supports Buxton Helmsley’s position that the Company’s
stated rationale for its accounting treatment does not comply with ASC 985-20.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.

Respectfully,
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A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3
New York, N.Y. 10036-2600
+1(212) 561-5540

December 13, 2025

VIA EMAIL AND FEDEX TO BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012
Attention: Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re: Notice of Intent to Solicit Proxies in Support of Director Nominees Pursuant to Rule 14a-
19 Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Dear Mr. Cardile:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (the “Notifying Person”), hereby submits this formal notice
(this “Notice™) to Daily Journal Corporation, a South Carolina corporation (the “Company”),
pursuant to Rule 14a-19 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”), of its intent to conduct a solicitation of proxies in support of nominees for election to the
Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) other than the Company’s nominees at the Company’s
2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (including any adjournment or postponement thereof or any
special meeting held in lieu thereof, the “2026 Annual Meeting”’). The term “Notifying Person”
is used herein to mirror the statutory language of Rule 14a-19, which imposes obligations on any
“person”—not “shareholder,” let alone shareholder of record—who intends to solicit proxies in a
contested election. See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(a), (b).

This usage is consistent with Rule 14a-2 under the Exchange Act, which similarly employs
the term “person” and under which non-shareholders—including proxy solicitation firms, financial
advisors, and non-profit organizations—routinely conduct solicitations. The SEC’s consistent use
of “person” rather than “shareholder” throughout the proxy rules reflects a deliberate regulatory
choice.

The Notifying Person is providing this Notice at least sixty (60) calendar days before the
first anniversary of the date of the Company’s 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which was
held on February 19, 2025, in accordance with the timing requirements of Rule 14a-19(b)(1). See
17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(1).

The Notifying Person further represents that (i) it is a beneficial owner of shares of the
Company, to be held as of the record date for the 2026 Annual Meeting (the “Record Date™),
entitling it to vote at the 2026 Annual Meeting and that it intends to appear in person or by proxy
at the 2026 Annual Meeting to nominate the Future Nominees, and (ii) has an impending
registration of certain Company shares with the Company’s transfer agent for holder of record
status.
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I. NOMINEES FOR ELECTION TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(b)(2), the Notifying Person hereby provides notice of the names
of the following individuals (collectively, the “Future Nominees’’) for whom the Notifying Person
intends to solicit proxies for election as directors of the Company at the 2026 Annual Meeting:

a) Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello;
b) Alexander Parker; and
c) Weiyee In.

Each Future Nominee has consented to being named in this Notice and, if elected, to
serving as a director of the Company, with such consents attached as Annex A. Biographical
information, qualifications, and other information required by Schedule 14A with respect to each
Future Nominee is attached as Annex B.

The Notifying Person reserves the right to (i) nominate substitute or additional persons as
Future Nominees, (ii) withdraw one or more Future Nominees, or (iii) otherwise modify its slate
of Future Nominees prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting, subject to applicable law and the
Company’s governing documents. See SEC Division of Corporation Finance, Compliance and
Disclosure Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules 14A/14C, Question 139.02 (Aug. 25, 2022)
(permitting inclusion of alternate nominees in Rule 14a-19(b) notice). In accordance with Rule
14a-19(c), the Notifying Person will promptly notify the Company of any changes to its Future
Nominees.

From time to time throughout this Notice, Mr. Parker and the Notifying Person, together
with its, his, and their affiliates, collectively, may be referred to as “Buxton” or the “Buxton
Parties,” and the Buxton Parties, together with the Future Nominees, may be referred to as the

“Participants.”

Each of the Future Nominees has entered into a nomination agreement (collectively, the
“Future Nominee Agreements”) with the Notifying Person substantially in the form attached as
Annex C, whereby such Future Nominees agreed, upon the election of the Notifying Person, to
become members of a slate of nominees and stand for election as directors of the Company in
connection with a proxy solicitation which may be conducted in respect of the 2026 Annual
Meeting. Pursuant to the Future Nominee Agreements, the Notifying Person has agreed to pay the
costs of soliciting proxies in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting, and to defend and
indemnify the Future Nominees against, and with respect to, any losses that may be incurred by
the Future Nominees in the event they become a party to litigation based on their nomination as
candidates for election to the Board and the solicitation of proxies in support of their election. The
foregoing summary of the Future Nominee Agreements does not purport to be complete and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the form of the Future Nominee Agreement,
which is attached hereto as Annex C and is incorporated by reference herein.
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If elected or appointed, each of the Future Nominees would be considered an independent
director of the Company under each of (i) Rule 5605(a) of NASDAQ’s Listing Rules and (ii)
paragraph (a)(1) of Item 407 of Regulation S-K.

The Notifying Person hereby states with respect to each Future Nominee, as applicable, to
the knowledge of the Notifying Person, other than as described in this Notice (including the
Annexes hereto):

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

none of the Participants is, or was within the past year, a party to any contract,
arrangement, or understanding with any person with respect to any securities of the
Company, including, but not limited to, joint ventures, loan or option arrangements,
puts or calls, guarantees against loss, or guarantees of profit, division of losses, or
profits, or the giving or withholding of proxies;

(a) none of the Participants has any position or office with the Company, nor does
any Participant have any arrangement or understanding with any other person
pursuant to which such person was selected to be a nominee; (b) none of the
Participants or any of their “associates” (which term, for purposes of this Notice,
shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Rule 14a-1 of Regulation 14A of the
Exchange Act) is a party to any arrangement or understanding with any person
with respect to (1) any future employment by the Company or its affiliates or (2)
any future transactions to which the Company or any of its affiliates will or may be
a party; (c) there were no transactions since the beginning of the Company’s last
fiscal year nor are there any currently proposed involving any Participant or any of
their associates, in which the Company was or is to be a participant and in which
such Participant or any of their associates or their respective immediate family
members or any persons sharing their respective households, as applicable, have or
will have a direct or indirect material interest that would require disclosure under
Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(“Regulation S-K”); (d) there are no material proceedings to which any Participant
or any of their associates is a party adverse to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or has a material interest adverse to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and (e)
none of the Participants or any of their associates has a substantial interest, direct
or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise in any matter to be acted on at the
2026 Annual Meeting or in the Proxy Solicitation;

none of the entities or organizations referred to in Annex B with which any Future
Nominee has been involved during the past five years is a parent, subsidiary, or
other affiliate of the Company;

none of the Participants or any of their associates has received any fees earned or
paid in cash, stock awards, option awards, non-equity incentive plan compensation,
changes in pension value or nonqualified deferred compensation earnings or any
other compensation from the Company during the Company’s last completed fiscal
year, or is subject to any other compensation arrangement described in Item 402 of
Regulation S-K;

(a) there are no relationships involving any Participant or any of their associates
that would have required disclosure under Item 407(e)(4) of Regulation S-K had
any such person been a director of the Company; (b) there are no events required
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

to be disclosed under Item 401(f) of Regulation S-K that have occurred during the
past ten years and that are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any
Participant; (c) there are no “family relationships” (as defined in Item 401(d) of
Regulation S-K) between any Participant and any director or executive officer of
the Company or person known to the Notifying Person to be nominated by the
Company to become a director or executive officer; and (d) no Participant has been
convicted in a criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations or similar
misdemeanors) in the past ten years;

there are no direct or indirect compensation or other material monetary agreements,
arrangements, and understandings during the past three years, or any other material
relationships, between or among the Notifying Person or others acting in concert
therewith, on the one hand, and each Future Nominee, and his or her respective
affiliates and associates, or others acting in concert therewith, on the other hand;
no part of the purchase price or market value of the securities of the Company
owned by any of the Participants is represented by funds borrowed or otherwise
obtained for the purpose of acquiring or holding such securities;

no Participants directly or indirectly beneficially own any derivative instruments or
any other direct or indirect opportunity to profit, or share in any profit derived, from
any increase or decrease in the value of shares of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties have given any proxy
(other than a revocable proxy given in response to a solicitation made pursuant to
Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act by way of a solicitation statement filed on
Schedule 14A), contract, arrangement, understanding or relationship pursuant to
which any of the foregoing persons has a right to vote any shares of the Company;
neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties holds any short interest
in any security of the Company (including, directly or indirectly, through any
contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, has the
opportunity to profit, or share in any profit derived, from any decrease in the value
of the subject security);

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties beneficially own,
directly or indirectly, any rights to dividends on the shares of the Company that are
separated or separable from the underlying shares of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties has any significant
equity interests or any derivative interests or short interests in any principal
competitor of the Company;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties owns, directly or
indirectly, any proportionate interest in shares of the Company or derivative
instruments by a general or limited partnership in which any of the foregoing
persons is a general partner or, directly or indirectly, beneficially owns an interest
in a general partner;

neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties are entitled to any
performance-related fees (other than an asset-based fee) based on any increase or
decrease in the value of the shares of the Company or derivative instruments,
including any such interest held by members of any of the foregoing persons’
immediate family sharing the same household;
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(xv) there are no agreements, arrangements, or understandings (written or oral) between
or among any Participants or any other person or persons (including their names)
pursuant to which the nomination or nominations or proposed removal or removals,
as applicable, are to be made by such Participant; and

(xvi) neither the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties have any interest in the
nominations or election of the Future Nominees except as otherwise described in
this Notice, and neither of the Notifying Person nor any of the Buxton Parties
believe it or they may derive any other benefits from the outcome of the
nominations of the Future Nominees except as described in this Notice, nor do any
of the foregoing have any other agreements with any other person in connection
with the nominations of the Future Nominees.

The Notifying Person represents, on behalf of itself and the other Participants, that this
Notice contains all of the information that would be required to be affirmatively disclosed as of
the date hereof by it and the other Participants under Rule 14a-101 of the Exchange Act (including
pursuant to the Company’s Amended and Restated Bylaws, as exhibited in the Company’s Form
10-K filing on December 31, 2024 (the “Bylaws™)), and that no other information is required to be
disclosed thereunder with respect to any Participant, to the best of its knowledge.

Mr. Parker serves as: (a) the Managing Partner of Buxton Helmsley Fund GP, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“BHGP”); (b) Managing Member of Buxton Helmsley Fund
Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“BHM”); (c) a director and Chief
Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., a New York corporation (“BHUSA”); and (d)
majority shareholder, Chairman, and Chief Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley, Inc., a Nevada
corporation (“BHI). As such, Mr. Parker has a proportionate interest in the shares of common
stock in the Company held by the Notifying Person and its affiliates. As equity owners in Buxton
Helmsley, Inc., Mr. Parker and Ms. Petrozzello have an economic interest in the management fees
received by BHM that are based on the level of assets managed, and in the performance-based fees
and allocations received by BHGP, which are based on investment performance. The foregoing
applies to all securities beneficially owned by BHGP. The performance-based fees or allocations
vary by vehicle but presently do not vary from 30% of realized and unrealized capital appreciation
above a benchmark or an annual performance fee of 8% above a hurdle. Further information
concerning such fees is available in the Notifying Person’s Form ADYV, filed with the SEC on
March 26, 2025, and incorporated by reference herein.

I1. STATEMENT OF INTENT TO SOLICIT PROXIES

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(a)(3) and Rule 14a-19(b)(3), the Notifying Person hereby states
its intent to solicit the holders of shares representing at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the

voting power of shares entitled to vote on the election of directors at the 2026 Annual Meeting in
support of the Future Nominees. See 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(a)(3); 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(3).

The Notifying Person intends to satisfy this solicitation requirement through, among other
methods, the delivery of a definitive proxy statement or notice of internet availability of proxy
materials to holders of shares representing at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the voting power
of shares entitled to vote on the election of directors, in accordance with Rules 14a-3 and 14a-16
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under the Exchange Act. See Exchange Act Release No. 34-93596, at 65-66 (Nov. 17, 2021)
(“Adopting Release”) (confirming that “notice and access” method satisfies solicitation
requirement).

It is anticipated that the Notifying Person and the Future Nominees will participate in the
solicitation of proxies in support of the Future Nominees (the “Proxy Solicitation”). Such persons
will receive no additional consideration if they assist in the solicitation of proxies. It is anticipated
that proxies will be solicited by mail, courier services, Internet advertising, e-mail, telephone,
facsimile, and/or in person.

The Notifying Person may seek reimbursement from the Company for expenses associated
with the Proxy Solicitation if any of the Future Nominees are elected, and do not intend to seek
shareholder approval of such reimbursement. The Notifying Person’s current best estimate is that
the total expenses that the Notifying Person or any other participants will incur in furtherance of,
or in connection with, the Proxy Solicitation will be approximately $1,500,000.

III. SEPARATE COMPLIANCE WITH COMPANY BYLAWS

The Notifying Person acknowledges that this Notice is provided pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Exchange Act and is separate and distinct from, and in addition to, any notice of director
nominations required under Article I1I, Section 3 of the Bylaws.

Article III, Section 3 of the Bylaws provides, in relevant part:

“All nominations for the board of directors must be made in writing and
received by the secretary of the corporation no less than 10 days prior to
the date of the shareholders’ meeting at which one or more directors are to
be elected.”

See Amended and Restated Bylaws of Daily Journal Corporation, Art. III § 3.

This Notice constitutes notice of the Notifying Person’s intent to conduct a proxy
solicitation pursuant to Rule 14a-19; it does not constitute, and shall not be construed as, a formal
nomination of directors under the Company’s Bylaws. The Notifying Person (or an affiliated
entity that establishes record ownership of the Company’s common stock) intends to deliver a
separate written notice of director nominations to the Company’s Secretary in compliance with the
Bylaws’ ten (10)-day advance notice requirement prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting (the “Bylaw
Nomination Notice). Such Bylaw Nomination Notice will contain all information required by
the Bylaws and applicable law, will be delivered by a shareholder of record of the Company, and
will be received by the Secretary in accordance with the timing requirements specified in Article
III, Section 3 of the Bylaws.

The Notifying Person notes that the Rule 14a-19 notice requirement and the Bylaw
nomination requirement serve different purposes and operate independently:
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(a) Rule 14a-19 Notice (This Letter): This Notice provides the Company with
advance notice of the Notifying Person’s intent to conduct a proxy solicitation using
a universal proxy card, thereby enabling the Company to include the Future
Nominees on its universal proxy card in accordance with Rule 14a-19(e). As noted
above, Rule 14a-19 uses the term “person”—not “shareholder”—and imposes no
ownership requirement for delivery of this Notice. See Adopting Release at 29-30,
37-40.

(b) Bylaw Nomination Notice (To Be Delivered Separately): The
forthcoming Bylaw Nomination Notice will satisfy the procedural requirements
under the Company’s governing documents for the Future Nominees to be “duly
nominated” and eligible for election at the 2026 Annual Meeting. Although the
Company’s Bylaws do not explicitly require the nominating party to be a
shareholder of record, the Notifying Person (or an affiliated entity) intends to
establish record ownership of the Company’s common stock prior to delivering the
Bylaw Nomination Notice, which will be delivered no less than ten (10) days prior
to the 2026 Annual Meeting in accordance with Article III, Section 3 of the Bylaws.
See SEC Division of Corporation Finance, Compliance and Disclosure
Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules 14A/14C, Question 139.04 (Dec. 6,
2022) (“Only duly nominated candidates are required to be included on a universal
proxy card.”).

For the avoidance of doubt, record holder status is not required under federal proxy rules
for purposes of delivering this Rule 14a-19 Notice. Nevertheless, the Notifying Person (or an
affiliated entity) intends to establish record ownership of the Company’s common stock prior to
delivering the Bylaw Nomination Notice to eliminate any procedural objection the Company might
raise under state law or its governing documents.

The Notifying Person represents that it is currently in the process of registering certain
shares directly with the Company’s transfer agent to establish record holder status in advance of
delivering the Bylaw Nomination Notice.

The SEC has expressly confirmed that a dissident shareholder’s obligation to comply with
Rule 14a-19 is “in addition to” its obligation to comply with any advance notice provisions in a
company’s governing documents. See Adopting Release at 42; see also SEC Division of
Corporation Finance, Compliance and Disclosure Interpretations, Proxy Rules and Schedules
14A/14C, Question 139.06 (Aug. 25, 2022) (“Rule 14a-19(b)(1) establishes a minimum, not a
maximum, notice period for a dissident shareholder to inform the registrant of its intent to present
its own director nominees.”).

For the avoidance of doubt, the notice deadline for this Rule 14a-19 Notice is governed
exclusively by Rule 14a-19(b)(1), which requires notice “no later than 60 calendar days prior to
the anniversary date of the meeting.” 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(b)(1). The Notifying Person is aware
that the Company’s proxy statement for the 2025 Annual Meeting stated that “[s]hareholders
intending to present proposals from the floor of the 2026 Annual Meeting in compliance with Rule
14a-4 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, must notify the Company of such
intentions before November 24, 2025.” That deadline is inapplicable to this Notice. Rule 14a-4
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governs the circumstances under which a company’s proxy may confer discretionary voting
authority on matters not specifically set forth in the proxy statement—it has no bearing on the
notice requirements for a contested director election under Rule 14a-19. Compare 17 C.F.R. §
240.14a-4(c) (discretionary authority for “matters which the persons making the solicitation do not
know... are to be presented”), with 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-19 (universal proxy requirements for
contested director elections). These are separate regulatory provisions serving entirely distinct
purposes.

IV.  REQUEST FOR COMPANY NOMINEE INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 14a-19(d), the Notifying Person hereby requests that the Company
provide the names of the Company’s nominees for director at the 2026 Annual Meeting no later
than fifty (50) calendar days before the first anniversary of the 2025 Annual Meeting. See 17
C.F.R. § 240.14a-19(d). Based on the 2025 Annual Meeting date of February 19, 2025, the
Company’s response is due no later than December 31, 2025.

V. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

The Notifying Person expressly reserves all rights available under applicable law,
including but not limited to the right to:

a) Nominate additional or substitute Future Nominees, or withdraw any Future
Nominee, in accordance with Rule 14a-19(c) and the Company’s Bylaws;

b) Seek judicial relief or other remedies if the Company fails to comply with Rule
14a-19, applicable state law, or the Company’s governing documents;

c) Challenge any determination by the Company that the Future Nominees are not
“duly nominated” or otherwise ineligible for inclusion on a universal proxy card;

d) Engage in additional solicitation activities, communications, and filings as
permitted by law;

e) Take any other action permitted by law to protect the interests of the Company’s
shareholders.

Nothing in this Notice shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. The Notifying Person’s delivery of this Notice does not constitute
an acknowledgment that the Company’s Bylaws or any particular provision thereof is valid or
enforceable as applied to the Notifying Person or the Future Nominees.

The Notifying Person notes that certain prior public statements by or on behalf of the
Company have inaccurately characterized the regulatory registration of Buxton Helmsley USA,
Inc. and the professional licensing of its principals. For the record, Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. is
listed on FINRA’s BrokerCheck system as reporting to regulators (filing its Form ADV far before
the Company falsely claimed otherwise), and its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer holds a
Series 65 license, for which a FINRA examination results letter is attached as Annex D. The
Notifying Person reserves the right to seek injunctive or other equitable relief against the
Company, its directors, officers, or agents in the event of any continued dissemination of such

Page 8 of 24







misstatements, including, without limitation, an injunction of any proxy solicitation by the
Company that contains or incorporates such materially false or misleading statements.

Additionally, the Notifying Person hereby notifies the Company that any previously
contemplated proposal for contingent compensation based on increases in the Company’s equity
market capitalization has been withdrawn and is no longer under consideration. The Notifying
Person reserves the right to seek injunctive or other equitable relief, including, without limitation,
an injunction of any proxy solicitation by the Company, in the event any person publicly
represents—including in any proxy statement or soliciting materials—that such proposal remains
in effect or under consideration.

The Notifying Person understands that certain information regarding the 2026 Annual
Meeting (including, but not limited to, the record date, voting shares outstanding and the date, time
and place of the 2026 Annual Meeting) and the Company (including, but not limited to, its various
committees and proposal deadlines and the beneficial ownership of the Company’s securities) will
be set forth in the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A to be filed with the SEC in
connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. To the extent the Company believes any such
information is required to be set forth herein, the Notifying Person hereby refers the Company to
such filing. The Notifying Person accepts no responsibility for any information set forth in any
such filing not made by the Notifying Person.

The Annexes are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Notice. Accordingly, all
matters disclosed in any part of this Notice, including the Annexes, shall be deemed disclosed for
all purposes of this Notice. All capitalized terms appearing in one of the Annexes that are not
defined in such Annex shall have the meanings given in the body of this Notice or in another of
the Annexes, as applicable.

The Notifying Person believes that this Notice is sufficient to provide adequate notice and
information to the Company regarding the intended nomination of the Future Nominees and
complies with all valid notification and other requirements applicable to the Company, if any.
Additionally, the Notifying Person represents that, to the best of its knowledge, the information
set forth in this Notice is accurate. If, however, you believe that this Notice for any reason does
not comply with such requirements or is otherwise insufficient or defective in any respect, the
Notifying Person requests that you so notify it by December 18, 2025, by e-mail at
legal@buxtonhelmsley.com, for determination as to whether the matter is most suitable for review
by internal or external counsel. Absent notification from you by the method listed above indicating
otherwise, the Notifying Person will assume that the Company agrees that this Notice complies in
all respects with the requirements of the Bylaws.

Please be advised that neither the delivery of this Notice nor the delivery of additional
information, if any, provided by or on behalf of the Participants or any of their affiliates to the
Company from and after the date hereof shall be deemed to constitute (i) an admission by the
Participants or any of their affiliates, that this Notice is in any way defective, (ii) an admission as
to the legality or enforceability of any particular provision of the Articles of Incorporation, as
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amended (the “Charter”), the Bylaws or any other matter, (iii) a waiver by the Participants or any
of their affiliates of the right to, in any way, contest or challenge the enforceability of any provision
of the Charter, the Bylaws, or of any other matter, or (iv) consent by the Notifying Person, any
other Participant or any affiliate of any of the foregoing to publicly disclose any information
contained herein with respect to such persons. If this Notice shall be deemed for any reason by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be ineffective with respect to the nomination of any of the Future
Nominees, or if any individual Future Nominee is unable or unwilling to serve as a director of the
Company for any reason, this Notice shall continue to be effective with respect to any remaining
Future Nominee. The Notifying Person reserves the right to withdraw or modify this Notice at
any time prior to the 2026 Annual Meeting.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Very truly yours,

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

A2

By: boxsiGN 4K8WWQP1-1RVY2KL9

Name: Alexander Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Cc:  Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
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ANNEX A

Notarized Written Consent of Each Nominee

[See attached]
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CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a director
of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a member of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy statement and
proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and distributed
to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of the foregoing and
other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the Corporation to be voted at
the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or
postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof), and (z) serving as a director of
the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: December 13, 2025

Print Name: Alexander Parker







Docusign Envelope ID: 18160EE0-9CD2-47CD-817B-4E8DBEC6689E

CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a director
of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a member of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy statement and
proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and distributed
to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of the foregoing and
other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-19
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the Corporation to be voted at
the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or
postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof), and (z) serving as a director of
the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: November 2° 2025

Kumbidmai Bwerinafa—Petromslls

Print Name: Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
State Of New Jersey )
)ss.:
County of  Camden )

On the ?° day of November in the year 2025, before me, Nicolette Hall

the undersigned notary public, personally appeared Rumbidzai Bwerinofa-Petrozzello  known
to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument

and acknowledged that he/she/they executed the same for the purposes contained therein.

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand.

6 Nicolette Hall
/{/L@@('z{tz 'Q) h@f) Notary Public, State of New Jersey
Notary Public ‘ My Commission Expires 01/17/2027
/I'u"’:i(f".:)./l'{f‘; Shop 11/25/2025 50182507

Completed via remote online notarization using 2 way audio/video technology







CONSENT OF NOMINEE

The undersigned hereby consents to (x) being named as a nominee for election as a
director of Daily Journal Corporation (the “Corporation”) and being eligible for election as a
member of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (y) being named as such in any proxy
statement and proxy card to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
and distributed to shareholders of the Corporation, including, without limitation, by Buxton
Helmsley USA, Inc. and/or certain funds managed by Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. or affiliates of
the foregoing and other persons (collectively, “Buxton Helmsley”) or by the Corporation
pursuant to Rule 14a-19 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and in other materials in
connection with the solicitation of proxies by Buxton Helmsley from stockholders of the
Corporation to be voted at the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation
(including any adjournment or postponement thereof or any special meeting held in lieu thereof),
and (z) serving as a director of the Corporation, if elected or appointed.

Dated: December 9, 2025

Print Name: Weiyee IN z[/ . J?L

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Florida
State of XEWX6¥K )
Marion )ss.:
CounfFbT e ¥ork )
ecember ‘
On the %" day of Nowemksr in the year 2025, before me, Lydia Morales ,
the undersigned notary public, personally appeared Weiyee In , known

to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged that he/she/they executed the same for the purposes contained
therein.

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand.

Online Notary
gaary Public

LYDIA MORALES
Notary Public - State of Florida

Commission # HH521893

Expires on May 4, 2028

HH521893 05/04/2028

Notarized remotely online using communication technology via Proof.
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Notarial Act: acknowledgement

Annotation Type: image

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 330.1033058703784, 172.0187111438162
Notarial Act Principals: 87a3a58d-b129-4d2d-9a14-824cd84a7418
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107










Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:10 UTC
Weiyee IN

customer

Signature Added

Signature Type: Image

Annotation Type: vector_graphic

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 431.0, 427.0
Witness Names:

Acting User Full Name: Weiyee IN

ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:09 UTC
Weiyee In

customer

Agreed to electronic agreement for initials

ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:08 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: Weiyee In

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 363.9436619718309, 254.3849229409661
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:03 UTC
Weiyee In

customer

Agreed to electronic agreement for signature

ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253










Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:51:02 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: Lydia Morales

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 404.169014084507, 282.4788586253852
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:50:31 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Initials Added

Subtype: initials

Annotation Type: vector_graphic

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 167.2863898478763, 300.3567977690362
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:50:21UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Deleted

Annotation Gid: ata92bfac7-503c-424b-b21f-e3bab6ce97fb

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 380.9389330366968, 316.3192585689923
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:50:14 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: 2025

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 215.5680799887214, 282.4788586253853
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107










Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:50:13 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: 9th

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 115.5680799887214, 282.4788586253853
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:50:13 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: December

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 165.5680799887214, 282.4788586253853
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:59 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Text Updated

Text: XXXXXXXX

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 182.6103335098481, 276.7323797521458
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:53 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Annotation Type: text
Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 182.6103335098481, 276.7323797521458

ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107










Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:32 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: Florida

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 120.037568428147, 352.0751076281912
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:24 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Text: Marion

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 128.3380281690141, 319.511727346501
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:16 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Initials Added

Subtype: initials

Annotation Type: vector_graphic

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 98.96713858590998, 322.0656936000772
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:08 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Initials Added

Subtype: initials

Annotation Type: vector_graphic

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 74.70422535211267, 364.2065386704997
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107










Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:49:00 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Text Updated

Text: XXXXXXXX

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 123.86855434364, 304.1877836845292
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:48:56 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Annotation Type: text
Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 123.86855434364, 304.1877836845292

ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:48:51 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Text Updated

Text: XXXXXXXX

Annotation Type: text

Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 113.0140845070422, 336.7511639662193
ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:48:46 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Annotation Added

Annotation Type: text
Location: Page: 1, Page Type: doc, Point: 113.0140845070422, 336.7511639662193

ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107










Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:48:39 UTC
Lydia Morales

customer

Identification Verified

Pkn: false
Acting User Full Name: Lydia Morales

ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:48:13 UTC
Weiyee IN

customer

Document Accessed
Acting User Full Name: Weiyee IN
ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:47:48 UTC
Weiyee In

customer

Credential Authenticated

ProofSignerWeb

34.69.131.123

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:45:39 UTC
Weiyee IN

customer

KBA Passed
Acting User Full Name: Weiyee IN
ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253










Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:44:35 UTC
Weiyee In

customer

Signing location address updated

Old Address: {"line1":"","”nez“:"","city":"","State":"","pOStal":"","COUntry“:""}
New Address: {"line1":"","line2":"","city":"New York","state":"NY","postal":"","country":"US"}
ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:43:30 UTC
Weiyee IN

customer

Document Accessed
Acting User Full Name: Weiyee IN
ProofSignerWeb

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:43:25 UTC
Guest

customer

Document Created
Acting User Full Name: Guest
BusinessAPI

72.89.125.253

Action Timestamp

Performed By User Name
Performed By User Role
Performed By Participant Type
Action Type

Action Description

Performed By System Name

IP Address

2025-12-09 19:52:32 UTC
Lydia Morales

notary

Digital Certificate Applied to Document

Signature Type: Digital

Signature Algorithm: 1.2.840.10045.4.3.2

Certificate Validity Not Before: 2025-06-30 19:16:50 UTC

Certificate Validity Not After: 2026-06-30 19:26:50 UTC

Certificate Serial Number: 59ECBOCFE634D618A8A4088777ED12FF

Certificate Issuer: C = US, O = Proof.com, CN = Proof.com Document Signing ECC CA 2

ProofSignerWeb

72.238.188.107













ANNEX B

Information about the Nominees

Name: Alexander E. Parker

Age: 29

Business Address: 1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3, N.Y. 10036
Residence Address: 1 Columbus Place, Apt. S32G, New York, N.Y. 10019
Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Alexander Parker is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Buxton Helmsley, an
alternative asset manager recognized globally for its expertise in investor advocacy and active
corporate engagement. Mr. Parker founded Buxton Helmsley in 2014. Mr. Parker has established
a distinguished track record of identifying accounting irregularities and securities law violations
at public companies, with his research uncovering over $20 billion in corporate accounting
misstatements since 2014.

Under Mr. Parker’s leadership, Buxton Helmsley has achieved recognition as a top-
performing activist investor, ranking in the top 15% of global activist investors by engagement
volume, according to Bloomberg. Mr. Parker’s expertise in forensic analysis and corporate
governance initiatives has resulted in significant shareholder value creation across campaigns
while, more importantly, exposing accounting misstatements and restoring transparency for
investors at companies engaged in financial reporting violations and other misconduct. Notable
engagements include his work at Mallinckrodt plc (formerly, NYSE: MNK), where Buxton
Helmsley’s identification of accounting irregularities preceded enforcement actions by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, and Fossil Group, Inc. (NASDAQ: FOSL), where Buxton
Helmsley successfully secured board representation in 2024, followed by stock appreciation
exceeding 270% within eighteen months thereafter.

Mr. Parker practices what he terms “defensive activism,” a disciplined investment
approach that combines technical forensic analysis with traditional activist strategies to identify
and remediate corporate governance failures and financial reporting violations, and, where
possible, engage in positive corporate transformations. His firm specializes in detecting violations
of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and failures in securities law compliance.
This technical expertise has enabled Mr. Parker to successfully engage with boards of directors,
management teams, and regulatory authorities to drive operational improvements and financial
transparency.

Mr. Parker has built a reputation as an effective whistleblower, with securities regulators
subsequently charging violations at entities he identified. His investor engagement campaigns
have gained recognition in prestigious publications, including 7he Harvard Law School Forum on
Corporate Governance. Mr. Parker’s work has been featured in leading financial publications,
including The Wall Street Journal, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com.
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Mr. Parker serves as a FINRA-appointed arbitrator, a position that reflects his expertise in
securities regulation and dispute resolution. As a licensed investment professional through the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), he brings additional credibility and regulatory
insight to his investment and governance activities. His appointment as a FINRA arbitrator
demonstrates the securities industry’s self-regulatory organization’s recognition of his judgment,
integrity, and ability to understand complex matters.

Mr. Parker has built institutional relationships with prominent investment firms and has
successfully raised capital from sophisticated investors. Under his leadership, Buxton Helmsley
has transitioned from a retail-focused operation to an institutionally-backed activist platform,
while maintaining its commitment to forensic accounting excellence and shareholder advocacy.

Mr. Parker’s expertise encompasses complex areas of financial reporting, including
software development cost accounting (ASC 985-20), contingent loss recognition (ASC 450-20),
asset value recognition (including ASC 350 and 360), other technical accounting standards, and
securities-related legislation, including Regulation S-X. His firm works closely with forensic
accountants, securities attorneys, and corporate governance specialists to pursue compliance and
accountability at target companies.

Mr. Parker studied finance and economics at Mercy University of New York City, where
he participated in the school’s honors business program.

Mr. Parker’s qualifications to serve as a director include his deep expertise in financial
reporting, corporate governance, and regulatory compliance, his proven track record of identifying
and remediating accounting-related uncertainty that has (as in the case of Fossil) resulted in
significant shareholder value creation, his sophisticated understanding of complex technical
accounting standards and securities law requirements, his FINRA arbitrator appointment reflecting
industry recognition of his judgment and expertise, and his demonstrated ability to work
constructively with boards of directors and management teams to implement strategic initiatives
while maintaining the highest standards of financial transparency and corporate governance. His
forensic expertise, regulatory credentials, and activist investment experience provide unique
perspectives on financial oversight, risk management, and strategic planning that would benefit
any board of directors committed to shareholder value creation and regulatory compliance.
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Name: Weiyee In

Age: 60

Business Address: 1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3, N.Y. 10036
Residence Address: 45 Tudor City Place, New York, N.Y. 10017
Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Weiyee In was a ranked Wall Street tech analyst, three-time head of equity research,
seasoned executive, strategic advisor, digital transformation specialist, and angel investor with
over three decades of experience leading technology and strategy in the global financial ecosystem,
specializing in digital transformation, FinTech, Machine Learning, and regulatory technology
(RegTech). His expertise spans capital markets, digital assets, TMT (Telecoms, Media, and
Technology), software development strategy, and Al/Machine Learning governance. He has a
strong record of success in building and mentoring cross-border teams, driving innovation, and
serving on key working groups for major industry bodies, including IBM and DTCC, on Al
governance and security. He has been recognized as an IBM Champion multiple times and serves
on the IBM Financial Services Council. He is a regular speaker at NY Techweek Fintech and
RegTech events, as well as other industry events.

Career History (Selected Roles):

CIO - Protego Trust/ National Digital Trust, New York City Metropolitan Area
Oct 2020 — Present (5 years, 2 months)

Chief Information Officer for a chartered financial institution designed to securely and
efficiently serve institutional investors’ digital asset needs. This regulated bank offers
comprehensive digital asset services, including custody, trading, lending, and issuance, within a
vertically integrated framework. He was instrumental in the strategic design and build of the bank
by collaborating with financial industry veterans and early innovators in digital assets, tech, and
security.

Angel Investor / CIO - Fortress Payments, United States
Feb 2024 — Present (1 year, 10 months)

Angel Investor and Chief Information Officer (CIO) for a global fintech providing issuing,
acquiring, and processing services. He is responsible for unlocking the future of payments through
biometric technology and payment processing orchestration. His core focus is on Biometrics,
Cross-border Transactions, PCI DSS, and Data Governance.

Member Board Of Directors, Techcreate (NYSE: TCGL)
Mar 2025 — Present (8 months)

Served on the Board of Directors for a new digital bank, the first in the USA for
international customers, focused on deploying deposit, payments, and custody solutions.
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Angel Investor & Advisor - Self-Employed (FinTech, Al, Data Analytics)
Apr 2017 — Present (8 years, 8§ months)

Provides strategy and technology advisory services, including deep regulatory advisory
and solutions development for complex global compliance mandates (e.g., MiFID II, GDPR/PII,
FATF/GAFI, BSA), leveraging advanced technologies such as NLP, Al, RPA, and Machine
Learning. This includes developing and deploying a MiFID II solution and implementing Machine
Learning models for RegTech vendors. He advises on financial custody, trust, DLT (Distributed
Ledger Technology) integration, and trade analytics across FinTech, New Media, and Al sectors.

Content Strategy - Bloomberg LP, Greater New York City Area
Jun 2015 — Apr 2017 (1 year, 11 months)

Analyzed regulatory, technology, and industry trends across the global financial ecosystem
(MiFID, MAR, GDPR) to assess impact and strategize Bloomberg’s responses. He collaborated
on innovation, IPR, and the development of best practices for core technologies within Bloomberg
Global Data.

MD, Head of Telecoms, Media and Technology, TMT Strategy, Head of ESG - BNP
Paribas, Global
Oct 2009 — Dec 2013 (4 years, 3 months)

Managing Director and Head of TMT Equity Research. He managed and mentored a
regional team of analysts, publishing thematic reports on megatrends such as “pervasive
computing,” “the impact of unstructured (big) data,” and the “Internet of Everything,” integrating
cross-border, cross-sector, and ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance) issues. He raised
the firm’s visibility by speaking at global industry events.

Global Technologist Equity Research - UBS, Greater New York City Area/Asia
Nov 1999 — Apr 2003 (3 years, 6 months)

Equity Research Strategist on the Global Technology Team. He focused on raising UBS’s
visibility as a tech-savvy bank in Asia, mentoring local analysts, and organizing/speaking at major
industry conferences (e.g., the Wireless Internet Seminar in Tokyo and the Bluetooth Congress).

Qualifications to Serve as a Director:

The nominee’s qualifications include extensive experience in strategic leadership and
technology governance at the intersection of finance and regulation. His key strengths include:

o FinTech and Digital Asset Expertise: Deep, current experience as a CIO in digital
asset banking (Protego Trust) and as an investor/advisor in FinTech, DLT, and cross-border

payments (Fortress Payments).

e Technology and AI/RegTech Governance: Recognized leadership as an IBM
Champion with direct involvement in working groups and councils for Al governance and security,
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and demonstrated practical experience developing and deploying complex regulatory solutions
(including MiFID II) and leveraging ML for regulatory technology.

e Global Strategy, Regulation, and Media: A track record of analyzing and
responding to disruptive regulatory changes (MiFID II, GDPR, FATF) across global financial and
TMT sectors (BNP Paribas, Bloomberg LP), with significant expertise in the Media and
Telecommunications verticals.

e Entrepreneurship and Advisory: 11+ years of experience as an active Angel
Investor and Advisor to startups in Europe, the USA, and Asia, focusing on technology, data
analytics, and robotic automation, providing a critical perspective on emerging market dynamics
and innovation adoption.

Direct Applicability to The Daily Journal Corporation (DJCO):

e Mr. In’s 11+ years of experience as an Investor & Advisor—including eight years
as an Angel Investor & Advisor focused on FinTech, Al, Data Analytics, and New Media—
directly addresses the dual challenge facing The Daily Journal: modernizing its newspaper
business and expertly stewarding its legacy investment portfolio. As a former Head of TMT Equity
Research (BNP Paribas) and Global Technologist Equity Research (UBS), he possesses the deep
analytical expertise required to evaluate the company’s sizable marketable securities portfolio and
provide strategic oversight on high-stakes investment decisions. His background in Capital
Markets and Equity Research is crucial for navigating the scrutiny of activist investors and
ensuring transparent, defensible valuation of financial assets.

e Mr. In’s proven ability to develop, deploy, and execute complex regulatory
technology (RegTech) solutions is uniquely suited to stabilizing and expanding the Journal
Technologies platform. He has direct, practical experience developing MiFID II solutions and
implementing Machine Learning models for RegTech vendors, demonstrating his capacity to drive
both technical compliance and commercial growth in regulatory software. This history aligns
perfectly with the current need to clarify the accounting treatment and future strategic direction of
Journal Technologies. Furthermore, his status as an IBM Champion and heavy involvement in
working groups focused on Al and Quantum security solutions (leveraging skills like Artificial
Intelligence (Al), Data Governance, Digital Transformation, and Risk Management) provides him
with the cutting-edge expertise necessary to transform the platform into a focused growth driver,
guiding the business through essential modernization, maximizing its value, and ensuring its
technical and financial governance meets the highest standards demanded by the market.
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Name: Rumbidzai (“Rumbi”) Petrozzello

Age: 53

Business Address: c/o Seramount, 2445 M St. NW, Washington, D.C.
20037

Residence Address: 6916 Beach Front Road, #2, Arverne, N.Y. 11692

Principal Occupation or Employment

for the Past Five Years and Other See below

Material Business Experience:

Since 2024, Ms. Petrozzello has been a member of the board of directors of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “AICPA”). Since 2021, Ms. Petrozzello has served
as Head of Strategy and Consulting at Seramount, a professional services and research firm
focused on fostering high-performing, inclusive workplaces. In addition, since 2015, she has
served as a Principal at Rock Consulting, LL.C, a forensic accounting firm. From 2015 to 2019,
Ms. Petrozzello served as a Core and Risk Assurance Consultant for PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited (PwC), a global accounting firm recognized as the second-largest
professional services network in the world, where she worked on audits with multiple in-scope
applications, prominent hedge funds, and top law firms. Prior to that, Ms. Petrozzello spent seven
years as a Controller at TGM Associates, a real estate investment company, where she oversaw
the financials of funds holding over $500 million in assets, directed the financial aspect of
investigations and audits for prospective acquisitions, identified potential risks, and conducted
internal investigations of financial discrepancies.

Since 2012, Ms. Petrozzello has been a member of the New York State Society of Certified
Public Accountants (NYSSCPA), including serving as a member of the Litigation Services
Committee. She served as President of NYSSCPA from 2021 to 2022 and as Immediate Past
President from 2022 to 2023. From 2013 to 2020, Ms. Petrozzello served as a Diversity and
Inclusion Advocate for NYSSCPA and, from 2015 to 2016, as President of the Brooklyn/Queens
Chapter of NYSSCPA. She also served as Vice President of the Richmond chapter of the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiners from 2015 to 2019. She is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, where she has served on the Forensic and Litigation
Services Committee, as a member of the Fraud Task Force, and as a member of the National
Accreditation Commission.

Ms. Petrozzello holds a B.A. from Mount Holyoke College and a BCompt from the
University of South Africa. She is a certified public accountant, a certified financial forensics
professional, and a certified fraud examiner.

Ms. Petrozzello’s qualifications to serve as a director include her deep knowledge and
experience in forensic accounting practices and techniques, evaluating and improving workplace
culture, and examining financials for a broad range of clientele, including Fortune 500 companies
and technology companies such as the Daily Journal Corporation. She has also spearheaded
diversity, equity, and inclusion efforts in the accounting industry and in workplaces more
generally.
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ANNEX C

Form of Nominee Agreement

NOMINATION AGREEMENT

This Nomination Agreement (the “Agreement”) is by and between Buxton Helmsley USA,
Inc. (“Buxton Helmsley,” “we” or “us”) and [*] (“you”).

You agree that you are willing, should we so elect, to become a member of a slate of
nominees (the “Slate”) of a Buxton Helmsley affiliate (the “Nominating Party”), which
nominees shall stand for election or appointment as directors of Daily Journal Corporation,
a South Carolina corporation (the “Corporation”), in connection with a campaign (the
“Campaign”) or a proxy solicitation (the “Proxy Solicitation™) that we may conduct in
respect of the Corporation, whether in connection with the 2026 annual meeting of
stockholders of the Corporation (including any adjournment or postponement thereof or
any special meeting held in lieu thereof, the “Annual Meeting”) or otherwise. You further
agree to serve as a director of the Corporation if so elected or appointed. We agree to pay
the costs of the Proxy Solicitation and agree to reimburse you for any documented and
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses you incur in connection with the Campaign or the Proxy
Solicitation that are approved in writing in advance by us, including reasonable expenses
for travel requested by us in connection therewith.

Buxton Helmsley agrees on behalf of the Nominating Party that, so long as you agree to
inclusion on the Slate and comply with the reasonable requests from Buxton Helmsley in
such capacity, Buxton Helmsley will defend, indemnify and hold you harmless from and
against any and all losses, claims, damages, penalties, judgments, awards, settlements,
liabilities, costs, expenses and disbursements (including, without limitation, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, costs, expenses and disbursements) incurred by you in the event that you
become a party, to any civil, criminal, administrative or arbitrative action, suit or
proceeding, (i) relating to your role as a nominee for director of the Corporation on the
Slate, or (ii) otherwise arising from or in connection with or relating to the Campaign or
the Proxy Solicitation. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, Buxton Helmsley
is not indemnifying you for any action taken by you or on your behalf that occurs prior to
the date hereof or subsequent to the conclusion of the Proxy Solicitation or such earlier
time as you are no longer a nominee on the Slate or for any claims made against you in
your capacity as a director of the Corporation or actions taken by you as a director of the
Corporation, if you are elected or appointed. Nothing herein shall be construed to provide
you with indemnification (i) if you violate any provision of state or federal law or commit
any criminal actions; (ii) if you acted in a manner that constitutes fraud, gross negligence,
bad faith or willful misconduct; or (ii1) you breach the terms of this Agreement. You shall
promptly notify Buxton Helmsley in writing in the event of any third-party claims actually
made against you or known by you to be threatened (along with any supporting documents
in your possession) if you intend to seek indemnification hereunder in respect of such
claims. In addition, upon your delivery of notice with respect to any such claim, Buxton
Helmsley, in its sole discretion, shall be entitled to assume control of the defense of such
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claim with counsel chosen by Buxton Helmsley. Buxton Helmsley shall not be responsible
for any settlement of any claim against you covered by this indemnity without its prior
written consent. However, Buxton Helmsley may not enter into any settlement of any such
claim without your consent unless such settlement includes (i) no admission of liability or
guilt by you, and (ii) an unconditional release of you from any and all liability or obligation
in respect of such claim.

You understand that it may be difficult, if not impossible, to replace a nominee who, such
as yourself, has agreed to be included on the Slate and, if elected or appointed, to serve as
a director of the Corporation if such nominee later changes his or her mind and determines
not to be included on the Slate or, if elected or appointed, to serve as a director of the
Corporation. Accordingly, Buxton Helmsley is relying upon your agreement to serve on
the Slate and, if elected or appointed, as a director of the Corporation. In that regard, you
are being supplied with a written representation and agreement required by the Corporation
for members of the Slate at the Annual Meeting (the “Company Representation”), in which
you will provide Buxton Helmsley with information necessary for the Nominating Party to
make appropriate disclosure to the Corporation and to use in creating the proxy solicitation
materials to be sent to stockholders of the Corporation and filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) in connection with the Campaign and Proxy
Solicitation (collectively, the “Nominee Information”).

You agree that (i) upon request you will promptly complete, sign and return the Company
Representation and provide any other Nominee Information reasonably requested by
Buxton Helmsley, (ii) your Nominee Information will be true, complete and correct in all
respects, (ii1) you will promptly inform us in writing of any changes to the Nominee
Information, and (iv) you will provide any additional information or instruments related to
the Campaign and Proxy Solicitation as may be reasonably requested by Buxton Helmsley.
In addition, you agree that you will execute and return a separate instrument confirming
that you consent to being named in any proxy statement and proxy card and nominated for
election or appointment as a director of the Corporation and, if elected or appointed,
consent to serving as a director of the Corporation. Upon being notified that you have been
chosen, Buxton Helmsley and the Nominating Party may forward your consent and
completed Company Representation (or summaries thereof) and any other Nominee
Information, to the Corporation. Buxton Helmsley and the Nominating Party may at any
time, in our and their discretion, disclose the information contained therein, as well as the
existence and contents of this Agreement. Furthermore, you understand that Buxton
Helmsley may elect, at its expense, to conduct a background and reference check on you,
and you agree to complete and execute any necessary authorization forms or other
documents required in connection therewith. You also agree to reasonably consult with us
prior to taking any actions that are likely to interfere with your obligations hereunder or
result in an adverse recommendation from Institutional Shareholder Services, Inc. or Glass,
Lewis & Co.

You further agree that (i) you will treat confidentially and not disclose to any party any

information relating to the Campaign, the Proxy Solicitation, or Buxton Helmsley or its
affiliates; (ii) from the date hereof until the Annual Meeting, neither you nor your
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10.

11.

immediate family will purchase or sell shares in the Corporation without the written
permission of Buxton Helmsley and that you will comply with certain compliance policies
and procedures of Buxton Helmsley as communicated to you from time to time; (iii) you
will not issue, publish or otherwise make any public statement or any other form of public
communication relating to the Corporation, the Campaign or the Proxy Solicitation without
the prior written approval of Buxton Helmsley; and (iv) you will not agree to serve, or
agree to be nominated to stand for election, by the Corporation or any other stockholder of
the Corporation (other than Buxton Helmsley and its affiliates), as a director of the
Corporation without the prior written approval of Buxton Helmsley.

From the date hereof until the Annual Meeting, you may only invest in securities of the
Corporation with the prior approval of Buxton Helmsley. With respect to any purchases
by you or your immediate family of securities of the Corporation approved by Buxton
Helmsley, (i) you agree to consult with Buxton Helmsley regarding such purchases and
provide necessary information following such purchases so that we may comply with any
applicable disclosure or other obligations which may result from such investment and (ii)
Buxton Helmsley or its affiliates shall prepare and complete any required disclosures
including all regulatory filings related thereto at no cost to you. With respect to any
purchases made pursuant to this paragraph, you agree not to dispose of any such securities
prior to the termination of this Agreement.

Each of us recognizes that should you be elected or appointed to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation (the “Board”) all of your activities and decisions as a director will be
governed by applicable law and subject to your fiduciary duties, as applicable, to the
Corporation and to the stockholders of the Corporation and, as a result, that there is, and
can be, no agreement between you and Buxton Helmsley that governs the decisions which
you will make as a director of the Corporation.

This Agreement shall automatically terminate on the earliest to occur of (i) the conclusion
of the Annual Meeting (including the certification of the results thereof), (ii) your election
or appointment to the Board, (iii) the termination of the Campaign and the Proxy
Solicitation or (iv) our election to not include you as part of the Slate, provided, however,
that the applicable indemnification provisions in the third paragraph, the confidentiality
obligations in the sixth paragraph, and the eighth through twelfth paragraphs of this
Agreement shall survive such termination.

This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between Buxton Helmsley and you as to
the subject matter contained herein, and cannot be amended, modified, or terminated except
by a writing executed by Buxton Helmsley and you.

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York, without giving
effect to principles of conflicts of laws. Each party to this letter hereby irrevocably agrees
that any legal action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this letter shall exclusively
be brought in a New York State or Federal court located in New York County in the State
of New York and hereby expressly submits to the personal jurisdiction and venue of such
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courts for the purposes thereof, and expressly waives any claim of improper venue and any
claim that such courts are an inconvenient forum.

12. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, which together shall
constitute a single agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]
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Agreed to as of the date both parties have signed:

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

By:

Name: Alexander E. Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date:

NOMINEE:

Name: [°]
Date:
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ANNEX D

FINRA Exam Results Letter

[See attached]
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "Brian Cardile"; Steven Myhill-Jones

Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet; Relampagos, Stella C.

Subject: RE: Daily Journal Corporation - Rule 14a-19 Nomination Notice
Date: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 12:21:00 PM

Attachments: image001.png

Sensitivity: Confidential

Brian,

By your own account, correspondence is handled Monday through Friday during regular business
hours. My follow-up was sent at 5:15pm on Monday. A full business day had elapsed.

In any event, I'm not looking for a dispute about timing. We appreciate the confirmation of receipt
and, if we do not hear back by December 18, we will assume the Company finds the Rule 14a-19
notice sufficient.

Thank you,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Brian Cardile <bcardile@journaltech.com>

Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 12:05 PM

To: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>; Steven Myhill-Jones
<smj@dailyjournal.com>

Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com>; Relampagos, Stella C.
<stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>

Subject: Re: Daily Journal Corporation - Rule 14a-19 Nomination Notice

Sensitivity: Confidential

Caution: This is an external email from outside the Buxton Helmsley network. Please take care when clicking links or
opening attachments. If you question or doubt, contact the Buxton Helmsley Compliance Department.

Alexander,
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| trust you realize this impatient follow-up was sent before the first business day elapsed since
your original communication.

You will understand that your correspondence is handled Monday to Friday during regular
business hours and in the context of many other things as DJCO prioritizes the actual running
of the business, as is appropriate.

Sincerely,
BC

Brian Cardile

In-House Counsel - Corporate Secretary

Journal Technologies |915 E. 1st Street; Los Angeles, CA 90012
Phone: (213) 229-5300 | Direct: (301) 922-7711
bcardile@journaltech.com | www.journaltech.com

Book time with Brian Cardile

From: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>

Sent: Monday, December 15, 2025 5:15 PM

To: Brian Cardile <bcardile@journaltech.com>; Steven Myhill-Jones <smj@dailyjournal.com>
Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com>; Relampagos, Stella C.
<stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>

Subject: RE: Daily Journal Corporation - Rule 14a-19 Nomination Notice

[EXTERNAL EMAIL]

Mr. Cardile:

I am following up on our email sent below, delivering Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.'s Rule 14a-19 notice
of intent to solicit proxies at the Company's 2026 Annual Meeting. You should be aware that we
received confirmation from the Company’s server that the email was delivered successfully.

It has now been approximately 48 hours since delivery, including a full business day, and we have
not received acknowledgment of receipt. This is not the first instance in which highly important
correspondence to the Company has gone without a mere acknowledgement for an inappropriate
amount of time, requiring us to follow up.

Please confirm receipt of the Rule 14a-19 notice and its attachments by close of business tomorrow,
December 16.

Very truly yours,
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Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Parker, Alexander E.

Sent: Saturday, December 13, 2025 6:49 PM

To: Brian Cardile <bcardile@journaltech.com>; Steven Myhill-Jones <smj@dailyjournal.com>
Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com>; Relampagos, Stella C.
<stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>

Subject: Daily Journal Corporation - Rule 14a-19 Nomination Notice

Importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Cardile (and all others copied):

Attached, please find:
1. Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.’s formal notice of intent to solicit proxies at the Daily Journal
Corporation 2026 Annual Meeting, pursuant to Rule 14a-19 (with Annexes A-D); and
2. A private letter to the Board (copying Baker Tilly US, LLP).

We look forward to prompt confirmation of receipt of this email and its attachments, in addition to
hearing from the Company as to its nominees by December 31, 2025.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message and any attachments are intended solely for the named recipient(s) and may contain
confidential, privileged, and/or attorney-client communications. Any unauthorized review, use, disclosure, distribution, or copying is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately at +1 (212) 561-5540 or by
return email, and permanently delete this message and its attachments. Buxton Helmsley, Inc. disclaims liability for any damage caused
by viruses transmitted through this email, and recipients are responsible for their own virus screening.

LEGAL & INVESTMENT DISCLAIMER: This communication is provided for informational purposes only. It does not constitute, and should
not be construed as, investment advice, an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities or to provide management
services. Any such offer will only be made through a confidential private placement memorandum or other formal offering documents,
which contain important information and risk disclosures. Prospective investors should consult their own investment, legal, accounting,
and tax advisers before making any investment decision. No representation is made that past or projected performance is indicative of
future results.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS: This message may include statements, estimates, or projections that constitute “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws. Such statements are inherently uncertain, based on current assumptions
and expectations, and subject to risks and factors outside Buxton Helmsley’s control. Actual results may differ materially from those
expressed or implied. The firm undertakes no obligation to update or revise such statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events, or otherwise.
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "Brian Cardile"; Steven Myhill-Jones
Cc: Relampagos, Stella C.; Sayerwin, Scarlet
Subject: Daily Journal Corporation - Tainted CFO Appointment
Date: Wednesday, December 17, 2025 1:34:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

20251217 - Private Letter to DJCO Board.pdf
Sensitivity: Confidential
Brian,

Please see the attached correspondence regarding yesterday's announcement, as filed with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 8-K. The Company has apparently appointed Mr.
Nakamura as CFO, despite his direct involvement in the financial reporting violations that have been
occurring at subsidiary Journal Technologies, even more so than Tu To.

We have copied Baker Tilly on this email, given the Board's inexplicable decision to promote a CFO
who was responsible for these financial reporting violations. This action further illustrates the
Board’s apparent lack of care for CFO proficiency in financial reporting that complies with accounting
standards and securities laws, which should even further preclude Baker Tilly from signing off on the
Company’s financials in an upcoming Form 10-K filing. We again provide Baker Tilly the AICPA
publishing, which clearly explains management’s position that ASC 985-20 is incorrect (showing a
chart depicting the very activities in an agile development sprint that are subject to capitalization),
and not in compliance with GAAP. Beyond the GAAP violations, the Company’s previous Form 10-Q
and Form 10-K filings fail to properly disclose the “significant” (as admitted by management in
previous quarterly filings) research and development expenses on a separate line item (in violation
of Regulation S-X), requiring restatement and re-filing for years, even further precluding Baker Tilly
from signing off on another set of audited financial statements in the midst of such long-running
regulatory violations.

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 17, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company’) — Appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

We must follow up after our December 13 letter to express obvious concerns regarding the
Company’s Form 8-K filed yesterday, December 16, 2025, announcing the appointment of Erik
Nakamura as Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial Officer of Daily Journal Corporation
(the “December 16 Form 8-K”).

Suspicious Process

The December 16 Form 8-K states that the Board approved Mr. Nakamura’s appointment
on December 12, 2025. Yet the December 16 Form 8-K also discloses that, as of the filing date
(four days later), “the specific compensation arrangements have not been finalized.” The
Compensation Committee merely “authorized the Company to finalize the terms” of his
appointment.

This is not how CFO appointments work. Boards do not approve the appointment of a
principal financial officer without knowing what the company will pay him. Compensation is not
an afterthought to be delegated for later resolution—it is a material term that is approved as part
of the appointment itself. Without acceptable compensation terms, there is no appointment. The
notion that the Board definitively approved this appointment on December 12, while leaving
compensation entirely undetermined (handing management carte blanche authority and a blank
check), defies belief and underscores the inappropriate governance by the Board.

We also note that the December 16 Form 8-K disclosed an event that supposedly occurred
on December 12, yet was filed on December 16—the final day of the four-business-day window
permitted under Item 5.02 of Form 8-K. We further note that Buxton Helmsley's Rule 14a-19

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com









Daily Journal Corporation

December 17, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

notice of intent to solicit proxies was delivered to the Company on December 13, 2025, just one
day after the Board’s purported approval of Mr. Nakamura's appointment.

Shareholders are entitled to have confidence that material corporate actions are taken
through proper deliberative processes, not rushed or reconstructed in response to external
pressures. The circumstances here do not inspire that confidence. Any shareholder will agree that
the claimed timing of the event disclosed in the December 16 Form 8-K is highly suspicious once
they are informed of the behind-the-scenes events involving Buxton Helmsley’s Rule 14a-19
notice.

The Very Wrong Choice

Even setting aside questions about process, the substance of this appointment is deeply
troubling.

Mr. Nakamura has served as Chief Financial Officer of Journal Technologies, Inc. since
October 2024. Journal Technologies is the subsidiary at the very center of the Company’s ongoing
accounting issues. Buxton Helmsley has publicly identified stark, sweeping violations of ASC
985-20 in relation to Journal Technologies’ complete failure to properly capitalize software
development costs, in addition to a complete failure to disclose the “significant” research and
development expenses on a separate line item of the Company’s income statement, in violation of
Regulation S-X.

Mr. Nakamura has been directly responsible for Journal Technologies’ books and records
during periods of this non-compliance, including the Company’s last quarterly report filed with
the U.S. SEC. He is the subsidiary CFO who oversaw the very accounting practices now under
scrutiny, even more directly than CFO Tu To (though Ms. To absolutely should have noticed the
suspicious complete absence of a “research and development expense” line item on the income
statement, and nonexistent intangible assets on the balance sheet). Promoting Mr. Nakamura to
parent company CFO does not signal a commitment to addressing these issues—it signals a
commitment to defending them.

The December 16 Form 8-K describes this appointment as “a continuation of the
Company's initiatives since 2023 to build the required finance team for the future alongside
modernized accounting systems and improved internal controls.” If the Company were genuinely
committed to improved internal controls, it would not elevate the executive most directly
associated with the subsidiary’s questioned accounting to the top financial role at the parent
company. This appointment suggests the Board either does not understand the seriousness of the
financial reporting violations that have been ongoing at the Company’s Journal Technologies
subsidiary, or does not care.

A Pattern of Governance Failure
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December 17, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

This appointment is consistent with the Board’s broader pattern of prioritizing
entrenchment over accountability. Rather than engage constructively with shareholder concerns
about accounting practices, the Board has chosen to circle the wagons. Rather than bring in fresh
leadership that was not a part of creating the issues under review, the Board has promoted from
within the very unit where the problems originated.

We remind the Board that approximately 40% of shareholders voted against multiple
directors at the last annual meeting, before the full scope of the accounting issues became public,
and before the departures of Ms. To and others. The Board’s response to that vote of no confidence
has been to double down on the status quo, which we are sure will not end well at the 2026 annual
meeting.

This appointment comes as the Company’s Form 10-K is due in fifteen days, and Baker
Tilly US, LLP must decide whether to sign off on financial statements that may contain the very
misstatements Buxton Helmsley has identified. Elevating the Journal Technologies CFO to the
parent company role at this moment sends a message, and is about as assuring as if Baker Tilly
signs off on financials that entirely contradict authoritative guidance published by their own
industry body (the AICPA).

As we said in our letter to the Board just days ago, shareholders deserve better.

* * *

Buxton Helmsley reserves all rights, at law and in equity, including the right to pursue any
and all remedies available to it in connection with the matters described herein and the Company’s
ongoing governance failures.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 17, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company’) — Appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

We must follow up after our December 13 letter to express obvious concerns regarding the
Company’s Form 8-K filed yesterday, December 16, 2025, announcing the appointment of Erik
Nakamura as Chief Financial Officer and Principal Financial Officer of Daily Journal Corporation
(the “December 16 Form 8-K”).

Suspicious Process

The December 16 Form 8-K states that the Board approved Mr. Nakamura’s appointment
on December 12, 2025. Yet the December 16 Form 8-K also discloses that, as of the filing date
(four days later), “the specific compensation arrangements have not been finalized.” The
Compensation Committee merely “authorized the Company to finalize the terms” of his
appointment.

This is not how CFO appointments work. Boards do not approve the appointment of a
principal financial officer without knowing what the company will pay him. Compensation is not
an afterthought to be delegated for later resolution—it is a material term that is approved as part
of the appointment itself. Without acceptable compensation terms, there is no appointment. The
notion that the Board definitively approved this appointment on December 12, while leaving
compensation entirely undetermined (handing management carte blanche authority and a blank
check), defies belief and underscores the inappropriate governance by the Board.

We also note that the December 16 Form 8-K disclosed an event that supposedly occurred
on December 12, yet was filed on December 16—the final day of the four-business-day window
permitted under Item 5.02 of Form 8-K. We further note that Buxton Helmsley's Rule 14a-19
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notice of intent to solicit proxies was delivered to the Company on December 13, 2025, just one
day after the Board’s purported approval of Mr. Nakamura's appointment.

Shareholders are entitled to have confidence that material corporate actions are taken
through proper deliberative processes, not rushed or reconstructed in response to external
pressures. The circumstances here do not inspire that confidence. Any shareholder will agree that
the claimed timing of the event disclosed in the December 16 Form 8-K is highly suspicious once
they are informed of the behind-the-scenes events involving Buxton Helmsley’s Rule 14a-19
notice.

The Very Wrong Choice

Even setting aside questions about process, the substance of this appointment is deeply
troubling.

Mr. Nakamura has served as Chief Financial Officer of Journal Technologies, Inc. since
October 2024. Journal Technologies is the subsidiary at the very center of the Company’s ongoing
accounting issues. Buxton Helmsley has publicly identified stark, sweeping violations of ASC
985-20 in relation to Journal Technologies’ complete failure to properly capitalize software
development costs, in addition to a complete failure to disclose the “significant” research and
development expenses on a separate line item of the Company’s income statement, in violation of
Regulation S-X.

Mr. Nakamura has been directly responsible for Journal Technologies’ books and records
during periods of this non-compliance, including the Company’s last quarterly report filed with
the U.S. SEC. He is the subsidiary CFO who oversaw the very accounting practices now under
scrutiny, even more directly than CFO Tu To (though Ms. To absolutely should have noticed the
suspicious complete absence of a “research and development expense” line item on the income
statement, and nonexistent intangible assets on the balance sheet). Promoting Mr. Nakamura to
parent company CFO does not signal a commitment to addressing these issues—it signals a
commitment to defending them.

The December 16 Form 8-K describes this appointment as “a continuation of the
Company's initiatives since 2023 to build the required finance team for the future alongside
modernized accounting systems and improved internal controls.” If the Company were genuinely
committed to improved internal controls, it would not elevate the executive most directly
associated with the subsidiary’s questioned accounting to the top financial role at the parent
company. This appointment suggests the Board either does not understand the seriousness of the
financial reporting violations that have been ongoing at the Company’s Journal Technologies
subsidiary, or does not care.

A Pattern of Governance Failure
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This appointment is consistent with the Board’s broader pattern of prioritizing
entrenchment over accountability. Rather than engage constructively with shareholder concerns
about accounting practices, the Board has chosen to circle the wagons. Rather than bring in fresh
leadership that was not a part of creating the issues under review, the Board has promoted from
within the very unit where the problems originated.

We remind the Board that approximately 40% of shareholders voted against multiple
directors at the last annual meeting, before the full scope of the accounting issues became public,
and before the departures of Ms. To and others. The Board’s response to that vote of no confidence
has been to double down on the status quo, which we are sure will not end well at the 2026 annual
meeting.

This appointment comes as the Company’s Form 10-K is due in fifteen days, and Baker
Tilly US, LLP must decide whether to sign off on financial statements that may contain the very
misstatements Buxton Helmsley has identified. Elevating the Journal Technologies CFO to the
parent company role at this moment sends a message, and is about as assuring as if Baker Tilly
signs off on financials that entirely contradict authoritative guidance published by their own
industry body (the AICPA).

As we said in our letter to the Board just days ago, shareholders deserve better.

* * *

Buxton Helmsley reserves all rights, at law and in equity, including the right to pursue any
and all remedies available to it in connection with the matters described herein and the Company’s
ongoing governance failures.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "Sayerwin, Scarlet"; "Relampagos, Stella C."
Cc: jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: FW:

Date: Thursday, December 18, 2025 9:58:00 PM
Importance: High

Dear Mses. Sayerwin and Relampagos:

We request that you immediately forward a copy of the below correspondence (with Rasool Rayani, a member of
the Daily Journal Corporation's Audit Committee) to the Audit Engagement Partner and Audit Quality Review
Partner overseeing the Daily Journal Corporation audit engagement.

Mr. Rayani describes compliance with Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act as "the flimsiest of technicalities."
He does not understand when a Form 3 is due. He has not filed one himself in 18 months of board service.

This is the tone at the top. Under the COSO Internal Control Framework, the control environment—including the
integrity and ethical values demonstrated by the board and management—is the foundation of effective internal
control over financial reporting. An Audit Committee which dismisses federal securities law as a "flimsy
technicality" is not demonstrating commitment to compliance. They are demonstrating disregard to it.

Baker Tilly is being asked to sign an audit opinion for a company whose Audit Committee regards compliance with
federal securities laws as a trivial nuisance. I would ask that you consider what that suggests about the Committee's
approach to compliance with GAAP and Regulation S-X, especially in light of the issues we have already raised (for
which Baker Tilly has been consistently provided copies of).

Respectfully,

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1 (212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Parker, Alexander E.

Sent: Thursday, December 18, 2025 9:25 PM
To: 'Rasool' <rasool.rayani@gmail.com>
Cec: jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: RE:

Rasool,
Thank you for your response. It clarifies a great deal.

You write that the Section 16 violations involve "late Section 16 filings for the first-ever shares that vested under the
directors' plan."
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This reflects a fundamental misunderstanding of Form 3 requirements. Form 3 is due within 10 days of becoming a
director, regardless of whether any shares have vested or whether the director owns any securities at all. The
obligation is triggered by becoming a director, not by acquiring shares. Many times, directors begin by filing a
Form 3 showing zero beneficial ownership. The form is called an "Initial Statement of Beneficial Ownership"
because it establishes a baseline at the time of becoming an insider, before possible vesting of compensation.

You joined the Board in June 2024. Your Form 3 was due within 10 days of that date. It is now 18 months later.
No Form 3 has ever been filed.

You are a member of the Audit Committee—the committee responsible for overseeing the Company's compliance
with SEC reporting obligations. You do not understand the most basic of those obligations. And you have now put
that misunderstanding and lack of care in writing.

You also describe Section 16 compliance as "the flimsiest of technicalities." This is a remarkable statement from an
Audit Committee member. Section 16 is not a technicality. It is a federal securities law enacted by Congress to
ensure transparency in the ownership interests of corporate insiders. The fact that you regard compliance with
federal securities laws as a trivial matter—while sitting on the committee responsible for such compliance—tells
shareholders everything they need to know about the current Board's approach to governance.

You describe the CFO's departure as a "thoughtful transition rather than anything nefarious." Thoughtful transitions
do not require separation agreements with general releases of claims and non-disparagement obligations. Perhaps
you have not reviewed the terms of Ms. To's departure. Or perhaps you have, and this is simply the message you
have been instructed to deliver.

You state that our proxy contest "will fail, as few shareholders will vote for you." I would remind you that 40% of
shareholders voted against the incumbent directors at the last annual meeting—before the CFO's departure, before
the Section 16 violations were exposed, and before shareholders learned that the entire Audit Committee cannot
comply with a two-page beneficial ownership form (not to mention, the GAAP and Regulation S-X issues).

As for your request that Ms. Petrozzello respond in my place: No. I do not take direction from you. But since you
have expressed curiosity about why Ms. Petrozzello is standing behind this, I am happy to clarify. It is because she
sees companies, just like the Daily Journal, consistently violating their obligations under accounting standards and
securities laws, and no one says anything about it. Ms. Petrozzello is a CPA and Certified Fraud Examiner who
serves on the Board of Directors of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants—the organization that
develops and grades the CPA examination. She is, in other words, among the professionals who determine whether
accountants are qualified to practice. I am confident her understanding of ASC 985-20 exceeds that of whoever has
been advising your Board. I am sure you have been provided with the authoritative AICPA guidance we previously
delivered, which clearly states that the Daily Journal's position on ASC 985-20 is incorrect. That guidance includes a
diagram of the activities in an agile development sprint that are subject to capitalization—activities the Daily Journal
has ignored entirely. The result is to grossly mislead shareholders as to whether capital is being expended or
invested in the business. These are two very different things, which any member of an audit committee should
understand.

This correspondence will be part of the record.

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1 (212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
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From: Rasool <rasool.rayani@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, December 18, 2025 8:57 PM

To: Parker, Alexander E. <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>
Subject:

Caution: This is an external email from outside the Buxton Helmsley network. Please take care when clicking links
or opening attachments. If you question or doubt, contact the Buxton Helmsley Compliance Department.

Alexander,

In most circumstances, I would consider engaging with a solicitation like this to understand if there has been a
misunderstanding that can be navigated and rectified.

In this case, I’m starting from a basis of zero trust. Your behaviour so far is not that of someone acting in good faith.
You have not earned any trust because, whatever your larger strategy or “reasons”

might be, you have consistently mischaracterized matters and sought to make ado of the flimsiest of technicalities to
further your objectives. It strikes me that something like late Section 16 filings for the first-ever shares that vested
under the directors’ plan are very meager sticks to build a campfire where, as you probably know, the remedy is
simple disclosure of the late filings in the proxy statement.

Broadly, I consider your claims meritless and your conduct adverse to the interest of Daily Journal’s shareholders.
You have claimed an "accounting mess," but there is no mess. Your criticism is misplaced and reflects a
misunderstanding of the applicable accounting rules.

The CFO's departure is part of a thoughtful transition rather than anything nefarious.

You are free to launch a proxy contest, which will fail, as few shareholders will vote for you. Rather than launch a
baseless fight, which will cost your fund significant money that will not be recoverable, you should simply
apologize and move on.

All that said, the conversation that I would consider in the spirit of what you’re suggesting would be one with Ms.
Petrozzello. I’d be curious to get her perspective on the factors at play because I’m keen to understand the basis for
her being willing to risk her reputation on an endeavor like this.

In fact, I request any reply to this email come from her and not you.

Sincerely,
Rasool

From: Alexander E. Parker <alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com>
Date: Monday, December 15 2025 at 10:07 PM PST
Subject:

Rasool,

I’ll be direct with you. I’ve been aggressive with the board. I've had my reasons, and I stand by what I’ve said. But
I also recognize that makes me an unlikely person to reach out looking for dialogue.

I’m reaching out to you because you weren’t part of any of this. You joined eighteen months ago to add value to a
company, and instead you’ve inherited an accounting mess, a CFO departure, and now a proxy fight. I'm very sure

that’s not what you signed up for.

I’m not asking you to take my side or go against your colleagues. I know how boards work, and I know that’s not a







realistic ask. But I think there’s a version of this that doesn’t end in a courtroom.

Rather, a version of this where the company gets stronger, shareholders are better served, and nobody has to spend
the next six months in a war of attrition.

If you’re willing to have a conversation, I’d welcome it. No preconditions. If you’re not, I understand, and I won’t
bother you again.

Alexander
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: jfrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: FW: Additional Section 16 Violations Identified

Date: Thursday, December 18, 2025 8:11:00 PM

Attachments: 20251218 - Private Letter to DJCO Board.pdf
image001.png

Importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Frank,

Forwarding you the below and attached, given its relevance to the letter addressed to you earlier
today, and to ensure your timely receipt, given its urgency.

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn

From: Parker, Alexander E.

Sent: Thursday, December 18, 2025 7:55 PM

To: 'Brian Cardile' <bcardile@journaltech.com>; Steven Myhill-Jones <smj@dailyjournal.com>
Cc: Sayerwin, Scarlet <scarlet.sayerwin@bakertilly.com>; Relampagos, Stella C.
<stella.relampagos@bakertilly.com>

Subject: Additional Section 16 Violations Identified

Importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential

Mr. Cardile,

Please find attached correspondence regarding additional (active) Section 16(a) compliance
violations identified at the Company.

It appears that, in the course of filing corrective reports for Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin, no one noticed
(not even the “Director of SEC Reporting”) that Mr. Rayani has had no Form 3 or Form 4 filings at all

since joining the Board eighteen months ago.

Once again, Baker Tilly is copied here, to observe the unending compliance failures.
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Additional Section 16 Violations
Identified

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Following our letter of December 17, 2025, regarding the appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer, we have now discovered an additional compliance failure that warrants
immediate attention. Our December 13, 2025 letter identified years-long Section 16(a) reporting
failures by Audit Committee members John B. Frank and Mary Murphy Conlin. We have now
discovered that the third member of the Audit Committee—Rasool Rayani—has the same
compliance failures. Mr. Rayani joined the Board in June 2024. To date, eighteen months later,
no Form 3 has ever been filed on his behalf. Additionally, no Form 4 has been filed to report the
equity compensation he received, which the Company's own proxy statement discloses as $8,172.

To summarize: the Company recently filed delinquent Form 3 and Form 4 reports for Mr.
Frank and Ms. Conlin—apparently believing it had remedied its Section 16 compliance failures.
Yet somehow, in the course of this remediation, neither the Company, its management, its outside
counsel, nor any member of the Audit Committee noticed that the third Audit Committee member
had no filings at all. This is not a clerical oversight. Compliance is a function at DJCO that clearly
does not exist, even with the Company’s new “Director of SEC Reporting”.

Every single member of the Company's Audit Committee has violated Section 16(a), and
Rasool Rayani is actively violating Section 16(a). The committee charged with overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting and internal controls is composed entirely of directors who cannot
comply with the most basic SEC reporting obligations. This is the same committee that has
overseen the accounting failures we have identified, the same committee that allowed a falsely
dated Form 8-K to remain uncorrected for five months, and the same committee whose Chair we
have notified (earlier today) of potential referral to the State Bar of California.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com









Daily Journal Corporation

December 18, 2025 BUXTON bj HELMSLEY

Mr. Rayani should understand that he will not escape scrutiny in the upcoming proxy
contest. Our prior correspondence focused on Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin because, at that time, we
believed Mr. Rayani’s filings were in order. They are not. Mr. Rayani will be included in all
future public communications regarding the Board’s systemic compliance failures.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: "jfrank@oaktreecap.com"
Cc: smj@dailyjournal.com; bcardile@journaltech.com; "Relampagos, Stella C."; "Sayerwin, Scarlet"
Subject: Daily Journal Corporation - Notice of Potential Referral to State Bar of California
Date: Thursday, December 18, 2025 10:30:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png
20251218 - Private Letter to John B Frank re Bar Referral.pdf
Sensitivity: Confidential
Mr. Frank:

Please find attached correspondence requiring your attention. As noted in the letter, we request a
response no later than 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on December 22, 2025.

Respectfully,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

John B. Frank, Esq.

Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.
333 South Grand Avenue, 28th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”’) — Notice of Potential Referral to
the State Bar of California

Dear Mr. Frank:

I write on behalf of Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. regarding conduct that we believe may
warrant referral to the State Bar of California for investigation under the California Rules of
Professional Conduct.

Section 16 Reporting Violations

As you are aware, you recently filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission that were delinquent by as many as three years. Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors of public companies to file Form 3 within ten
days of becoming a director and Form 4 within two business days of any transaction in the
company's securities. These are not obscure compliance requirements. They are among the most
basic obligations imposed on every public company director.

You are a securities lawyer at Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.—one of the world's
largest alternative investment managers, with approximately $180 billion in assets under
management. You have held yourself out to the Company and its shareholders as a “financial
expert” for purposes of SEC disclosure requirements and serve as Chair of the Company's Audit
Committee. A securities lawyer at a major investment firm who serves as the designated financial
expert on a public company’s audit committee should not require three years to file a two-page
beneficial ownership form.

“Financial Expert” Designation and Audit Committee Failures

Your acceptance of the “financial expert” designation carries with it an implicit self-
representation to shareholders that you possess the competence to oversee, and commitment to
ensuring compliance with, the Company’s financial reporting and internal control obligations. Yet
the record suggests otherwise.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com









John B. Frank, Esq.

December 18, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

Since July 2025, Buxton Helmsley has identified material concerns regarding the
Company's software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20 and violations of Regulation
S-X related to the failure to separately disclose research and development costs. We have provided
the Company—and its auditor, Baker Tilly US, LLP—with authoritative guidance from the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the organization that develops and grades the
CPA examination) that directly contradicts the Company’s stated accounting rationale. The
Company has never substantively responded to these concerns.

The potential exposure is not trivial. We have estimated that the Company has failed to
report approximately $50 million or more in intangible asset value due to improper expensing of
software development costs that were subject to mandatory capitalization under GAAP. We have
also identified violations of Regulation S-X, which requires separate disclosure of research and
development costs on the income statement when material—costs the Company itself has
described as “significant” (admittedly material) but has failed to quantify for years. Between these
issues, you have not only allowed these long-running violations of accounting standards and
securities laws to linger and go uncorrected, but also oversaw the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer continue to flagrantly violate those accounting standards and
securities laws with the Company’s latest Form 10-Q filing, dated August 14, 2025. That Form
10-Q filing also included a false certification (by Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To, pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) of compliance with financial reporting, constituting an
apparent criminal violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and the Company’s designated financial expert, you bear
direct responsibility for oversight of these matters. The fact that these potential violations have
persisted for months, and have translated into apparent criminal violations, despite detailed written
notice and authoritative contrary guidance, raises serious questions about the discharge of your
fiduciary duties.

Failure to Correct a Falsely Dated SEC Filing—and the Disclosure Violations It Was
Designed to Conceal

There is an additional matter that bears directly on your responsibilities as a securities
lawyer serving on this Board.

On July 29, 2025, CEO Steven Myhill-Jones signed and filed a Form 8-K that was falsely
dated on its face. The cover page of that filing states that the “Date of earliest event reported” is
July 28, 2025. Yet the body of the same filing explicitly states: "Two weeks ago, we received a
letter from Alexander E. Parker,” and later references “His initial July 14 letter is attached as
Exhibit 99.1.” The filing thus identifies July 14, 2025 as the earliest event being reported—while
the cover page certifies that date as July 28, 2025.
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John B. Frank, Esq.

December 18, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

The false dating was not a clerical error. It appears to have been designed to obscure the
Company’s failure to comply with the four-business-day disclosure requirement for Form 8-K
filings. Upon receiving our July 14 letter identifying potential ASC 985-20 violations, the Board
launched an accounting investigation—a material event requiring disclosure. Yet the Company
waited nearly two weeks to file the 8-K, well beyond the four-business-day requirement, and only
after Buxton Helmsley publicly demanded the Board force such disclosure twice. By falsely dating
the filing as July 28, the Company attempted to conceal how late the disclosure actually was.

The disclosure failures do not end there. Before filing the July 29 Form 8-K, the Company
selectively disclosed the existence of the Board's accounting investigation to Buxton Helmsley
alone—a single public market participant—in apparent violation of Regulation FD. Regulation
FD prohibits issuers from selectively disclosing material nonpublic information to certain market
participants without simultaneous public disclosure. The Company disclosed the investigation to
us, then waited days before disclosing it to the public, and only after the Company was publicly
exposed twice for the disclosure failure and apparent Regulation FD violation. As a securities
lawyer, you are presumably familiar with Regulation FD’s requirements.

This is not ambiguous. The filing contradicts itself on its face, the late filing violated the
four-business-day requirement, and the selective disclosure violated Regulation FD. We raised
these issues in writing to the Company on July 29, 2025—the same day the Form 8-K was filed.
It has never been corrected. The Company has since hired a Director of SEC Reporting, yet these
demonstrably false and misleading disclosures remain in the Company's public filings nearly five
months later.

You are a securities lawyer. You serve on the Board that is responsible for the accuracy
and timeliness of the Company’s SEC filings and compliance with Regulation FD. You are where
the buck stops for accurate public disclosures to shareholders, as Chair of the Company’s Audit
Committee. You have been aware of these disclosure failures since at least July 29, 2025. Yet
you have taken no action to cause the Company to correct the false filing or address the Regulation
FD violation. A securities lawyer who allows demonstrably false SEC filings and apparent
Regulation FD violations to persist uncorrected for months—after written notice—is not fulfilling
his professional responsibilities, and is part of the misconduct and violations of law.

California Rules of Professional Conduct

Rule 8.4 of the California Rules of Professional Conduct provides that it is professional
misconduct for a lawyer to “(b) commit a criminal act that reflects adversely on the lawyer’s
honesty, trustworthiness, or fitness as a lawyer” or “(c) engage in conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit, or reckless or intentional misrepresentation.” California Code, Business and
Professions Code section 6068(a) further requires California attorneys to “support the Constitution
and laws of the United States and of this state.”
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John B. Frank, Esq.

December 18, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

We believe that your years-long failure to comply with Section 16(a) of the Exchange
Act—a federal securities law with which you, as a securities lawyer, are presumably familiar—
combined with your failure to cause correction of a falsely dated SEC filing that was designed to
conceal untimely disclosure, your apparent acquiescence to a Regulation FD violation, your
ongoing failure to ensure the Company’s compliance with GAAP and Regulation S-X while
serving as the Company’s designated “financial expert,” and apparent allowance of violations of
18 U.S.C. § 1350, constitute conduct warranting investigation by the State Bar.

Demand

We are prepared to file a complaint with the State Bar of California and to provide the State
Bar with all supporting documentation, including the Company’s SEC filings (including the falsely
dated July 29 Form 8-K), our July 29, 2025 correspondence identifying the false date and the
Regulation FD violation, evidence of the selective disclosure to Buxton Helmsley prior to public
filing, the authoritative AICPA guidance completely contradicting the Company’s accounting
position, and our extensive correspondence with the Company and its auditor.

However, we are willing to forego such a filing if the Company takes immediate and
appropriate remedial action to address the governance and financial reporting failures we have
identified. In the alternative, if you conclude that the Board is unwilling to take such action, we
believe the appropriate course would be for you to resign from the Board rather than continue to
lend your name and professional credentials to a governance structure that has demonstrably failed
shareholders.

We request a response to this letter no later than 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on December
22, 2025. In the absence of a satisfactory response by that deadline, we intend to proceed with a
referral to the State Bar.

Reservation of Rights

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law,
including the right to file a complaint with the State Bar at any time and to pursue any other
remedies available to us.

This letter is being provided to you directly in your personal capacity as a member of the
State Bar of California, with a copy to the Board of Directors of Daily Journal Corporation.
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John B. Frank, Esq.
December 18, 2025

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

Cc:

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
Brian Cardile (Corporate Secretary, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO STEVEN MYHILL-JONES (SMJ@DAILYJOURNAL.COM) AND
BRIAN CARDILE (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Attn: Board of Directors — All Members
Brian Cardile, Secretary

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Additional Section 16 Violations
Identified

Dear Members of the DJCO Board of Directors (the “Board”):

Following our letter of December 17, 2025, regarding the appointment of Erik Nakamura
as Chief Financial Officer, we have now discovered an additional compliance failure that warrants
immediate attention. Our December 13, 2025 letter identified years-long Section 16(a) reporting
failures by Audit Committee members John B. Frank and Mary Murphy Conlin. We have now
discovered that the third member of the Audit Committee—Rasool Rayani—has the same
compliance failures. Mr. Rayani joined the Board in June 2024. To date, eighteen months later,
no Form 3 has ever been filed on his behalf. Additionally, no Form 4 has been filed to report the
equity compensation he received, which the Company's own proxy statement discloses as $8,172.

To summarize: the Company recently filed delinquent Form 3 and Form 4 reports for Mr.
Frank and Ms. Conlin—apparently believing it had remedied its Section 16 compliance failures.
Yet somehow, in the course of this remediation, neither the Company, its management, its outside
counsel, nor any member of the Audit Committee noticed that the third Audit Committee member
had no filings at all. This is not a clerical oversight. Compliance is a function at DJCO that clearly
does not exist, even with the Company’s new “Director of SEC Reporting”.

Every single member of the Company's Audit Committee has violated Section 16(a), and
Rasool Rayani is actively violating Section 16(a). The committee charged with overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting and internal controls is composed entirely of directors who cannot
comply with the most basic SEC reporting obligations. This is the same committee that has
overseen the accounting failures we have identified, the same committee that allowed a falsely
dated Form 8-K to remain uncorrected for five months, and the same committee whose Chair we
have notified (earlier today) of potential referral to the State Bar of California.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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Mr. Rayani should understand that he will not escape scrutiny in the upcoming proxy
contest. Our prior correspondence focused on Mr. Frank and Ms. Conlin because, at that time, we
believed Mr. Rayani’s filings were in order. They are not. Mr. Rayani will be included in all
future public communications regarding the Board’s systemic compliance failures.

For the avoidance of doubt, we reserve all rights, at law and in equity, and waive none.

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Cc:  Baker Tilly US, LLP
2040 Main Street, Suite 900
Irvine, California 92614
Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner

Page 2 of 2











20251218 - Private Letter to John B Frank re Bar Referral.pdf

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 18, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO JOHN FRANK (JFRANK@OAKTREECAP.COM)

John B. Frank, Esq.

Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.
333 South Grand Avenue, 28th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”’) — Notice of Potential Referral to
the State Bar of California

Dear Mr. Frank:

I write on behalf of Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. regarding conduct that we believe may
warrant referral to the State Bar of California for investigation under the California Rules of
Professional Conduct.

Section 16 Reporting Violations

As you are aware, you recently filed Form 3 and Form 4 reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission that were delinquent by as many as three years. Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors of public companies to file Form 3 within ten
days of becoming a director and Form 4 within two business days of any transaction in the
company's securities. These are not obscure compliance requirements. They are among the most
basic obligations imposed on every public company director.

You are a securities lawyer at Oaktree Capital Management, L.P.—one of the world's
largest alternative investment managers, with approximately $180 billion in assets under
management. You have held yourself out to the Company and its shareholders as a “financial
expert” for purposes of SEC disclosure requirements and serve as Chair of the Company's Audit
Committee. A securities lawyer at a major investment firm who serves as the designated financial
expert on a public company’s audit committee should not require three years to file a two-page
beneficial ownership form.

“Financial Expert” Designation and Audit Committee Failures

Your acceptance of the “financial expert” designation carries with it an implicit self-
representation to shareholders that you possess the competence to oversee, and commitment to
ensuring compliance with, the Company’s financial reporting and internal control obligations. Yet
the record suggests otherwise.

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

1185 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, THIRD FLOOR NEW YORK N.Y. 10036-2600
T. +1 (212) 561-5540 F. +1 (212) 561-6349 www.buxtonhelmsley.com
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Since July 2025, Buxton Helmsley has identified material concerns regarding the
Company's software development cost accounting under ASC 985-20 and violations of Regulation
S-X related to the failure to separately disclose research and development costs. We have provided
the Company—and its auditor, Baker Tilly US, LLP—with authoritative guidance from the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the organization that develops and grades the
CPA examination) that directly contradicts the Company’s stated accounting rationale. The
Company has never substantively responded to these concerns.

The potential exposure is not trivial. We have estimated that the Company has failed to
report approximately $50 million or more in intangible asset value due to improper expensing of
software development costs that were subject to mandatory capitalization under GAAP. We have
also identified violations of Regulation S-X, which requires separate disclosure of research and
development costs on the income statement when material—costs the Company itself has
described as “significant” (admittedly material) but has failed to quantify for years. Between these
issues, you have not only allowed these long-running violations of accounting standards and
securities laws to linger and go uncorrected, but also oversaw the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer continue to flagrantly violate those accounting standards and
securities laws with the Company’s latest Form 10-Q filing, dated August 14, 2025. That Form
10-Q filing also included a false certification (by Mr. Myhill-Jones and Ms. To, pursuant to Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) of compliance with financial reporting, constituting an
apparent criminal violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and the Company’s designated financial expert, you bear
direct responsibility for oversight of these matters. The fact that these potential violations have
persisted for months, and have translated into apparent criminal violations, despite detailed written
notice and authoritative contrary guidance, raises serious questions about the discharge of your
fiduciary duties.

Failure to Correct a Falsely Dated SEC Filing—and the Disclosure Violations It Was
Designed to Conceal

There is an additional matter that bears directly on your responsibilities as a securities
lawyer serving on this Board.

On July 29, 2025, CEO Steven Myhill-Jones signed and filed a Form 8-K that was falsely
dated on its face. The cover page of that filing states that the “Date of earliest event reported” is
July 28, 2025. Yet the body of the same filing explicitly states: "Two weeks ago, we received a
letter from Alexander E. Parker,” and later references “His initial July 14 letter is attached as
Exhibit 99.1.” The filing thus identifies July 14, 2025 as the earliest event being reported—while
the cover page certifies that date as July 28, 2025.
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The false dating was not a clerical error. It appears to have been designed to obscure the
Company’s failure to comply with the four-business-day disclosure requirement for Form 8-K
filings. Upon receiving our July 14 letter identifying potential ASC 985-20 violations, the Board
launched an accounting investigation—a material event requiring disclosure. Yet the Company
waited nearly two weeks to file the 8-K, well beyond the four-business-day requirement, and only
after Buxton Helmsley publicly demanded the Board force such disclosure twice. By falsely dating
the filing as July 28, the Company attempted to conceal how late the disclosure actually was.

The disclosure failures do not end there. Before filing the July 29 Form 8-K, the Company
selectively disclosed the existence of the Board's accounting investigation to Buxton Helmsley
alone—a single public market participant—in apparent violation of Regulation FD. Regulation
FD prohibits issuers from selectively disclosing material nonpublic information to certain market
participants without simultaneous public disclosure. The Company disclosed the investigation to
us, then waited days before disclosing it to the public, and only after the Company was publicly
exposed twice for the disclosure failure and apparent Regulation FD violation. As a securities
lawyer, you are presumably familiar with Regulation FD’s requirements.

This is not ambiguous. The filing contradicts itself on its face, the late filing violated the
four-business-day requirement, and the selective disclosure violated Regulation FD. We raised
these issues in writing to the Company on July 29, 2025—the same day the Form 8-K was filed.
It has never been corrected. The Company has since hired a Director of SEC Reporting, yet these
demonstrably false and misleading disclosures remain in the Company's public filings nearly five
months later.

You are a securities lawyer. You serve on the Board that is responsible for the accuracy
and timeliness of the Company’s SEC filings and compliance with Regulation FD. You are where
the buck stops for accurate public disclosures to shareholders, as Chair of the Company’s Audit
Committee. You have been aware of these disclosure failures since at least July 29, 2025. Yet
you have taken no action to cause the Company to correct the false filing or address the Regulation
FD violation. A securities lawyer who allows demonstrably false SEC filings and apparent
Regulation FD violations to persist uncorrected for months—after written notice—is not fulfilling
his professional responsibilities, and is part of the misconduct and violations of law.

California Rules of Professional Conduct

Rule 8.4 of the California Rules of Professional Conduct provides that it is professional
misconduct for a lawyer to “(b) commit a criminal act that reflects adversely on the lawyer’s
honesty, trustworthiness, or fitness as a lawyer” or “(c) engage in conduct involving dishonesty,
fraud, deceit, or reckless or intentional misrepresentation.” California Code, Business and
Professions Code section 6068(a) further requires California attorneys to “support the Constitution
and laws of the United States and of this state.”
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We believe that your years-long failure to comply with Section 16(a) of the Exchange
Act—a federal securities law with which you, as a securities lawyer, are presumably familiar—
combined with your failure to cause correction of a falsely dated SEC filing that was designed to
conceal untimely disclosure, your apparent acquiescence to a Regulation FD violation, your
ongoing failure to ensure the Company’s compliance with GAAP and Regulation S-X while
serving as the Company’s designated “financial expert,” and apparent allowance of violations of
18 U.S.C. § 1350, constitute conduct warranting investigation by the State Bar.

Demand

We are prepared to file a complaint with the State Bar of California and to provide the State
Bar with all supporting documentation, including the Company’s SEC filings (including the falsely
dated July 29 Form 8-K), our July 29, 2025 correspondence identifying the false date and the
Regulation FD violation, evidence of the selective disclosure to Buxton Helmsley prior to public
filing, the authoritative AICPA guidance completely contradicting the Company’s accounting
position, and our extensive correspondence with the Company and its auditor.

However, we are willing to forego such a filing if the Company takes immediate and
appropriate remedial action to address the governance and financial reporting failures we have
identified. In the alternative, if you conclude that the Board is unwilling to take such action, we
believe the appropriate course would be for you to resign from the Board rather than continue to
lend your name and professional credentials to a governance structure that has demonstrably failed
shareholders.

We request a response to this letter no later than 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on December
22, 2025. In the absence of a satisfactory response by that deadline, we intend to proceed with a
referral to the State Bar.

Reservation of Rights

Nothing in this letter shall be construed as a waiver of any right or claim, or an admission
of any fact or legal conclusion. We expressly reserve all rights available under applicable law,
including the right to file a complaint with the State Bar at any time and to pursue any other
remedies available to us.

This letter is being provided to you directly in your personal capacity as a member of the
State Bar of California, with a copy to the Board of Directors of Daily Journal Corporation.
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

Cc:

Respectfully,

A

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.

Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation
Brian Cardile (Corporate Secretary, Daily Journal Corporation)

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3
New York, N.Y. 10036-2600
December 19, 2025

VIA FEDEX AND EMAIL (BCARDILE@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Attention: Brian Cardile, Corporate Secretary

Re: Demand to Inspect Books and Records Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South
Carolina Business Corporation Act

Dear Mr. Cardile:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., a New York corporation (the "Shareholder"), is—as of the
date set forth above—a record shareholder of Daily Journal Corporation (the "Corporation").

Reference is made to the Notice of Intent to Solicit Proxies in Support of Director
Nominees Pursuant to Rule 14a-19 Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, dated December
13, 2025 (the "Notice"). As further described in the Notice, the Shareholder intends to solicit
proxies in support of the nomination of certain persons for election to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation (the "Board") at the 2026 annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation,
expected to be held on or about February 19, 2026, including any adjournments or postponements
thereof or any special meeting that may be held in lieu thereof (the "2026 Annual Meeting").

I SHAREHOLDER LIST AND RELATED RECORDS

Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the South Carolina Business Corporation Act of 1988
(the "SCBCA"), as a shareholder of the Corporation, the Shareholder hereby demands that
it and its attorneys, representatives and agents be given, during regular business hours and
at the Corporation's principal office or other reasonable location specified by the
Corporation, the opportunity to inspect and copy or make extracts therefrom, the following
records of the Corporation for the purpose of (1) disseminating a definitive proxy statement
to the Corporation's shareholders in connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the
2026 Annual Meeting and (2) communicating with the Corporation's shareholders in
connection with a solicitation of proxies for use at the 2026 Annual Meeting (the
"Demand"), including, but not limited to:

a) a complete record or list of the shareholders of the Corporation in electronic
medium form, certified by the Corporation's transfer agent(s) and/or registrar(s),
setting forth the name, address and email address of, and the number, series and
class of shares of stock of the Corporation held by, each shareholder as of the most







b)

d)

recent date available, and, when available, such list for each shareholder as of any
record date (the "Record Date") established or to be established for the 2026 Annual
Meeting or any other meeting of shareholders held in lieu thereof (the most recent
available date and any such record date, a "Determination Date");

a complete record or list of shareholders of the Corporation and respondent banks
who have elected to receive electronic copies of proxy materials with respect to
meetings of the shareholders of the Corporation pursuant to Rule 14a-16(j)(2) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), including,
for each such shareholder, the email address provided by such shareholder;

all transfer journals and daily transfer sheets showing changes in the names and
addresses of the Corporation's shareholders and the number, series or class of shares
of stock of the Corporation held by the Corporation's shareholders that are in or
come into the possession of the Corporation or its transfer agent(s), registrar(s), or
proxy solicitor(s), or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks,
clearing agencies or voting trusts or their nominees from the date of the shareholder
list referred to in paragraph (a) through the date of the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's or its transfer agent(s)' or
registrar(s)' or proxy solicitor(s)' possession, custody or control or that can
reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing agencies, voting
trusts or their nominees relating to the names and addresses and telephone numbers
of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation as of each
Determination Date held by the participating brokers and banks named in the
individual nominee names of Cede & Co. and other similar depositories or
nominees of any central certificate depository system, including respondent bank
lists, and all omnibus proxies and related respondent bank proxies and listings
issued pursuant to Rule 14b-2 under the Exchange Act, including a Weekly Report
of Security Position Listings from The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (a
"Weekly DTC Report") as of each Determination Date, and, following the setting
and occurrence of the Record Date, a Weekly DTC Report for each of the weeks
until the 2026 Annual Meeting;

all information in, or that comes into, the Corporation's possession, custody or
control or that can reasonably be obtained from brokers, dealers, banks, clearing
agencies, voting trusts or their nominees, relating to the names and addresses of,
and shares of stock of the Corporation held by, the non-objecting beneficial owners
(or "NOBOs") of the shares of stock of the Corporation as of each Determination
Date (or any other date established or obtained by the Corporation) pursuant to Rule
14b-1(c) or Rule 14b-2(c) under the Exchange Act, in Microsoft Excel, or, if the
information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel file, means by which the
Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft Excel file, and a hard copy
printout of such information in order of descending balance for verification
purposes. If such information is not in the Corporation's possession, custody, or
control, such information should be requested from Broadridge Financial Solutions,
Inc., Say Technologies, LLC, and Mediant Communications LLC, or any other
similar shareholder communications services company that has been engaged by
the Corporation to provide investor communications services in connection with a
meeting of shareholders;








f) an alphabetical breakdown of any holdings in the respective names of Cede & Co.
and other similar depositories or nominees, as well as any material request list
provided by Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and
Mediant Communications, LLC, and any omnibus proxies issued by such entities
in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting. If such information is not in the
Corporation's possession, custody, or control, such information should be requested
from Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Say Technologies LLC, and Mediant
Communications, LLC;

g) all lists and electronic files (together with such computer processing data as is
necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such files) containing the name and
address of and number, series and class of shares of stock of the Corporation
attributable to any participant in any employee share ownership plan, stock
ownership dividend reinvestment, employee share purchase plan or other employee
compensation or benefit plan of the Corporation in which the decision to vote shares
of stock of the Corporation held by such plan is made, directly or indirectly,
individually or collectively, by the participants in the plan and the method(s) by
which the Shareholder or its agents may communicate with each such participant,
as well as the name, affiliation and telephone number of the trustee or administrator
of each such plan, and a detailed explanation of the treatment not only of shares for
which the trustee or administrator receives instructions from participants, but also
shares for which either the trustee or administrator does not receive instructions or
shares that are outstanding in the plan but are unallocated to any participant, in
Microsoft Excel, or, if the information is not currently stored in a Microsoft Excel
file, means by which the Shareholder can import the information into a Microsoft
Excel file, and a hard copy printout of such information in alphabetical order for
verification purposes; and

h) to the extent not already referred to above, any electronic file which contains any
or all of the information encompassed in this Demand, together with any program,
software, manual, or other instructions necessary for the practical use of such
information.

The information and records specified in the foregoing paragraphs (a) through (h) should
be given as of the most recent available date and, unless stated otherwise, should be updated
as of the Record Date promptly as such information becomes available to the Corporation,
its registrar, its proxy solicitor, or any of the Corporation's or their respective agents.

To reiterate, all information requested in paragraphs (a) through (h) should be provided in
hard copy (paper) form, as well as CD-ROM format, electronically transmitted file, or
similar electronic medium (any such electronic storage medium, an "Electronic Medium"),
and such computer processing data as is necessary for the Shareholder to make use of such
list on an Electronic Medium; and a hard copy printout of the total aggregate accounts and
shares represented by such list on an Electronic Medium for verification purposes;
provided, however if the hard copy (paper) form exceeds fifty (50) printed pages then in
lieu of hard copy (paper), the Corporation should provide such data in an Electronic
Medium.








II.

ADDITIONAL BOOKS AND RECORDS

In addition to the shareholder list and related records described in Part I above, and pursuant
to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the Shareholder hereby demands the opportunity to
inspect and copy the following books and records of the Corporation for the purposes of
(1) investigating potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of
internal controls at the Corporation, (2) evaluating the qualifications, performance, and
independence of the Corporation's directors and officers, and (3) assessing the adequacy of
the Corporation's financial reporting and compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("GAAP"):

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

all minutes of meetings of the Board and any committee thereof, including but
not limited to the Audit Committee, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)
Accounting Standards Codification Topic 985-20 ("ASC 985-20"), (C)
capitalization of software development costs at Journal Technologies, Inc. or any
subsidiary or division of the Corporation, (D) any internal or external review,
investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices or policies,
or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

all written communications between the Corporation and its independent
auditors, including Baker Tilly US, LLP and any predecessor auditors, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, (D) any deficiency in internal controls over financial
reporting, (E) any disagreement between the Corporation and its auditors
regarding accounting treatment or disclosure, or (F) any management
representation letters provided to the auditors concerning software development
costs or related accounting policies;

all documents, reports, memoranda, presentations, and analyses prepared by or
for the Board, any committee thereof, or any officer of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to any internal
review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's software development
cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or potential GAAP
violations, including any reports or findings of internal or external counsel,
accountants, or other advisors retained in connection with any such review,
investigation, or inquiry;

all written communications sent or received by Tu To, in her capacity as Chief
Financial Officer or in any other capacity on behalf of the Corporation, from
January 1, 2020 to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software
development cost accounting, (B) ASC 985-20, (C) capitalization of software
development costs, or (D) any internal or external review, investigation, or
inquiry into the Corporation's accounting practices;

all Audit Committee meeting materials, including agendas, presentations,
reports, and supporting documentation, from January 1, 2020 to the present, that
discuss, reference, or relate to (A) software development cost accounting, (B)
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ASC 985-20, (C) Journal Technologies, Inc., (D) any communication from the
Corporation's independent auditors regarding accounting policies or internal
controls, or (E) any actual or potential restatement of the Corporation's financial
statements;

(vi) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present, that discuss,
reference, or relate to (A) Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc., Buxton Helmsley, Inc.,
or any affiliate thereof, (B) Alexander Parker, (C) any shareholder proposal,
nomination, or other communication received from Buxton Helmsley or Mr.
Parker, (D) any public statement or filing made by or concerning Buxton
Helmsley or Mr. Parker, or (E) the Corporation's response to any of the
foregoing;

(vii) all documents, correspondence, and communications between or among
directors and officers of the Corporation, from January 1, 2024 to the present,
that discuss, reference, or relate to (A) any investigation of the Corporation's
accounting practices initiated in response to concerns raised by shareholders, (B)
the scope, findings, or conclusions of any such investigation, or (C) any remedial
actions taken or considered in response to any such investigation;

(viii) all engagement letters, statements of work, and invoices from any outside
counsel, accounting firm, or other advisor retained by the Corporation in
connection with (A) any review, investigation, or inquiry into the Corporation's
software development cost accounting practices or compliance with GAAP, or
(B) any response to shareholder concerns regarding the Corporation's accounting
practices; and

(ix) all documents and communications reflecting any communication between the
Corporation and the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board, or any other regulatory body, from January 1, 2020
to the present, that discuss, reference, or relate to the Corporation's software
development cost accounting practices, compliance with ASC 985-20, or any
other accounting matter.

PURPOSE OF DEMAND

The purpose of the requests in Part [ of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder and certain
of its affiliates and representatives to communicate with other holders of common stock
with respect to matters relating to their interests as shareholders, including, without
limitation, an affiliate of the Shareholder soliciting proxies from the Corporation's
shareholders in connection with the 2026 Annual Meeting.

The purpose of the requests in Part II of this Demand is to enable the Shareholder to (1)
investigate potential mismanagement, breaches of fiduciary duty, and failures of internal
controls relating to the Corporation's accounting practices and financial reporting, (2)
evaluate the qualifications, performance, and independence of the Corporation's current
directors and officers, including their oversight of financial reporting and response to
shareholder concerns, (3) assess whether the Corporation's financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP and whether any restatement may be required, and (4)
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make an informed decision regarding how to vote its shares and communicate with other
shareholders at the 2026 Annual Meeting regarding the election of directors and other
matters.

The Shareholder represents that (i) it is seeking this inspection for a proper purpose
reasonably related to its interest as a shareholder, (ii) it describes with reasonable
particularity its purpose and the records it desires to inspect, (iii) the records requested are
directly connected with the Shareholder's purpose, and (iv) it will not sell the requested
information to any person, give the requested information to any competitor of the
Corporation, or otherwise use the information for any improper purpose.

The records enumerated in this Demand are directly connected with the above purposes of
this Demand and are reasonably related to the Shareholder's interests as a shareholder of
the Corporation.

CONTINUING DEMAND AND RESPONSE

This Demand is a continuing demand. The Shareholder demands that all modifications,
corrections, additions, or deletions to any and all information referred to in Parts I and II
above be immediately furnished to the Shareholder as such modifications, corrections,
additions, or deletions become available to the Corporation or its agents or representatives.

The Shareholder hereby designates the undersigned and any other persons designated by
them or by the Shareholder, acting singly or in any combination, to conduct the inspection
and copying herein requested. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, the materials
identified above shall be made available to the Shareholder and its representatives initially
no later than five business days following the date hereof and each Determination Date.
All documents responsive to this Demand shall be produced in electronic format to the
extent such documents exist in electronic form or can reasonably be converted to electronic
form. Production shall be made by secure electronic transmission or other electronic means
agreed upon by the parties. Pursuant to Section 33-16-102 of the SCBCA, you are required
to respond to this demand within five business days of the date hereof. Please advise the
Shareholder's legal department, at legal@buxtonhelmsley.com, as promptly as practicable
within the requisite timeframe.

If the Corporation contends that this request is incomplete or is otherwise deficient in any
respect, please immediately notify the Shareholder immediately in writing, setting forth
any facts that the Corporation contends support its position and specifying any additional
information believed to be required. In the absence of such prompt notice, the Shareholder
will assume that the Corporation agrees that this request complies in all respects with the
requirements of the SCBCA. The Shareholder reserves the right to withdraw or modify this
request at any time.

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS







This Demand is being made without prejudice to (i) any previous requests made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the Exchange Act, (ii) any previous demand made by the
Shareholder or its affiliates under the SCBCA or (iii) any other demands, which may be
made by the Shareholder or its affiliates, from time to time, whether pursuant to the
Exchange Act, the SCBCA, or other applicable federal or state law, or the Corporation's
organizational documents.

[Signature Page Follows]







Very truly yours,

BUXTON HELMSLEY USA, INC.

A

By: boxsiGN 4K8WWQP1-1RV5Z5PR

Name: Alexander E. Parker
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Cc: Board of Directors, Daily Journal Corporation







						alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com


			2025-12-19T18:19:43+0000


			Signed with Box Sign by Alexander Parker (alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com)
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From: Parker, Alexander E.
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Subject: Daily Journal Corporation - Notice Regarding Potential Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350
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Mr. Nakamura,

Please find attached formal correspondence regarding material accounting deficiencies at Daily
Journal Corporation that may expose you to personal criminal liability under 18 U.S.C. § 1350, if you
certify the Company's upcoming Form 10-K.

This letter details two independent GAAP and SEC reporting violations—the Company’s failure to
capitalize software development costs under ASC 985-20 and its failure to separately report research
and development expenses under Regulation S-X § 210.5-03—and explains why certification of
financial statements that perpetuate these violations would constitute willful false certification
under Sarbanes-Oxley.

| strongly encourage you to read this letter carefully before signing any SEC filings on behalf of the
Company.

Very truly yours,
Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY
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December 19, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO ERIK NAKAMURA (ENAKAMURA@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Mr. Erik Nakamura

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice Regarding Potential
Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350

Dear Mr. Nakamura:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (“Buxton Helmsley” or “we”) beneficially own shares of
Daily Journal Corporation (the “Company’). We are writing to put you on formal notice—before
you possibly certify the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025—of
material accounting deficiencies that, if left unremediated, may expose you to personal criminal
liability under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

The Company’s financial statements contain two distinct and independent violations of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) and SEC reporting requirements. Each
violation alone would render the financial statements materially misstated. Together, they
demonstrate a fundamental failure of financial reporting at the Company.

VIOLATION ONE: Failure to Capitalize Software Development Costs Under ASC 985-20

As you are aware, the Company’s subsidiary, Journal Technologies, Inc., develops and
licenses software for external use by courts and other justice agencies. The accounting treatment
for costs incurred in developing software for external sale or licensing is governed by Accounting
Standards Codification Topic 985-20 (“ASC 985-20").

Under ASC 985-20, once technological feasibility has been established, software
development costs must be capitalized. These costs are then amortized over the product’s
economic life. The threshold for capitalization is met when the entity has completed all planning,
designing, coding, and testing activities necessary to establish that the product can be produced to
meet its design specifications.

For years, the Company has expensed 100% of its software development costs, capitalizing
nothing. This accounting treatment is incorrect. It results in material understatement of assets,
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material overstatement of expenses, and material misstatement of net income in every period in
which capitalizable development activities occurred.

The Company’s Own Admissions

In its Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, the Company stated, on
page 7:

“As a technology-based company, Journal Technologies’ success depends on the
continued improvement of its products, which is why the costs to update and
upgrade them consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s
expenses.”

The Company has thus admitted that (1) it incurs significant costs to “update”, “upgrade”,
and “improve[]” its software products, and (2) these costs constitute a “significant” portion of the
Company’s expenses. The Company has already admitted how “significant” (i.e., material) this
error has been overs years of quarterly financials.

Development costs related to updating and upgrading existing software products are
precisely the types of costs that are subject to capitalization under ASC 985-20, once technological
feasibility is established. The Company cannot simultaneously claim that these costs are
“significant” while entirely omitting them from its balance sheet. The Company has failed to keep
proper accounting records for years, which means it must reconstruct its historical financial
statements to regain compliance—there is no choice, given such “significant” non-compliance.

The Absurdity of the Company’s Accounting Position

Let us be direct about the logical impossibility of the Company’s historical accounting
treatment.

The only justification under GAAP for expensing 100% of software development costs is
a claim that technological feasibility has never been established—that the Company’s software
products have never progressed beyond the preliminary project stage.

This position is facially absurd.

Journal Technologies currently derives approximately 76% of the Company’s consolidated
revenues from its software products. These are not experimental prototypes or conceptual designs.
These are fully developed, commercially deployed software systems that courts and justice
agencies across the country rely upon every day to manage their operations. You cannot generate
76% of your revenues from a product that is not technologically feasible. The revenue itself is
conclusive proof that technological feasibility was achieved long ago.
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Moreover, the Company’s own language betrays the fallacy of its accounting position. A
product cannot be “upgraded” unless it already exists in a completed, functional state. The very
concept of an “upgrade” presupposes a working product that is being enhanced. You do not
“upgrade” something that has not yet demonstrated it can be produced to meet its design
specifications—you develop it. The fact that the Company describes its development activities as

“updates”, “upgrades”, and “improvements” is an admission that the underlying products have
long since achieved technological feasibility.

To put it simply: if the software works, it is feasible. If it generates revenue, it works. If
the Company is upgrading it, it already exists. The Company cannot have it both ways—claiming
its products are technologically unproven for accounting purposes while simultaneously selling
those same products to customers and generating tens of millions of dollars in annual revenue.

We expect you, as an incoming Chief Financial Officer, to understand the fundamental
difference between an expense and an investment. This distinction is not a technicality—it is the
cornerstone of accrual accounting and the very issue at the heart of the Company’s longstanding
violation of ASC 985-20. Costs that provide future economic benefit are capitalized as assets;
costs that do not are expensed. The Company’s policy of expensing all development costs—
including those incurred to create valuable, revenue-generating software enhancements—treats
investments as if they were worthless the moment they are made. That is not consistent with
GAAP.

VIOLATION TWO: Failure to Separately Report Research and Development Expenses
Under Regulation S-X

Entirely independent of the ASC 985-20 capitalization issue, the Company’s financial
statements violate Regulation S-X by failing to separately disclose research and development
expenses on the face of the income statement.

Regulation S-X § 210.5-03 prescribes the form and content of income statements for SEC
registrants. That section requires registrants to present research and development costs as a
separate line item on the income statement when the category is “material” (as the Company has
admitted, “significant”), distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses. It is a violation
of Regulation S-X to lump material categories of expenses together.

The Company has admitted—in its own words—that its software development costs
“consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s expenses.” The word
“significant” is a term of art in accounting and SEC reporting. By the Company’s own admission,
these costs are material.

Yet the Company does not report research and development expenses as a separate line
item on its consolidated statements of operations. Instead, these material costs are improperly
buried within selling, general and administrative expenses, invisible to investors reviewing the
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face of the financial statements, leaving it impossible for investors to understand how much capital
is being invested into Journal Technologies’ software products. This presentation violates Section
210.5-03 of Regulation S-X.

This is a violation of Regulation S-X that is entirely separate from the ASC 985-20
capitalization issue. Even if the Company’s policy of expensing all development costs were
correct (which it is not), the Company would still be required to separately disclose those expenses
on the income statement—apart from SG&A—when they are material. The Company has
admitted materiality. The Company has failed to make the required disclosure.

To be clear: the Form 10-K must separately report true research and development
expenses—meaning research and development costs that are properly expensed, excluding those
development activities that should be capitalized under ASC 985-20—as a line item distinct from
selling, general and administrative expenses. The Company’s current presentation fails on both
counts: it neither capitalizes what should be capitalized nor separately discloses what should be
disclosed.

Authoritative Guidance

We are enclosing for your reference an article published by the Journal of Accountancy,
the official publication of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA™), titled
“Accounting for external-use software development costs in an agile environment” (March 12,
2018). The article is available at:

https://www.journalofaccountancy.com/news/2018/mar/accounting-for-external-use-software-
development-costs-201818259/

As you are aware, the AICPA is the organization that develops and grades the CPA exam,
determining who is and is not qualified to hold a CPA license. It, therefore, would be a mistake
not to agree with them.

The article explains, with accompanying diagrams (if you should require a visual), how
software development costs should be analyzed under ASC 985-20, including in modern agile
development environments. It states unequivocally: “[c]ompanies using an agile approach to
develop software might conclude inappropriately that technological feasibility has not been met
significantly before the software enhancement is available to customers, resulting in costs being
expensed as incurred rather than being capitalized.”

The article further states that “[d]istinguishing between costs that can be capitalized and
those that cannot be capitalized can complicate the project accounting, reporting, and
documentation steps within each sprint somewhat. But the additional administrative work does not
have to be onerous. In most cases the various tasks and deliverables within each sprint can be
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segmented into broad categories, so that all costs associated with that task can be either expensed
or capitalized.”

The article further explains that “[f]ailure to take this initial action could make it difficult
to correctly separate costs between those that should be capitalized and those that should be
expensed. This could lead to errors in the application of GAAP as well as errors in the amount of

net income or loss entities report.”

That is precisely what has occurred at Journal Technologies, quarter after quarter, year
after year.

For your reference, the AICPA’s diagram depicting which activities within an agile
“sprint” are subject to capitalization:

06

v

Capitalizable
Feature Activities Occur

3 Within “Sprints”
w of Activities

Software Release

Your Certification Obligations

When you sign the Form 10-K, you will be required to provide certifications pursuant to
Section 302 and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Under Section 302, you will
certify that the financial statements “fairly present in all material respects the financial condition
and results of operations” of the Company. Under Section 906 (codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350), you
will certify that the periodic report “fully complies” with SEC reporting requirements and that the
information “fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of

Page 5 of 8









Erik Nakamura

December 19, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

operations” of the Company. There is no mistake that, if you certify financials within the
upcoming Form 10-K that perpetuate these violations involving “significant” financial activities,
that you would be falsely certifying the financial statements to fairly represent, in all “material”
aspects, the financial condition and results of operations.

Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350(c), any person who certifies a statement knowing that the periodic
report does not comport with all the requirements of the statute shall be fined not more than
$1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 10 years, or both. Any person who willfully certifies a
statement knowing it does not comport with all requirements shall be fined not more than
$5,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.

You Now Have No Plausible Deniability

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you of the Company’s failure to comply with
ASC 985-20 and Regulation S-X. You are now on notice that:

1. The Company has a longstanding policy of expensing 100% of software
development costs, in violation of ASC 985-20, requiring restatement of several
periods of historical financial statements;

2. ASC 985-20 requires capitalization of development costs incurred after
technological feasibility is established;

3. The Company has admitted in its own SEC filings that it incurs “significant” costs
to “update”, “upgrade”, and “improve[]” its software products;

4. The Company generates approximately 76% of its consolidated revenues from the
very software products it implicitly claims have never achieved technological
feasibility;

5. No reasonable accountant could conclude that software generating tens of millions
of dollars in annual revenue has not achieved technological feasibility;

6. Separately and independently, the Company fails to report research and
development expenses as a separate line item on its income statement, in violation
of Regulation S-X Section 210.5-03;

7. The Company has admitted these expenses are “significant,” establishing their
materiality for disclosure purposes; and

8. These two violations—the failure to capitalize under ASC 985-20 and the failure
to separately disclose under Regulation S-X—each independently result in material
misstatement of the Company’s financial statements.

If you sign a Form 10-K that continues to entirely omit capitalization of software
development costs—or that fails to separately disclose true research and development expenses
(excluding development activities subject to capitalization) as a line item on the income statement
distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses—you will be certifying financial
statements that you know, based on this notice, do not fairly present the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company and do not fully comply with SEC reporting requirements.

Page 6 of 8









Erik Nakamura

December 19, 2025 BUXTON b‘ HELMSLEY

Such certification, made with knowledge of these deficiencies, would be quite impossible
to argue not constituting a willful false certification under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

Consequences

If you certify a Form 10-K that perpetuates the Company’s noncompliance with ASC 985-
20 and Regulation S-X after receiving this notice, Buxton Helmsley intends to:

1. Refer the matter to the Division of Enforcement of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission, with a recommendation that the Commission investigate
potential violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and other applicable securities laws;

2. File a complaint with the California Board of Accountancy and any other state
licensing authority with jurisdiction over your CPA license, seeking disciplinary
action for your role in willfully certifying materially misstated financial statements,
in violation of accounting standards and federal securities laws; and

3. Pursue all available legal remedies against you personally, including but not limited
to claims for securities fraud and breach of fiduciary duty, following the conclusion
of our proxy contest.

Conclusion

You have an opportunity to do the right thing. You should refuse to certify financial
statements that continue to materially misstate the Company’s assets, expenses, and net income.

The choice is yours. But you cannot later claim ignorance. This letter ensures that any
certification you provide will be made with full knowledge of the issues we have described.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

December 19, 2025

VIA EMAIL TO ERIK NAKAMURA (ENAKAMURA@JOURNALTECH.COM)

Mr. Erik Nakamura

Daily Journal Corporation

915 East First Street

Los Angeles, California 90012

Re:  Daily Journal Corporation (“DJCO” or the “Company”) — Notice Regarding Potential
Criminal Liability Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350

Dear Mr. Nakamura:

Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc. (“Buxton Helmsley” or “we”’) beneficially owns shares of the
Company. We are writing to put you on formal notice—before you possibly certify the Company’s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2025—of material accounting deficiencies
that, if left unremediated, may expose you to personal criminal liability under Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

The Company’s financial statements contain two distinct and independent violations of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) and SEC reporting requirements. Each
violation alone would render the financial statements materially misstated. Together, they
demonstrate a fundamental failure of financial reporting at the Company.

VIOLATION ONE: Failure to Capitalize Software Development Costs Under ASC 985-20

As you are aware, the Company’s subsidiary, Journal Technologies, Inc., develops and
licenses software for external use by courts and other justice agencies. The accounting treatment
for costs incurred in developing software for external sale or licensing is governed by Accounting
Standards Codification Topic 985-20 (“ASC 985-20").

Under ASC 985-20, once technological feasibility has been established, software
development costs must be capitalized. These costs are then amortized over the product’s
economic life. The threshold for capitalization is met when the entity has completed all planning,
designing, coding, and testing activities necessary to establish that the product can be produced to
meet its design specifications.

For years, the Company has expensed 100% of its software development costs, capitalizing
nothing. This accounting treatment is incorrect. It results in material understatement of assets,
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material overstatement of expenses, and material misstatement of net income in every period in
which capitalizable development activities occurred.

The Company’s Own Admissions

In its Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, the Company stated, on
page 7:

“As a technology-based company, Journal Technologies’ success depends on the
continued improvement of its products, which is why the costs to update and
upgrade them consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s
expenses.”

The Company has thus admitted that (1) it incurs significant costs to “update”, “upgrade”,
and “improve[]” its software products, and (2) these costs constitute a “significant” portion of the
Company’s expenses. The Company has already admitted how “significant” (i.e., material) this
error has been overs years of quarterly financials.

Development costs related to updating and upgrading existing software products are
precisely the types of costs that are subject to capitalization under ASC 985-20, once technological
feasibility is established. The Company cannot simultaneously claim that these costs are
“significant” while entirely omitting them from its balance sheet. The Company has failed to keep
proper accounting records for years, which means it must reconstruct its historical financial
statements to regain compliance—there is no choice, given such “significant” non-compliance.

The Absurdity of the Company’s Accounting Position

Let us be direct about the logical impossibility of the Company’s historical accounting
treatment.

The only justification under GAAP for expensing 100% of software development costs is
a claim that technological feasibility has never been established—that the Company’s software
products have never progressed beyond the preliminary project stage.

This position is facially absurd.

Journal Technologies currently derives approximately 76% of the Company’s consolidated
revenues from its software products. These are not experimental prototypes or conceptual designs.
These are fully developed, commercially deployed software systems that courts and justice
agencies across the country rely upon every day to manage their operations. You cannot generate
76% of your revenues from a product that is not technologically feasible. The revenue itself is
conclusive proof that technological feasibility was achieved long ago.
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Moreover, the Company’s own language betrays the fallacy of its accounting position. A
product cannot be “upgraded” unless it already exists in a completed, functional state. The very
concept of an “upgrade” presupposes a working product that is being enhanced. You do not
“upgrade” something that has not yet demonstrated it can be produced to meet its design
specifications—you develop it. The fact that the Company describes its development activities as

“updates”, “upgrades”, and “improvements” is an admission that the underlying products have
long since achieved technological feasibility.

To put it simply: if the software works, it is feasible. If it generates revenue, it works. If
the Company is upgrading it, it already exists. The Company cannot have it both ways—claiming
its products are technologically unproven for accounting purposes while simultaneously selling
those same products to customers and generating tens of millions of dollars in annual revenue.

We expect you, as an incoming Chief Financial Officer, to understand the fundamental
difference between an expense and an investment. This distinction is not a technicality—it is the
cornerstone of accrual accounting and the very issue at the heart of the Company’s longstanding
violation of ASC 985-20. Costs that provide future economic benefit are capitalized as assets;
costs that do not are expensed. The Company’s policy of expensing all development costs—
including those incurred to create valuable, revenue-generating software enhancements—treats
investments as if they were worthless the moment they are made. That is not consistent with
GAAP.

VIOLATION TWO: Failure to Separately Report Research and Development Expenses
Under Regulation S-X

Entirely independent of the ASC 985-20 capitalization issue, the Company’s financial
statements violate Regulation S-X by failing to separately disclose research and development
expenses on the face of the income statement.

Regulation S-X § 210.5-03 prescribes the form and content of income statements for SEC
registrants. That section requires registrants to present research and development costs as a
separate line item on the income statement when the category is “material” (as the Company has
admitted, “significant”), distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses. It is a violation
of Regulation S-X to lump material categories of expenses together.

The Company has admitted—in its own words—that its software development costs
“consistently constitute such a significant portion of the Company’s expenses.” The word
“significant” is a term of art in accounting and SEC reporting. By the Company’s own admission,
these costs are material.

Yet the Company does not report research and development expenses as a separate line
item on its consolidated statements of operations. Instead, these material costs are improperly
buried within selling, general and administrative expenses, invisible to investors reviewing the
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face of the financial statements, leaving it impossible for investors to understand how much capital
is being invested into Journal Technologies’ software products. This presentation violates Section
210.5-03 of Regulation S-X.

This is a violation of Regulation S-X that is entirely separate from the ASC 985-20
capitalization issue. Even if the Company’s policy of expensing all development costs were
correct (which it is not), the Company would still be required to separately disclose those expenses
on the income statement—apart from SG&A—when they are material. The Company has
admitted materiality. The Company has failed to make the required disclosure.

To be clear: the Form 10-K must separately report true research and development
expenses—meaning research and development costs that are properly expensed, excluding those
development activities that should be capitalized under ASC 985-20—as a line item distinct from
selling, general and administrative expenses. The Company’s current presentation fails on both
counts: it neither capitalizes what should be capitalized nor separately discloses what should be
disclosed.

Authoritative Guidance

We are enclosing for your reference an article published by the Journal of Accountancy,
the official publication of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA™), titled
“Accounting for external-use software development costs in an agile environment” (March 12,
2018). The article is available at:

https://www.journalofaccountancy.com/news/2018/mar/accounting-for-external-use-software-
development-costs-201818259/

As you are aware, the AICPA is the organization that develops and grades the CPA exam,
determining who is and is not qualified to hold a CPA license. It, therefore, would be a mistake
not to agree with them.

The article explains, with accompanying diagrams (if you should require a visual), how
software development costs should be analyzed under ASC 985-20, including in modern agile
development environments. It states unequivocally: “[c]ompanies using an agile approach to
develop software might conclude inappropriately that technological feasibility has not been met
significantly before the software enhancement is available to customers, resulting in costs being
expensed as incurred rather than being capitalized.”

The article further states that “[d]istinguishing between costs that can be capitalized and
those that cannot be capitalized can complicate the project accounting, reporting, and
documentation steps within each sprint somewhat. But the additional administrative work does not
have to be onerous. In most cases the various tasks and deliverables within each sprint can be
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segmented into broad categories, so that all costs associated with that task can be either expensed
or capitalized.”

The article further explains that “[f]ailure to take this initial action could make it difficult
to correctly separate costs between those that should be capitalized and those that should be
expensed. This could lead to errors in the application of GAAP as well as errors in the amount of

net income or loss entities report.”

That is precisely what has occurred at Journal Technologies, quarter after quarter, year
after year.

For your reference, the AICPA’s diagram depicting which activities within an agile
“sprint” are subject to capitalization:

06

v

Capitalizable
Feature Activities Occur

3 Within “Sprints”
w of Activities

Software Release

Your Certification Obligations

When you sign the Form 10-K, you will be required to provide certifications pursuant to
Section 302 and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Under Section 302, you will
certify that the financial statements “fairly present in all material respects the financial condition
and results of operations” of the Company. Under Section 906 (codified at 18 U.S.C. § 1350), you
will certify that the periodic report “fully complies” with SEC reporting requirements and that the
information “fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
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operations” of the Company. There is no mistake that, if you certify financials within the
upcoming Form 10-K that perpetuate these violations involving “significant” financial activities,
that you would be falsely certifying the financial statements to fairly represent, in all “material”
aspects, the financial condition and results of operations.

Under 18 U.S.C. § 1350(c), any person who certifies a statement knowing that the periodic
report does not comport with all the requirements of the statute shall be fined not more than
$1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 10 years, or both. Any person who willfully certifies a
statement knowing it does not comport with all requirements shall be fined not more than
$5,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.

You Now Have No Plausible Deniability

This letter constitutes formal written notice to you of the Company’s failure to comply with
ASC 985-20 and Regulation S-X. You are now on notice that:

1. The Company has a longstanding policy of expensing 100% of software
development costs, in violation of ASC 985-20, requiring restatement of several
periods of historical financial statements;

2. ASC 985-20 requires capitalization of development costs incurred after
technological feasibility is established;

3. The Company has admitted in its own SEC filings that it incurs “significant” costs
to “update”, “upgrade”, and “improve[]” its software products;

4. The Company generates approximately 76% of its consolidated revenues from the
very software products it implicitly claims have never achieved technological
feasibility;

5. No reasonable accountant could conclude that software generating tens of millions
of dollars in annual revenue has not achieved technological feasibility;

6. Separately and independently, the Company fails to report research and
development expenses as a separate line item on its income statement, in violation
of Regulation S-X Section 210.5-03;

7. The Company has admitted these expenses are “significant,” establishing their
materiality for disclosure purposes; and

8. These two violations—the failure to capitalize under ASC 985-20 and the failure
to separately disclose under Regulation S-X—each independently result in material
misstatement of the Company’s financial statements.

If you sign a Form 10-K that continues to entirely omit capitalization of software
development costs—or that fails to separately disclose true research and development expenses
(excluding development activities subject to capitalization) as a line item on the income statement
distinct from selling, general and administrative expenses—you will be certifying financial
statements that you know, based on this notice, do not fairly present the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company and do not fully comply with SEC reporting requirements.
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Such certification, made with knowledge of these deficiencies, would be quite impossible
to argue not constituting a willful false certification under 18 U.S.C. § 1350.

Consequences

If you certify a Form 10-K that perpetuates the Company’s noncompliance with ASC 985-
20 and Regulation S-X after receiving this notice, Buxton Helmsley intends to:

1. Refer the matter to the Division of Enforcement of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission, with a recommendation that the Commission investigate
potential violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and other applicable securities laws;

2. File a complaint with the California Board of Accountancy and any other state
licensing authority with jurisdiction over your CPA license, seeking disciplinary
action for your role in willfully certifying materially misstated financial statements,
in violation of accounting standards and federal securities laws; and

3. Pursue all available legal remedies against you personally, including but not limited
to claims for securities fraud and breach of fiduciary duty, following the conclusion
of our proxy contest.

Conclusion

You have an opportunity to do the right thing. You should refuse to certify financial
statements that continue to materially misstate the Company’s assets, expenses, and net income.

The choice is yours. But you cannot later claim ignorance. This letter ensures that any
certification you provide will be made with full knowledge of the issues we have described.

Respectfully,

A———

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Buxton Helmsley USA, Inc.
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Cc:  John B. Frank, Audit Committee Chair, Daily Journal Corporation

Baker Tilly US, LLP

2040 Main Street, Suite 900

Irvine, California 92614

Attn: Daily Journal Corporation Audit Engagement Partner
Daily Journal Corporation Audit Quality Review Partner
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From: Parker, Alexander E.

To: ifrank@oaktreecap.com

Subject: Your Call

Date: Thursday, December 18, 2025 10:30:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Sensitivity: Confidential

John,

You were copied on my correspondence with Rasool this evening, also forwarded to Baker Tilly. | am
going to assume that you—a securities lawyer—do not share his view that compliance with federal
securities laws is "the flimsiest of technicalities."

| want to be direct with you. My objective is to fix the governance and accounting failures at this
Company. Itis not to destroy careers unnecessarily.

You and Mary have the votes to terminate Steven and settle this matter. If you do that—if the Board
takes responsibility for what has happened and reconstitutes itself with appropriate oversight—I am
prepared to work with you and Mary, not against you. You do not have to resign. The bar referral
goes away. We move forward together.

You and Mary had 40% of shareholders vote against you at the last annual meeting. That was before
any of this came to light. If we work together to fix what is broken, | am confident we can restore
shareholder confidence in this Board. You can be part of the solution. A proxy contest will do the
opposite—it will make the failures public, the divisions permanent, and the outcome far worse for
everyone.

My deadline from the letter this morning remains Monday at 5pm. | would rather spend the
weekend negotiating a constructive path forward with you and Mary than this situation
deteriorating any further, but the choice is yours.

Alexander

Alexander E. Parker
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer | Buxton Helmsley, Inc.

As seen in The Wall Street Journal, Reuters, Bloomberg, MarketWatch, The Irish Times, and TheStreet.com

BUXTON ™ HELMSLEY

T +1(212)951-1530 | F +1(212) 641-4349
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 | New York, NY 10036-2600

Learn more about Buxton Helmsley:
BuxtonHelmsley.com | LinkedIn
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